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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
=S

Dear shareholders:

L
.}.

Alnl

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Beijing Jingkelong
Company Limited (the “Company” or “Jingkelong”), | am delighted
to present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Reporting Period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2014, Despite a higher pressure of economic downturn, the
domestic macroeconomic growth remained stable as a whole, and
the economic structure underwent positive changes. The contribution
of consumption to economic growth increased steadily and has
exceeded the contribution of investment, becoming the largest driving
force of economic growth. Faced with operational challenges arising
from the record low growth rate of total retail sales of consumer
goods in recent years, and the rising costs of capital, labor, land and
transportation, innovation and transformation have became our priority
in terms of survival and development under the impact loaded by the
e-commerce developing at an amazing high speed. Bearing in mind
the competition and operational pressure, the entire staff of the Group
took concerted efforts to curb the decline in business performance
by grasping and adapting to the changes in consumer demand and
behavior with focus on two key factors, namely our products and

services.

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved the following results:

° Revenue from principle business was RMB10,007,135,311,
representing an increase of approximately 3.9% as compared to

20183;

° Gross profit was RMB1,331,557,293, representing an increase of

approximately 0.5% as compared to 2013;
° Gross profit margin was approximately 13.3%, representing a
decrease of approximately 0.5% as compared to 13.8% in 2013;
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o Total profit was RMB132,503,339, representing a decrease of

approximately 7.7% as compared to 2013;

o Profit attributable to shareholders of parent company was
RMB41,329,845, representing a decrease of approximately

27.6% as compared to 2013;

o Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.10 (2013: RMBO0.14); and

. The proposed final dividend per share was RMBO0.10 (2013:
RMBO0.10).

In terms of retail business, addressing the competition of e-commerce
driven by the internet and the mobile network technology, the Group
systematically analyzed the advantages of e-commerce for customers
including price transparency, convenient logistics service and
interactive reviews, and cultivated and established competitive edges
which differ from those offered through online shopping by optimizing
its upstream sourcing model to develop customized staple food and
introduce more private label products and new categories of imported
food and live and fresh food, in order to stimulate consumption
through adjustment and transformation of product mix. By conducting
data analysis of store operations, the Group provided guidance
which enhanced the management of stores in terms of order placing,
customer flows, inventory turnover and promotions, attracting more
customers to visit the stores by improved operations of live and fresh
food, and increasing the purchasing power of individual customers by
providing products in demand. To improve shopping experience, the
Group expanded marketing channels by launching its official WeChat
account, facilitated interaction with its members and strengthened

promotions targeted at such members,and also paid more attention

on resolving customer service issues.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREWE

In terms of wholesale business, faced with the changing market
resulted from the impact on the distribution and profit of high-end
liquor due to the policy of restricting public-fund spending promulgated
at the end of 2012, the Group took the initiative to increase the
proportion of non-food products which diluted the proportion of
high-end liquor, enhanced the selection, design and development of
customized and private label products, and adjusted product mix and
brand structure, through those efforts a steady growth in sales revenue
has been achieved as a result. Making full use of the advantages of its
channels and modernized logistics technology, the Group explored the
e-commerce supplier business by leaning on the development trend
of the e-commerce, obtained online selling rights of existing products
for which the Group acted as a distributor and agent, and expanded
and broadened the channels and models of collaboration with
e-commerce service providers. To reinforce its competitive advantage
in the logistics area, the Group continued to upgrade its logistics
and distributing system to bring in functions including disassembling
and sorting, bulk cargo space management and consignment and
inventory management, improved its refined logistics services for bulk
products of small and medium-sized customers, and made use of its
logistics data system to analyze and control logistics costs to lower

operating cost.

OUTLOOK

Looking into 2015, the growth of the domestic macro economy will
transit from a high-speed growth towards a moderate-to-high speed,
coupled with the relatively higher pressure and risk for an economic
downturn. However, the constant in-depth changes in structure and
mechanism, will bring vitality and momentum to long-term economic
growth; and the central government will accord higher priority to
model transformation and structural adjustment, emphasize innovation
driven growth to strengthen the protection on livelihood and facilitate
the sustainable and healthy growth of the economy. Proactively
carrying out adjustment and transformation to push forward the reform
on its procurement and operation models, the Group will expand the

stores’ community services function of its retail business to establish
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a comprehensive marketing system by relying on its physical stores as
the foundation and bringing in difference marketing channels such as
mobile application, website and official WeChat account. The Group
will promote the transformation of the wholesale business towards an
integrated operation model incorporating offline wholesale merchant
business, online e-commerce supplier business and third-party logistics
services business so as to address the new changes in procurement
behavior and demand in the Internet and the mobile Internet age.
Meanwhile, committed to its social responsibilities, the Group will
pay more attention on food safety and environmental protection,
strictly stick to product access standards, and increase investment
in environmental protection, technological renovation, energy saving
and waste reduction in response to the calls of the government. With
our strenuous efforts, we believe that we can adapt to and transform
ourselves under the new market environment, and achieve a resilient

growth in profit to bring greater return for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for their trust and support; to all business partners,
suppliers and customers for their support and assistance, and our
appreciation to all staff and the management team for their hard work

and contribution to the Group during the Reporting Period.

Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
27 March 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Period, due to the downside pressure of the
macro economy, the Group was affected and impacted by various
factors such as rising operating costs, rapid growth of the online
shopping market, diverted customer demands and minimisation of
wastes in the consumption sector, which in turn caused the Group’s
development under persistent pressure. The Group proactively carried
out restructuring and transformation; relied on data analysis to uncover
and specifically tackle prevailing issues in respect of the commodity
management and the satisfaction of consumer demands; and
implemented refined marketing strategies. As such, the Group attained
an increase in sales revenue and strived to curb the downward trend
of profitability despite the predicament of the overall downward

trend of the conventional wholesale and retail industry of fast-moving

consumer goods.

RETAIL BUSINESS

Prudently expanding the retail network

During the Reporting Period, The Group placed its focus on improving
the operating ability of its existing stores and expanded the scope
of its stores prudently. Throughout the year, the Group opened 26
retail stores, comprising 18 directly-operated convenience stores and
8 franchise-operated convenience stores. Due to reasons such as
expiration of the term of leasing and modification to the development
strategy, during the Reporting Period, 4 supermarkets, 3 directly-
operated convenience stores and 13 franchise-operated convenience
stores were closed. In addition, the Group renovated and upgraded
11 existing stores (including 1 hypermarkets, 3 supermarkets and 7

convenience stores).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T m R

The total number of the Group’s retail outlets was 285 as at 31
December 2014. The following table sets out the number and net

operating area of the Group’s retail outlets as at 31 December 2014

HE_Z-—MF+_A=+—H XEEZTEFE
HABBUR285M - TRAMBIIAKER —F—M
FH-A=+—HBNZTEFEHREMFLERE :

Department Convenience
Stores Hypermarket Supermarket stores Total
BEBS Nt} REED ERE aF
Number of retail outlets: ZEMEYE
Directly-operated g% 12 73 115 202
Franchise-operated BB E - 1 82 83
Total SR 2 12 74 197 285
Net operating area FEERE(THK):
(square metres):
Directly-operated Y 39,742 86,089 156,619 21,422 303,872
Franchise-operated SEYIES - 880 15,077 15,957
Total A 39,742 86,089 157,499 36,499 319,829

Rebuilding the advantages of physical retail stores by

adjusting product mix

The social development trend following the aging population and
family miniaturization, has given rise to an increasing demand for
processed and semi-processed foods. To address this trend, the
Group established a policy for developing customized merchandise
under the category of processed and semi-processed foods, set
processing standards and identified producers for carrying out
processing and management buyouts. To meet the needs of certain
high-end consumers, an imported goods procurement team was
formed to develop more mid to high-end goods and imported foods
for the purpose of attracting high-end customers and to gradually
lead a change in consumer composition by transforming product
mix. The Group continued to upgrade its private brands diversified its
commodities, and further stepped up the introduction of new varieties
of vegetables, fruits and meat and thereby maintaining a wide variety

of live and fresh merchandize.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

Diversified marketing approaches

During the Reporting Period, the Group devised a business
promotion framework for the whole year that revolved around “20th
Anniversary Celebrations Because of You”, a theme to celebrate the
20th anniversary of the establishment of the Group, and launched
a series of ongoing large-scale promotional activities. New publicity
methods were adopted, such as setting up video display terminals at
marketplaces, placing advertisements on building walls and advertising
promotional commercials on lottery machines, which boosted
the promotional impact. The Group has attempted to try out new
marketing channels by operating an online a Jingkelong WeChat public
service number since June 2014. Three major marketing events were
organized by combining methods such as the big wheel lucky draw,
scratch card, scan code gifts, merchandise coupons and uploading
of shopping receipts numbers to win free chances, to attract young
consumer traffic for further stepping up the impact of marketing

efforts.

Strengthening refined management of retail stores

During the Reporting Period, the Group focused on improving the
operation capability of retail stores. In this respect, the department of
operations at the headquarters played a role as a coach by placing
emphasis on guiding retail stores to sell live and fresh merchandise
throughout the day and strengthening the marketing and management
of daily goods and processed foods to improve the capability of retail
stores to attract and retain customers; carrying out the data analysis
to identify the problems existing in merchandising at retail stores
through adopting a sequential analysis method over certain factors
such as sales, gross profit, customer traffic, inventory turnover and
order management among retail stores of the same type, same size
and same sort of goods, and solving these problems respectively
and individually to improve the operation capability of retail stores;
strengthening the management of damaged goods at retail stores to
reduce reverse logistics costs and operating loss of goods as well
as to increase the efficiency of merchandise sales. The Group also
completed the LED lighting source system upgrade at retail stores
with the use of government’s fiscal subsidies to both save energy and

reduce upgrade and electricity costs.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

EHAXZRIL

REHANE L RF20F  BABMRINTEEEH
B+ AFERBIE  RE T E2FE(RIHIE
R FERARAEREED : 5| \BSKmAK
B BFES PERREESFEEHETE

BATREZE N KREEAMNEHERE  *F
BEME ARSI E2014F6 ARG 8% - I
UAREE  FEF FHEELE BaEEsF L

BBy N ERREEREE SR MM T IRIT
HEE WA FEHRERTR £ FEBAEHEY
ENE -

A ERRA L EE
BEMA - ZERITEFELRN A LES
BHREBREER  EXEEEHLEHBMRERE
2 IR ERERES MIRmWEHER 2
SEMERRE)  HEEREERREHIME
B OBBRERSEES RERE REBRZ
BETHE £ R EFRS TEEE
EHFOoMAE MBEERERERELETEFE
EEBEY A S E R RREMEE
71 e EHEERMNER - REZRYIRK
K OEAOEmELER  ReMmEERE - MA
BUF R B B - STk S S e LEDIR AR R gtk
TEEKEER MBI BCERBE L -

=



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Improving customer services level

Revolving around the notion of serving its customers, the Group, in
order to further enhance customers’ shopping experience, continued
to introduce a variety of value-added services for third-party prepaid
cards to boost consumption growth. We placed emphasis on member-
focused marketing and stepped up promotional efforts targeted for
members by introducing barcodes on membership cards, adjusting
the reward methods for member bonus points to increase the flexibility
of rewarding members. In order to respond positively to the services
for the convenience of customers and to meet the needs of the elderly
in the community, the Group provided shopping services for elderly
consumers holding “elderly and disabled card” issued by the Civil

Affairs Bureau of Beijing City.

Strengthening food safety work

During the Reporting Period, the Group imposed stringent checks
on food safety by scrutinizing the acceptance of new suppliers and
new products and conducting site inspections on high-risk food
channels to eliminate potential safety risks from the source. The
Group continued to improve its merchandise delisting mechanism
and the early warning mechanism to make better convergence with
the food access mechanism. To better implement food safety and
strengthen the concept of food safety, the Group conducted monthly
special inspections on product quality and condition at retail stores
and live-and-fresh produce distribution centers, aimed at conducting
a comprehensive examination of on-site cooked food manufacturing,
selling and processing. Based on the characteristics of different
seasons, the Group launched a summer food quality and safety
monthly event and conducted a special training programme for the
food safety management personnel in retail stores, in which laws and
regulations as well as the Group’s quality management policy involving
food safety were explained in detail, placing emphasis on key content

and setting out explicit requirements for retail stores to comply with.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BHEE A M AT

Improved efficiency of logistics and distribution

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s normal-temperature
merchandise logistics center successfully put the dissembling and
auto-sorting system into operation, changing the existing open-stock
manual sorting operation model, effectively reducing the error rate
of open stock, and further pushed forward the mechanization of the
logistics operation model towards automation. The Group continued
to improve the booking receipt and enhance delivery services both for
the suppliers and the stores, with a focus on the volume and turnover
of merchandise in stock, and, in particular, to strengthen the input
management of dissembling bulk commodity as well as the control
and clean-up of still sell goods to further shorten the inventory turnover

days of merchandise.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made full use of the lower-cost
advantage in terms of labor and land of the vegetable procurement
bases by completing primary processing in place of origin, including
determining the standard amount of loading per basket, unifying order
specification and delivering the vegetables packed in various forms
such as box packing, bundling and bagging to stores directly from the
bases. Thereby, the operating losses of vegetables was reduced, and
the employment pressure at the storefronts was eased at the same

time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operation results of retail business

An analysis of the retail principal operating income contributed by the
Group’s directly-operated hypermarkets, supermarkets, convenience
stores, department stores and online retail business and the gross

profit margin is set out as follows:

BHEE T MO

TELEEE
TREFAEBELEAES  RABH - EF
EAEESRELTENTE T ERARER
EOAATER

Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease)
—Z-lF —E—=%F #amn Crd)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARETT AREFIT (Bok)
Retail business TEEK:
Hypermarkets KE% 1,325,496 1,181,898 12.1
Supermarkets AT 2,937,405 2,954,246 (0.8)
Convenience stores EFIE 329,451 325,789 1.1
Department stores BERS 52,281 54,611 (4.3)
(including commissions) Heh o BElA 44,560 46,879 (4.9)
Online retail business HLEEE 28,968 =
Total retail principal TETLSEBRKAAST
operating income 4,673,601 4,516,544 8.0
Gross profit margin of directly-operated B4 XZEIE - &M R
hypermarkets, supermarkets and {E F)JE B HE (%)
convenience stores (%) 15.9 16.0 0.1)
During the Reporting Period, the retail principal operating income  $R&EHIARNEETE T L EBKWALL IN43.5%

of the Group increased by approximately 3.5%. This was mainly
attributable to (i) the sales contribution from new stores opened in the
second half of 2013 and during the Reporting Period, and from certain
renovated and reopened stores, and (ii) the launch of more sales
promotion by the Group in year 2014 which resulted in an increase in

the sales revenue in the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the same store sales growth (the “SSSG”)
was -0.6%, versus -6.0% for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The gross profit margin generated from the directly-operated retail
business (excluding department stores) decreased slightly from
approximately 16.0% in 2013 to approximately 15.9% in the Reporting
Period, this was mainly due to more profits surrendered by the Group
to customers in order to obtain market shares in highly competitive

retail market during the Reporting Period.

IZHRAN : () —F-=F T EFRBEHRRHHF
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R R(OZT-—MFERRMARKENE » BEA
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BERA - FEHE TF£0.6% -
JESHE T 6% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

WHOLESALE BUSINESS

Expanding the e-commerce supplier business leaning on the
developing trend of the e-commerce. During the Reporting Period,
targeting on the development needs of the e-commerce market,
the Group carried out in-depth studies on the characteristics of
online shopping in consumer group and display models, as well
as their specific requirements in respect of warehousing, logistics
and distribution. Combining the Group’s advantages in its years of
experience in the upstream channel together with its modernized
logistics technology, on one hand, the Group negotiated with upstream
manufacturers to obtain online selling rights of merchandise for which
the Group acted as a distributor or an agent, and on the other hand,
the Group deepened and broadened the channels and methods of
collaboration with e-commerce service providers to further expand the

e-commerce supplier business.

Extending to upstream operations for optimizing product mix.
During the Reporting Period, the Group brought in both new suppliers
and new brands as well as customized products and private label
products which are selected, designed and developed in accordance
with market demand. At the same time the Group expanded channels
for the introduction and sale of imported food, and further enhanced

profit margins and comprehensive market competitiveness.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T m R

Upgrading the logistics and distribution system for better
services. During the Reporting Period, in order to further raise
logistics and distribution efficiency and service standards and to
reduce operating costs, the Group conducted a statistical analysis
of logistics costs by means of logistics data management system,
while continuing to improve the system upgrade at the distribution
center to execute the dissembling, sorting, scattered goods space
management and consignment inventory management functions for
providing solid technical support to the enhancement of warehousing
services. Through modernised practices, the Group enhanced the
refined logistics services for small orders from small- to medium sized
customers and optimized the service quality control system. The
Group continued to carry out innovative models of collaboration on
third-party logistics and pushed forward the steady development of

third-party logistics.

Operation results of wholesale business

The wholesale principal operating income and gross profit margin are

analyzed as follows:

ABRNRBEERS  BRAMRBREAE - 5 H
A RE—TRESWREEAREMRIEKE - 7
RYRERMZGER YRR AETRASD
o RESEXRAE  REBEETEWRIES O
RGHARTIE BRFETOR THEMERE -
FEEFEERETVE  /ERRYE THEKENE
THEHBEMRM SR - UBRKRIEETR - 2
TR R P THERBACYIRIRF KR
BIERBEREEERR - BERIFIHHIREYR
BIEE - HEEBNBAMRIBSER -

BBELEXE
AREBR BT EEBWARENEHDFTOT -

Increase/
2014 2013 (Decrease)
—ZE-lmEF —T—=F O d)
RMB’000 RMB’000 (%)
ARBTT AREBTFT Bk
Wholesale principal operating LS E
income recognized FRA#
by Chaopi Group* FEEBFBA 5,858,197 5,644,729 3.8
Less: Intersegment Sales W o EREEHE (551,096) (659,119 (1.4)
Sales to franchisees HE TINERES 6,158 10,279 (40.1)
Total wholesale principal BrEE F B EEWA BT
operating income 5,313,259 5,095,889 4.3
Gross profit margin**(%) FEFE (%) 9.4 9.9 (0.5)

Y HKRERERSAREERONERARTLEMBEA

subsidiaries. Al e

* Chaopi Group represents Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited and its

o RENREARERRBEXEBERNENE(ES
D ERHE) -

* This represents gross profit margin recognized by Chaopi Trading and its

subsidiaries including intersegment sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

During the Reporting Period, the wholesale principal operating income
recognized by Chaopi Group increased by approximately 4.3% and
was mainly due to (i) more sales promotions were launched in order
to increase market share; (i) the sales contribution from e-commerce
supplier business in the second half of year 2013; and (iii) the sales

contribution from newly introduced distributorship brands.

During the Reporting Period, the decrease in the gross profit margin
of wholesale business recognized by Chaopi Group by approximately
0.5 percentage points was mainly due to (i) the restrictions of public-
fund spending imposed by the government which resulted in a
continuous suppression of high-end consumption and a decline of the
price of high-end liquor merchandise, and (i) the adoption of multiple
promotions with suppliers, which in turn reduced the gross profit

margin.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Principal operating income FEEBRA
Gross profit EF|

Gross profit margin (%) %ﬂ <(%)
Earnings before interest and tax SO IRNE
Net profit 5%5‘%'J5Fzﬁ

Net profit margin (%)

Net profit attributable to
shareholders of the parent company

Net profit margin attributable to
shareholders of the parent
company (%)

R (%)
YIS SN SV

BN BDEME (%)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING INCOME

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s principal operating income
increased by approximately 3.9%, of which retail principal operating
income increased by approximately 3.5%, and wholesale principal

operating income increased by approximately 4.3%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T m R

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit of the Group increased
by approximately 0.5% compared with the last corresponding period.
During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin was 13.3% (2013:
13.8%).

OTHER INCOME

Other income mainly comprises income from suppliers, rental income

from leasing and sub-leasing of properties and counters.

The Group’s other income increased from RMB774,562,805 in 2013
to RMB883,623,577 by approximately 14.1% during the Reporting
Period, mainly due to the increase of income from suppliers which
were in line with the increase in revenue, and the increase of rental

income from stores.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Operating expenses mainly comprise of salary and welfare,
depreciation and amortization, energy fee, rental expenses, repair and
maintenance expenses, transportation expenses, packing expenses,

and advertising and promotion expenses.

The Group’s operating expenses amounted to RMB1,588,772,754
during the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
7.0% compared to the corresponding period in 2013. The increase
was primarily due to (i) the increased advertisement fee in retail and
wholesale business; (i) the increase in transportation expenses due
to an increase in sales in the wholesale business; and (iii) the launch
of more frequent sales promotions during the Reporting Period in
response to the downturn of the consumer market and the impact of

the new online shopping.

EFEERR

R EHE AEBNEFLEFRBAEESLY
05%° MEMBEMNEABIZ3I% (T —=F:
13.8%) ©

HA R WA

Hitn EBWATERREHBAORA - HER
BHEYMELEENHES KA -

BEMA > AEENEMEBRAR-_Z—=F
i) N R #774,562,80570 1 = A R #:883,623,577
T IEA14.1% - EEHFENK S HEFHEA
BESHE WA RMAAEIER - ARERHBES KA
0 -

EXRER

EXRERIZEFEREN  TEREE  ER
B HexHt HRER EHER BKE
AEEENEEER

KEBMAN REENEEBARARE
1,588,772,7547 " R-_T—=F RHAEL KLY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses mainly comprise salary and welfare, social
security costs (including retirement benefit contribution), entertainment

expense and expenses of taxation.

The Group’s administrative expenses amounted to RMB268,703,883
during the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately
0.9% compared to the corresponding period in 2013. The increase
was mainly because of the increased costs involving retirement benefit
contribution, housing reserves and other social insurance relating to

the wages.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include interests on bank loans and debentures,

interest income, bank charges and exchange gains or losses.

The Group’s financial expenses increased from RMB158,068,655 in
2013 to RMB170,990,341 during the Reporting Period, and were
primarily due to the increase of interest expenses on bank loans
caused by the increase of the relevant principal amount for meeting

business operation requirements and the increased interest rate.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group was not subject to Hong Kong profit tax as the Group had
no assessable profit arising in or deriving from Hong Kong during the

Reporting Period.

The members of the Group were subject to corporate income tax at
a rate of 25% during the Reporting Period on their respective taxable

profit pursuant to the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.

Income tax expense increased from RMB43,168,935 in 2013 to
RMB43,640,848 in 2014, primarily due to the increase in 2014 taxable
profits.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T m R

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE PARENT COMPANY

The net profit attributable to shareholders of the parent company
decreased by approximately 27.6% from RMB57,055,711 in 2013
to RMB41,329,845 in 2014. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the 3.5% growth of EBIT was offset by the 13.4% increase in interest

expenses.

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group recorded basic earnings per share of approximately
RMBO0.10 for 2014, which was calculated on the basis of the number
of 412,220,000 shares, representing approximately 28.6% lower than
the RMBO0.14 of 2013.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly financed its operations
through internally generated cash flows, bank borrowings and

debentures.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had non-current assets of
RMB2,475,179,032 (comprising of fixed assets, investment properties
and land use rights of RMB1,493,450,516), and non-current
liabilities of RMB884,625,589 (comprising mainly bonds payable of
RMB744,820,080 and long term borrowings of RMB95,000,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had current assets of
RMB4,766,324,066. Current assets mainly comprised of cash
and cash equivalents of RMB521,621,307, inventories of
RMB1,483,886,458, accounts receivable of RMB1,674,135,328
and prepayments and other receivables of RMB781,685,540. The
Group had current liabilities of RMB4,261,812,114. Current liabilities
mainly comprised of accounts payable and notes payable of
RMB1,226,931,232, short term borrowings of RMB2,172,490,151 and
advances from customers and other payables of RMB664,224,909.

BERSLTMAENERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BHEE A M AT

INDEBTEDNESS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank loans of

RMB2,340,490,151, which consisted of accounts receivable
factored bank loans of RMB190,177,877, secured bank loans of
RMB368,000,000, unsecured bank loans of RMB1,782,312,274. All
the Group’s bank loans bear interest rates ranging from 5.60% to
7.20% per annum. The secured bank loans were secured by certain of
the Group’s buildings, land use rights and investment properties with

aggregate net book values of RMB218, 873,874.

Certain of the Group’s margin deposits of RMB15,217,794 were
pledged for notes payable of RMB76,088,972 as at 31 December
2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio* is approximately
71.1%, which is slightly higher than that of 71.0% as at 31 December
2018.

* Represented by: Total Debt/Total Asset

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s operating revenues and expenses are principally

denominated in Renminbi.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not encounter any material
effect on its operation or liquidity as a result of fluctuation in currency

exchange rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND TRAINING

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 8,364 employees
in the PRC (2013: 8,451). The total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’ remunerations) of the Group for the Reporting
Period amounted to approximately RMB628,860,680 (2013:
RMB604,697,307). The staff emolument (including directors and
supervisors) of the Group are based on position, duty, experience,
performance, and market rates, in order to maintain their

remunerations at a competitive level.

As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Group participates in
the defined contribution retirement benefits scheme for its employees
operated by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC. The
Group is required to make contributions for those employees who are
registered as permanent residents in the PRC at a rate of 20% (2013:
20%) of the employees’ salaries, bonuses and certain allowances.
The Group has no further obligation associated with the said defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme beyond the above mentioned
annual contributions. The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes amounted to approximately

RMB64,699,619 for the Reporting Period (2013: RMB62,291,048).

During the Reporting Period, the Group hosted trainings with various
format and topics for its employees to improve their skills and
professional knowledge. The Group held 69 seminars during the year,

and nearly 5,000 employees have benefited from them.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

ESTABLISHMENT OF TWO SUBSIDIARIES

During the Reporting Period, the Group, through its non-wholly
owned subsidiary Beijing Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi
Trading”) established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Shengshi Trading
Company Limited (“Chaopi Shengshi”), with Mr. Sun Wenhui (a
director of Chaopi Trading) and two third parties (Mr. Li Gang and
Ms. Wang Ping), to engage in the wholesale distribution of daily
consumer products in Beijing. The registered capital of Chaopi
Shengshi was RMB25,000,000, which has been fully paid up as of the
announcement date. The capital contribution of Chaopi Trading was
RMB16,250,000 and Chaopi Trading became the holder of 65% of
the equity interest in Chaopi Shengshi. The Company held an indirect
equity interest of approximately 51.90% in Chaopi Shengshi.

During the Reporting Period, Chaopi Trading and Ms. Du Jianxin
established a subsidiary, Beijing Qumeiba Information Technology
Company Limited (“Chaopi Qumeiba”), to engage in the wholesale of
general merchandise by e-commerce channel. The registered capital
of Chaopi Qumeiba was RMB1,000,000, which has been fully paid
up as of the announcement date. The capital contribution of Chaopi
Trading was RMB650,000, thus Chaopi Trading hold the equity of
65% of Chaopi Qumeiba. The Company held an indirect equity interest
of approximately 51.90% in Chaopi Qumeiba.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T m R

CAPITAL INCREASE OF ONE NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARY

On May 21, 2014, Chaopi Trading and other investors collectively
contributed an additional Capital injection amounted to
RMB12,822,800 and RMB11,679,100 respectively into a nonwholly
owned subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Huaging drinks Company Limited
(“Chaopi Huaging”), increasing the registered capital of Chaopi
Huaqging from RMB56,000,000 to RMB80,000,000. The total
investment contributed by Chaopi Trading was RMB42,742,800 after
the increase of registered capital, and Chaopi Trading is the holder of
approximately 53.43% of the equity interest in Chaopi Huaqging. As at
31 December 2014, the Company held an indirect equity interest of
approximately 42.66% in Chaopi Huaging.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no material contingent

liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2014, the Group had the following

significant event:

On 27 March 2015, the directors of the Company proposed the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10 (including withholding dividend
tax) per share to its shareholders. The proposal of dividend distribution
mentioned above is subject to the approval by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 28 May 2015.
This recommendation has not been incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements as a liability. The proposed dividend shall be
paid to shareholders whose name appear on the register of members
on 9 June 2015. The estimated amount of dividends payable is

RMB41,222,000 in aggregate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

Establishment of one subsidiary

On 29 January 2015, the Company, through its non-wholly owned
subsidiary Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi
Zhaoyang E-commerce Company Limited (“Chaopi Zhaoyang”),
to engage in the e-commerce business. The registered capital of
Chaopi Zhaoyang Was RMB20,000,000, which has not been paid up
by Chaopi Trading. The company held an indirect equity interest of
approximately 79.85% in Chaopi Zhaoyang.

Capital increase of one non-wholly owned subsidiary

On 17 March 2015, Chaopi Trading contributed an additional
capital injection amounted to RMB10,000,000, which has been
fully paid up by Chaopi Trading, respectively into a wholly owned
subsidiary, Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Company Limited (“Taiyuan
Chaopi”), increasing the registered capital of Taiyuan Chaopi from
RMB5,000,000 to RMB15,000,000. After the increase of registered
capital, The company held an indirect equity interest of approximately

79.85% in Taiyuan Chaopi.

STRATEGIES AND PLANS

Looking ahead into 2015, the speed of innovation and the scale of
changes across the retail and wholesale industry in which the Group
has a presence will continue to increase as a result of the rapid
integration of the Internet and mobile internet technologies into the
industry. In face of such upcoming pressures and opportunities, the
Group must respond quickly by continuing to accelerate innovation

and transformation:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE T m R

Integrating with mobile internet technologies to expand
advantages in community-based physical retail stores: facing the
evolving changes and developments in the market environment, the
Internet, social networks and mobile network technologies as well as
the rapid development of the mobile retail business, the Group will,
by relying on the strengths and characteristics of physical stores in
communities, bring the mobile retail business online, launch mobile
sales and services in the areas of merchandise, community and
service with a community-based perspective and attract consumers
to visit physical stores, thereby achieving coordinated development
on the online and offline markets. The Group will shorten the queuing
time for checkouts with the adoption of convenient and efficient
mobile payment methods which are intended to cater for the spending
needs and changes in shopping habits of consumers. The Group will
focus on expanding its marketing channels, for instance, by utilising
the Jingkelong WeChat public platform to launch a variety of WeChat
marketing activities continuously. The Group will also focus on raising
the operation capability of offline physical stores by continuing to
increase the proportion of customized staple food merchandise,
imported goods as well as medium and high-end merchandise to

enhance product quality and meet consumers’ upgraded demand.

Adapting to new changes in the e-commerce market by carrying
out transformation of the wholesale business: As to the wholesale
business area, the Group will vigorously push for the expansion of the
e-commerce supplier business and enhance the professional level of
its e-commerce operations. The Group will continue to introduce new
brands, enrich product lines, optimize the mix of produce brands,
control the upgrading and updating of brands in a reasonable manner,
accelerate the speed of development of private brands, customized
merchandise and imported goods; improve the service functions
appropriate for a variety of retail terminals; proactively modify the
structure of the supply chain upstream and downstream operations;
and gradually shift to an integrated business transformation comprising
the offline wholesaler model, the new online e-commerce supplier

model and the third-party logistics model.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE I m R

Continue to strengthen the logistics and distribution system: With
respect to the retail business, the Group will continue to complete
the primary processing of fruits, vegetables and meat in place of
origin, reduce employment pressure on storefronts, shifting primary
processing of fresh goods in live-fresh produce logistics center to the
refined processing to increase the added value of goods to improve
profit margins. The Group will continue to improve its dissembling
and sorting process following the completion of the installation and
operation of the box sorting system to improve the operational
efficiency of the normal-temperature logistics center and the logistics
service capability for suppliers. As to the wholesale business, the
Group will carry out system upgrade to the box automatic sorting
system as well as the dissembling and sorting system to deliver overall
optimization and logistics efficiency enhancement of both internal and

external supply chains.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREARE

The Group recognises the importance of a robust governance
framework to drive the strategy for sustainable development of the
Company and long-term sustainable value for the shareholders. The
Group has adopted the principles of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) with
the objective of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group and the conduct of its business in a fair, transparent, and
ethical way. This corporate governance report describes the corporate
governance practices of the Group and explains the applications of

the principles of the Corporate Governance Code.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the Code Provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code during the Reporting Period, save for the directors’

retirement by rotation as explained below.

Provision A4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, of a listed
issuer should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association stipulates that
each director shall be elected in general meeting of the Company for a
term of not more than three years, and eligible for re-election upon the
expiry of the term. Having taken into account of the continuity of the
Group’s operation and management policies, the Company’s Articles
of Association do not currently stipulate the mechanism in respect
of directors’ retirement by rotation and hence contains no express
provision for the directors’ retirement by rotation and thus deviating

from the aforesaid provision of the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DREARE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries with all directors, all the directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings as set out
in the Model Code and code of conduct regarding their securities

transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

THE BOARD

The board of directors (the “Board”) takes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Group and is collectively responsible
for safeguarding the best interest of the Group and accountable
to the shareholders. Matters that are required to be determined
or considered by the Board include overall group strategies of the
Group, substantial acquisitions and disposals, capital transactions,
annual, interim and quarterly results, distribution of dividends and
other substantial operating and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board to the Group’s
management include the preparation of financial accounts for the
Board’s approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
approved by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with the

relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.
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Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the 2012 annual
general meeting (2012 Annual General Meeting”) held on 28 May
2018, each of Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr. Wei
Tingzhan, Mr. Gu Hanlin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen
Liping and Mr. Choi Onward has been re-elected as a director for a
three-year term, and such term will expire upon the end of the annual
general meeting (2015 Annual General Meeting”) for the year ended
31 December 2015. With effect from 28 June 2013, Mr. Wei Tingzhan
has ceased to be the chairman of the Board, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company, and was re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director of the Company; whereas Mr. Li Jianwen
has been appointed as chairman of the Board, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company with effect from 28 June 2013. Pursuant to the
ordinary resolutions passed at the 2013 annual general meeting (2013
Annual General Meeting”) held on 28 May 2014, Mr. Wei Tingzhan
and Mr. Gu Hanlin have ceased to be non-executive directors of
the Company, whereas Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Weilin have been
elected as directors with such term expiring upon the end of the 2015
Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the Board currently consists of
four executive directors (Mr. Li Jianwen, Mr. Li Wei, Ms. Li Chunyan
and Mr. Liu Yuejin), two non-executive directors (Mr. Wang Weilin
and Mr. Li Shunxiang) and three independent non-executive directors
(Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward), with Mr.
Li Jianwen, serving as the chairman of the Board. All of the directors
have fulfilled their responsibilities as directors throughout the Reporting

Period.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board.
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Each of Mr. Li Wei, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin will not receive
a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based on his/her
executive duties and responsibilities (other than being a director) in
the Company. Each of them is entitled to a fixed annual basic salary,
a performance based bonus (to be determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results) and other allowance and benefits
in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective
fixed annual basic salary for each of the forthcoming three-year term
shall be reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company
and subject to the Board’s approval. The chairman of the Board
is entitled to an annual basic salary of RMB700,000 (tax inclusive),
and a performance based bonus (to be determined by reference to
the Company’s annual financial results) and other allowance and
benefits in kind under the applicable PRC law and regulations. The
non-executive directors will not receive any remuneration. Mr. Choi
Onward, an independent non-executive director is entitled to receive
a fixed director’s fee of RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive). Each
of the other two independent non-executive directors is entitled to
receive a fixed director’s fee of RMB41,850 per annum (tax inclusive).
The aforesaid remunerations of the directors of the Company have
been considered and approved by an ordinary resolution passed at

the 2012 Annual General Meeting.

During the Reporting Period, the Board fulfilled the requirement of
having at least three independent non-executive directors (Mr. Wang
Liping, Mr. Chen Liping and Mr. Choi Onward) and having appointed
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the Board as required by the Listing Rules. The Company also met
the requirement of having at least one independent non-executive
director (Mr. Choi Onward) who has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the three independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation in respect of their
independence. The Company is of the opinion that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules.
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Reasonable notice period and sufficient relevant information have
been given to all directors so as to enable them to attend the Board
meetings and make appropriate decision in relation to matters to be
discussed. All directors are entitled to include matters of their concern
in the agenda of all Board meetings. All directors are entitled to

inspect all relevant corporate information.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 72 to 74

of this annual report.

Mr. Li Jianwen, acting as the chairman and executive director of the

Company is responsible for operation of the Board.

Mr. Li Wei acting as the general manager and executive director
of the Company is responsible for daily business development and

management of the Company.

The other two executive directors, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin
are responsible for the financial affairs and retail operation of the

Group, respectively.

Each executive director has sufficient experience to hold the position

so as to accomplish his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Company should arrange appropriate insurance to cover
potential legal actions against its directors. To comply with such code
provision, the Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors to indemnify their liabilities arising from their corporate

activities.
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During the Reporting Period, 4 Board meetings (not including written
Board resolutions) were held and the attendance records of the

directors attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENGE(EER)
Mr. Li Wei* XS

Ms. Li Chunyan THEMLL

Mr. Liu Yuejin IR
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Mr. Wang Weilin** FEME A

Mr. Li Shunxiang FERE S E

Mr. Wei Tingzhan*** B B o A

Mr. Gu Hanlin*** FEEM I o
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUKHITES
Mr. Choi Onward BLREEE

Mr. Chen Liping fR S oA

Mr. Wang Liping ERFrRE

E Mr. Li Wei has been appointed as an executive director of the Board with

effect from 28 May 2014.

> Mr. Wang Weilin has been appointed as a non-executive director of the
Board with effect from 28 May 2014.

*** Mr. Wei Tingzhan ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board with
effect from 28 May 2014.

% Mr. Gu Hanlin ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board with
effect from 28 May 2014.
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Attendance of director at the general meeting ESHERREARE

During the Reporting Period, one general meeting, which was an REHA - ARG BT T —ABRFEFRS
annual general meeting, was held and the attendance records of the HRIEZERSHELEWT ¢

directors attending such meeting in person are set out below:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HE EERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENEL(EFER) 11
Mr. Li Wei* Rk 0/0
Ms. Li Chunyan FERKLL 1/1
Mr. Liu Yuejin DB A 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wang Weilin** FEMEE 0/0
Mr. Li Shunxiang FERESEE 11
Mr.Wei Tingzhan*** HEES ol 1/1
Mr.Gu Hanlin*** BUEM S 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Choi Onward BLESAE 1/
Mr. Chen Liping BRI A4 1/1
Mr. Wang Liping FHIFEE 1/

*

Mr. Li Wei has been appointed as an executive director of the Board with ~ * BE-T-—NFRA-+N\BR ZELLEEZTE
effect from 28 May 2014. RARITES -

** Mr. Wang Weilin has been appointed as a non-executive director of the * BIZZ—MNERA-+/\BE  FEMEEESE
Board with effect from 28 May 2014. RRNTFENITES -

*** Mr. Wei Tingzhan ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board with ~ ** B -ZZ—H&FRA =+ /\B  FEFHEETHIE
effect from 28 May 2014. EARRBIEAITESRLS ©

% Mr. Gu Hanlin ceased to be a non-executive director of the Board with e BT —PNER A+ N\B#  BEEMREETBE
effect from 28 May 2014. EARRBFENITERRT -
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

As part of an ongoing process of directors' training, the directors are
updated with the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time to ensure
compliance of the same by all directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics which

may count towards continuous professional development training.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This
is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the Reporting Period, all directors have participated
in in-house training courses and workshops in respect of corporate
governance and regulations organized by the Company or, by perusing
materials relevant to the Company’s business or to their duties and
responsibilities, the relevant directors have participated in appropriate
continuous development activities. All the directors have provided a

record of the training they received to the Company.

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.2 of Corporate Governance Code,
the management of the Company also provides all members of the
Board with monthly updates which presents information in respect of
the Company’s performance and financial position, and changes and
developments in laws, regulations, business and the market, to assist

each director in the discharge of their duties.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

ESHESXER

EREERKAERIZ 80 EFCTHESEA
MLEmAARECEREEREZERNERE
ko NERMEEEETERRE - ARAEE
MBEESEHEIIRBREHRE 2 ERE LT
SRIZ - MU AMERIFEE R BERIZIIN—D

RB(EEEARTRDFEACSGRTE IEEFRE
SHEBEEXRR  FRAFFEMBLKEE
NHERAEBEABEEEARIEMFEZER
THEFSEHER - REHAN - 2REFHE
SEARRNRRREBEEER AT G RIE
FIRIE - SURIBIE AR QR SR R M
BERBAENZ T AMSEABEZHESERRAE
B REEFHEDMRAFAEHBSHAMRRE
FHYFRER ©

ARAEEEHER(EERATRIDEC 2150
BRE BAREFEKRBREHERER  HIE
RARIMERR - MR RAE - BE - X5HE
MIHNEBENR - AHBRERITRE -



The participation by individual directors in the professional

development programme in 2014 is recorded in the table below.

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman) TENEE(EFR)
Mr. Li Wei FRESE

Ms. Li Chunyan THEMZE

Mr. Liu Yuejin ZIE SR
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Wang Weilin FEMEE

Mr. Li Shunxiang FlBrEkE
Independent Non-executive Directors B IEHTESE
Mr. Choi Onward BRERE

Mr. Chen Liping BRI 4

Mr. Wang Liping FRIFEE

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. Li Jianwen and Mr. Li Wei are the chairman of the Board and
the general manager of the Company respectively, which are two
clearly defined positions. The chairman is responsible for the effective
operation of the Board while the general manager is in charge of
the Group’s daily business development and management. The
Company’s Articles of Association sets out the respective duties and

power of the chairman and the general manager in detail.

Board committees

There are currently 3 Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, to assist

the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEAWE

TR TEREER T NF2HEIEXER
tEZAE -

Participated in
training course Reading updates

S mEIRE LETE T
v 4
4 v
4 4
4 4
4 v
v 4
v v
v v
v v

EERRAEE

ARRAMEERRBREDHIRFEXEERT
BELEE RMERESERAENBL £
FREEFENAREE MEKEAEREN
HEEXEBERILEE - ARAARERPFHFAS
AESER MBI BE -

EEZgBETHNZES
REEFEETRU=ZEZEE  DHlRESRE
e ¥HZBEe REZEg UHhESS
BITERE -

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |



I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERWE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board Meeting held on 28
June 2013, the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the fourth
session of the Board was established. The Audit Committee wholly
consists of independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Choi
Onward who was appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Wang Liping

and Mr. Chen Liping who were both appointed as members.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are set in line
with the provisions of the Code. The Audit Committee provides an
important link between the Board and the external auditors in matters
falling within the scope of the audit of the Group, and is responsible
for the review of financial information of the Company, the oversight
of the Company’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures, and exercises the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board. It reviews the effectiveness of the external
audit, internal controls and risk evaluation and, provides comments

and suggestions to the Board.

Pursuant to the code provision D.3.1 of Corporate Governance Code,
the Audit Committee performed the corporate governance functions
delegated by the Board during the Reporting Period, including, to
develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; to review and
monitor the policies and practices of the Company on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
the directors and employees; and to review the compliance by the
Company with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.
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The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the Reporting Period
for reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, discussing internal controls, financial reporting matters and
corporate governance functions including a review of the 2013 annual
report and the 2014 quarterly and interim results, and discussing
relevant matters including matters relating to annual auditing plans
of 2014 and corporate governance. The attendance records of the
members of the Audit Committee attending such meetings in person

are set out below:

Mr. Choi Onward (chairman) BEERE(EE)
Mr. Chen Liping BRI LA
Mr. Wang Liping FAFRAE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s 2014 audited annual
results and discussed with the management and the external auditors
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,

internal control and financial reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on
28 June 2013, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) of the fourth session of the Board was established, in
which Mr. Wang Liping (an independent non-executive director) was
appointed as the chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director)
and Mr. Chen Liping (an independent non-executive director) were

both appointed as members.
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The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
inline with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code. The main
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure for
the Directors’ and senior management of the Company, and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for determining
remuneration policy; to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives. In accordance with the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the Corporate Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee have
been delegated with responsibilities by the Board, and is responsible
for determining the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors, and to
ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding

his own remuneration.

During the Reporting Period, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held for discussing and considering the performance
based bonus of the Company’s directors and senior management for
2013. The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration

Committee attending such meetings in person are set out below:

FHFRE(EE)
BRI 5E 4
FEXEE

Mr. Wang Liping (chairman)
Mr. Chen Liping
Mr. Li Jianwen*

*

Mr. Li Jianwen was not involved in deciding his performance-based bonus
during the meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the Board meeting held on 28
June 2013, the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
of the fourth session of the Board was established, in which Mr. Chen
Liping (an independent non-executive director) was appointed as the
chairman, and Mr. Li Jianwen (an executive director) and Mr. Wang
Liping (an independent non-executive director) were both appointed as

members.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating potential
candidates for directorships, reviewing the nomination of directors
and making recommendations to the Board on such appointments,
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning (in particular the chairman of the
Board and the chief executive) for directors. The Diversity Policy of
the Members of the Board was adopted at the board meeting on 23
August 2013, pursuant to which all the nominations of any member
of the board should be made in accordance with the Diversity Policy
by taking into account certain objective criterion (including without
limitation, the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) and

having due regards for the benefits of a diversified Board.
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During the Reporting Period, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee were held for discussing and recommending the candidates
to be proposed for election/appointment as part of directors of the
Company, reviewing relevant matters including the structure and
composition of the Board of the Company and the assessment
of independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee

attending such meetings in person are set out below:

Mr. Chen Liping (chairman) RS A ()
Mr. Wang Liping FRIFEA
Mr. Li Jianwen FENEE

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

During the Reporting Period, the supervisory committee (the
“Supervisory Committee”) of the Company consists of four
shareholders appointed supervisors (Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun,
Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong) and two staff-appointed
supervisors (Ms. Yao Jie and Ms. Wang Hong). Ms. Liu Wenyu serves

as the chairman of the Supervisory Committee.

The supervisors have performed their work in a dedicated and diligent
manner and carried out effectively the functions of supervising the legal
and regulatory compliance relating to financial matters and overseeing

the directors and senior management of the Group during their offices.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring
the auditor’s independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the
auditing process. It receives letter from the auditor confirming their
independence and objectivity and holds meetings with representatives
of the auditor to consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and
the scope and appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be
provided by it. The Audit Committee also makes recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and retention of the independent

auditor.

SHEDERE AT (R E

BAE)) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company for the

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (1= k&

period from the conclusion of the 2013 Annual General Meeting to
the conclusion of the 2014 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company agreed to pay
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (B#)3E K & Tl S5 AT (R kg
BA%)) RMB2,000,000 as 2014 auditing fees and RMB200,000 for
non-audit services in respect of reviewing the Group’s 2014 interim

financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARATION OF
ACCOUNTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements in compliance with the relevant regulations and applicable

accounting standards.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to the financial reporting

are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 78 to 79.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ interest and the
Group’s assets. Regular reviews have been conducted by the Board
for ensuring the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s internal
systems in respect of financial, operational and risk management

areas.

The internal audit department of the Company has been established in
2009 providing independent assurance to the Board and management
by reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls of

the Group.

GOING CONCERN

There were no uncertain events or conditions of material nature that
would affect the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern during

the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Li Bo, who was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 18 March 2011, fulfills the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
company secretary supports the Board, ensures good information
flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on corporate governance matters, facilitates
induction of the Directors and, monitors the training and continuous
professional development of Directors. He has attained not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the Reporting Period.
His biography is set out in the “Directors’ Supervisor's and Senior

Management’s Profiles” section of this annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
where shareholder(s) holding 10% (including 10%) or more of the
Company’s issued and outstanding shares carrying the right to vote
request(s) in writing for the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting, the board of directors shall convene an extraordinary general

meeting within two (2) months.

Pursuant to Article 60 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
whenever the Company convenes a general meeting, shareholder(s)
individually or collectively holding 3% or more of the shares carrying
the right to vote of the Company shall have the right to propose
new motions to the general meeting by submitting the same to the
convener in writing. The Company shall include in the agenda for the
meeting the matters in the motions that fall within the scope of duties

of the shareholders’ general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 78 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders shall comply with the following procedures when they
propose to convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting: (1) shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting
proposed to be held for 90 consecutive days or more may sign one
or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are the
same, to propose to the Board for holding of an extraordinary general
meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out clearly the agenda of the
meeting in the request. The Board shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid
written request, convene the extraordinary general meeting or the class
general meeting as soon as possible. The shareholdings mentioned
above shall be calculated on the date when the shareholders make
such written request. (2) If the Board does not serve a notice of
such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request, shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or more
(including 10%) of the Company’s shares carrying the right to vote
at the meeting proposed for 90 consecutive days or more may sign
one or more written request(s), the form and substance of which are

the same, to propose to the Supervisory Committee for holding of an
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extraordinary general meeting or a class meeting, and shall list out
clearly at the agenda of the meeting in the request. The Supervisory
Committee shall, upon receipt of the aforesaid written request,
convene and preside the extraordinary general meeting or the class
meeting in a timely manner. (3) If the Supervisory Committee does
not serve a notice of such meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the
aforesaid written request, the shareholders making such request may
convene the meeting by themselves within two months upon receipt
of the request by the Supervisory Committee, and the procedures for
convening such meeting shall be as similar to those for convening
a general meeting by the Board as possible. Any reasonable cost
incurred in connection with the convening and holding of the meeting
by the shareholders themselves as result of the failure on the part of
the Board and the Supervisory Committee to hold such meeting as
required above shall be borne by the Company, and shall be deducted
from the amount due to the Directors and supervisors of the Company

who are in default.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group is committed to establish a stable and constructive
communication with shareholders, adhere to the principles of integrity,
regularity and high transparency, and disclose the required information
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Information of the Group is

disseminated to its shareholders in the following manners:

— delivery of results and reports to shareholders;

— publication of announcements on the websites of the The Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Company, and
issue of shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the Listing

Rules;

— arrange general and extraordinary meetings with its shareholders
as an effective communication channel between the Board and

shareholders.
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— the Department of Investor Relations of the Company is
responsible for liaison with investors and analysts by answering
their questions and gathering, in a timely manner, opinions and
comments from analysts and investors on the operation of the
Group, and selectively adopting them in the Group’s operation;

and

— communicating actively with various parties, in particular,
convening briefing sessions, press conferences and individual
meeting with institutional investors upon the announcement
of results and making decisions on material investments. The
Group also participates in a range of investor activities and

communicates on one-on-one basis with its investors regularly.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ view and input sincerely.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations Department of
the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of the contact

information can be found at page 4 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ESEWE

The board of directors hereby presents their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the

Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the retail and wholesale distribution
of daily consumer products in the region covering the Beijing city and
certain parts of its periphery. There were no significant changes in the

nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Reporting Period.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2014 are set out in

the financial statements on pages 80 to 319.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.10
(2013: RMBO0.10) per share (tax inclusive) in respect of the Reporting
Period to shareholders on the register of members on 9 June
2015. This recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet. The arrangement of the closure of the register
of shareholders of H shares of the Company regarding shareholders’
dividends will be announced in the notice convening the 2014 Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be dispatched to the shareholders.
The above dividend distribution proposal is subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the 2014 Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The dividends to be distributed will be denominated and declared in
Renminbi. Distribution of cash dividends for domestic shareholders
will be paid in Renminbi, while cash dividends for H-shareholders will
be declared in Renminbi but paid in Hong Kong dollars (based on the
average of the exchange rates for Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the five working days
prior to the date of the 2014 Annual General Meeting at which the final

dividends would be approved by the shareholders).
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Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC” and the
“Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC”, commencing from 1 January 2008, any Chinese
domestic enterprise which pays dividends to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder (i.e. legal person shareholder) in respect of accounting
periods beginning from 1 January 2008 shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax for such shareholder. Since the Company is
a H-share listed company in Hong Kong, the proposed 2014 final
dividend distribution will be subject to the aforesaid Enterprise Tax
Laws. In order to properly carry out the withholding and payment of
income tax on dividends to non-resident enterprise shareholders, the
Company will strictly abide by the law and identify those shareholders
who are subject to the withholding and payment of income tax based
on the register of H-shareholders as at the end of Tuesday, 9 June
2015. In respect of all shareholders whose names appear on the
register of H shareholders kept at Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company’s H-Shares Registrar and Transfer
Office in Hong Kong as at the end of Tuesday, 9 June 2015 who
are not individuals (including HKSCC Nominees Limited, corporate
nominees or trustees, and other entities or organizations that are all
considered as non-resident enterprise shareholders), the Company will

distribute the 2014 final dividends after deducting income tax of 10%.

Pursuant to the State Administration of Taxation Notice on Matters
Concerning the Levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han [2011] No.
348) (BB 75 48 /5 B 5 B B% 85[1993]0455% S 4 B& 1 1% A B8 A P
BRAEMBENBM) (BB H2011]3485%)) (the “SAT Notice”) dated
28 June 2011, and the letter titled “Tax Arrangements on Dividends
Paid to Hong Kong Residents by Mainland companies” issued by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange Letter”)
dated 4 July 2011, the Company is required to withhold and pay the
individual income tax in respect of the 2014 Final Dividends paid to
the Individual H Shareholders whose names appear in the register
of H-Shares Registrar of the Company (“Individual H Shareholders”)
when distributing the 2014 final dividends in accordance with the

law, as a withholding agent on behalf of the same. However, the
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Individual H Shareholders may be entitled to certain tax preferential
treatments pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the
countries in which the Individual H Shareholders are domiciled and the
tax arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau).
The Company will finally withhold and arrange for the payment of the
withholding tax pursuant to the above the SAT Notice and the Stock
Exchange Letter and other relevant laws and regulation, including
the “Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in relation to the
Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment Entitled by Non-
residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)” (Guo Shui Fa [2009] No.124)
((ERBBLRBANENE<IEREZHREHEFBERIEFHIT) >0
A (BEFE3[2009]1245% ) (the “Tax Treaties Notice”)). The Company
will determine the country of domicile of the Individual H Shareholders
based on the registered addresses as recorded on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 9 June 2015 (the “Registered
Address(es)”). The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims
all liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders and for any claims arising from any
delay in or inaccurate determination of the tax status or tax treatment
of the Individual H Shareholders or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements. Details of arrangements are as follows:
(i) For Individual H Shareholders who are Hong Kong or Macau
residents and those whose country of domicile is a country which has
entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate
of 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual income
tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholder; (i)
For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will finally withhold and pay
individual income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the Individual
H Shareholders. If the relevant Individual H Shareholders would like
to apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax withheld and
paid, the Company can assist the relevant shareholder to handle the
application for the underlying preferential tax benefits pursuant to the
tax treaties, provided that the relevant shareholder shall submit to the
Company the information required under the Tax Treaties Notice on or

before 31 July 2015. Upon examination and approval by competent
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tax authorities, the Company will assist in refunding the additional
amount of tax withheld and paid; (iiij For Individual H Shareholders
whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into a tax
treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of more than 10%
but less than 20%, the Company will finally withhold and pay individual
income tax at the actual tax rate stipulated in the relevant tax treaty;
and (iv) For Individual H Shareholders whose country of domicile is a
country which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating
a dividend tax rate of 20%, or a country which has not entered into
any tax treaties with the PRC, or under any other circumstances, the
Company will finally withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate
of 20% on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders. If the domicile of
an Individual H Shareholder is not the same as the Registered Address
or if the Individual H Shareholder would like to apply for a refund of
the additional amount of tax finally withheld and paid, the Individual H
Shareholder shall notify and provide relevant supporting documents
to the Company on or before 31 July 2015. Upon examination of the
supporting documents by the relevant tax authorities, the Company
will follow the guidance given by the tax authorities to implement
relevant tax withholding provisions and arrangements. Individual H
Shareholders may either personally or appoint a representative to
attend to the procedures in accordance with the requirements under
the Tax Treaties Notices if they do not provide the relevant supporting

documents to the Company within the time period stated above.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisers regarding
PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising from their holding

and disposal of H Shares of the Company.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
Company’s annual reports, is set out on page 320 of this annual

report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note (XIl) 10, 11 and 12 and note (VI) 8,

9 and 10 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital during the

Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the PRC which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves (including surplus reserve and
undistributed profits) of the Company and the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note (XIl) 30, 31 and note (VI) 33, 34 to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.
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UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

Details of undistributed profits are set out in note (VI) 34 to the

financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings at the reporting date are set

out in note (VI) 17, 25 and 27 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s interest capitalized amounted

to RMB237,556 (2013: RMB1,747,787).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, operating income to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 18% (2013: 18%)
of the total operating income for the year and operating income to
the largest customer accounted for approximately 9% (2013: 10%).
Purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 15% (2013: 22%) of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 3%

(2013: 7%) during the Reporting Period.

None of the directors or supervisors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
directors and supervisors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the Reporting

Period and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Li Wei (appointed as an executive director
since 28 May 2014)

Ms. Li Chunyan

Mr. Liu Yuejin

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Weilin (appointed as a non-executive director
since 28 May 2014)

Mr. Li Shunxiang

Mr. Wei Tingzhan (ceased to be a non-executive director
of the Company since 28 May2014)

Mr. Gu Hanlin (ceased to be a non-executive director

of the Company since 28 May2014)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Choi Onward
Mr. Wang Liping
Mr. Chen Liping

Supervisors:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Hong

Ms. Yao Jie

Mr. Chen Zhong

Ms. Cheng Xianghong

Mr. Yang Baoqun

The Company has received the annual confirmations of independence
from each of independent non-executive directors and is of the view

that they are independent.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Profile details of the directors, supervisors and senior management of

the Company are set out on pages 72 to 77 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’
CONTRACTS

AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE

The Company has entered into service contracts with each of Mr.
Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan, Mr. Liu Yuejin, Mr. Wei Tingzhan, Mr.
Gu Hanlin, Mr. Li Shunxiang, Mr. Wang Liping, Mr. Chen Liping
and Mr. Choi Onward pursuant to which they have agreed to act
as directors for a three-year term with effect from the 2012 Annual
General Meeting and will expire at the end of the 2015 Annual General
Meeting. Mr. Li Jianwen, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr. Liu Yuejin were
appointed as the executive directors from 28 May 2013 and have
entered into service contracts with the Company. Pursuant to the
2013 Annual General Meeting held on 28 May 2014, Mr. Wei Tingzhan
and Mr. Gu Hanlin have ceased to be non-executive directors of the
Company, whereas Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Weilin have been elected
as directors with such term expiring upon the end of the 2015 Annual
General Meeting. Each of Mr. Li Wei and Mr. Wang Weilin has entered
into service contract with the Company pursuant to which they have
agreed to act as directors with effect from the 2013 Annual General
Meeting, which will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting.
Each of the executive directors, Mr. Li Wei, Ms. Li Chunyan and Mr.
Liu Yuejin (other than the chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jianwen) will
not receive a director’s fee, but is entitled to remuneration based
on his/her executive duties and responsibilities (other than being a
director) in the Company which comprises a fixed annual basic salary,
a performance based bonus which is determined by reference to the
Company’s annual financial results and other allowance and benefits in
kind under applicable PRC law and regulations. Their respective fixed
annual basic salary and performance based bonus for each of their
term shall be approved by the Board and the remuneration committee
of the Company. Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval in the 2012

Annual General Meeting, Mr. Li Jianwen, the chairman of the Board
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is entitled to an annual salary of RMB700,000 (tax inclusive), and a
performance based bonus, the standard of which has been approved
by the 2012 annual general meeting, and other allowance and benefits

in kind under applicable PRC law and regulations.

Each of the non-executive directors, Mr. Wang Weilin and Mr. Li
Shunxiang, has entered into service contract with the Company
pursuant to which Mr. Wang Weilin have agreed to act as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 2013 Annual
General Meeting, an Mr. Li Shunxiang have agreed to act as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 28 May 2013, both
of which will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. They

will not receive any remuneration.

Each of the independent non-executive directors, Mr. Choi Onward,
Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping, has entered into a service
contract with the Company pursuant to which they have agreed to
act as independent non-executive directors for a three-year term with
effect from the 2012 Annual General Meeting, which will expire at
the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. The terms of their service
contracts are identical in all material respects and they are entitled to
receive fixed directors’ fees. The director’s fee for Mr. Choi Onward is
RMB154,758 per annum (tax inclusive) and is RMB41,850 per annum
(tax inclusive) for each of Mr. Wang Liping and Mr. Chen Liping.

Each of the supervisors, Ms. Liu Wenyu, Mr. Yang Baoqun, Ms. Yao
Jie, Ms. Wang Hong, Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong,
has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter with the
Company pursuant to which each has agreed to act as a supervisor
for a three-year term with effect from 2012 Annual General Meeting,
and will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General Meeting. The
terms of the service contracts or appointment letter are identical in all

material respects save that:
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Mr. Yang Baoqun does not receive any supervisor’s fee;

i. each of Mr. Chen Zhong and Ms. Cheng Xianghong receives a

fixed supervisor’s fee of RMB35,100 per annum (tax inclusive);

ii. each of Ms. Liu Wenyu, Ms. Wang Hong and Ms. Yao Jie is
entitled to remuneration based on her executive duties and
responsibilities (other than being a supervisor) in the Company
which comprises of a fixed basic salary, a performance based
bonus which is determined by reference to the Company’s annual
financial results and other allowance and benefits in kind under

applicable PRC law and regulations.

None of the directors or supervisors had entered into or proposed
to enter into, any service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

The directors’ and supervisors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Board with reference to directors’ and supervisors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
The Company has established a remuneration committee to
formulate compensation policies and to determine and manage the
compensation of the Company’s senior management. Details of the
directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are disclosed in note (VII)4(2)

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

None of the directors and supervisors had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company, its controlling shareholder, or any of

their subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS IN
ACQUIRING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or its subsidiaries granted to any directors and supervisors
or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors and supervisors and other body

corporate to acquire such rights.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and positions of the
directors, supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as

follows:
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Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name Capacity
e =37
Li Jianwen Personal
FEX A
Li Chunyan Personal
FER EA
Liu Yuejin Personal
2R A
Li Shunxiang Personal
FIER & A
Yang Baoqun Personal
HE A A
Liu Wenyu Personal
21305 EA
Yao Jie Personal
i fEA
Wang Hong Personal
FiT & A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors, supervisors or chief executives of the Company nor any of
their associates and any interest and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within he meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they ere taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant

to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
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therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014 so far as is known to the directors,
supervisors or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than
a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company) had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the domestic shares of the Company

Name

A

Capacity
513

Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Beneficial owner
Company

ERTHERRRADT BERZBERA
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(%) (%)

167,409,808 72.77 40.61



Positions in the H shares of the Company

Name

=L

Schroders Plc (note 1)(FfizE1)
Templeton Asset Management Limited (note 2)(Fff5£2)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. (note 3)(Hf5E3)

Citigroup Inc. (note 4)(Fft5E4)

Schroder Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited
(note 5)(MI5E5)

Genesis Asset Managers, LLP (note 6)(Hf:6)

Genesis Emerging Markets Opportunities Fund Limited
(note 7)(FI&E7)

(L) - Long Position
(P) - Lending Pool
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REQXBHR ZH R

Total number of

H shares held issued H shares

Approximate
percentage

of total

Approximate

percentage

of total

issued shares

B e T HEBITHR EE 1T
HA% B2 & HEH Y 48 R 2R (9
BHABEDL BMABE DL
(%) (%)
19,977,000 (L) 10.96 4.85
18,314,900 (L) 10.05 4.44
16,560,900 (L) 9.09 4.02
16,560,900 (P) 9.09 4.02
14,644,000 (L) 8.03 3.55
7,344,000 (P) 4.08 3.55
13,036,000 (L) 7.16 3.16
12,749,000 (L) 6.99 3.09
12,749,000 (L) 6.99 3.09
L —FE
(P) —AEEHARD
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Notes:

These 19,977,000 H shares were held by Schroders Plc in its capacity as

an investment manager.

These 18,314,900 H shares were held by Templeton Asset Management

Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

These 16,560,900 H shares were held by JP Morgan Chase & Co.
of which 16,560,900 H shares were lending pool in its capacity as a

custodian corporation/an approved lending agent.

These 14,644,000 H shares were held by Citigroup Inc. of which 7,344,000
H shares were in its capacity as a custodian corporation/an approved
lending agent and the other 7,300,000 H shares were in its capacity as a

person having a security interest.

These 13,036,000 H shares were held by Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited in its capacity as an investment

manager.

These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Asset Managers, LLP

in its capacity as an investment manager.

These 12,749,000 H shares were held by Genesis Emerging Markets
Opportunities Fund Limited in its capacity as an investment manager.

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the directors,

supervisors or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December

2014, no other persons (not being a director, supervisor or chief

executive of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have

any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or

debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions

2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

- )
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 12 May 2014, the Group, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary
Chaopi Trading established a subsidiary, Beijing Chaopi Shengshi
Trading Company Limited(“Chaopi Shengshi”),with Mr. Sun Wenhui (a
director of Chaopi Trading) and two third parties (Mr.Li Gang and Ms.
Wang Ping),to engage in the wholesale distribution of daily consumer
products in Beijing.The registered capital of Chaopi Shengshi was
RMB25,000,000.The capital contribution of Chaopi Trading was
RMB16,250,000,and Chaopi Trading became the holder of 65% of
the equity interest in Chaopi Shengshi. The Company held an indirect
equity interest of approximately 51.9% in Chaopi Shengshi.The relevant
details are set out in the announcement issued by the company on 12

May 2014.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group entered into the following

continuing connected transactions:

BEXS

RoT—mMEFA+—B AEEBBHERT
A B EAMNEEE R R BN B
F=F(FREERTFLLTIEERLT —R
MEBA ARt Rt Rt E AR AR HAL R
) TEREAILFENBFAEMAOEE
%o BAHL AR &Y & AN R A K %25,000,000
7T AMEEHEE R ARK16,250,0007T * FF
BHALARE5%M IR - RARNEAIEERE
#)51. 9% EEER - BRAFBHENALFTNT
—mERA+=—BHENAL -

KEREXS

BEHA  AKRBETTOTHERERS

2014 2013

—E-mEF —T—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT AREFTT

1 Lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to the BARIARIFHE W F AR A 1,326 1,327
Company (note 1) (Pf3E)

2 Lease of a property by Tengyuan Xingye to the  BERBEXAEYE T AAR 1,602 3,204

Company (note 2) (fF&E2)

All the above continuing connected transactions are also reported as

related party transactions as disclosed in note (VII) 4(1) to the financial

statements.

Notes:

1. Pursuant to the three lease agreements, the three supplemental lease
agreements, a confirmation letter and a memorandum entered into
between the Company and Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Food Company
(“Chaoyang Auxiliary”) during the period from 30 April 2004 to 12
August 2008, Chaoyang Auxiliary agreed to lease to the Company
certain properties (referred to as the JKL Properties on page 110 of the

PRBEREIGIMEABEA LR S EEREY
EREMFE(E)4(1) ©
B3t

1. BREAQXFEILERTHAGRRMEQRN(HBR
ADR_ZZENFNA=+TRE_ZTN\FNA+
“RHMARIZN=0HELH  =O#HREH - —F

RER—ETE - ARIRRREEETHEE
FARRB(ZR_ZZLFRNATABENENE

EERRETONALETETNABLHENDE110
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introduction document dated 29 June 2007 in connection with the Main
Board Migration (the Introduction Document)) for terms of between 10
years to 20 years commencing on 1 January 2004, 1 July 2005 and 1
July 2006 (as the case may be) with fixed annual rentals (inclusive of the
relevant business and property taxes) for four to six year periods (as the
case may be). The rental is paid in advance on a quarterly or half-yearly

basis (as the case may be).

On 30 June 2011, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of Beijing Chaoyang District (“Chaoyang SASAC”) approved
the transfer of the properties aforesaid, except the five properties which
the company continued to rent and five properties which the lease are
terminated undermentioned (the “transferred assets”) from Chaoyang
Auxiliary to Beijing Hongchao Weiye Company limited, a state-owned
company wholly owned by Chaoyang SASAC (“Hongchao Weiye”) at nil
consideration. On 1 July 2011, a modification agreement of the lease
agreement was entered into between the Company, Chaoyang Auxiliary
and Hongchao Weiye under which the Company agreed to continue to
rent the transferred leased properties from Hongchao Weiye, to continue
to rent five properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary, and to ceaseto rent five

other properties from Chaoyang Auxiliary.

On 18 June 2012, a supplemental lease agreement (the “Supplemental
Lease Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Chaoyang
Auxiliary in relation to the properties of Chaoyang Auxiliary. Pursuant
to the Supplemental Lease Agreement, the Company and Chaoyang
Auxiliary agree to (i) increase the leasing area of one of the properties
leased from Chaoyang Auxiliary to operate as the training centre, and (ji)
adjust the rental payable for all five properties leased from the Chaoyang
Auxiliary according to the rental evaluated by the property assessment
firm with 31 December 2011 as the case assessment date, with increase

in accordance with the term.

Chaoyang Auxiliary is the controlling shareholder of the Company which
owns approximately 40.61% of the issued share capital of the Company,
and is also one of the promoters of the Company.

All the leased properties (with a total gross area of approximately 5,607
sg.m) are located in the Chaoyang District in Beijing, Beijing and are
principally used by the Company to operate 4 convenience stores and 1

training centre.
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The aggregate rental paid to Chaoyang Auxiliary was RMB 1,326,345 for
the year ended 31 December 2014, and ranging from RMB1,326,3445 to
RMB1,407,119 per annum during the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2023.

Pursuant to the lease agreement dated 2 July 2007 entered into between
the Company and Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Automobile Service Company
Limited (“Tengyuan Xingye”), a subsidiary of Chaoyang Auxiliary, Tengyuan
Xingye agreed to lease to the Company a property (“Tengyuan Property”)

for a term of 15 years commencing on 1 April 2007.

On 1 July 2011, a “Termination Agreement in respect of Property Leasing
Agreement” was entered into between the Company and Tengyuan
Xingye, pursuant to which the Company and Tengyuan Xingye agreed that
the Company shall () cease to rent the Tengyuan Property and (i) pay a
property occupation fee on the basis of the rental immediately before the
said cessation of rent to Tengyuan Xingye until the Company returned the

Property to Tengyuan Xingye.

On 18 June 2012, a new lease agreement (the “Tengyuan Lease
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Tengyuan
Xingye. Pursuant to the Tengyuan Lease Agreement, Tengyuan Xingye
agrees to lease the Tengyuan Property to the Company for a term from
1 July 2012 to 31 March 2022, and re-assessed the leased area of the
Tengyuan Property. The rental payable is set according to the rental
evaluated by the property assessment firm with 31 December 2011 as the
case assessment date, with increase in accordance with the term of the
lease.

On 9 May 2014 a Termination Agreement of housing lease agreement was
entered into between the Company and Tengyuan Xingye, a subsidiary
of Chaoyang Auxiliary. Pursuant to the said Termination Agreement the
original Tengyuan Lease Agreement was terminated with effect from 1
July 2014.

Tengyuan Xingye is a 82% subsidiary held by Chaoyang Auxiliary.

The Tengyuan Property is located No.52 Jiuxiangiao Road in the Chaoyang
District, Beijing, adjacent to a department store and a hypermarket owned
by the Company. It has a total gross area of approximately 7,195 sg.m.
and used by the Company as office, staff canteen and quarter, which to
support the aforesaid department store and hypermarket. The Tengyuan
Property is owned by Chaoyang Auxiliary, which has authorized Tengyuan
Xingye to lease and manage the Tengyuan Property.
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BEAANRYE1,3263845Lc BT —HF—A—
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The aggregate of the rentals and management fees payable to Tengyuan
Xingye by the Company shall be RMB1,601,967 for the year ended 31
December 2014.

In connection with each of the continuing connected transactions for items
1 to 2 (on an aggregated basis), the directors estimate that the annual
caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2014 will exceed
0.1% but less than 5%, of the applicable percentage ratios (other than
the profits ratio) under Rule 14A.34 (1) of the then Listing Rules. Hence,
the continuing connected transactions are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements pursuant to Rules 14A.45 to 14A.47
of the Listing Rules and are exempt from independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The relevant
announcements have been made on 18 June 2012 and 14 December
2012.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
have reviewed all the above continuing connected transactions during
the Reporting Period and confirmed that such continuing connected

transactions are:
a. in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

b.  on normal commercial terms or, if there are no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable to the Group than those available to or

from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and

S in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board has received a letter from the external auditors in relation to
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions:

a. have been approved by the Board;

b. have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the

respective agreements governing the transactions; and

@ have not exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed in the
announcements dated 18 June 2012 and 14 December 2012.
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The new amendments to the Listing Rules on connected transactions
came into effect on 1 July 2014. With the amendments becoming
effective, the lease of properties by Chaoyang Auxiliary to the Company
(“ the Transactions”) have become exempted continuing connected
transactions pursuant to the new Rule 14A.76(1)(c) of the Listing Rules,
as the annual cap for the Transactions would be less than HK$3,000,000.
Accordingly, as set out in the Company’s announcement dated 27 march
2015, the Company will apply the exemption under Rule 14A.76(1)(c) and
the Transactions will no longer be subject to the reporting and annual

review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in

accordance with and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on public information and within the knowledge of the directors,
the Company’s public float complied with the applicable requirements
of the Listing Rules from 1 January 2014 and up to the date of this

report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None of the directors, supervisors, the controlling shareholder or the
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates had engaged in any business that competed or might
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group,
or had any other conflict of interests with the Group during the

Reporting Period.
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AUDITORS

The financial statements in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA
LLP (BB K S EHAM(BREBER)) (‘Deloitte CPA”), whose
term of appointment will expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming

2014 annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Li Jianwen

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
27 March 2015
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

To the shareholders,

Since the incorporation of the Company, the supervisory committee
of the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”) adheres to principles
of honesty and integrity in discharging its supervisory duties and
obligations loyally and diligently in accordance with the Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange, the requirements under the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC and Company’s Articles of Association to

safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the Company.

All the supervisors were re- election as supervisors at the 2012 Annual
General Meeting or the worker’s congress (as case may be) for a
three-year term, with effect from 2012 Annual General Meeting or the
worker’s congress and will expire at the end of 2015 Annual General

Meeting or the worker’s congress.

During the Reporting Period, four meeting of the Supervisory
Committee were held for reviewing the 2013 annual report, the report
of the Supervisory Committee for 2013, and the 2014 quarterly and
interim results. The attendance records of the Supervisors are set out

below:

Ms. Liu Wenyu (Chairman) 2zt (EE)

Ms. Wang Hong T4
Ms. Yao Jie wkiE 2z +
Mr. Chen Zhong PeR §8 ot £
Ms. Cheng Xianghong Bhsrt
Mr. Yang Baoqun BEREE

EBE %

s

BARE
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BRERPFETRA - PRBREEER AT
RARNBER  BFHERA - BE - BET
HEEBE  BERRRARR 2# -

pu)

|
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RRG(BEBERAME) L BEER/RRESF £
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Attendance/Number of meetings
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4/4
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The major work performed by the Supervisory Committee included the
attendance of Board meetings and general meetings; inspection of
resolutions made by the Board, review of internal control system, strict
and effective monitoring of whether the policies and decisions made
by the management of the Company had confirmed with the relevant
laws and regulations and the Company’s Articles of Association,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and shareholders. The
Supervisory Committee has also reviewed the performance of the
directors and senior management in their daily operation activities
by various means, and examined the Group’s financial affairs and
connected transactions. As a result of our work, the Supervisory

Committee concluded that:

1. The decision-making process of the Company is in compliance
with the Company’s Article of Association. Proper and adequate
internal control system has been established. The directors and
senior management observed their fiduciary duties and worked
diligently, loyally and legally. The Supervisory Committee is not
aware of any breach of the relevant laws and regulations and the
Company’s Articles of Association or actions against the interests
of shareholders by the directors and senior management of the

Company.

2.  The Company’s 2014 financial statements reflected a fair view
of the financial position and operating results of the Group in

material aspects.

3. All continuing connected transactions and connected transaction
conducted in the Reporting Period between the Group and its
connected persons were in the ordinary course of business
and carried out pursuant to the terms of the agreement for the
transactions, and no act that prejudiced the interests of the

Company and shareholders has been found.
4.  The Group did not encounter any major litigation during the

Reporting Period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

EFEHMIETIFRE  JIFEFERERA
T EEESTERRE  BENEER  BRY

BRI E B N R E R E AT AR E K I E B R
REBNEBRERERNARAERNRE
REARMBROER - EESHLBBZEERE

BEEENRRERAENBRRLEETR RE

AEENPHEELBERS - RIE LR TE -

EFEERRNTER

1. ARAMAREAFARABARERNR
EARARDEIEENTEINRNERER -
ERBEERSREBABETERER
BE BHRREETRE  HEFEEAREE
ERRREBABFEERRERERLIAR

2. ARB_F-NERBEREEZERTER
RHRIRT ANEBE R IR R AL LR -

3. WEHMA - AKEEEBMEALHALNRA
FEMER S MAEXHHKE - REAER
BWIRRR 5 IE FRRATT - REREFHE
EAREARA RRFERNTTA

4. HMEPAXKEETAMERFR



We would like to express our appreciation to the strenuous supports

of the shareholders, directors and all staff to the Supervisory

Committee during the Reporting Period.

BY ORDER OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
Liu Wenyu

Chairman

Beijing, PRC
27 March 2015
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
55 BEEKEREEE[N
DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jianwen, aged 54, is the Chairman of the Board and an

executive director. He worked in Beijing Jingkelong Shang Sha
(“dingkelong Shang Sha”), the predecessor of Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Group Company Limited (“Jingkelong
Supermarket”) (the predecessor of the Company) as the deputy
general manager from 1998 to 2002. From 2002 to 2004, he was a
director and the deputy general manager of Jingkelong Supermarket.
From November 2004 to June 2013, he was the managing director
of the Company. He has been the Chairman of the Board of the
Company since June 2013.

Mr. Li Wei, aged 51, is the General Manager of the Company and
an executive director. Mr. Li had held various positions in Beijing
Blue Island Da Sha Company Limited (“Beijing Blue Island”), including
being the market manager, the purchasing manager, the manager of
development department and the manager’s assistant from August
1993 to November 2005. From November 2005 to November 2008,
he had been the assistant general manager of Beijing Blue Island.
From November 2008 to May 2013, Mr. Li was a director and the
general manager of Beijing Blue Island. From 28 June 2013, Mr. Li
was has been appointed as the general manager of the Company. He

is also a director of Chaopi Trading, an approximately 79.85% directly

owned subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Li Chunyan, aged 42, is an executive director. Ms. Li obtained
a bachelor’s degree in law and subsequently a master’'s degree in
private international law from China University of Politics & Law of
China. Ms. Li is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. She was the Officer of the Bureau of Law of Jingkelong
Shang Sha from 2001 to 2002. In addition, she was the Officer of
the Bureau of Law and the Secretary to the board of directors of
Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since November 2004,
she has been one of the executive directors of the Company. She has

been appointed as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and deputy

general manager since December 2008.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFLaLEEEEN

Mr. Liu Yuejin, aged 55, is an executive director. From 2000 to 2004,
he was the general manager of Jingkelong Langfang. Between 2002
and 2004, he was one of the directors of Jingkelong Supermarket.
Since November 2004, he has been an executive director of the
Company. From 2005 to 2009, Mr. Liu had held various positions in
the Company, including the manager of the First Operation Division,
the manager of the Jiuxiangiao Community Shopping Centre and the
manager of the Operation Division of Shopping Centre. From 2009
to 2012, he had been the manager of the First Operation Division of
Supermarkets of the Company. Since March 2012, he has been the

manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Weilin, aged 51, is a non-executive director. From 2006
August to 2009 August, Mr. Wang served as the deputy general
manager of Beijing Hongchao Weiye Company Limited (“Hongchao
Weiye”). From 2009 August to 2012 October, he served as the general
manager of Hongchao Weiye. He has been the general manager of
Beijing Chaoyang Auxiliary Company Limited since October 2012.

Mr. Li Shunxiang, aged 62, is a non-executive director. From
2000 to 2010, he was the general manager of Beijing Zhonglianjian
Construction Company Limited. From 2002 to 2004, he was a non-
executive director of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004,

he has been a non-executive director of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Liping, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Wang obtained a master’'s degree in Economics and a PhD in
Management from Renmin University of China in 1985 and 2004,
respectively. He is currently the professor and doctorial supervisor
at the Institute of Business Organisation and the faculty of Human
Resources Management at Renmin University of China. He has
also been an independent non-executive director of China Haisum
Engineering Co. Ltd. (FEEH TREHEBRHBR A A
2009, which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Since 10 June

) since April

2010, he has been an independent non-executive director.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFLaLTEEEEN

Mr. Chen Liping, aged 53, is an independent non-executive director.
Mr. Chen obtained a master’s degree in Business Operation from Aichi
University of Japan in 1999 and a PhD in Economics from Circulation
University of Economics of Japan in 2008. He is currently the Head,
associate professor and master supervisor of the faculty of Marketing
in the Institute of Business Management at Capital University of
Economics and Business of China. Since 10 June 2010, he has been
an independent non-executive director. Since September 2014, he has
been an independent non-executive director of Kunming department

store (group) co., LTD.

Mr. Choi Onward, aged 44, is an independent non-executive director
of the Company and the chairman of the audit committee. Mr. Choi
currently serves as the acting chief financial officer of NetEase, Inc.,
which is listed on the Nasdaq Global Market (NASDAQ: NTES). Mr.
Choi also serves as an independent director of Tuniu Corporation,
which is listed on the Nasdag Global Market (NASDAQ: TOUR)
and an independent non-executive director of China ITS (Holdings)
Company Limited, which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (SEHK: 1900). Mr. Choi is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow member
of the CPA Australia, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a registered practicing Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Choi holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in accountancy with honors from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Choi has been an independent non-executive director

since June 2010.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFLaLEEEEN

SUPERVISORS

Ms. Liu Wenyu, aged 483, is the chairman of the Company’s
supervisory committee. During the period from 1999 to 2008, Ms.
Liu has been appointed as the vice-chairman of the labour union of
Chaoyang Auxiliary and the Company, the deputy manager of the
First Operation Division and the officer of the Office of the Jiuxiangiao
Community Shopping Center coordination team of the Company.
Since October 2008, she has been the chairman of the labour union
of the Company. Since June 2010, she has been the chairman of the

Company’s Supervisory Committee.

Mr. Yang Baoqun, aged 62, is a supervisor of the Company. He was
a supervisor of Jingkelong Supermarket from 2002 to 2004. Since

November 2004, he has been a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Chen Zhong, aged 51, is a supervisor of the Company. Mr.
Chen obtained his doctorate from Peking University in 1989. He is
currently a professor of the School of Electronics Engineering and
Computer Science, the Head of the Advanced Financial Information
Research Centre at Peking University. Since June 2002 to July 2010,
he had been a professor and the Head of the School of Software and
Microelectronics, Peking University. Since January 2005, he has been

a supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Cheng Xianghong, aged 43, is a supervisor of the Company.
Ms. Cheng obtained her bachelor’'s degree and master’s degree
in management from Renmin University of China. She is a qualified
accountant, certified public valuer and registered tax agent. She had
previously worked in Beijing Ding Xin Li accounting firm. She has
been the deputy general manager and financial controller of Beijing
Zhongguancun City Construction Company since December 2003.

Since January 2005, she has been a supervisor of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFLaLTEEEEN

Ms. Wang Hong, aged 44, is a supervisor of the Company. Ms.
Wang is a senior economist. She worked in Beijing Ruida Frozen
Foods Company Limited for about nine years and was appointed as
the assistant to general manager before joining the Company. Since
September 2003 to March 2012, she had been appointed as the
deputy officer of the Office of Managers, the purchase manager of
the In-house Brand Division of Purchase Center and the manager
of the Marketing Department of the Company. From March 2012 to
July 2012, she had been appointed as the deputy manager and the
manager of the Human Resources Department. Since August 2012,
she has been the Chief Human Resources Officer and the manager of
the Human Resources Department. Since June 2010, she has been a

staff-appointed supervisor of the Company.

Ms. Yao Jie, aged 52, is a supervisor of the Company. From 2002 to
2004, she was the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of Jingkelong Supermarket. Since November 2004 to July 2009, she
had been the deputy officer of the Human Resources Department
of the Company. From July 2009 to March 2012, she had been the
officer of the Manager Office of the Company. Since April 2012, she
had been the vice-chairman of the labour union of the Company.
Since January 2014, she has been the officer of the Comprehensive
Office of the Company. Since November 2009, she has been a staff-

appointed supervisor of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Shenlin, aged 51. Mr. Li acted as the manager of several retail
outlets of the Company from 1997 to 2007. From 2007 to 2009, he
was the manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets and the
assistant to the manager of the Company. Since August 2009, he has

been the assistant general manager of the Company.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EFLaLEEEEN

Mr. Shang Yongtian, aged 53. Mr. Shang acted as the manager
of several retail outlets and the department manager of Chaoyang
Auxiliary from 1991 to 2004. From 2005 to 2009, he was the manager
of the Operation Division of supermarkets of the Company and the
manager of the Operation Division of Hypermarkets of the Company.
From January 2010 to April 2013, he was the assistant to the manager
of the Company. Since April 2013, he has been the assistant general

manager of the Company.

Mr. Li Bo, aged 36, is the Company Secretary of the Company. He
graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business with
a bachelor’s degree of economics in 2001 and obtained a master
degree of accounting from Macquarie University of Australia in 2004.
Mr. Li is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Certified Practising Accountant of Australia. Mr. Li
worked for Bank of Beijing from July 2001 to June 2002 as Loan
administration officer. He served as an auditor in Deloitte Beijing office
from December 2004 to July 2007. He served as a senior auditor in
the Audit office of New South Wales in Australia from August 2007
to September 2010, then served in Sinolink securities as a project
manager from September 2010 to March 2011. Mr. Li joined the
Company on 18 March 2011. From November 2013 till now, Mr. Li
also served as the Company secretary for Yunnan Water Industry

Investment Company Ltd.

Mr. Luan Jie, aged 33, is the board secretary of the Company.
He graduated from law school of Beijing University of Chemical
Technology with a bachelor of law degree. Mr. Luan served as an
legal clerk in Chaopi Auxilary Company from 2004 to 2007, he served
as an legal practitioner in Beijing Jingdu law firm in 2007-2008. Since
2008, he served as deputy manager and manager in the Company’s
securities and legal department. He was appointed as board secretary

from February 2010.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
EATHRE

To the Shareholders of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Beijing
Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the
Company’s and consolidated balance sheets as at 31 December
2014, and the Company’s and consolidated income statements, the
Company’s and consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’
equity and the Company’s and consolidated cash flow statements for

the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

1. Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements. The
responsibilities include: (1) preparing the financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
to achieve fair presentation of the financial statements; (2)
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control that is
necessary to ensure that the financial statements are free from

material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

2. Certified public accountants’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an audit opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing. China Standards
on Auditing require that we comply with the Code of Ethics for
Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing audit procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the certified
public accountants’ judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
Certified Public Accountants consider the internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company present
fairly, in all material respects, the Company’s and consolidated
financial position as of 31 December 2014, and the Company’s
and consolidated results of operations and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for

Business Enterprises.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP.
Chinese Certified Public Accountants

Shanghai, China

Zheng Qun
Li Xu

27 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED BALANGE SHEETS
FEERER

At 31 December 2014 2014412531 H 1L FE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—mEF —zF—=
+=—A=+—H +=A=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARETT
Current Assets: RENEE :
Cash and bank balances EEES (V)1 536,839,101 601,588,771
Accounts receivable FEURBR 3R V12 1,674,135,328 1,658,164,932
Prepayments SEERE e (V3 649,633,624 550,729,655
Other receivables Eofth R (Vha 132,051,916 129,135,310
Inventories FE (V)5 1,483,886,458 1,481,250,484
Other current assets HimahEE (V6 289,777,639 247,122,377
Total Current Assets REEESE 4,766,324,066 4,667,991,529
Non-current Assets: FRBEE :
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 4,578,000 3,860,000
Investment properties BE T EHE 147,805,414 128,243,912
Fixed assets BEEBEE 1,181,654,479 1,279,327,711
Construction in progress EEIRE 94,384,816 94,067,053
Intangible assets B EE 196,846,698 197,500,316
Goodwill EES 86,673,788 86,673,788
Long-term prepaid expenses REFHER 584,780,164 565,226,236
Deferred tax assets BEASHEE 28,051,865 20,478,748
Other non-current assets Hih3EmehEE 150,403,808 106,689,056
Total Non-current Assets FRBEESE 2,475,179,032 2,482,066,820
TOTAL ASSETS BEAG 7,241,503,098 7,150,058,349
Current Liabilities: REBEE
Short-term borrowings 52 BAfE 3K 2,172,490,151 1,860,977,942
Notes payable FEREE 76,088,972 56,677,291
Accounts payable FETBRFK 1,150,842,260 1,138,958,035
Advances from customers U R IE 479,918,595 503,311,013
Employee benefits payable JE {1 B8 T 3 B 1,935,503 3,128,350
Dividends payable JE S A% F) 5,545,226 5,000
Taxes payable JERX TR B 68,394,409 25,866,334
Other payables HAthERT IR 184,306,314 216,163,456
Bonds payable FERES - 199,979,167
Long-term borrowings due —FARBERREBER
within one year 73,000,000 10,000,000
Other current liabilities Hi Atk 49,290,684 49,837,305
Total Current Liabilities mEEEEE 4,261,812,114 4,064,904,393
Non-current Liabilities: FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEAMSHAE 4,715,063 9,727,229
Bonds payable FEfIES 744,820,080 743,553,870
Long-term borrowings RHIfER 95,000,000 234,000,000
Provisions TERTAE 910,612 910,612
Other non-current liabilities HiERsaE 39,179,834 20,611,219
Total Non-current Liabilities *RBEBEESE 884,625,589 1,008,802,930
TOTAL LIABILITIES SE4asT 5,146,437,703 5,073,707,323
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
aftEERRE

At 31 December 2014 2014412531 H 1 FE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZT-lmF —E—=F
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR®T AR¥TT
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY: R
Share capital A& 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserve Y YN 609,045,676 610,792,439
Other comprehensive income HE iR Wz 3,171,000 2,632,500
Surplus reserve o YN 135,571,025 129,500,819
Undistributed profits RABFE 493,671,848 499,634,209
Total Equity Attributable to BERSARAKRRESRSE
Shareholders of the Parent Company 1,653,679,549 1,654,779,967
Minority interests DERRER 441,385,846 421,571,059
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY BERESST 2,095,065,395 2,076,351,026
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND BEMBRRER AT

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

7,241,503,098

7,150,058,349

B FE R T RER AR R D

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been HF80EEFI10BEMIHKHRERATIEEARE
signed by:

FEX ZTEK xER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
JEERERA FEEIIEREERA BT HEREEA
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAIEERER

At 31 December 2014 2014412531 H 1L FE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—mF —T—=
+=—A=+—H +=A=+—8H
Notes RMB RMB
B3 AR¥T ARETT
Current Assets: RBEE :
Cash and bank balances EEES (X1 145,369,262 255,644,218
Entrusted loans REER (XIn2 350,000,000 250,000,000
Accounts receivable FEUBE X X3 262,791,528 269,182,947
Prepayments TEFRIE (X4 1,814,092 1,596,853
Other receivables E At FE UK Xins 583,444,731 166,213,069
Inventories FE Xine 301,217,861 336,898,450
Other current assets EfnEh&EE Xz 180,480,720 117,620,036
Total Current Assets REBEEST 1,825,118,194 1,397,155,573
Non-current Assets: RBEE :
Entrusted Loans RAER (Xins 100,000,000 350,000,000
Long-term equity investments REARER & (xino 973,635,094 973,635,094
Investment properties BE T EHE X110 63,591,071 37,485,364
Fixed assets BEEE (Xint1 909,578,720 985,754,778
Construction in progress EEIR Xin12 89,304,695 91,237,506
Intangible assets BREE Xin13 89,862,330 91,429,917
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER (Xin14 484,820,106 456,988,860
Other non-current assets HiIEReEE (Xin15 5,163,435 50,795,094
Total Non-current Assets FRBEESE 2,715,955,451 3,037,326,613
TOTAL ASSETS BEAG 4,541,073,645 4,434,482,186
Current Liabilities: REBAE:
Short-term borrowings RHIE R Xinte 840,000,000 400,000,000
Accounts payable FERTERIR Xin17 724,206,529 758,543,948
Advances from customers TR FIE (Xin18 407,568,122 457,541,118
Employee benefits payable JE AT B T %M Xin19 1,246,433 1,467,858
Dividends payable FERT AR 312,626 5,000
Taxes payable ER T E X120 11,899,877 9,195,320
Other payables H B XI21 127,605,754 132,650,324
Bonds payable JEFHES (Xin22 - 199,979,167
Long-term borrowings due —EAE R R EAE
within one year (XIn23 73,000,000 10,000,000
Other current liabilities Hit g atE (Xin24 34,908,470 35,614,133
Total Current Liabilities REBEEA 2,220,747,811 2,004,996,868
Non-current Liabilities: ERBEE
Bonds payable EfIES (Xi22 744,820,080 743,553,870
Long-term borrowings RHEAER (XIn25 95,000,000 234,000,000
Deferred tax liabilities BELEFSTHAE (XIn26 2,366,461 7,274,369
Provisions AR 910,612 910,612
Other non-current liabilities HibIERBAE Xin27 26,041,607 12,039,449
Total Non-current Liabilities ERBEEES 869,138,760 997,778,300
TOTAL LIABILITIES BESE 3,089,886,571 3,002,775,168

! ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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BALANCE SHEETS OF THE COMPANY
NAEERRE

At 31 December 2014 2014412531 H 1 FE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—-NF —E—=F
+=—A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR®T AR¥TT

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY: BERER
Share capital [i&N 412,220,000 412,220,000
Capital reserve BARRNKE 610,293,521 610,293,521
Surplus reserve BHATE 111,793,791 105,723,585
Undistributed profits ROEFE 316,879,762 303,469,912

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

R R A ET

1,451,187,074

1,431,707,018

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

BEMBRRESRATT

4,541,073,645

4,434,482,186

signed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

EEREZA

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been

FHHK

Chief Financial Officer

FEERFIEEERA

B R A B TS R AR K BD

KER

FBOHEEFIVENMBHERATIATARE

Chief Accountant

BT EERAA

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ENARNIVEES

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12531H 1t EE

2014 2013
—E-NEE “E-=FE
Notes RMB RMB
HiaE AR¥R AREET
| Total operating income — B A (V)35 10,890,758,888 10,403,753,477
Less: Operating costs o BERAK (V135 8,682,268,153 8,309,825,077
Business tax and surcharges BERS RN (VI)36 71,536,583 67,021,690
Operating expenses BEER (V)37 1,588,772,754 1,484,512,031
Administrative expenses EIEEH (V38 268,703,883 266,231,417
Financial expenses M%ER (V)39 170,990,341 158,068,655
Impairment losses on assets (reversal) BERMBERK(ER) (V)40 (2,169,949) 1,337,228
Add: Investment income meREKE (V)41 9,496,885 2,078,247
Il.  Operating profit — - EEANE 120,154,008 118,835,626
Add: Non-operating income m e EEIMRA (VI)42 17,167,675 34,070,038
Including Gains from disposal of Hep: ERBEE
non-current assets BREAEF 8,313 99,083
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEIT (V43 4,818,344 9,420,616
Including: Losses from disposal of Hep ERBEE
non-current assets RERK 2,082,512 3,297,069
lIl. Total profit = FEesE 132,503,339 143,485,048
Less: Income tax expenses W FTSTHER (V)44 43,640,848 43,168,935
IV. Net profit Mo SEAE (V45 88,862,491 100,316,113
Net profit attributable to shareholders of ) S SYNGI T P=E 2
the parent company EO)EFAINE 41,329,845 57,055,711
Profit or loss attributable to minority DY RIBG
interests 47,532,646 43,260,402
V. Other comprehensive income f - EiRa s 538,500 (3,354,000)
Other comprehensive income will be B ES BEBREN
reclassified to gains(losses) Hifir s e
Net gains (losses) arising from available- AHEESREEESL
for-sale financial assets HERG(EX) 28 (V)32 538,500 (3,354,000
VI. Total comprehensive income N ERA M 89,400,991 96,962,113
Total comprehensive income BERERARMEEN
attributable to shareholders of Al EE
the parent company 41,868,345 58,701,711
Total comprehensive income BERVERENGE
attributable to minority interests s 4a%E 47,532,646 43,260,402

I
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
EXGRAIVEES

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12531H 1L FZ

2014 2013
—E-MEE T-ZFE
Notes RMB RMB
FisE AR¥T AR¥T
VII. Earnings per share: + - R
(I) Basic earnings per share (—)EAFRK S (V)46 0.10 0.14
(Il) Dilutive earnings per share (D) mEskkE (Va6 N/A N/A
The notes form an integral part of the financial statements. P 5T AR B T R R MO AR B D

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been H80EZE319EMNIKBERA TIEEARE

signed by:
FEX FHK *ER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
SEERZRA FEEIIIEREEA BT HIEREA

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR



INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NEIRRINE B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12531H 1t EE

V.

Total operating income

Less: Operating costs
Business tax and surcharges
Operating expenses
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses

Impairment losses on assets (reversal)

Add: Investment income

Operating profit

Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

Including: Losses from disposal of

Total profit

non-current assets

Less: Income tax expenses

Net profit

V. Other comprehensive income

VI. Total comprehensive income

H 3

LT 0N

W EERA

ED sl

EXEH
EEER
MHEM

BERERKL(EE)

e AN

-

IR E LI ON
W EEI T

Hi: ERsBEE
BERKX

R

B S E R

C R
- Bittira W

A NERE

(Xl41

2014
“E-MEE
RMB
AR¥T

4,646,417,797
3,686,565,591
30,543,273
712,274,840
159,008,768
48,368,245
(2,169,949)
42,933,417

54,760,446
14,709,154
997,893
336,563

68,471,707
7,769,651

60,702,056

60,702,056

2013
—B-=FE
RMB
ARBT

4,614,848,850
3,658,535,498
31,939,257
696,999,480
157,383,003
41,270,283
1,337,228
60,182,001

87,566,102
6,324,744
4,517,464
2,120,920

89,373,382
7,497,213

81,876,169

81,876,169

- 9

signed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

JEEREA
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The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
aHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12/531H It F/&E

Cash Flows from Operating
Activities:

Cash received from selling goods and
rendering services

Other cash received relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from
operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and
receiving services

Cash payments to and on behalf
of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows from
operating activities

Net cash flow from operating activities

. Cash Flows from Investing

Activities:
Proceeds from short-term investment/
interest income

Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets and other long-term assets

Principal received from financial product

Cash received from withdrawal of
margin deposits

Cash received from government funds
related to the assets

Sub-total of cash inflows from
investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress intangible
assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for placement of pledged
time deposits
Principal paid for financial product

Cash paid for other investment activities
Sub-total of cash outflows from

investing activities
Net cash flow from investing activities

— REFHEEN
RERE
HERM - RRHEH
Y2 H3R &
Yo B B A R B
BRANRE

Notes
k3

(V47(1)

REFEBRSIRANGT

BEAMm  BXEH
SAERE

TR TR ABRT

XYwHRE
SNEEIERE
XA R LR E

BRNRE

(V)47(2)

KEFRHRBMB /NG

RETHPELENRE

s =N
mE R

o REFEDELEN

RERE

RS iR g e,
MBS APTE
MR E

REBETEEENEM
RHE EMPR @A
A

Yo o] 3% Bt = am A 21 Y
g

(V1)48(1)

WEHRE S T AT

HRE
Yo B B A AR R O
B B

REEREHHEDRANDE

BRETEE T8
T2 BEEM
Hin RBEE N
IR E

EANMRE TR

KR E
KRERPEMRSHN
g
X R R B E)
BRANRE

RERBHRSML /NG

REZHELANRS

M

2014
—B-mEE
RMB
AR

12,507,458,099
213,082,168
12,720,540,267
(10,402,897,312)

(630,053,527)
(253,500,620)

(1,032,843,586)
(12,319,295,045)

401,245,222

31,681,742

405,194
2,747,500,000
47,176,913
31,006,700

2,857,770,549

(155,266,551)
(50,359,249)
(2,817,500,000)
(86,000,000)
(3,109,125,800)

(251,355,251)

2013
—T=HFE
RMB
AREETT

11,786,993,682

222,498,160
12,009,491,842
(9,880,850,345)

(609,867,342)
(286,472,926)

(924,860,727)
(11,702,051,340)

307,440,502

14,978,044

18,885,543
2,124,210,000

641,870,247

2,799,943,834

(259,146,323)
(649,747,367)
(2,164,210,000)
(47,500,000)
(3,120,608,690)

(320,659,856)

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

2014 &

(



CONSOL
AaffRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12531H 1t EE

Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Cash received from investments
Including: cash received from capital
contributions from minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Proceeds from disposal of interests
of subsidiaries
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from issue of bonds
Sub-total of cash inflows from
financing activities
Cash paid for repayment of liabilities
Cash paid for repayment of bonds
Cash paid for acquisition of minority
interests of subsidiaries
Cash paid for dividends and interests

Including: Dividend paid by subsidiaries
to minority shareholders

Sub-total of cash outflows from
financing activities

Net Cash Flow from (used in)
Financing Activities

. Effect on cash and cash equivalents

due to change in foreign currency
exchange rate

Net Increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and cash
equivalents at the beginning
of the year

= -BEEHELEN

RERE

U R B W E R 2

Hep: FRERKDH
PRI E Y B
MR

& F A BB R

AR RN &

BRI R R 2

BEFEEMRIINERS

ZEEBHRSRANG

EEBEBNNARS
EEESFXNNRE
WeiE T 2Rl BIRR
IRIEFT S N VR &
7 B BRI R B 72
XAWRE
Hep: FRAEXM 4R
DBIBR A
P
ZREBHRDIRE /NG

SERPELNRE

MEHER

m-ERSHHRER

RESENNY

B-RERREEEWF

gmaE ()
e FMReRkRE
EEMHR

VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents <+ SXREREE

at the end of the year

LEWBE

Notes
B &E

(V48(1)

(Vh48(2)

(V1)48(2)

DATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2014
—E-NUEE
RMB
AR#TT

20,779,100
20,779,100
4,405,621,246

4,426,400,346
(4,168,821,994)
(200,000,000)

(2,100,000)

(273,022,811)
(48,143,722)
(4,643,944,805)
(217,544,459)
(277,518)
(67,932,006)
589,553,313

521,621,307

2013
—F=FE
RMB
AR®T

35,452,474

35,452,474
34,300,000
3,892,246,724
942,826,792
4,904,825,990
(4,324,975,631)
(200,000,000)
(960,000)

(237,331,429

(48,229,371)

(4,763,267,060)

141,558,930

103,484

128,443,060

461,110,253

589,563,313

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been

signed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

EEREA
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KER

Chief Accountant
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY
RAEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12/531H It F/&E

Cash Flows from Operating
Activities:

Cash received from selling goods and
rendering services

Other cash received relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from
operating activities

Cash paid for purchasing goods and
receiving services

Cash paid to and on behalf
of employees

Taxes and surcharges paid

Other cash paid relating to
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows from
operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

. Cash Flows from Investing

Activities:
Proceeds from short-term investment/
interest income

Net cash receipts from disposal of fixed
assets and other long-term assets

Principal received from financial product
Cash received from entrusted loans

Cash received from government funds
related to the assets

Cash received from distribution
of dividends

Sub-total of cash inflows from
investing activities

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
construction in progress, intangible
assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for entrusted loans

Net cash paid for capital injection
to subsidiaries

Principal paid for financial product

Cash paid for other investment
activities

Sub-total of cash outflows from
investing activities

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

.

— REFHELEN

RERE
HERM - RIS

Y2 H3R &
Yo ) B B A R B

BRANRE
REFEBRSITANGT

BEEm  BXEH
SRS
IIEB TR A
BIXN0RE
SNEE AR E

XA R LR E
BRNRE

KEFRHRBMB /G

RETHPELNRE

s BN
mE R

RETBHEEN
BERE
RS iR g e,
S LA FTYE
b
REBETEENEM
REEEMIE R
A
Yo o] 32 Bt = A 21 Y
g

Y Bl FEE AT E
A

Y B9 B A AR A O
B B

D EFERAWRINES

BRERSHDIMANGT

BRETEE 2
T3 B EEM
Hit RHIEES
MR

REEFAXNNER S

HFRREINKEM
X HEBRE

KRERPEMRS LN
ZING

BN VT )
BRnRE

RERSHRDMIB /NG

REGHELNE S

B

Notes
k3

(Xl42(1)

XI)42(2)

(XIN43(1)

2014
—B-mEE
RMB
AR

5,172,269,976
141,889,408
5,314,159,384
(4,273,650,110)

(368,068,465)
(126,245,103)

(351,445,414)
(5,119,409,092)

194,750,292

47,305,285

339,417
2,337,500,000
250,000,000
26,006,700
40,258,900

2,701,410,302

(93,457,736)
(100,000,000)

(2,407,500,000)
(438,000,000)
(3,038,957,736)

(337,547,434)

2013
—T=HFE
RMB
AREETT

5,132,461,234

124,960,966
5,257,422,200
(4,146,093,548)

(346,531,829)
(121,716,370)

(363,176,039)
(4,977,517,786)

279,904,414

34,037,652

18,770,342
515,210,000

430,000,000

59,104,400

1,057,122,394

(165,290,657)
(700,000,000)

(140,490,324)
(535,210,000)
(60,000,000)
(1,600,990,981)

(543,868,587)

ERREEREEERNARAR
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

NARRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12531H 1t EE

Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:

Cash received from borrowings

Cash received from issue of bonds

Sub-total of cash inflows from
financing activities

Cash paid for repayment of liabilities

Cash paid for repayment of bonds

Cash paid for dividends and interests

Sub-total of cash outflows from
financing activities
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

. Effect on cash and cash equivalents

due to change in foreign currency
exchange rate

Net Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Add: Balance of cash and cash
equivalents at the beginning
of the year

= -BETHELEN
REnE
RPN A MR S
BEREEMPINRE
BEEHHRSB/ANG

BEEBX RS
BEEFXNNERES
7 BB R B RS
SRS
FEEBHRIRH /NG

EEEDELANES

R R
MEFHE

W ERSEHHRER
ReSENNSZE

I-RERREEEWE
12 mEE, Ohd)

m:FERe kRS
EEMHRE

VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents X+ FREREERRE

at the end of the year

LEWGE

Notes
k3

(XI43(1)

(XI)43(2)

XIn4(2)

2014
—E-NUEE
RMB
AR#TT

1,437,080,016

1,437,080,016
(1,073,080,016)
(200,000,000)

(131,287,708)

(1,404,367,724)

32,712,292

(190,106)

(110,274,956)

255,644,218

145,369,262

2013
—F=FE
RMB
AR®T

1,037,296,661
942,826,792

1,080,123,453
(1,408,296,661)
(200,000,000)
(93,824,226)
(1,697,120,887)

283,002,566

103,484

19,141,877

236,502,341

255,644,218

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been

sign

I

ed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

SEERERA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

AR IESR B

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12/531H It F/&E

Attributable to shareholders of the parent company

FENBLARRER

—~

Other
comprehensive Surplus Undistributed Minority
[tem ER Share capital ~ Capital reserve income resenve profits interests Total equity
kA BANE  Hfrgala BHNE  ASEAE  JoREE  RRERAH
RMB RMB RVB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
201311 013F1 B1RBE 412,220,000 611,490,716 5986500  121,313202 493,083,750 356,003,642  2,000,047,810
I Changes for the year - KEEREDLE
() Net proft (—)5HE = - - - 570%,711 43260402 100316,113
() Other comprehensive income (2)EtEA ks - - (3,354,000) - - - 3,354,000)
Subtotal of () and ) BR(=)R(=)pat = - (3,354,000 - BT0%5711 43060402 96962113
(Il Shareholders' contrioution and (Z)RERATBLER
reduction in capital
1. Capital contribution from 1OERRBARL
minority shareholders - - - - - 35,462,474 35,452,474
2, Acquire minorty shareholders’ LRETFRRDERR
equity of subsidiaries e - (698,277) = - - (261,723) (960,000)
3. Sales of minority shareholders’ SHETLRPERR
equity of subsidiaries i = = S = (1,045,635) 35,345,635 34,300,000
(V) Proft distrbution (mHEAE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1RDBBAE - - - 8187617 (8,187,617 s =
2. Distributions to shareholders 2LHRENDE - - - - (41,222,000 - (41,222,000
3. Distributions to minority STRATHOEREN
shareholders by subsidiaries I S S - - - (48229371)  (48,229,371)
2013.12.31 013512331 H58 412,220,000 610,792,439 2632500 129500819 499,634,209 421,571,069  2,076,351,026
I Changes for the year - FEEREHLE
() Net profit (—)EFHE - - - - 41,329,845 47,532,646 88,862,491
() Other comprenensive income (2) Rtk - - 538,500 - - - 538,500
Subtotal of () and (I Fil(=)R(=) st - - 538,500 - 41,329,845 47,532,646 89,400,991
(Il Owners’ contributions and (Z)RERAMRAER
reduction in capital
1. Capital contribution from 1OERERAER
minority shareholders = 214,130 = = = 20,564,970 20,779,100
2. Acquire minority shareholders’ 2RETFRADEBRER
equity of subsidiaries TR = (1,960,893) - - - (139,107) (2,100,000)
(V) Profit distribution (mHEAE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1 RIOBHBLE - - - 6,070,206 (6,070,206) = =
2. Distributions to shareholders 2LHREHHE = - - - (41,222,000 - (41,222,000)
3. Distributions to minority SFRTHIGRES
shareholders by subsidliaries e S S S = - (48143722 (48,143722)
2014.12.31 01451283158 412,220,000 609,045,676 3171000 135,571,025 493,671,848 441,385,846  2,095,065,3%

The notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been

signed by:

FEX

Legal Representative

EEREA
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Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY OF THE COMPANY
AR D%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 20144 12531H 1t EE

Share Capital Surplus  Undistributed
capital reserve reserve profits
R N EHAR RAEHB
RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET ANRET ARET ARET

Total
equity

RRERA

RMB
ARETL

2013.1.1 20131 A1BE 412,220,000 610,293,521 97,535,968 271,003,360 1,391,052,849
. Changes for the year — AEEREYEE
() Net profit (—)ERR RSN R AT - - - 81876169 81,876,169
() Profit distribution (Z)MBEIE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1. REBBLE - - 8,187,617 (8,187,617) =
2. Distributions to shareholders 2. HREMDE - - - (41,222,0000  (41,222,000)
2013.12.31 2013F 12831 HH % 412,220,000 610,293,521 105,723,585 308,469,912 1,431,707,018
. Changes for the year — AEEREYLE
() Net profit and other (F)ENERGAUERR
comprehensive income - - - 60,702,056 60,702,056
(Il Profit distribution (D)FEAE
1. Transfer to surplus reserve 1. REEBDE - - 6,070,206 (6,070,206) -
2. Distributions to shareholders 2. HRERHE - - - (41,222,000)  (41,222,000)
2014.12.31 2014F 12831 HAE 412,220,000 610,293,521 111,793,791 316,879,762  1,451,187,074
The notes form an integral part of the financial statements. M5k AR B T SRk MU AR BT

The financial statements as set out from pages 80 to 319 have been  SE80EZEFEI19EMUBMEATIBEAEREE

signed by:
FEX FHEK FER
Legal Representative Chief Financial Officer Chief Accountant
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ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited (the “Company”) is
a jointstock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). On 1 November 2004, upon the
approval by Beijing Administration for Industry and Commerce
dt X ™ I & ), the Company was transformed from Beijing
Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Group Limited (“Beijing Jingkelong
Supermarket Chain Company Limited” before renamed) and the
registered capital of the Company was RMB246,620,000. The
Business License No. is 110000002315927. The registered office
and the principal place of business of the Company is located
at Block No. 45, Xinyuan Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale

distribution of daily consumer products.

On 25 September 2006, the Company was listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK”) through the issue of H shares. On 26 February 2008, all
the ordinary shares were transferred to the Main Board for listed
trading. The Company issued a total of 412,220,000 ordinary
shares as at 31 December 2014 (Note (VI) 30).

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Beijing Chaoyang
Auxiliary Food Company (“Chaoyang Auxiliary”), an enterprise

established in the PRC.

The Company’s and consolidated financial statements were
approved by the board of directors on 27 March 2015. And the
Company’s and consolidated financial statements are subject to
consideration at the general meeting pursuant to the Articles of

Association of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

_

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Basis of preparation

The Group has adopted the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises and its guidelines, interpretations and
other related provisions (collectively referred to as “ASBE”)
issued by the Ministry of Finance in 2014. In addition, the
Group also discloses relevant financial information required
by the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Listing
Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of preparation and principle of measurement

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on an
accrual basis. Except for certain financial instruments which
are measured at fair value, these financial statements are
prepared under the historical cost convention. In the event
that impairment of assets occurs, a provision for impairment

is made in accordance with the relevant requirements.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
measures and/or disclosures of fair values in these financial
statements are determined on such a basis, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

valuation technique.

Fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M Rt

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of preparation and principle of measurement

(Continued)

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date.

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than inputs included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly or indirectly.

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

Statement of compliance with ASBE

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance
with the ASBE to truly and completely reflect the Company’s
and consolidated financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2014 and the Company’s and consolidated
results of operations and cash flows for the year then

ended.

Accounting period

The financial year of the Group is from 1 January to 31

December of each calendar year.

Reporting currency

Renminbi (“RMB”) is the currency of the primary economic
environment where the Group operates, and the Group’s
reporting currency is Renminbi. The financial statements of

the Group have been prepared in Renminbi.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

- 9

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5,

Business combinations not involving enterprises

under common control

A business combination not involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in which all of
the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by

the same party or parties before and after the combination

The cost of combination is the aggregate of the fair values,
at the acquisition date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity securities issued by the acquirer
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Where a business
combination not involving enterprises under common control
is achieved in stages that involve multiple transactions, the
cost of combination is the sum of the consideration paid at
the acquisition date and the fair value at the acquisition date
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree.
The intermediary expenses incurred by the acquirer in
respect of auditing, legal services, valuation and consultancy
services, etc. and other associated administrative expenses
attributable to the business combination are recognised in
profit or loss when they are incurred. The equity interest in
the acquiree held before the acquisition date is remeasured
at its fair value at the acquisition date, with any difference
between its fair value and its carrying amount being
recognised as investment income. The other comprehensive
income of the acquiree before the acquisition date relating
to the previously held interest in the acquiree is transferred

to investment income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5.

Business combinations not involving enterprises

under common control (Continued)

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, acquired by the acquirer in a business
combination, that meet the recognition criteria shall be
measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Where the
cost of combination exceeds the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
difference is treated as an asset and recognised as goodwill,
which is measured at cost on initial recognition. Where the
cost of combination is less than the acquirer’s interest in
the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the
acquirer firstly reassesses the measurement of the fair values
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities and measurement of the cost of combination. If
after that reassessment, the cost of combination is still less
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets, the acquirer recognises the remaining

difference immediately in profit or loss for the current period.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, and is presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements. It is

tested for impairment at least at the end of each year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

I

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

5. Business combinations not involving enterprises

under common control (Continued)

When conducting the impairment test for goodwill, the test
is conducted through combination with its related asset
group or portfolio of asset group. That is, the carrying
value of goodwill is allocated to the relevant asset group
or portfolio of asset group benefited by synergetic effect
of merging since the acquisition date. If the recoverable
amount of asset group or portfolio of asset group containing
the allocated goodwill is lower than its carrying value,
relevant impairment loss is recognised. The amount of
impairment loss is first written-down and allocated to the
carrying amount of the goodwill of that asset group or
portfolio of asset group, and is then written down to the
carrying value of all other types of assets proportionally
according to the weighting of the carrying value of all other
types of assets other than goodwill within asset group or

portfolio of asset group.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and the present value of the

future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.

An impairment loss recognized on goodwill shall not be

reversed in a subsequent period once recognized.

6. Preparation of consolidated financial statements

The scope of consolidation in the consolidated financial
statements is determined on the basis of control. Control
is the power to influence the investee and participate in its
operating activities to obtain benefits, the amount at which

shall be effected by the power.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

6.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(Continueq)

Major accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are defined according to the
standardized accounting policies and accounting periods

stipulated by the Company.

All significant intra-group balances and transactions are

eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to
the Company is treated as minority interests and presented
as “minority interest” in the consolidated balance sheet
within shareholders’ equity. The portion of net profits or
losses of subsidiaries for the period attributable to minority
interests is presented in the consolidated income statement

under the “net profit” item as “minority interests”.

When the amount of loss for the period attributable to
the minority shareholders of a subsidiary exceeds the
minority shareholders’ portion of the opening balance of
owners’ equity of the subsidiary, the excess amount are still

allocated against minority interests.

For the transaction of acquiring minority interests of its
subsidiaries or disposing part of its subsidiaries’ equity
without losing control, treated as equity transaction, the
book value of shareholder’s equity attributed the company
and that of minority interest should be adjusted to reflect
the change in the company’s interest in the subsidiaries.
Differences between the adjustment of minority interests
and the fair value of consideration are adjusted to capital
reserve. If the differences exceed capital reserve, retained

earnings shall be adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

7.

Recognition criteria of cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and deposits that can be
readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are the
Group’s short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Translation of transactions and financial statements

denominated in foreign currencies

On initial recognition, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the reporting currency using the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction. As at
the balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in
foreign currency are exchanged to Renminbi by adopting
the prevailing exchange rate on that date. Foreign exchange
difference arising from the difference between the prevailing
exchange rate on that date and the prevailing exchange rate
on initial reorganization or on the previous balance sheet

date is all credited to profit or loss for the current period.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. For financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs are immediately recognised in profit
or loss. For other financial assets and financial liabilities,
transaction costs are included in their initial recognized

amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continuead)

9.1

9.2

Effective interest method

Effective interest method represents the method for
calculating the amortized costs of financial assets
or financial liabilities (inclusive of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities) and interest income
or expense of each period in accordance with the
effective interest rate. Effective interest rate represents
the rate that discounts the future cash flow over
the expected subsisting period or shorter period, if
appropriate, of the financial asset or financial liability
to the current carrying value of such financial asset or

financial liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group will consider the anticipated future cash flow
(not considering the future credit loss) on the basis
of all contract clauses of financial assets or financial
liabilities, as well as consider all kinds of charges,
transaction fees and discount or premium paid forming
an integral part of the effective interest rate paid or
received between both parties of financial asset or

financial liability contract.

Classification, recognition and measurement of the

financial assets

Financial assets are divided into loans and the
accounts receivable and available for-sale financial
assets when they are initially recognised. Financial
assets purchased and sold in regular way are
recognised and derecognised based on the accounting

at transaction date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

i

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

9.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of the

financial assets (Continued)

9.2.1Loans and accounts receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Financial assets, including cash and bank
balances, entrusted loans, accounts receivable
and other receivables, are classified as loans and

accounts receivable by the Group.

Trust loans and accounts receivable adopt the
actual interest rate method to carry out the
ongoing measure based on amortized costs.
On de-recognition, profit or loss arising from
impairment or amortization is carried at profit or

loss for the current period.

9.2.2Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated
on initial recognition as available for sale, and
financial assets that are not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans

and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12531H IFFE
Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AR EESTTEERME AT (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

eWMIAE)

9. Financial instruments (Continueq) 9-

9.2 HEMEENSE  BREMEE)

9.2 Classification, recognition and measurement of the

financial assets (Continued)

9.2.2Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) 9220 IHES B EE (&)
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently AfHESREEFRRAAR
measured at fair value, and gains or losses arising BEETEETNZ AnE
from changes in the fair value are recognised BEE KRG HIEBL
as other comprehensive income, except that BRREBEAMIINEEE TS
impairment losses and exchange differences & B AR A AN AR B RO B
related to amortised cost of monetary financial HEFBEFABEEBERN  ®

assets denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss, until the financial
assets are derecognised, at which time the gains
or losses are released and recognised in profit or

loss.

Interests obtained and the dividends declared
by the investee during the period in which the
available-for-sale financial assets are held, are

recognised in investment gains.

For investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured,

they are measured at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

I

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continuead)

9.3 Impairment of financial assets

(D) AR EEETHRENMS AR (&)

9. EMIAME)

9.3 =HEERE

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the
carrying amounts of financial assets other than those
at fair value through profit or loss. If there is objective
evidence that a financial asset is impaired, the Group
determines the amount of any impairment loss.
Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
is evidence that, arising from one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset,

which can be reliably measured, have been affected.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired

includes the following observable events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

obligor;

(2) A breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

(8) The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting a

concession to the borrower;

(4) It becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisations;

(6) The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties of

the issuer;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continuead)

9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

©6)

Upon an overall assessment of a group of
financial assets, observable data indicates that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the group.

Such observable data includes:

— Adverse changes in the payment status of

borrower in the group of assets;

—  Economic conditions in the country or region
of the borrower which may lead to a failure

to pay the group of assets;

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost; that means in balance sheet date, the fair
value of one equity investment tool is lower than
the half of its initial capitalized cost, or is below

the its initial capitalized cost over 12 months.

Other objective evidence indicating there is an

impairment of a financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continueq)

9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets measured at

amortised cost

If financial assets carried at amortised cost are
impaired, the carrying amounts of the financial
assets are reduced to the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The amount of reduction
is recognised as an impairment loss in profit
or loss. If, subsequent to the recognition of an
impairment loss on financial assets carried at
amortised cost, there is objective evidence of a
recovery in value of the financial assets which
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment is recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. However,
the reversal is made to the extent that the
carrying amount of the financial asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R M Rt

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets measured at

amortised cost (continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant,
the Group assesses the asset individually for
impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, the Group assesses the
asset individually for impairment or includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset (whether
significant or not), it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively reassesses them
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment
loss is individually recognised are not included in

a collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)

9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, the cumulative loss arising from decline
in fair value previously recognized directly in
other comprehensive income is reclassified from
the capital reserve to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is reclassified from
capital reserve to profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that financial

asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

If, subsequent to the recognition of an impairment
loss on available-for-sale financial assets, there is
objective evidence of a recovery in value of the
financial assets which can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
is recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. The amount of
reversal of impairment loss on available-for-
sale equity instruments is recognised as other
comprehensive income, while the amount of
reversal of impairment loss on available-for-sale

debt instruments is recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continuead)

9.3 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- Impairment of financial assets measured at cost
If an impairment loss has been incurred on an
investment in unquoted equity instrument (without
a quoted price in an active market) whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, the carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced to the
present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. The amount of reduction
is recognised as an impairment loss in profit or
loss. The impairment loss on such financial asset

is not reversed once it is recognised.

9.4 Transfer of financial assets

Financial asset that satisfied any of the following
criteria shall be derecognised: (1) the contracted right
to recover the cash flows of the financial asset has
expired; (2) the financial asset, along with substantially
all the risk and return of the ownership of the financial
asset, has been transferred to the transferee; and
(3) the financial asset has been transferred to the
transferee, and the transferor has given up the control
on such financial asset, though it does not transfer or
retain substantially all the risk and return arising from

the ownership of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

- )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continuead)

9.4

9.5

Transfer of financial assets (Continued)

Where the entire transfer of financial assets meets
conditions applicable to de-recognition, the difference
between the following amounts is recognised in profit
or loss for the current period: the carrying amount of
the financial asset being transferred and the sum of
the consideration received from the transfer and any
accumulated gain or loss that had been recognised in

equity.

Classification recognition and measurement of

financial liabilities

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified into financial liabilities or equity on the basis
of the substance of the contractual arrangements and
definitions of financial liability and equity instrument.
The financial liabilities of the Group are other financial

liabilities.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition or
amortization is recognised in profit or loss for the

current period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(D) AR EEETHRENMS AR (&)

9-

9.4

9.5

eWMIAE)

THEEBE(#)
TREEBRRBERMERLERE
e R eREENREE
BERREZ KDL EERFTA
HipiralaEm An EEEEH Rt
B MEEREAT AE B8 -

EHREENSH  BRRE

AEEBHTHNERIAREZS
BTAGRALHFNEEARERA
EMER TANERERRTRA
BEERTH AKEERAER
Hit&RAE -

Hit @ BMBERAERNEL - 18

BRKAETRENE - RIEER
KB HE LN SHIBRFTAE Y
18a o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continuead)

9.6

9.7

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised in full or in
part only when the underlying present obligation is
discharged in full or in part. An agreement is entered
into between the Group (borrower) and a lender to
replace the original financial liabilities with new financial
liabilities with substantially different terms, derecognize
the original financial liabilities as well as recognize the

new financial liabilities.

When financial liabilities is derecognised in full or in
part, the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration
paid (including transferred non-cash assets or new
financial liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss

for the current period.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognised financial assets
and financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realize the financial asset and settle the
financial liability simultaneously, a financial asset and a
financial liability shall be offset and the net amount is
presented in the balance sheet. Except for the above
circumstances, financial assets and financial liabilities
shall be presented separately in the balance sheet and

shall not be offset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AR EESTBRME A (E)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Receivables 10 ~ FEWFRIE

10.1 Receivables that are individually significant and for 10.1 BEEDEEA N EBHEERER
which bad debt provision individually assessed HIE W E

Basis or monetary criteria for A receivable that exceeds RMB 5,000,000 is deemed as an individually
determining an individually significant receivable by the Group.
significant receivable

BHLBASANBRFENERET AEEHSER/RARKES00S T EHWEKFIAER REHCEEANE
% Wk -

Method of determining provision For receivables that are individually significant, the Group assesses the

for receivables that are receivables individually for impairment. For a financial asset that is

individually significant and for not impaired individually, the Group includes the asset in a group of
which bad debt provision is financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
individually assessed assesses them for impairment. Receivables for which an impairment

loss is individually recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
FIHSHEEANEUGEERER AEEUEESESANRBEFESEETRENR - EEARREER
BRI ENRYGIE - BREEAARLERRBRSRE EWFIAES T ETTR
EAH - BEIEAFHEHERRERLNEKIE  TEREEEBRAUE
AR R R YRR & P ETTREAIE -

10.2 Receivable which bad debt provision is collectively 10.2 BEAEREHRAESEZHAS KR
assessed on portfolio basis BBAER BN ETERIERE
FREFBHFHET %

Basis for determining a portfolio The Group classifies the receivables that are not individually significant
according to the credit risk and those that are individually significant but are not impaired
characteristics individually into groups of financial assets according to the similarity

and relevance of credit risk characteristics. These credit risks usually
reflect the debtors’ ability to pay the amounts due at maturity under
contractual terms of related assets and are related to the estimation
of future cash flows of the assets subject to assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AR EESTTEERME AT (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

10. Receivables (Continued) 10 ~ EWFIE(E)
10.2 Receivable which bad debt provision is collectively 10.2 s AR EAES #ZAE 1A
assessed on portfolio basis (Continued) BBAWERENEERIERZE
FREFBHIFH2T % ()

Bad debt provision method for a  As collectively assessing the impairment on portfolio basis, the amount
portfolio according to the credit of bad debt provision is determined according to that the historical
risk characteristics experience on losses and current economic conditions for the

receivables’ portfolio structure and similar credit risk and predicted
impairment losses that have been existed in the portfolio.

REERARSEESRENER REASHTATRAEIRN ZREFSEIARBRIKEASEE LA
EFEOFHRA A LUERRERSE(EBARE S REREE R RN IRE L BLKER

K B AT EA R AT EUGRIBAE & B SRR B R ERTE

10.3 Accounts receivable that are not individually 10.3 BB BT EAXBEF 125K
significant but for which bad debt provision is R EWRE

individually assessed

Reasons for making individual bad Accounts receivable that are not individually significant are deemed to

debt provision be impaired by evidences such as controversial debt that are unlikely
to recover.
BIEGHREREHNIZH BHESEIEANBYTIE  EEHAR  WEBAHRREFEFEMK

CIAJREMAN KRS - RFHDHLRE -

Bad debt provision methods Impairment test is individually conducted on accounts receivable
that are not individually significant but deemed to be impaired by
objective evidence to determine the impairment losses recorded in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

- )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

11.

Inventory

11.1 Categories of inventories

Inventories of the Group mainly include raw materials,
products and finished products. Inventories are
initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories includes
purchasing cost, processing cost and other expenses
that help deliver the inventories to the current location

and situation.

11.2 Valuation method of inventories delivered

When inventories are delivered, first-in-first-out is
adopted to determine the actual cost of inventories

delivered.

11.3 Recognition of net realizable value of inventory and

provision for inventory impairment

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. If the
net realisable value is below the cost of inventories, a
provision for decline in value of inventories is made.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion, the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of clear evidence obtained,
and takes into consideration the purposes of holding

inventories and effect of post balance sheet events.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Inventory (Continued)

11.3 Recognition of net realizable value of inventory and

provision for inventory impairment (Continued)

For inventories with tremendous number and
relatively low unit price, inventory impairment loss is
provided according to the type of inventory; for other
inventories, inventory impairment provision is provided
at the difference of cost of a single item of inventory
exceeding its net realizable value. After the provision
for decline in value of inventories is made, if the
circumstances that previously caused inventories to be
written down below cost no longer exist so that the net
realisable value of inventories is higher than their cost,
the original provision for decline in value is reversed
and the reversal is included in profit or loss for the

period.

11.4 Inventory count system

The perpetual inventory system is maintained for stock

system.

11.5 Amortization of low-cost and short-lined

consumables

Low-cost and short-lived consumables are amortized

by immediate write-off.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12. Long-term equity investments

12.1 Determination of initial investment cost

- )

For a long-term equity investment acquired through
a business combination involving enterprises under
common control, the initial investment cost of the long-
term equity investment shall be the absorbing party’s
share of the carrying amount of the owner’s equity of
the party being absorbed at the date of combination.
For a long-term equity investment acquired through
business combination involving enterprises not under
common control, the initial investment cost of the long-
term equity investment acquired shall be the cost of
acquisition. The long-term equity investment acquired
through means other than a business combination shall

be initially measured at its cost.

12.2 Method for subsequent measurement and profit or

loss recognition

12.2.1.Long-term equity investment accounted for using

the cost method

Long-term equity investments in subsidiaries
are accounted for using the cost method in the
Company’s separate financial statements. A
subsidiary is an investee that is controlled by the

Group.

Under the cost method, a long-term equity
investment is measured at initial investment cost.
Except for cash dividends or profits already
declared but not yet paid that are included in
the price or consideration actually paid upon
acquisition of the long-term equity investment,
investment income is recognised in the period in
accordance with the attributable share of cash
dividends or profit distributions declared by the

investee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

12.

13.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

12.2 Method for subsequent measurement and profit or

loss recognition (Continued)

12.2.2 Disposal of long-term equity investments

On disposal of a long term equity investment, the
difference between the carrying amount of the
investment and the actual consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the period.

12.3 Basis for determining joint control and significant

influence over investee

Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control over an economic activity,
and exists only when the strategic financial and
operating policy decisions relating to the activity require
the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
When determining whether an investing enterprise is
able to exercise control or significant influence over
an investee, the effect of potential voting rights of
the investee (for example, warrants and convertible
debts) held by the investing enterprises or other parties
that are currently exercisable or convertible shall be

considered.

Investment properties

Investment property refers to real estate held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation, or both, including leased land
use rights, land use rights held and provided for transfer

after appreciation and leased construction, etc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

- )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

13.

14.

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment property is initially measured at cost. Subsequent
expenditures related to an investment property shall be
included in cost of investment property only when the
economic benefits associated with the asset will likely flow
to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. All
other subsequent expenditures on investment property shall
be included in profit or loss for the current period when

incurred.

The Group adopts cost method for subsequent
measurement of investment property, which is depreciated
or amortized using the same policy as that for buildings and

land use rights.

When an investment property is sold, transferred, retired
or damaged, the amount of proceeds on disposal of the
property net of the carrying amount and related taxes and
surcharges is recognised in profit or loss for the current

period.

Fixed assets

14.1 Recognition criteria of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed assets are only recognised when its related
economic benefits are likely to flow to the Group and
its cost can be reliably measured. Fixed assets are

initially measured at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14. Fixed assets (Continued)

14.1 Recognition criteria of fixed assets (Continued)

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if
the economic benefits related to such fixed assets is
likely to inflow and its cost could be reliably measured,
they are capitalised to fixed assets cost and the
carrying amount of replacement will be derecognised.
Other subsequent expenses other than the above are
charged to profit or loss for the current period when

incurred.

14.2 Method for depreciation of different fixed assets

Depreciation is provided over their estimated useful
lives from the month after they have reached the
working condition for their intended use using the
straight-line method. The useful life, estimated residual
value and annual depreciation rate of each category of

fixed assets are as follows:

Category HHhl
Buildings B EREY
Machinery and equipment WS a5 A
Electronic equipment and other LN
Vehicles BERHITH

(D) R B EBEESFHBERMEFHEF (&)

14 - BEEEE)

14.1 BE B ER-Z KM (&)

HEFEEEMMNRESH - R
HEZEE EERERRENmRA
REMA B ERKARE R SEMEE - A
STABEBEERA @ WA I ERHER
B D MREEE © BRULASMY
Htp B ERERFAZH

182 -

Bk

14.2 EBEEEEITEF

Depreciable
life (year)
ERASEw

20-35
5-10

5
5-8

(Bl & & (3 B TR E I 68 AR AE Y
RAR  RAFRFIGEEERS
wNFTRITE - SEETEENR
FSEs - BROFREMFRERND
T

Estimated Annual
residual depreciation
value rate rate
BEHERER FIHER
3%-4% 2.70%-4.85%
3%-4% 9.60-19.40%
3%-4% 19.20%-19.40%
3%-4% 12.00%-19.40%

Estimated net residual value of a fixed asset is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already
of the stage and in the condition expected at the end

of its useful life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

14.

&k

16.

Fixed assets (Continued)

14.3 Other explanations

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net
residual value of a fixed asset and the depreciation
method applied at least at each financial year-end. A
change in the useful life or estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset or the depreciation method used shall

be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

When a fixed asset is sold, transferred, retired or
damaged, the Group shall recognize the amount of any
proceeds on disposal of the asset net of the carrying
amount and related taxes in profit or loss for the

current period.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is recognised at its actual
construction cost, including all expenditures incurred for
construction projects, capitalized borrowing costs for the
construction in progress before it is ready for intended use,
and other related expenses during the construction period.
A construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets

when it is ready for intended use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include land use rights, software

development costs and distribution network software.

An intangible asset shall be measured initially at cost. When
an intangible asset with a finite useful life is available for use,
its original cost is amortised using straight line method over

its estimated useful life.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

16.

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the Group
reviews the useful life and amortisation method at the end

of the period, and makes adjustments when necessary.

Long-term assets impairment

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that any long-term equity
investments, investment property measured at cost, fixed
assets, construction in progress and intangible assets with
a finite useful life may be impaired. If there is any evidence
indicating that an asset may be impaired, recoverable

amounts shall be estimated for the individual asset.

Recoverable amount is estimated on individual basis. If
it is not practical to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the asset
group to which the asset belongs will be estimated. The
recoverable amount of an asset or an asset group is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from

it.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or an asset group is
less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment loss
of the asset will be made for the reduction and is charged

to profit or loss for the current period.

An impairment loss recognized on the assets mentioned

above shall not be reversed in any subsequent period.
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

18.

19.

L

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
incurred but shall be amortized over the current year and
subsequent periods of more than one year. Long-term
prepaid expenses are amortized evenly over the estimated

benefit period.

Revenue

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the Group has transferred
to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods, retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold, and will receive the economic benefits
associated with the transaction, and can reliably

measure the relevant amount of revenue and costs.

For sale of goods that result in award credits for
customers, the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the revenue from sale of goods and
the fair value of the award credits. The consideration
received or receivable after deduction of the portion
attributable to the fair value of the award credits is
recognised as revenue, and the portion attributable
to the fair value of the award credits is recognised as

deferred income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

19. Revenue (Continued)

19.1 Revenue from sales of goods (Continued)

When a customer redeems the award credits, the
Group reclassifies the amount associated with the
credits redeemed from deferred income to revenue.
The amount of revenue recognised is based on the
number of award credits that have been redeemed in
exchange for awards, relative to the total number of

award credits expected to be redeemed.

19.2 Revenue from rendering of services

When the result of provision of services can be
measured reliably, the Group recognizes related
revenue from services in accordance with the
percentage of completion as at the balance sheet
date. The completion progress of service transaction is
recognised by service cost incurred as a percentage of

estimated total cost.

If the result of provision of service transaction cannot
be reliably estimated, revenue from provision of service
is recognised at the service expenses incurred and
estimated to receive as compensation, and service
cost incurred will be regarded as the current cost. If
service cost incurred is compensated as anticipated,

no revenue will be recognised.

The Group’s revenue from service mainly include
the promoting activities. Revenue from rendering of
services is recognised when the various services have
been provided and related economic benefits will

probably flow to the enterprise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

20. Government grants

Government grants are transfer of monetary assets and
non-monetary assets from the government to the Group at
no consideration. A government grant is recognised only
when the Group can comply with the conditions attaching

to the grant and the Group will receive the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received or
receivable. The government grant will be classified as asset-
related or revenue-related in accordance with the nature of

government grant by relevant governments’ requirement.

A government grant related to an asset is recognised as
deferred income, and evenly amortized to profit or loss over

the useful life of the related asset.

For a government grant related to income, if the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognised as
deferred income, and recognised in profit or loss over the
year in which the related costs are recognised. If the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses already
incurred, the grant is recognised immediately in profit or loss

for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

21.

Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

The income tax expenses include current income tax and

deferred income tax.

21.1.Current income tax

At the balance sheet date, current income tax liabilities
(or assets) for the current and prior periods shall be
measured at the amount expected to be paid (or

recovered) according to the requirements of tax laws.

21.2.Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Temporary differences arising from the difference
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and
its tax base, and the difference between the tax base
and the carrying amount of those items that are not
recognised as assets or liabilities but have a tax base
that can be determined according to tax laws, shall be
recognised as deferred income tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities using the balance sheet liability method.

All temporary differences are generally recognised for
relevant deferred income tax. However, for deductible
temporary difference, the Group recognizes relevant
deferred income tax assets to the extent of income
tax payable available for deducting deductible
temporary difference. In addition, for those related
to the initial recognition of goodwill and does not
belong to business combination, and neither affect the
accounting profit nor the temporary difference related
to the initial recognition of assets or liabilities incurred
in transaction of income tax payable (or deductible
loss), related deferred income tax assets or liabilities

will not be recognised.
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AR EESTBRME A (E)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

N -BEEFMBHREE ELHMEHERE
(Continued) (#&)

21. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

21.2 FEFEHEEREEEHAR

21.2.Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

- )

(Continued)

The Group recognizes a deferred income tax asset for
the carry forward of deductible losses and tax credits
to subsequent periods, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which

the deductible losses and tax credits can be utilized.

The Group recognizes deferred tax liabilities arising
from the temporary difference on tax payable related
to investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, unless the Group could control the timing
of write back of the temporary difference, and such
temporary difference is unlikely to be written back
in foreseeable future. For the deductible temporary
difference related to investment in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, the Group will only
recognize deferred income tax assets when temporary
difference is likely to be written back in the foreseeable
future and income tax payable could be utilized to

deduct the deductible temporary difference.

At the balance sheet date, deferred income tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to

the requirements of tax laws.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

21.2.Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

Current and deferred tax expenses or income are
recognised in profit or loss for the period, except
when they arise from transactions or events that
are directly recognised in other comprehensive
income or in shareholders’ equity, in which case
they are recognised in other comprehensive income
or in shareholders’ equity; and when they arise from
business combinations, in which case they adjust the

carrying amount of goodwill.

At the balance sheet date, the Company shall review
the carrying amount of a deferred income tax asset.
If it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will not
be available in future periods to allow the benefit
of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized, the
carrying amount of the deferred income tax asset
shall be reduced. Any such reduction in amount shall
be reversed when it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

When the Group has a legal right to settle on a net
basis and intends either to settle on a net basis
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, current tax assets and current tax

liabilities are offset and presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

21.2.Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(Continued)

When the Group has a legal right to settle current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, and deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis or to realise the assets and
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities
are expected to be reversed, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset and presented on a net

basis.
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

22.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalized
when expenditures for such asset and borrowing costs
are incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
the qualifying asset being acquired, constructed or produced
becomes ready for its intended use or sale. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended during periods in which the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
is suspended abnormally and when the suspension is for a
continuous period of more than 3 months. Capitalisation is
suspended until the acquisition, construction or production
of the asset is resumed. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

Where funds are borrowed under a specific-purpose
borrowing, the amount of interest to be capitalised is the
actual interest expense incurred on that borrowing for
the period less any bank interest earned from depositing
the borrowed funds before being used on the asset or
any investment income on the temporary investment of
those funds. Where funds are borrowed under general
purpose borrowings, the Group determines the amount of
interest to be capitalised on such borrowings by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the excess
of cumulative expenditures on the asset over the amounts
of specific-purpose borrowings. The capitalisation rate is
the weighted average of the interest rates applicable to the

general-purpose borrowings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

23. Operating lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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23.1 Operating lease business with the Group recorded

as lessee

Lease payment for operating lease is recognised in
profits and losses for the current period using the
straight-line method over the lease term. The initial
direct cost is directly accounted in profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rent is recognised as profit

or loss for the current period upon occurrence.

23.2 Operating lease business with the Group recorded

as lessor

Rental income of operating lease is recognised in profit
or loss for the current period using the straightline
method over the lease term. The initial direct cost
where the amount is larger is capitalized when
incurred, and accounted for as profit or loss for the
current period on the same basis as recognition of
rental income over the entire lease period. The initial
direct cost where the amount is smaller is accounted
for as profit or loss for the current period when
incurred. Contingent rental is accounted for as profit or

loss when which it is incurred.
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Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND (D) AR EESTTEERME AT (&)
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24 Efb X EEEBEK - A NYE
BREWHET E

24. Other significant accounting policies, accounting

estimates, and preparation of financial statements

24.1 Employee benefits 24.1 B T

Accounting treatment of short-term benefits

Actual short-term benefits are recognised as liabilities
during the accounting period when employees render
services and are charged into profit or loss for the
period or capitalised in costs of related assets.
Employee benefit is charged into profit or loss for the
period in which it is incurred or capitalised in costs of
related assets. Non-monetary employee benefits are

measured in accordance with fair value.

Payments of social security contributions for
employees, such as premiums or contributions on
medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, payment of housing funds, and labor union
running costs and employees education costs provided
in accordance with relevant requirements, as made
by the Group in the accounting period in which an
employee provides services, are calculated according
to prescribed bases and percentages of provisions
in determining the amount of employee benefits,
recognised as liabilities and charged into profit or loss

for the period or capitalised in costs of related assets.

Accounting of post-employment benefits

All post-employment benefits of the Group are defined

contribution plans.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

24.

25.

Other significant accounting policies, accounting
estimates, and preparation of financial statements

(Continued)

24.1 Employee benefits (Continued)

The amounts to be contributed under defined
contribution plans are recognised as liabilities during
the accounting period when employees render services
and are charged into profit or loss for the period or

capitalised in costs of related assets.

Changes in accounting policies

From its 2014 financial statements onwards, the Group
adopts ASBE 41 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
as newly issued and ASBE 37 - Presentation of Financial
Instruments as revised by the MOF in 2014. Earlier adoption
has been made with effect from 1 January 2013 in respect
of ASBE 39 — Fair Value Measurement and ASBE 40 — Joint
Arrangements as newly issued, as well as ASBE 2 - Long-
term Equity Investments, ASBE 9 — Employee Benefits,
ASBE 30 - Financial Statements Presentation and ASBE 33
— Consolidated Financial Statements as revised by the MOF

in 2014.

25.1 Presentation of financial instruments

ASBE 37 - Presentation of Financial Instruments
(revised) added requirements related to offsetting
and disclosure requirements, added the disclosure
requirements on transfer of financial assets, and
modified the disclosure requirements on maturity
analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Presentation has been made in these financial

statements in accordance with the standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

25. Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

25.2 Disclosure of interests in other entities

ASBE 41 - Disclosure of Interests in other Entities is
applicable to enterprises on disclosure of interests
in their subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and structured entities that not included in their
consolidated financial statements. The adoption of
ASBE 41 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities will
result in more extensive disclosures in the notes to
the financial statements of enterprises. Disclosure has
been made in these financial statements in accordance

with the standard.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note Il, the Group is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of items
in the financial statements that cannot be measured accurately,
due to the internal uncertainty of the operating activities. These
judgements, estimates and assumptions are based on historical
experiences of the Group’s management as well as other factors
that are considered to be relevant and the actual results may

differ from these estimates of the Group.
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I

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

The Group regularly reviews the aforesaid judgments, estimates
and assumptions on the basis of continuous operation. Where
the changes in accounting estimates only impact the current
period, the impact shall be recognised during the current period;
where such changes impact both the current and future periods,
the impact shall be confirmed during the current and future

periods when such changes occur.

Significant judgement made in the application of

accounting policies

The following are the significant judgement which may have

significant influence to the financial statements:

Operating lease - as the lessor

The Group had contract on the investment properties. The Group
retains all the significant risks and rewards according to the lease

contract and thus accounts for the operating lease.

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates
At the balance sheet date, the following are the critical
assumptions and uncertainties which may have significant

influence to the financial statements:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether the goodwill is impaired at least
annually. This requires the evaluation of the present value of the
future cashflows on the groups of assets or group of assets with
allocated goodwill. Upon the evaluation of the present value,
the Group should evaluate the future cashflows of the group
of assets or groups of assets using the appropriate discounted
rate. When the actual cashflows are lower than the predicted
cashflows, there might be material impairment. More informations

relating to goodwill and impairment test are in Note (VI) 12.

Provision for inventory impairment based on the net

realisable value

The Group recognizes provision for inventory impairment
according to the net realizable value of the inventory. Provision
for inventory impairment is required to be recognised when there
is sign showing that the net realizable value is lower than cost.
The Group will reevaluate whether the inventory is obsolete and
slow-moving, and the net realizable value is lower than the cost
at each year end. If the result of new estimation differs from
current estimation, such difference will impact the book value of

inventory for the corresponding period.
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I

SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates (Continued)

Provision for bad debt of receivables

The Group recognizes provision for bad debts according to
the management’s judgement on recoverability of receivables.
When there is sign showing that a the recoverable amount is
lower than its book value, provision for bad debts is required to
be recognised. The management will conduct the revaluation
each year end. If the result of new estimation differs from
current estimation, such difference will impact the book value of

receivables for the corresponding period.

Depreciation

As stated in Note (Il) 14, the Group accounts for the depreciation
on straight-line basis in the predictable useful life after considering
the residual value. The Group reviews the predictable useful life
to calculate the amount of depreciation in the reporting period.
The Group estimates the useful life of fixed assets based on
experience of actual useful life of fixed asset of similar nature and
function. Significant changes relating to the estimation will result

in adjustment of depreciation in future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS MADE IN THE
APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
KEY ASSUMPTIONS AND UNCERTAINTIES IN
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

Critical assumptions and uncertainties in the application

of accounting estimates (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group will assess whether the
recognition of the deferred tax assets will be made. A deferred
tax asset should be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or unused tax losses can be utilised and
the Group should make appropriate estimates and judgements
when considering whether there will be enough taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets should be measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled. If the actual earnings accrued in the future
is more than estimates, or the actual tax rate is higher than
estimates, such deferred tax asset shall be recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the six months in which they

are incurred.

Group’s customer loyalty programme

As is stated in Note (VI) 26, sales of goods that result in award
credits for customers, under the Group’s customer loyalty
programme, are accounted for as multiple element revenue
transactions and the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the award
credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award credits
is measured by reference to their fair value. Such consideration
is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial sale
transaction but is deferred and recognised as revenue when the
award credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have

been fulfilled.
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IV. TAXATION

_

1.

Major tax types and tax rates

Tax type

Value-added tax

BER

Business tax
EEM

Consumption tax
HEH

City construction and
maintenance tax

YT AR AR TR

Education surcharges

B &M

Local Education surcharges

I EE B

Income tax

EERMAEHR

() BiE

1. FEHERBE

Basis

FTBLRE

Note 1
G

Taxable income subject to business tax

ERBEHILA

Taxable income subject to consumption tax

HEBEBA

Value-added tax, consumption tax and
business tax
FEAZ M

Value-added tax, consumption tax and
business tax

&

Value-added tax, consumption tax and
business tax

&

Taxable income

FEANTR P {88

Tax rate
Bi=x
17%/13%/11%/6%

5%

5%

5%/7%

3%/4%

2%

25%

Note 1: The value-added tax payable is the residual value of the
output value-added tax after deduction of input value-added

tax. The output value-added tax is computed on a basis of

sales resolved by relevant tax laws.

Tax incentives and approvals

According to the Circular of the paragraph 86, item1, point
7 the scope of the preferential policy of primary processing
of agricultural products relating to the business tax issued
by the Ministry of Finance, State Administration of Taxation
on 20 November 2008, the Company obtained the right of

exemption of relevant income tax of the primarily processed

2. BlBBEER#X

R4 B B B B R A 75 48 B 122008 - 11
A20B BHEEKBRBEHEIDEMB
BREBBROEER DM I&HE(FHT)
BB A )ES6IR(—)ETHNRE - XA
B B A B X P 0 B E R A AR N
TEMMIAEBHENEMEH -

agricultural products in the fresh logistics center.
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED (I ){BESHREHMBEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the subsidiaries of the Company did MR2014F12A31H * ARRZ FARIED
not have any debentures in issue. The information of subsidiaries 11E%H « ARR)FRBERAT :

is as follows:

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHAXLARABEFENFAHE

reporting period

Proportion  Proportion  Whether

Place of Business Registered Scope of of ownership of voting ~ consolidated
Full name of subsidiaries Type registration nature capital business interests(%) ~ power (%) =& Notes
AR FhuEE i EHHE - BRIACH) FRELE(%) A0HER B
RMB
AR¥T
Beijing Jingkelong (Langfang) Co., Ltd. Limited company  Langfang, PRC ~ Retall 80,000,000 Retall of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
(Jingkelong Langfang)
IRREE (B5)5BAT EREANT B4 TEX TERE FRER- R
(ATERIREEES ) Rh HEG%
Beiing Jingkelong Supermarket Chain Limited company - Befing, PRC Retall 29,000,000 Retail of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
Co., Ltd.{Jingkelong Tongzhou)
FRRRERTEREERAA ERRALT IR e TERY ARER I
(AT BRI RE A 1) Am HEnE
Beijing Xinyang Tongli Commercial Limited company  Beiing, PRC Manufacture 3,200,000 Production of plastic packing 52.03 5203 Yes
Facilties Co, Ltd. (Xinyang Tongf) materials and installation and
maintenance of commercial
equipment
IRRERNEEREERAT EREAAT AR BEX IS R8  BEEAER- -
(AT HRIREEN]) EHARERSIRREER
Befiing Jingkelong Shouchao Limited company  Befing, PRC Retail 398,453,439 Retail of general merchandise 100 100 Yes Note 1
Commercial Co., Ltd.
(Shoulian Supermarket)
IRRRREREERRAA EREANE IR TEX TERE AREM- 7 i
(TRl EEs ) Rn HEa%
Beiing Shoulian Jiulong Supermarket Limited company  Befing, PRC Retall 10,000,000 Retail of general merchandise 100 100 Yes
Co., Ltd (Shoulian Jilong)
FREBAEETERAR BRELAR IR ER TERY  ARER IS
(AT BRI BBl ) Am HEnE
Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd. Limited liabiity ~ Beiiing, PRC Wholesale 500,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 79.85 Yes Note 2
(Chaopi Trading) company
IR ARROERAA RHERRR IR BEx HERR PRER- & i
(AT ERIEsAE)) Rn HERS
Befing Chaopi Shuanglong Alcohol Limited company Bejing, PRC ~ Wholesale 110,160,000 Wholesale of beverages an 59.00 Yes
Sales Company Limited
(Chaopi Shuanglong)*
FRmER S HEARAR) BREEAR IR HEz FEEGAD &
(TR R )
Bejing Chaopi Huacing Beverage Limited company Bejing, PRC ~ Wholesale 80,000,000 Wholesale of drinks and food 42.66 5343 Yes Note 3
Company Limited (Chaopi Huaging)*
R E RS ERR AT EREAAT IR iR HEAm  HHE & i3
(TR ) (RIEFEFTHERRS)

2014 &
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHREQARAFEFENFL
reporting period (continued) (%)
Proportion Whether
Business Registered Scope of of ownership consolidated
Full name of subsidiaries Type nature capital business interests(%) =&
FRARE FREER HHE - T FRILAI%) Elii
RMB
ARER
Beiing Chaopi Flavourings, Limited company Wholesale 50,000,000 Wholesale of edible ofl and food 4208 Yes
Company Limited (Chaop! Flavouring)*
LRmE R R ARATA ERRAAT iR bigH R &
(AT TR SBat sk ) RBR - WA GRS
(RIEZEFTERRIM)
Bejing Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales Limited company Wholesale 36,000,000 Wholesale of edidle oil 4330 Yes
Company Limited (Chaopi Ol Sales)*
TR R EARAR BRE biiE HEFTARAR  BAED &
VSNl A R GRS
Shijiazhuang Chaopi Xinlong Trading Limited company Wholesale 5,000,000 Wholesale of alcoholic beverages 79.85 Yes
CGompany Limited*
AR aREEERAR B yEx HEARES A% BERES R
(RRGEEFAHEERI)
Qingdao Chaopi Jinlong Trading Limited company Wholesale 5,000,000 Wholesale of alcoholic 79.85 Yes
Company Limited
ERRMBEAEARAR ERRALT i YEHAREY Rm BERES z
(RIEFEFTHERRI)
Beijing Chaopi Zhongde Trading Limited company Wholesale 50,000,000 Wholesale of consumer 79.85 Yes
Company Limited (Chaopi Zhongde)* sanitary products
IRESHEEERRAT BRE HEx HERAR BE S8R R
(MR E ) TEREREAENARRS
Befing Chaopi Hulong Trading Limited company Wholesale 24,000,000 Wholesale of alcoholic beverages 62.08 Yes
Company Limited (Chaopi Hulong)*
IR ERBERRAR BRR ke HEEESRS Rz
(TR ER )
Taiyuan Chaopi Trading Company Limited Limited company Wholesale 5,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 Yes
(Chaopi Taiyuan)*
ARSHEZERARATERAHAR]) ARELAA HEZ YEERERR BRABE: =
LERE - AERA
EEMHRERENRARE
Tangshan Chaopi Trading Company Limited*  Limited company Wholesale 5,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 79.8 Yes
ElSHEEERAR" BRELAR HEE HERAARE A6 1EREE &
(REEZEFTNER RN
Tianjin Chaopi Trading Company Limited” Limited company ~ Tianjin, PRC Wholesale 15,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 79.85 Yes
REHEEARAT BRELAR HEz WRERES A% RERES IS
(RRGEEFAHEERI)
Chaopi Yuli Trading Company Limited* Limited company Wholesale 12,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 30.31 Yes
RS RHEEERAR ERRAAT iR YHARES ARERS g

(R)EEEHREHUBERRE)
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(R)EEEHREHFHBERE)

1. Subsidiaries held by the Company during the (1) BEHAXQARFEFENTFLAA
reporting period (continued) (#&)
Proportion  Proportion  Whether
Place of Business Registered Scope of of ownership of voting ~ consolidated
Full name of subsidiaries Type registration nature capital business interests(%) ~ power (%) 2& Notes
SRS TR i RHHE ifEs  GEEE BRIACH) FRELA(N) SHER R
RMB
ARET
Chaopi Fangsheng Trading Company Limited*  Limited company  Befing, PRC Wholesale 12,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 63.88 80 Yes
IR EEEERAT ERELAR IR HEz ¥ERERE ARAR- &
1eRERERE
Jinan Chaopi Linda Trading Company Limited  Limited company  Jinan, PRC Wholesale 26,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 51.90 65 VYes
(Chaopi Jinan)*
ERSRMEAEARAT EREANA  EE i3 YEHARES  AREH Rz
(AT Bl )
Beijing Chaopi Shenglong Trading Limited company  Beiing, PRC Wholesale 20,000,000 Wholesale of package service, 4711 59 Yes
Company Limited (Chaopi Shenglong)* packed food and storage service
R aREEERAR EREMAR kR HEE HERRERG  BERE. =
(TR ) ERRH
Befiing Chaopi Tianhua Trading Company Limited company  Beijng, PRC Wholesale 10,000,000 Wholesale of package service, 42.66 5343 Yes
Limited (Chaopi Tianhua)* packed food and storage senvice
IRBREREARAR BREAAT AR ke ruRaRAG  BRRE- 7
(ATHRIARE )" BHRH
Datong Chaopi Beichen Trading Limited company Datong, PRC ~ Wholesale 26,000,000 Wholesale of package service, 56.90 70 Yes
Company Limited (Chaopi Datong)* packed food and storage service
AR RAEERAR ERELRR AR fEx YEERRER  BRRE Rz
(ATl AR ) BERE
Datong Chaopi Ant Trading Company Limited ~ Limited company  Datong, PRC ~ Retall 5,000,000 Wholesale of package service, 55.90 100 Yes Note 5
(Chaopi Ant)™* packed food and storage service
AR EEHEERAA BREAAR AR TER TERE A& BRER. = 5
(AT ERI e ) EREHS
Tangshan Chaopi Baishun Trading Limited company  Tangshan, PRC ~ Wholesale 30,000,000 Wholesale of package service, 56.90 70 Yes Note 6
Company Limited (Chaopi Baishun)* packed food and storage senvice
BB EBEERAT BREART AW bIEE] HERER BRERD: & 6
(TR AIE ) LR%E EngzR
RERKS
Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng Trading Limited company  Bejing, PRC Wholesale 50,000,000 Wholesale of general merchandise 51.90 65 VYes Note 7
Company Limited (Chaopi Maolisheng)*
LR EERRAT BRELAR kR pEE YEARR - HERR RE & Bl
(AT ERIBRAA ) 18%% L IER
(TafkIER)E
Hongkong Chaopi Asia Company Limited Limited company Hongkong, PRC ~ Wholesale HKD 10,000 Merchandise trading 4,03 100 Yes Note 8
(Chaopi Hongkong)**
EABRENERAR EREFRA  B% it %000  ERES = i
(AR )
2014 3
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED (:){DESHRESGIHMEHRETE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through (2)

investment during the reporting period

Registered
Type of Place of Business capital
Full name of subsidiaries subsidiaries registration nature HhEs/ Scope of business
AR FhIEY e RHHE Rihae  BEEE
RMB
ARHER
Chaopi Qumeiba Trading Company Limited  Limited company  Befing, PRC Wholesale 1,000,000 Wholesale of cosmetics
(Chaopi Qumeiba)*
IREFEESHBARAR EREALA IR HEx HatEs
(A BRI Bp = )
Chaopi Shengshi Trading Company Limited ~ Limited company  Beijing, PRC Wholesale 25,000,000 Wholesale of cosmetics
(Chaopi Shengshi]*
PR AL EEARAA BREALT AR ke EHmsES
VA Raud)d

BEHRNBBRIAARENFAH

Proportion of ~ Proportion of
shareholdings  voting rights  Whether
) consolidated Note

() (o
BRIEAC) TABREA) RESHER BT

51.90 65 Yes Note 9
% 9

51.90 65 Yes Note 10
& 0

Except for the newly acquired subsidiaries through
investment, there was no change in the scope of

consolidated financial statements for 2014 and 2013.

Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity interests
of those companies which are deemed to be the subsidiaries.
As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi Trading, the holding
percentage is different with the voting rights percentage.

> Chaopi Trading holds more than 50% of the equity interests
of those companies which are deemed to be the subsidiaries.
As the Company holds 79.85% of Chaopi Trading, the holding

percentage is different with the voting rights percentage.
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries

Set out below is the analysis of the movements in registered

capital of subsidiaries and shareholdings and percentages of

voting rights held by the Company in subsidiaries during the

Reporting Period:

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

On 31 July 2013, Shoulian Supermarket merged its
wholly-owned subsidiary Beijing Shoulian Haotian
Trading Company Limited (“Shoulian Haotian”).
Shoulian Supermarket became the entity in existence
with registered capital remaining unchanged. Shoulian
Haotian completed the cancellation procedures on 5
March 2014.

As authorized by Beijing Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 22 July 2013, the Company and
other equity holders respectively contributed additional
RMB140,490,324 and RMB35,452,474 into Chaopi
Trading, which were recognised in its share capital
and capital reserve, respectively. As of the date, the
registered capital of Chaopi Trading increased to RMB
500,000,000. Upon completion of the capital increase,
the Company directly held 79.85% equity interest
in Chaopi Trading, which was verified by the capital
verification report (Rui Hua Yan Zi [2013] No. 201C0002).

On 13 June 2014, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading and other equity holders respectively contributed
additional RMB12,822,800 and 11,679,100 into Chaopi
Huaging. As of the date, the registered capital of Chaopi
Huaqging increased to RMB80,000,000. Upon completion
of the capital increase, the equity interest in Chaopi
Huaging was directly held by Chaopi Trading as to
53.43%, and indirectly held by the Company through
Chaopi Trading as to 42.66%.

(R)EXEHREHUBERE)

(2)

BERABBRISAMENFLT
(%)

FRAER
RAREHE - FARMZMERUK
RN AVEF R AR R RORRE LI ey
oM

1 R20135F7A318 - HE B ™ R
AEHER2EFRARILREBERE
BEREERR(UTEHB g2
X)) BEEBBNIERAEEFND
8 EMERRFTE - R20144F3
A5H - Bl R RFTEREHETFE -

M2013F7H228 * KLt R T 1T
BRERBZE  ARAIREMIKRE
FHERALEEEINREARE
140,490,324 7T &k A R #635,452,474
T HEZA  ANRFENTME
A= A R #500,000,0007T ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

R

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 4:

Note 5:

On 27 December 2013, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading acquired 4% equity interest in Chaopi
Huilong from its minority shareholders at a cash
consideration of RMB 960,000. The total investment of
Chaopi Trading in Chaopi Huilong increased to RMB
16,560,000, while its direct interest increased from 65%
to 69%. As of the date, the Company indirectly held
55.10% equity interest in Chaopi Huilong through Chaopi
Trading.

On 29 December 2014, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading acquired 8.75% equity interest in
Chaopi Huilong from its minority shareholders at a cash
consideration of RMB2,100,000. The total investment
of Chaopi Trading in Chaopi Huilong increased to RMB
18,660,000, while its direct interest increased from 69%
to 77.75%. As of the date, the Company indirectly held
62.08% equity interest in Chaopi Huilong through Chaopi
Trading.

As authorized by Datong Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 7 January 2013, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Datong established Chaopi Mayi as a
wholly-owned subsidiary with registered capital of RMB
5,000,000. The investment was verified by the capital
verification report (Jin Zhen Cheng Yan [2012] No. 0122).
As at 24 January 2013, the equity interest in Chaopi
Datong directly held by the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading decreased from 100% to 70%.
Accordingly, as of the date, the Company indirectly held
55.90% equity interest in Chaopi Mayi, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chaopi Datong, through Chaopi Trading
and Chaopi Datong.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 6:

Note 7:

As authorized by Tangshan Administration for Industry
and Commerce on 3 May 2013, the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading established Chaopi Baishun as
a wholly-owned subsidiary with registered capital of RMB
30,000,000. The investment was verified by the capital
verification report (Da Tang Yan Zi [2013] No. 200).0n
11 June 2013, Chaopi Trading disposed of 30% equity
interest in Chaopi Baishun to an independent third party
natural person at a consideration of RMB9,000,000,
decreasing its direct interest in Chaopi Baishun from
100% to 70%. As of the date, the Company indirectly
held 55.90% equity interest in Chaopi Baishun through
Chaopi Trading.

On 22 August 2013, the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading established Beijing Chaopi Maolisheng
Trading Company Limited (“Chaopi Maolisheng”) as
a wholly-owned subsidiary with registered capital of
RMB50,000,000. The investment was verified by the
capital verification report (Rui Hua Yan Zi [2013] No.
201C0004). As of the date, the equity interest in Chaopi
Maolisheng was 100% held by Chaopi Trading, and was
indirectly held by the Company through Chaopi Trading
as to 79.85%.

On 6 December 2013, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading disposed of 35% equity interest in Chaopi
Maolisheng to an independent third party natural person
at a consideration of RMB17,500,000, decreasing its
direct interest in Chaopi Maolisheng from 100% to 65%.
As of the date, the Company indirectly held 51.90%
equity interest in Chaopi Maolisheng through Chaopi
Trading.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

- )

(2) Subsidiaries acquired or established through

investment during the reporting period (Continued)

Information of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Note 8:

Note 9:

Note 10:

On 9 September 2013, Chaopi Flavourings, a subsidiary
of the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading, established
Chaopi Hong Kong as a wholly-owned subsidiary in
Hong Kong, with registered capital of HK$10,000. Upon
its establishment, the equity interest in Chaopi Hong
Kong was held by Chaopi Trading through Chaopi
Flavourings as to 52.63%, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 42.03%.

On 19 May 2014, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading and other equity holders established Chaopi
Qumeiba as a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, with
registered capital of RMB1,000,000. Chaopi Qumeiba
was directly held by Chaopi Trading as to 65% by
investing RMB650,000, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 51.90%. Chaopi
Qumeiba has obtained business license with NO.
110105017246602. On 7 July 2014, Chaopi Trading
paid RMB 650,000 to Chaopi Qumeiba, which was full
paid.

On 16 May 2014, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi
Trading and other equity holders established Chaopi
Shengshi as a subsidiary of Chaopi Trading, with
registered capital of RMB25,000,000. Chaopi Qumeiba
was directly held by Chaopi Trading as to 65% by
investing RMB 16,250,000, and indirectly held by the
Company through Chaopi Trading as to 51.90%. Chaopi
Shengshi has obtained business license with NO.
110105017227187. On 4 July 2014, Chaopi Trading
paid RMB 16,250,000 to Chaopi Qumeiba, which was
full paid.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(R)EEEHREHUBERRE)

(2 HWEHRNBBRIASANENFAF
(%)
FRAER ()

8 M2013F9A9H * AAQRIZFAF
FRARRREBRER IO E R
BFRARBAHEE  BITRAS AB
#10,0007T - FAHL P B i@BEA A
KA H52.63%M e - BNAR
AEBARL N EREREAAMREE
42.03%K)HEw ©

9 M201445A198 © AR R F A A
BHHBERE=ZFAARAARERT
TRTFRABAMEET - HFEME
AN A AR ¥1,000,0007T - BAHLEE
REHEE R AR 650,0007T
B E A S A R IEe5% M I
ARRBBHMEEMERES P
£EIE51.90%H #am - P EEE
© BL181101050172466025% T 7 &
¥R o R2014F7A7H - BHLE
BRFARAREZEIEARE
650,0007T * SAR P E 2 RELERE
EREHE -

10 R2014%5A168 * AR B FARH

HEBEE=FARARER T

RFARIEAHEE  HEFMEREA

A R #25,000,0007T » 7 #t 75 & R

B &% A A R¥16,250,0007T

EEHA DI R TEs%M E - A

RABBAMN R EEREA AR

H51.90%8) 7 7 o = #it &%t B B

181101050172271875% T @& & %

IR - M201467H48 - At E

M 84 8t 2% it )F & A R #16,250,000

T BHEE I RALEEE 2 ES

E o



@
Ee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

V. BUSINESS COMBINATION AND CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(R)EEEHREHFHBERE)

2. Financial information of subsidiaries with significant 2.

FEEEREANIBRRERN T
RAFBREZVBERMOT :

minority interests:

Proportion of

Proportion of voting power Profits and losses

minority for minority aftributing to Dividends to
interests (%) interests (%) minority interests minority interests Minority interests
SERR SERRERH BRNOURR
Full name of subsidiaries #2727 ERLB(%) FORELA) flis (BX) O ERRABRA SHURFRE
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014.12.31 2013.12.31
ZB-pF | F-ZF
N145E 185 N145E N13FF [t=A=t-B [TZA=1-H
RMB RMB RMB RVB RMB RVB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Chaopi Trading and BHHEREATAR
its subsidiaries 20.15 2045 | 46749911 | 42,132,652 | 47,836,722 | 47,922.371 | 437,004917 | 417,665,865
(1) Main assets and liabilities: (1) FEZLEREE:
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZE-[EF —T—=
Item EH +=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—8
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Current assets MENEE 3,939,180,779 3,629,305,676
Non-current assets SEMENEE 163,856,444 153,862,566
Current liabilities nEBE 2,911,477,306 2,344,815,923
Non-current liabilities FEREBER 114,195,227 359,449,270
(2) Business performance and net cash flow (2) KEXERBELFRE:
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mF —F—=
ltem HH +=—BA=+—H +=—A=+—8
RMB RMB
AR ARET
Operating income BEWA 6,445,555,012 6,086,675,205
Operating costs and expenses EERAKRER 6,344,879,773 5,972,907,577
Net profit and other comprehensive
income FEAE AR W e 4 68,019,104 75,819,411
Cash flow from operating activities & & /EHIR L FRE 138,870,775 132,334,745
Cash flow from investing activities KEEHREFRE (113,069,002) (92,937,952)
Cash flow from financing activities ~ H&EBIRESFRE 41,483,627 54,912,091

R REEEEERGBRAR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EHHERREEZRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Cash and bank balances 1-E8Ee
2014.12.31
—E-mOFE+=A=+—H
Foreign
currency Exchange Amount
ltem EHAB amount rate in RMB
SIS wEE AR%LE
RMB
AR¥TT
Cash: B
RMB AREE 28,863,096
usD ETT 482 6.1245 2,952
HKD ot 414 0.7899 327
GBP HEE 193 9.5233 1,838
Bank deposits: HRITIER
RMB AR 492,034,285
EUR BT 96,412 7.4556 718,809
Other currencies-RMB EmmEEEes - ARK
Bank acceptance margin deposit RITE A ERRFSFK
(Note 1) (3%1) 15,217,794
Total ast 536,839,101
2013.12.31
—ET—=F+=ZA=+—H”
Foreign
currency Exchange Amount
[tem B H amount rate in RMB
HNE SRR TEXR ARB:E
RMB
ARET
Cash: B
RMB ARHE 28,422,743
usD E 482 6.1017 2,941
HKD B 1,650 0.7861 1,297
GBP HEE 193 10.0363 1,937
SGD TN 2,026 4.7853 9,695
Bank deposits: RITIF K
RMB ARHE 561,114,700
Other currencies-RMB HihEBES - AR
Bank acceptance margin deposit RITERHEERBZEHER
(Note 1) (3%1) 11,335,458
Deposit for letter of credit (Note 2)  ZRIRESFH 700,000
Total SEr 601,588,771

Note 1: As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s other currency

- 3

funds with use restrictions amount to RMB 15,217,794 (31
December 2013: RMB 11,335,458). See Note (VI) 18.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable

(1) 31 December 2014

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

2 EWERR

(1) 2014%12H31H

Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories: FEUBR R FH AR FR -
2014.12.31
e A
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
BERE BRER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Category Ex S8 EE (%) k] EE (%)
RMB RMB
ARER IN::
Accounts receivable that are individually ~— BIE4EE AV BE:E
significant and for which bad debt ERERNERER
provision has been assessed individually 1,126,431,576 67 - -
Accounts receivable for which bad BB REER
debt provisions has been assessed JEI BRI
by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not EEEBIAENERER
individually significant but have BRSREAEZAAN
significant risk when divided into a BB KA IR
portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics 516,503,489 31 - -
Other insignificant accounts receivable  E R EXEYER 31,200,263 2 S -
Total of portfolio et 547,703,752 33 - -
Accounts receivable that are not EESBIENBEEE
individually significant but for which ZHREENERRR
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 1,890,579 - 1,890,579 100
Total At 1,676,025,907 100 1,890,579 100

2014 &
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VI.

- )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Aging of accounts receivable is as follows:

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

2 EWERMR(E)

(1) 2014%12531H8 (&)
FE W AR ARE IR AHE R B EA T T 1)

BRI ¢
2014.12.31
E-mE+=A=t-H
Bad debts Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
Aging i EA £ B1(%) RIRER REER
RMB RMB RMB
ARE T AR%T AR
Within 1 year 1EMRA 1,567,848,338 92 - 1,567,848,338
1-2 years 1228 26,286,990 2 - 26,286,990
3-4 years 223F 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 -
4-5 years 4B5F 80,000,000 5 - 80,000,000
Total AEf 1,676,025,907 100 1,890,579 1,674,135,328

Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable that

are not individually significant but for which bad debt

provision has been assessed individually are as follows:

HREESETEABEEHDE
B e BB LR 3K

Content of accounts Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
receivable amount bad debt provision (%) Reason for the provision
BURRAE BRI BA 58 RIRSHE TR BI(%) EH
RMB RMB
AR® T AR® T
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debts which are
25 B unlikely to be recovered
B ASRFEETREE DT
B A A 1A K
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2013

Disclosure of accounts receivable by category:

(R)EHH B |mRITE TR (E)

2 BEWERFR(E)
(2) 2013%12H31H
FEUWBR IR ISR FE

2013.12.31
2=+ R=t—H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Category B 8 £ 451(%) 8 L 45(%)
RMB RMB
ARET AR

Accounts receivable that are individually —~ EESEE AT EIE:E

significant and for which bad debt ERERNEKER

provision has been assessed individually 995,129,237 60 = =
Accounts receivable for which bad REARERERD

debt provisions has been assessed YRR

by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not EHEBAENERER

individually significant but have EREBAARZELN

significant risk when divided into BB BRI IR R

a portfolio by similar credit risk

characteristics 502,327,589 30 = =
Other insignificant accounts receivable A& AU 160,708,106 10 - -
Total of portfolio ARG 663,035,695 40 = =
Accounts receivable that are not EESBTEABER

individually significant but for which HEEREENEKED

bad debt provision has been

assessed individually 1,890,579 - 1,890,579 100
Total At 1,660,055,511 100 1,890,579 100

2014 F3
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VI.

m )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

2~

PR RRRR ()

(2) 2013%12F31H (#&)
FE W AR ARE IR AHE R B EA T T 1)

FRECIAT
2013.12.31
“F-=F+-A=1-H
Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
Aging Bk 8 £ 45(%) ZHRER FEEE
RMB RMB RMB
ARETL ARET ARETL
Within 1 year 1ELAR 1,556,171,061 94 - 1,556,171,061
1-2 years 1226 23,884,450 1 1,890,579 21,993,871
3-4 years 3R4F 80,000,000 5 = 80,000,000
Total At 1,660,055,511 100 1,890,579 1,658,164,932

Bad debts provision of accounts receivable that are not

individually significant but for which bad debt provision

has been assessed individually are as follows:

HREESETEALE AT
B 0 BR3¢

Content of accounts Amount of  Proportion of
receivable Carrying amount bad debt provision (%) Reason for the provision
EUIRRAE IREIERER HRSHE TR BI(%) EH
RMB RMB
AR AR
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debt which are
252 unlikely to be recovered
BB AB R REEREE N
LGN
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable

31 December 2014

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

2 BWIRMR(E)

(38) BRMFEFHRI KRR L EH
YRR 15X

2014%12831H

Proportion
of the amount Closing
to the total  balance of
accounts  bad debt

Relationship with receivable (%)  provision
Name of entity the Group Amount  Age EEKER  BREE
Efr g BAKEEHE ¢E ER aEBLA%) HREE
RMB
AR%R
Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. Independent third party 466,602,902 Within 2 years 28 -
(Hereinafter referred to as * Bejing Wu-mart’) BUE=H PEDN
ERNEGABTERAR (A THB L RNE])
Shoulian Group Co., Ltd. Independent third party 80,000,000  4-5years 5 =
(Hereinafter referred to as “Shoulian Group”) BUE=H 4-5%
FREBAEERERAR(ATHRE EHEE])
Beijing Carrefour Commercial Co., Ltd. Independent third party 77,005,544 Within 1 year 3 =
(Hereinafter referred to as “Beiiing Carrefour’) BUE=H 1ELAR
IRREEEEERAR A THE L RFLE])
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. Independent third party 76,375,921 Within 2 years 5 -
(Hereinafter referred to as * Beiing Lotus’) BUE=H PED
RGBT EHETERAR
(AT EBEREMER])
Beijing Hualian Comprehensive Supermarket Co., Ltd.  Independent third party 71,213,686 Within 1 year 4 -
tRERGABTRAERAR BUE=H 1ELAR
Total 771,198,053 47 -
At

2014 &
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VI.

-

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable

31 December 2013

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

2 EWERMR(E)

(38) BRI EFHRIRGER L EH

FEWR AR 1E
20135128318

Proportion
of the amount Closing
to the total  balance of
accounts bad debt
Relationship with receivable(%)  provision
Name of entity the Group Amount  Age BRYERS  BERERE
B EAZEBE ¢® £R ZENLOIe)  HRER
RMB
ANRET
Beijing Wu-mart Store Co., Ltd. Independent third party 440,821,311 Within 1 year 26 -
(Hereinafter referred to as * Bejing Wu-mart’) BUE=H I
tRE
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. Independent third party 111,294,289 Within 2 years 7 -
(Hereinafter referred to as * Beiing Lotus”) BUE=H 2ER
ERSETR
Beijing Carrefour Commercial Co., Ltd. Independent third party 103,270,313 Within 1 year 6 -
(Hereinafter referred to as “Beijing Carrefour’) BUE=H 1ELA
ERFER
Shoulian Group Co., Ltd. Independent third party 80,000,000  3-4 years 5 -
(Hereinatter referred to as “Shoulian Group”) BUE=F 34F
BHER
Beijing Hualian Comprehensive Supermarket Co., Ltd.  Independent third party 65,702,161 Within 1 year 4 -
tRERGRETRAERAR BUE=H 1ELR
Total 801,088,074 48 -
Ast
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable due from

Shoulian Group is as follows:

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

FE U B R (42)
(38) BRMFEFHRI KRR L EH

W RRH 155 ()
HEBSEABUARKIREDT

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—F-mF —T=F

Aging BRER +=—BA=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB

AR® T ARETT

3-4 years 3E4F - 80,000,000
4-5 years 455 80,000,000 =
Total il 80,000,000 80,000,000

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Group had an amount of RMB80,000,000 due from
Beijing Shoulian Trading Company Limited (“Shoulian”),
and it was already overdue more than 3 months. In the
opinion of the directors, no impairment is necessary
on 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 in view
of the following consideration: one piece of land and
related buildings situated in Beijing with a total value
of not less than the overdue accounts receivable has

been pledged in favor of the Company.

The Group normally allows a credit period of no
more than 90 days to its customers. A longer credit
period is granted to its major customers with 180
days. Accounts receivable bear no interest except the
amount due from Shoulian which bears interest at 1 to

5 year lending rate.

720149128318 K20134F12 A
310 - FHGHESE AN EWERN
FHEBEENEURRER/A
R #80,000,0007t © BT # H3
&8 A A £ - ®20145F12A318 &
2013%F12A31H * ARAIEER
REREZEOHREBERRRRT
MEMERFEWE R EKE -
EHEBEBRNRAREBETNMERE
B HAFE AR AR R B0 5 B e b A
RREEREINER - MEFIRE
AR -

JIE W BR 3K = AR BB & RO0K + E
ZERFAIUNEREI80K - REH
o B R R BR FUIRIRTT—EAF
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VI.

I

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2,

Accounts receivable (Continued)

(3) Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

On 31 December 2014, the total accounts
receivable due from Beijing Wu-mart, Beijing
Yong Hui supermarket Co. Ltd., Beijing Carrefour,
Beijing Lotus, Beijing Jingdong Century Trade Co.,
Ltd, Jumei International Holdings limited, Vipshop
Holdings Limited and LAFASO Holdings Limited
amounted to RMB458,975,301 (31 December 2013:
RMB206,767,979) were limited by being factored to

secure certain bank loans of the Group..

Pursuant to the factoring agreement between the
Group and HSBC, HSBC provides a bank loan for
amount of not exceeding 70% of the factored trade
receivables to the Group. HSBC collected the entire
amount trade receivable and is only required to pay
the Group any amount it collects in excess of the loan
amount. As the Group has not transferred specifically
identifiable cash flows, fully proportionate share of all or
part of the cash flows or part of specifically identifiable
cash flows, the Group cannot apply the derecognition

model to part of the factored trade receivable.

Since the factoring of trade receivable is on full
recourses basis, the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to these
receivables, it continues to recognize the receivables
and has recognized the cash received on the transfer

as secured bank loans (Note (VI)17).

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

2~

PR RRRR ()
(38) BRI EFHRIRGER L EH

FERRR 18R ()

M2014%F12A318 - Wit = 9
X ERUKBEMARAR - bR
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

3

Top five entities with the largest balances of

accounts receivable (Continued)

2~

FE U B R (42)

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

(38) BRMFEFHRI KRR L EH

FEW ARSI ()

Trade receivable with full recourse

BERENEWRRRRE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—2-mE —F=F
+t=A=+—-B| +t=A=1+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR
Carrying amount of transferred assets #EBREEMEREEE 458,975,301 206,767,979
Carrying amount of associated HABENREEE
liabilities 190,177,877 99,598,081
Net position R 268,797,424 107,169,898
Prepayments 3. BENRE
Aging analysis of prepayments is as follows: TR RIBIRBRER TR
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mFE+=A=+—-H —T—=F+-A=+—-H
Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Aging BRilR x| Eb (%) T e 11(%)
RMB RMB
AR# TR ARBT
Within 1 year 1ELAR 649,633,624 100 550,729,655 100
Total At 649,633,624 100 | 550,729,655 100
2014 3

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR
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Prepayments (Continued)

balances of prepayments

31 December 2014

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) Top five entities with relationships and the largest

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

3 BENFREGB)

(1) BENHGEENHRGHENEE

BT B 1SR
20145128318

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Relationship with Reason for
Name of entity the Group Amount Age unsettlement
ENE® HASEE% k0] £R AEERE
RMB
AR
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Company  Independent third party 157,266,956 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Limited BYE=F 1EHUA HAREIEY
BERRRERHEEREMAF
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Independent third party 68,102,734 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Company Limited BUE=F 1ELAR WARMEIEYD
TEEEERRBERAR
Nivea(Shanghai)Co., Ltd Independent third party 39,349,942 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
R E8)BRATE BuE=H TFAR HARE &Y
Maotai Liquor (Guizhou Renhuai) Independent third party 27,835,130 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Marketing Company Limited BUE=R 1F AR WARMEIED
EEFa(EMCR) EHERAF
Beijing Creative hall Trading Co. Ltd Independent third party 21,744,544 Within 1 year  Goods not received
TRAIBEREERAA BUE=H 1EUR HARBEIED
Total 314,299,306
At
31 December 2013 2013%12A31H
Relationship with Reason for
Name of entity the Group Amount Age unsettlement
ey EREEBE Ea FR FREERR
RMB
ARET
Yibin Wuliangye Liquor Sales Company  Independent third party 119,365,649 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Limited BUE=FH TEHUR HAMEIED
HERRRERHEERELEAH
Shanghai Nestle Products Services Independent third party 81,959,759 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Company Limited BYE=H ESNN EEEE)
TEEEERRBERAR
Hebei Chengde Lulu Company Limited  Independent third party 48,471,079 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
W AEBRERDER AR BUE=H 1R HARKEIEY
Luzhou Laojiao Northern Wine Independent third party 32,865,795 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Company Limited BUE=H EN HAREE Y
BMZERREHILTBEAERAR
Maotai Liquor (Guizhou Renhuai) Independent third party 29,699,517 Within 1 year ~ Goods not received
Marketing Company Limited BUE=H 1EHUR EE €t
BEF A (BMCE)EHBRAF
Total 312,361,799
At
ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Prepayments (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

(2) Disclosure of prepayments by category:

Category

LRl

BANREE)

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

(2) BANFEZEEHE -

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-IF —EB—=
+t=A=t—-B| TZA=1+—H
RMB RMB
AR AREBT
Prepayments which are individually BIEHSREEAWIEMNFIA
significant 412,319,587 387,112,212
Other insignificant prepayments H T ERMTEN R 237,314,037 163,617,443
Total A&t 649,633,624 550,729,655

Prepayments exceeding RMB 5 million are classified as

individually significant prepayments by the Group.

AEEB ST A ARES008 T
EWMEMFERRAEESEEAN

HFERTFROR

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

2014 &
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivables

(1) 31 December 2014

Disclosure of other receivables by category:

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

(1) 20144125318

Hib e

RO

2014.12.31

“E-mME+=ZA=+—-H
Bad debt provision

Carrying amount

RESE BRER
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
Category B o ] £k (%) Xl £ 1(%)
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR%T
Other receivables that are BIHeBEAWER
individually significant and for FHREREED
which bad debt provision has ~ Efh FEUFR
been assessed individually 11,959,211 9 4,224,750 78
Other receivables for which RIEAFIRER
bad debt provisions has been %51 E YR
assessed by portfolios
Other receivables that are not ~ BESBEFAEAMBE
individually significant but have  {EREBEHAAKR
significant risk when divided ZHEA N EREAK
into a portfolio by similar credit b fEUET
risk characteristics 100,980,910 74 - -
Other insignificant accounts HE MERREAM
receivable FEMER 22,457,017 16 = -
Total of portfolio Baat 123,437,927 920 - -
Other receivables that are not ~ BESETEA(E
individually significant but for ~ EBFHEERERE
which bad debt provision has B E i FE UK
been assessed individually 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 22
Total =H) 137,448,438 100 5,396,522 100
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows: Hh WG ERER 0T -
2014.12.31
—E-mE+=-A=1+-A
Bad debt Carrying
Amount Proportion (%) provision amount
Aging IR £H EE (%) BREE IREEE
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥T AR
Within 1 year 1R 128,847,388 94 - 128,847,388
2-3 years 2FE3F 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 879,528
4-5 years AZ5F 6,549,750 5) 4,224,750 2,325,000
Total Bt 137,448,438 100 5,396,522 132,051,916

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

4~ HisREWR(E)
(1) 2014%12F31H(#%&)
HIK BIE ¢ R B AW BB R ER

individually significant is as follows: E{E ) B Ath FE LUK
Amount of
Content of other Carrying bad debt  Proportion of
receivables amount provision provision Reason for provision
HitEWRAR BRTH BREE HIRSH sHREEBI(%) R
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Beijing Guanyuan 6,549,750 4,224,750 65 Controversial debts which are

Wholesale Market
Company Limited
IR EEE M
MEERAR

unlikely to recover
BERAHRKEFEFEM
I EIATBE AR

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are not

HAREESEIEANBEETRE

individually significant is as follows: BRAEME R H Atb FE UK
Amount of
Content of other Carrying bad debt  Proportion of
receivables amount provision provision Reason for provision
HitEWRAR BRTH BAEE HIRSH FHRLEBI(%) EMH
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Beijing Baili Tongda 2,051,300 1,171,772 57 Controversial debts which are
Trading Company unlikely to recover
Limited B A RRIFERHN
IERENBERE EEIE RN
BRAA
Reversals and collections during the current year: REERMFBEREAT

Accumulated
bad debt

Basis of provision prior
determining the to reversals
Reasons for original bad or collections Amount of
Content of other reversals or debt provision EE A& reversals or
receivables collections BERER 2 RVER collections
HitEW AR BEHNERE EHEKE EEeHE BEeE
RMB RMB
AR AR®ETRT
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 6,687,500 2,462,750
Wholesale Market B 365 Bk which are unlikely
Company Limited to recover
IR EEEmitETS BERAHRRIFEFZ
BIRAF] i 4 B AT g2 14N K

2014 &
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued)

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

The Group obtained a right of receiving rent from one

shop of Beijing Guanyuan, and the income of the rent

were predicted to receive depended on the lessee’s

credit status, so provision of bad debt for Beijing

Guanyuan was partly recovered.

(2) 31 December 2013

Disclosures of other receivables by category:

4~ HApfEWR (&)

(1) 20144125318 (&)
AARBREBHEG—REHE
S S B AR BAR T AR
TERT M & W E 4 IS AL 50
Bl - E AL AR TE AR SR AU
[G] < §8 #3 Bl AR AE 4 o

(2) 20134125318

H W IRTE SRR EE

2013.12.31
ZE-=5+ZA=+—H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RESE ERERE
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Category e ] L 151(%) | e 51(%)
RMB RMB
ARET ARET

Other receivables that are BESESAWER

individually significant and for ~ &HEZER &

which bad debt provision has ~ H A1

been assessed individually 25,756,230 19 6,687,500 85
Other receivables for which RIEAHIRBRER

bad debt provisions has been  HJE M EUEL

assessed by portfolios
Other receivables that are not ~ EEGEAEABRK

individually significant but have — {EFERFEEA %R

significant risk when divided ZHEEMERR AR

into a portfolio by similar credit ~ E B

risk characteristics 93,563,316 68 =
Other insignificant accounts Hip N EARWEME

receivable Yk 15,623,736 12 -
Total of portfolio Bahat 109,187,052 80 -
Other receivables that are not ~ BIBESFEAEAE

individually significant but for HIEEHREREEN

which bad debt provision has ~ Efh fEULFR

been assessed individually 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 15
Total &5 136,994,582 100 7,859,272 100

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R BRREETRE)
4. Other receivables (Continued) 4~ HEWRR(E)

(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued) (2) 2013%12531H(#&)

Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAob YRR AT ¢
2013.12.31
ZE-=F+ZA=+—H

Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
Aging B ot L A(%) EIRER FEEE
RMB RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR T AR
Within 1 year 1ELA 123,483,307 90 = 123,483,307
1-2 years 1226 2,223,775 2 1,171,772 1,052,003
3-4 years 3Z4AF 11,287,500 8 6,687,500 4,600,000
Total Bt 136,994,582 100 7,869,272 129,135,310

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are BiREETH ¢ RA S AW BIAFHEIRER

individually significant is as follows: EENE M EW R
Content of other Carrying Amount of Proportion of
receivables amount provision provision Reason for provision
HtEWRAE FRE#RER EReR STHRELI(%) e
RMB RMB
ARET ARET
Beijing Guanyuan 6,687,500 6,687,500 100 Controversial debts which are

Wholesale Market

Company Limited
I REE AL

M5 ARAQA

unlikely to recover
BEBABRREFLEFET
Yo sl AT g MR

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are not

individually significant is as follows:

Content of other Carrying
receivables amount
Hib I HRAR AR BARE
RMB

AR

Beijing Baili Tongda 2,051,300

Trading Company

Amount of
bad debt
provision
EREeR

RMB
ARET

1,171,772

HARERGENENEEFRE
RRER R E MR -

Proportion of
provision

STHREL (%)

57

Reason for provision
B

Controversial debts which are
unlikely to recover

Limited BEEAH K REESHEM
tRBEFEESE U [B1 7] B A K
ARAA
2014 &

R REEEEERGBRAR
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VI.

- )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4,

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Other receivables (Continued) 4~ HinpEWRR (&)
(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued) (2) 2013%12531H(#&)
Reversals and collections during the current period: REERIMBERLOT
Accumulated
bad debt
Basis of provision
determining the prior to Amount of
Content of other original bad reversals reversals or
receivables debt provision or collections collections
ORI Rt
- BHRMEER
Hib IR AR T E R REE R KR B L E s
RMB RMB
ARETT AREBTT
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 6,812,500 125,000
Wholesale Market which are unlikely
Company Limited to recover B
I REEEmtETS BRAHRTIFEFZ
BERATF (LB 2N
(3) Disclosures of other receivables by detail: (3) HEREMEDREMEKRL
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—-mF —E-=fF
Detail of other receivables H At EUGR M E +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8”
RMB RMB
AR AREBT
Receivables of sales promotion YR IEE A 112,940,121 93,563,316
Receivables of prepaid rent FETFERTT S 5K - 4,600,000
Receivables of reimbursed project fund FEUKZ T2 - 19,068,730
Receivables of cash deposit and pledge JEIIRE S R4S 6,060,666 2,809,265
Others EH 13,051,129 9,093,999
Total & 132,051,916 129,135,310
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.

Other receivables (Continued)

receivables

31 December 2014

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

4~ HpEWR(E)

(4) BRAFEFHHRGENLER

e EUL 5%
2014%12831H

Proportion of

the amount
to total other Closing
receivables  balance of
(%)  bad debt
Quality of other {EEAMERS  provision
Name of entity receivables Amount  Age BENLH  BREMR
EfER RAME HReE R (%)  HREE
RMB RMB
AR%T AR
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Company Receivables of 6,549,750  4-5 years 5 4224750
Limited prepaid rent 455
I REBEMSETSERAR gk
Guangdong Jingxing Health Products Co. Ltd. Receivables of 5,409,461 Within 1 year 4 -
ERSAEERRERAT sales promotion 1ELR
El{EHER
Luzhou Lao Jiao pure spring Marketing North Receivables of 3,771,446 Within 1 year 3 =
China wine industry Limited by Share Ltd. sales promotion 1ELR
BMEERREHELEERHERLT EdfRiRER
Beiing Yang River Trade Co., Ltd. Receivables of 2,782,806 Within 1 year 2 -
ERETERERAA sales promotion 1ELR
e {RsHER
Chongaing Longai Cosmetics Co., Ltd. Receivables of 2,280,223 Within 1 year 2 -
EERHERERAR sales promotion 1EHRR
ER{RHEER
Total &3t 20,793,685 16 4,224,750

2014 &
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

- 2

Other receivables (Continued)

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2013

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

4~ HbEWER (&)
(4) BRI BENHRGHEILER
o EYL 5 (&)
20135128318

Proportion of

the amount
to total other Closing
receivables  balance of
(%)  bad debt
Quality of other {HEREMRE  provision
Name of entity receivables Amount  Age gEOLy  EREE
BA&HE FRME HReE RE (%)  EREE
RMB RMB
ARET N
Beijing Hongchao Weiye SOE Management Co., Ltd.  Receivables of pad 19,068,730 Within 1 year 14 -
(Note (V1)) 4(1) Note 1) project fund 1ELR
SRR EEE EELEAREML AT REIER
(PRI AL S ) (st (1) - 4(1)z3t1)
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Market Company Receivables of 6,687,500  3-4 years 5 6,687,500
Limited prepaid rent 3Z4F
ERE BB ETSERAR EfES
Beijing Guibao Baodi Hotel Management Receivables of 4,600,000  Over 3 years 3 =
Company Limited prepaid rent 3ENE
P RREEHAEERERAT R
Beiing Yanghe Trading Co., Ltd. Receivables of 2,959,935 Within 1 year 2 -
FEETEEERLA sales promotion 1EUR
FEREER
Johnson & Johnson (China) Company Limited Receivables of 2,818,275 Within 1 year 2 -
B4 (B REBRAT sales promotion LR
RRRHER
Total &t 36,134,440 2% 6,687,500

Other receivables exceeding RMB5 million are classified

as individually significant by the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

5. Inventories 5. F&
(1) Categories of inventories (1) FEHE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
ZE-METZA=t-A S e el
Provision Provision

Gross for decline Net Gross for decline Net

carrying in value of Carrying carrying in value of Carrying

amount inventories amount amount inventories amount

Item EH RESE HERE kEEE BHSE GEEE BEEE

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR¥T AR¥R ARETR ARET ARET ARET

Merchandise ERAER 1,476,760,332 1,265,828  1,475,494,504 | 1,473,348,427 1,454,904 1,471,893,523

Raw materials R 8,391,954 - 8,391,954 8,756,812 8 8,755,812
Reusable materials e - - - 601,149 - 601,149

Total At 1,485,152,286 1,265,828  1,483,886,458 | 1,482,705,388 1,454,904 1,481,250,484
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 20149128318 K2013F12A4
inventories were pledged or guaranteed. 31H - EARERSERNEFE -

(2) Provision for decline in value of inventories (2) FEHKEERF

Opening Closing

carrying Increase carrying

amount in the amount

~E-mF current year  Decrease in the current year —E-mE

Category of inventories ~ #EESE -A-H REHRE KERD +=A=t-H

Reversal Write-off
Ep B

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR ARBTL ARET AR ARETL

Merchandise EGER 1,454,904 292,801 - 481,877 1,265,828

In 2013, there was no change in provision for decline

in value of inventories.

R2013FE - TEKEEFEE
e

2014 &
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VI.

_

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6.

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

Other current assets 6 HittRBIEE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—-ME —F =
ltem BE +t=A=+—-8A| +t=A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR®TRT ARHTT
Short-term investment(Note 1) SEHR A (5E1) 135,000,000 65,000,000
Tax credit FIRFNHEIBR 113,351,192 148,368,819
Prepaid lease expenses FEHESER 36,468,012 28,420,556
Prepaid heating expenses FEHHESA 2,739,100 3,552,731
Other prepaid expenses (Note 2) Harr 2 A (522) 2,219,335 1,780,271
Total SiE) 289,777,639 247,122,377
Note 1: On 31 December 2014, the Company held banking financial 1 ARATRIR2014F12 8318\ Y KE
products, national debt reverse repurchase, of RMB FRMH BB D EE AR E PO EEE
90,000,000 managed by Guangda Securities Co., Ltd with E i A R #90,000,0007T + EF 1k
annual yield 5.72% and 15.17%, respectively. The principal W g & /35.72% 5 15.17% © 12015
and interest of such short-term investments amounted to F1A5H  ZEEHRELRE KA
RMB 90,031,585 were fully recovered on 5 January 2015. B s AR #90,031,5857T B 2 58
(el o
On 31 December 2014, Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of AARZFARASHERBHEE
the Company, and Chaopi Huaging, a subsidiary of Chaopi 2T AR EFR2014F12 A31
Trading held financial products of RMB30,000,000 and A2 REit RERITIRD BRI B RF
RMB15,000,000 managed by Bank of Beijing Co., Ltd. BETERITBARTETERARE
and Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Co., Ltd. 30,000,0007t & A & #15,000,000
respectively with estimated annualized rate of return of T HF(RERD B A21%Kk
2.1% and 2.1% to 3.3%. The principal and interest of such 21%%E3.3% © M2015F1H50 K
short-term investments amounted to RMB30,008,63 and 2015%F2A3H ' ZERBRELE
RMB15,032,945 were fully recovered, respectively, on 3 E 855l & A K #30,008,6307T
February 2015. %15,032,945 LB 25U E -
Note 2: Other prepaid expenses mainly included property fees, 2 HMGHERIZEEENYEE .
cleaning fees, security fees, etc. REE  RELEBE -
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7/

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

Available-for-sale financial assets 7 AHESREE
(1) Available-for-sale financial assets (1) HHRHHESHBEZERT
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
“E-ME+ZA=1-A ZE-=F+-A=1-H
Provision for Provision for
Carrying  available-for- Carrying  available-for- Net
amount sale assets Net value amount sale assets value
Item L RAGAE HEEE kEEE BERE HEERE FEEE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
N ARETR ARETR ARET ARET ARET
Avallable-for-sale MHEERTE
equity instrument
Measured by fair value BARBETES 4,578,000 - 4,578,000 3,860,000 - 3,860,000
Measured by cost BN A ER 1,188,000 1,188,000 - 1,188,000 1,188,000 =
Total At 5,766,000 1,188,000 4,578,000 5,048,000 1,188,000 3,860,000
Available-for-sale financial assets measured by fair (2) HABEAREBEITENITHRHAES

)

value at the end of period

HEE

Amount of investment

AHHERRTA

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-NF —ET—=F

Name of investee AHHESREESE +=B=+—8H +=—A=+—8

RMB RMB

AR¥T ARMETT

Cost of equity instrument (Note 1) R TR ARGET) 350,000 350,000

Fair value NREE 4,578,000 3,860,000
Accumulative amount of other 2T AR MR A WG

comprehensive income by fair value AR BEZHSEE 4,228,000 3,510,000

Accrued amount of asset impairment B EHERE S5 = =

2014 F1f

¢ =

R REEEEERGBRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

VI.

- )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7.

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 7 OHEESREEE)
(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured by cost 3) HABERARAFEHTREED
at the end of period HBEE
2014.12.31%2013.12.31
Carrying amount Provision for impairment of assets Proportion
BESE HEERE of the
Opening Closing  Opening Closing amount to Cash
balance  Increase Decrease  balance  balance  Increase Decrease  balance investee  dividend
HRE
EfiER &
HREEN B9 ABEm  AEES P B9 ABEm AEES B% WA BLAR
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AREL  AREn  AREn ARER ARER AREx ARExR ARER
Luoyang Chundu Group
Limited (Luoyang Chundu)
(Note 2)
HBEIARRERAT
(WA TESRRBE# ) (32) 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 0.12 -
Total 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 1,188,000 - - 1,188,000 0.12 -
Ghl
Note 1: Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company F1: ARQRZTFRAABHHEER
gained 100,000 stocks (RMB 1 for each stock) 1993F AL EBES AR
from Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co., Ltd. 3B T REILASEN DB
(Shanxi Xinghuacun) for RMB350,000 at November AR AR A& (AT &7
1993. In 1993, Shanxi Xinghuacun was listed in BEARLEN D EARIOER(E
Shanghai Stock Exchange. On 18 May 2012, Shanxi REEARE1.000T) - IWE
Xinghuacun issued a stock dividend of 10 for 10 BIEFTR1993F £ EIBEHZ
stocks to all shareholders through the notice of 2011 SFf £ o ILFaRIEN 72012
annual general meeting. As at 31 December 2014, F5R18H B MO0 EERE
Chaopi Trading held 200,000 stocks in total with KERFBAE 20115127
0.023% of its equity. (31 December 2013: 0.023%). STHMERARES  ME2E
In 2014, the increase in fair value, net of tax, of A% B A 10A% X 10RXAT A% » B ik
the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets was 20144128310 - SA# 9 B
RMB718,000 (In 2013: decreased by RMB4,472,000) FEA LA TER A A BRI 2
and was recognised in other comprehensive income. 208 Ik - 2014512 H31
(Note VI 32). H - #A#t &G H £0.023%
(20134124318 : 0.023%)
B AR HE - R2014F B E A
BE(NMREMSEE)ZHA
# A R #718,0007t(2013
FE D AR 4,472,000
L) BEtAEAMARE W
2R MEGR) 320
ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

(3) Available-for-sale financial assets measured by cost
at the end of period (Continued)

Note 2: Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company, gained
600,000 stocks (RMB 1 for each stock) from Luoyang
Chundu for RMB 1,188,000 in July 1993. As at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013, Chaopi
Trading held 0.12% of its equity. As the change of
operating condition of Luoyang Chundu, the Group
took full provision for the long term equity investment
whose recoverable amount is less than the carrying
amount and the decrease is not expected to be

recovered in the foreseeable future.

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

7. AHEESBMEEE)

(3) HABREAKAGTEBHATHRHES
AEE (&)

=2

KRR ZFRAARFER
199356 A L EBE S AR
H1188B TRE R G EEE
ARR60E R (B REMEARK
1.007T ) ° 2014512 A31H &
2013%F12A31H * St &
BhA H0.12%K) iR #E - AR
EEEBEERABLEERA
BB R AR ER & AT El
SHERKRENEREE I
BEBRENBEEEND
RIREB AR ATREIRIE - B2
FERHRBELELS -

2014 3 m-

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Investment properties

Investment properties measured at cost

Item EH

I. Total original carrying amount — RERE
1. Opening balance 1. Be8
2. Increase in the year 2. AEEMEE
(1) From the fixed assets (NRETEEBA
3. Decrease in the year 3. AR EE
(1)To the fixed assets NBAETEE
(2)To the intangible assets QEBARVEE

4. Closing balance 4, BARHHEE

II. Total accumulated depreciation . ZEENZiHEN
and amortisation
1. Opening balance 1. Boe8
2. Increase in the year 2. AEEMEE
(1) depreciation or amortisation (1) sHR S 85
(2) From the fixed assets QRETEEZA

3. Decrease in the year 3. AR EE

(1) To the fixed assets MEBABETEE
(2) To the intangible assets QEABVEE
4. Closing balance 4, BiREAEE
IIl. Total net book value of investment =+ BREEE
properties
1. Closing balance 1. BRREEE
2. Opening balance 2. BREERE

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

8 REMEHME
BT ENRE M EHE
2014.12.31
2014%12H31H
Buildings Land use rights Total
EEREEY T AE At
RMB RMB RMB
ARBRT AR®T ARBR
88,617,171 66,651,861 155,269,032
41,262,197 - 41,262,197
41,262,197 - 41,262,197
935,815 4,817,677 5,753,492
935,815 - 935,815
- 4,817,677 4,817,677
128,943,553 61,834,184 190,777,737
20,887,989 6,137,131 27,025,120
15,036,596 1,628,332 16,664,928
3,483,921 1,628,332 5,112,253
11,652,675 - 11,652,675
279,754 437,971 717,725
279,754 - 279,754
- 437,971 437,971
35,644,831 7,327,492 42,972,323
93,298,722 54,506,692 147,805,414
67,729,182 60,514,730 128,243,912

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8.

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

Investment properties (Continued) 8 BREMEMEE)
Investment properties measured at cost (Continued) BREAGTENREMEEHE (&)
2013.12.31
2013F12A31H
Buildings Land use rights Total
Item ] FEREEN T fE R At
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARETT
|. Total original carrying amount — RARE
1. Opening balance 1. BeE 72,918,149 54,533,927 127,452,076
2. Increase in the year 2. AEE ML 15,699,022 12,117,934 27,816,956
(1) From the fixed assets () ETBESA 15,699,022 12,117,934 27,816,956
3. Decrease in the year 3. AERA EE - - -
4. Closing balance 4, BiRera 88,617,171 66,651,861 155,269,032
II. Total accumulated depreciation . ZREHRENZHEE
and amortisation
1. Opening balance 1. BULE 16,834,767 3,536,257 20,371,024
2. Increase in the year 2. REE & EE 4,053,222 2,600,874 6,654,096
(1) depreciation or amortisation (1) FHigskE i 3,080,828 1,612,231 4,693,059
(2) From the fixed assets QETEEEA 972,394 988,643 1,961,037
3. Decrease in the year 3. KE RO E N = -
4, Closing balance 4, BRHE 20,887,989 6,137,131 27,025,120
Ill. Total net book value of investment = - BEEEME
properties
1. Closing balance 1. BREAEEER 67,729,182 60,514,730 128,243,912
2. Opening balance 2. BVREEE 56,083,382 50,997,670 107,081,052
As at 31 December 2014, the investment properties with MR2014F12A8318: FEH AR K

the net book value of RMB4,206,406 (As at 31 December

2013: RMBO) were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s

short-term bank loans. (Note VI 17). As at 31 December

2014, the investment properties with the net book value of

RMB20,304,654 (As at 31 December 2013: RMB7,447,628)

were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s long-term

bank loans. (Note VI 27).

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, land use

rights in the investment properties are medium-term lease.

4,206,4067C (2013512 A31H : Tit)
IR E R EE BRI TR ISR
EIRY) - 2RITEGS) 17 - R2014%5
12H318  FELARKE20,304,6547T
(20135 12A31H : A R #7,447,628
TR EEEMER BIERTRBAE
REERY) - 2RMFEGS) 27 -

M2014412 A31 B 20135128318 -
AEERE T EHETR M L A
BRFAEAE -

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR

{ W
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VI.

- )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.

Fixed assets

Item

. Total original carrying amount

1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the year
(1) Purchase
(2) From the constructions in
process
(3) From the investment
properties
3. Decrease in the year
(1) Disposal
(2) To the investment
properties
4. Closing balance

. Total accumulated depreciation

1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the year
(1) depreciation or
amortisation
(2) From the investment
properties
3. Decrease in the year
(1) Disposal
(2) To the investment
properties
4. Closing balance

. Total net book value of fixed

assets
1. Closing balance
2. Opening balance

EH

- BARE
1. B%E
2. REZNE
1 EE
Q) ERIREA

(3) HEMREE
#A
3. AERD
NAFRE
QEBAREMR
wE
4, BRHE
— ZiEH
1. BBE
2. REZEE
(1) AF5HR

Q) REERIE
#A
3 AEFDE
N AFRE
QEALEERE
wE
4, BRHE
= RAEE

1. BREAEE
2. BUEREEE

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

9. BEEEE
2014.12.31
2014%12831A
Machinery  Electronical
and devices Transportation
Buildings equipment and others vehicles Total
EFRME
EEREEN WERE REf EaRE Bt
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER ARER ARE T AR¥ER ARBT
1,034,717,908 848,115,039 130,818,260 51,743,952  2,065,395,159
6,694,471 39,244,906 12,558,963 3,200,933 61,699,273
5,758,656 31,292,055 9,585,606 3,200,933 49,837,250
- 7,952,851 2,973,357 - 10,926,208
935,815 - - - 935,815
41,262,197 12,306,955 5,862,867 2,617,821 62,049,840
- 12,306,955 5,862,867 2,617,821 20,787,643
41,262,197 - - - 41,262,197
1,000,150,182 875,052,990 137,514,356 52,327,064  2,065,044,592
226,080,504 435,432,367 101,572,160 22,982,417 786,067,448
36,919,824 70,123,355 12,743,636 7,396,775 127,183,590
36,640,070 70,123,355 12,743,636 7,396,775 126,903,836
279,754 - - - 279,754
11,552,675 11,521,121 5,253,678 1,533,451 29,860,925
- 11,521,121 5,253,678 1,533,451 18,308,250
11,552,675 - - - 11,552,675
251,447,653 494,034,601 109,062,118 28,845,741 883,390,113
748,702,529 381,018,389 28,452,238 23,481,323  1,181,654,479
808,637,404 412,682,672 29,246,100 28,761,535  1,279,327,711
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VI.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Fixed assets (Continued)

Buildings
ltem HE FEREEY
RMB
ARET
I. Total original carrying amount  — -+ ERER{E
1. Opening balance 1. B 964,272,151
2. Increase in the year 2. REEME 86,144,779
(1) Purchase (1) EE 30,752,218
(2) From the constructions QHEEIREA
in process 55,392,561
3. Decrease in the year 3. KERD 15,699,022
(1) Disposal (N AFRE -
(2) To the investment QB ARANRE
properties HWE 15,699,022
4. Closing balance 4, BREE 1,034,717,908
II. Total accumulated depreciation = Rzt
1. Opening balance 1. BEE 190,776,242
2. Increase in the year 2. RESNIEE 36,276,656
(1) depreciation or (1) AF5HR
amortisation 36,276,656
3. Decrease in the year 3. REFHAE 972,394
(1) Disposal NAFRE -
(2) To the investment QBARENRE
properties E 972,394
4. Closing balance 4, BRHE 226,080,504
IIl. Total net book value of fixed = EREEE
assets
1. Closing balance 1. BRERER 808,637,404
2. Opening balance 2. BREER 773,495,909

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

9-

Machinery
and
equipment

HaER
RMB
AR

762,218,414
110,568,798
53,615,357

57,053,441
24,672,173
24,672,173
848,115,039

388,580,486
69,259,127

69,259,127

22,407,246
22,407,246

435,432,367

412,682,672
373,637,928

EE&EEE)
2013.12.31
20134127318
Electronical
devices  Transportation
and others vehicles Total
EF&

REM BRHE H)
RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARETL ARET
120,892,808 37,194,431 1,884,577,804
22,672,009 18,931,861 238,317,447
20,934,461 18,931,861 124,133,897
1,737,548 - 114,183,550
12,746,557 4,382,340 57,500,092
12,746,557 4,382,340 41,801,070
- - 15,699,022
130,818,260 51,743,952  2,065,395,159
98,729,520 20,869,247 698,955,495
15,218,798 5,658,568 126,413,149
15,218,798 5,658,568 126,413,149
12,376,158 3,545,398 39,301,196
12,376,158 3,545,398 38,328,802
- - 972,394
101,572,160 22,982,417 786,067,448
29,246,100 28,761,535  1,279,327,711
22,163,288 16,325,184  1,185,622,309

On 31 December 2014, the fixed assets with net book
value of RMB57,380,803 (31 December 2013: RMBO) were
pledged to secure certain of the short-term Group’s bank
loans. (Note VI 17). The fixed assets with net book value of
RMB117,596,777 (31 December 2013: RMB140,039,233)
were pledged to secure certain of the long-term Group’s

bank loans. (Note VI 27).

2014128318 F B A R &
57,380,803 L(2013%F12A318 :
ARBZT)NEETEENMEER
FAVE R 77 52 2R & SR @0 4K 4 ) T 2 B R
Hl o RRMF(R) 17 FEARYE
117,596,77770(2013%F12A31H : A
R#140,039,233 )M EE B ERFTA
RERERITREERAERYMZE
R o 2R MFEGR) ~ 27 °

2014 F3R =
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.

m )

Fixed assets (Continued)

Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been

obtained as at 31 December 2014:

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

9. BEEEEE)
R2014512A31H
METEERBR

Reasons why
certificates of

CAMZERES

Expected time

title have not of obtaining
Amount been obtained certificates of title
APTER H L ERE
Item BR REFE BERRE BEHY
RMB
AR¥ETRT
Room 1-201,1-202,2-201,2-202, RRREIEE13-1-201 2,989,279 In progress 2015
3-201,3-202, Unit 13, 13-1-202 + 13-2-201 EEHES 20154
Chenxin Garden, Datong 13-2-202 » 13-3-201 -
13-3-202R
Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been MR2013F12A31H  APWHEEZE

obtained as at 31 December 2013:

[tem

Room 901,902,9083,904, Unit 9,
Fenghui Mansion, Road No.13,
Qiaoxi District, Shijiazhuang

Room 1-201,1-202,2-201,
2-202,3-201,3-202, Unit 13,
Chenxin Garden, Datong

BE

AFRETEAEB®E13%
LR E9E 901 902
903 - Q4EE

KFBEIER13-1201
13-1-202 + 13-2-201 -
13-2-202 + 13-3-201
13-3-202 R

MEEEERMN :

Reasons why
certificates of
title have not

Amount been obtained

RIRHERE

REHE FHEREA
RMB
AR#T

5,712,726 In progress

IR

3,031,562 In progress

[EFEHH R

Expected timing
of obtaining
certificates of title
At ER
FERRE

2014
20144

2015
2015%

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

10. Construction in progress

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) Details of construction in progress are as follows:

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

10 HEIRE

(1) EZBIRHHUMT :

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

Provision for Net Provision for Net

Carrying impairment carrying Carrying  impairment carrying

amount losses amount amount losses amount

Item EH RESE REEXE GETE | RERE  GEEE  BEFE

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR®RT  AR%Rn  AR®n | AR%R AR®R  ARE:R

Shuanggiao Project 2ETR 50,163,443 - 50,163,443 | 49,825,460 - 49,825,460

Pingfang Project SN ARE 36,694,407 - 36,694,407 | 36,694,407 - 36,694,407

System Software Project ZEBEERTIR 3,285,445 - 3,285,445 | 2,562,803 - 2,562,803
Renovation Project of Fresh Food 4 & ftix T2

Distribution Center 1,759,806 - 1,759,806 321,263 - 321,263

Warehouse 5 of Logistics Security #1555 B R 24

System 1,105,800 - 1,105,800 - - -

Convenience Store Project EFELERTR 866,636 - 866,636 | 768524 - 76852

Jiuxianciao Project EEIR 509,279 - 509,279 | 3,180,911 - 3,180,911
Renovation Project of Drysaltery FERATRE

Distribution Center 713,685 - 713,685

Total At 94,384,816 - 94,384,816 | 94,067,053 - 94,067,053

2014 F3
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VI.

- o)

At

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress

31 December 2014

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

10 EEIR(#E)

(2) EEXBIEREZEER

20145128318

Transfer to
fixed assets,
long-term
prepaid Amount
expenses injected as Interest
and a proportion Including: capitalisation
intangible of budget Amount of  capitalised rate for the
assts amount Construction accumulated interest for period
E\BE 20141231 (%) progress capitalised  the year (%)
Budget 201411 Increase EE EF  other “F-BF IBRA () interest  Hf:  AFHE
Item name amount “B-ME intheyear EERRH decreases  T-R (BEMA IBEE ASERL AEHE  EALE  Source of funds
BREH FE® -A-B  REEN GHER EMHY  =t-B (%) (%) EiteE HALLE (%) BERR
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET  ARER  AREn ARER  ARER AR ARER ARET
Shuanggiao Project 108,888,036 49,825,460 337,983 - - 50,163,443 46 46 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank
(Note 1) loans
ERIR(H) BEEERBT-H
S
Pingfang Project 73,665,986 36,694,407 - - - 36,694,407 50 50 425,988 - - Own funds and bank
(Note 2) loans
TRIE() REEERBT-#
ES
Renovation of 34,504,295 - 34,504,205 34,504,295 - - 100 100 141,303 141,303 553  Own funds and bank
Shuanglong Project loans
ERERNIR REEERET-#
ES
Renovation Project of | 9,466,748 713685 2,365,840 3,079,525 - - 33 33 30,085 16,400 553  Own funds and bank
Drysaltery loans
Distribution Center HEELRBI-H
YERRTR ES
Other Construction in | 36,635,607 6,833,501 24,947,272 24,253,807 - 7526966 1510100 15to 100 86,894 79,853 553 Own funds and/or bank
Progress 152100 152100 loans
AfpETR BEELY/REM
-RiER
Total &3 94,067,053 62,155,390 61,837,627 - 94,384,816 3684270 237,55
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress

(Continued)

31 December 2013

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

10 EEIR(E)

(2 EEGEIEEALEEX(E)

2013%12H31H

Transfer
fo fied Amount
assets and injected as a Interest
long-term proportion Including: - capitalisation
prepaid of budget Amount of  capitalised  rate for the
expenses amount Construction accumulated  interest for period
BN 2013.12.31 (%  progress capitalised the year (%)
Budgt 201311 Increase AE - BF Oher Z5-=F IEKA %) iterest  Ed:  AEFE
ttem name anont “F-=F  intheyer EERRH deceass A (EEHA IREE FSEAL  AEFE BAE  Souceoffunds
ERER BE® -A-B  AEEM  AEBR ABES  =1-B (%) () Zite®E EAKEE O EERE
RMB RVB RVB RVB RMB RMB RVB RVB
ARET  AREL  ARER  ARER  ARER ARBRT  AR¥R ARET
Shuanggiao Project 100,636,426 49,825,460 - - - 49,825,460 50 50 3,000,000 - - Own funds and bank loans
(Note 1) BRESREG—RiEH
SRR
Pingfang Project 73,655,986 83,780 36,610,627 - - 36,694,407 50 50 425988 425988 531 Own funds and bank
TRIR loans
BEELREA-REN
Changping Project 68,482,545 54,164,902 14,317,643 68,482,545 - - 100 100 5541916 727,334 531 Own funds and bank
(Note 2) loans
ETIR RRESRAT-FER
Langfang Store Project 44,222,899 - 44222899 44,222,899 - - 100 100 - = - Own funds
BHELRE BRE%
Tuofangying Store 30,631,608 27,546,542 3,085,066 30,631,608 - - 100 100 - - - Own funds
Project BEES
SREEIR
Wangjing Store Project 30,492,983 4,151,111 21,896,772 26,047,883 - - 100 100 338843 102,630 531 Own funds and bank
ERERETR loans
BEELRET—HRER
Logistics Sorting 20521127 16,264,447 4,256,680 20,521,127 - - 100 100 - - - Own funds
Equipment Project BEES
DRARRELR
Sanflanfang Project ~ 19,570981 5,937,562 13,633,419 19,570,981 - - 100 100 148168 120465 531 Own funds and bank
“HEIE loans
BEESRFT—HIER
Tiandalu Store Project 8,127,934 - 8127934 8,127,934 - - 100 100 - - - Own funds
KERELR RRES
LongwangStore Project 5,833,596 - 5833596 5833,5% - - 100 100 - - - Own funds
ERHETE BRES
Jinzhan Store Project 5,404,280 - 5404280 5,404,280 - - 100 100 - - - Ownfunds
$EEIR ARES
Other Constructionin 25,671,090 5,418,121 24,012,430 21,883,365 - 7547186 38t0100 3810100 475292 371,470 531 Own funds and/or bank
Progress BE100  38%100 loans
AfpERTE BEELH/ RET-K
&3t
Total A3 163,391,925 181,401,346 250,726,218 - 94,067,063 9930207 1,747,787
2014 &
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. Construction in progress (Continued)

(2) Changes in significant construction in progress

(Continued)

*

The project budget and the proportions of project

investments of the total budget in respective periods

were restated in accordance with revised budget amount

for subsequent years/periods.

Note 1:

Note 2:

The costs of Shuanggiao Project mainly consisted of
land compensation cost. Due the change in planning
policies on the requisitioned land, the Company has
not obtained the land use right certificate. Pursuant to
the Land Requisition and Compensation Agreement
between the Company and the People’s Government
of Guanzhuang Township, Chaoyang District, Beijing
and its supplemental agreement, the amount paid to
the latter shall be refunded in full to the Company in
case of any change in policies or any other situation
that may affect land requisition of the Company. As
such, the management believes that there is no risk of

impairment for the project.

Up to 31 December 2014, the Company was in
process of obtaining the builder’s licence, the project
is predicted to start in 2015. The management
believes that there is no risk of impairment for the

project.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

10 EEIR(#E)

(&

EZGABRTIRERZEER(E)

32 -

%518 B BRI AR FE o iR
B ENTEESESMANSA
BERMIEREE R TRIE AL
TEEH LB -

CERIENRATIZRLHAHE

B o MAREA T k8RB
REEBEERRE - AARHRK
RS LI E AR - REARE
S4p R G & E R ARBUT
BRI LI R E BR) &
WARBHBNOE - MRBEEBEK
ﬁMﬁEmT%%%Qﬂﬁﬁi
MEIET - ERTHRGRE
iﬂAEﬁFﬁ%EWWW%%
2RIREBHRAR - Ht - BRE
RRZATRTIFERERR -

HZE20145F12831 B FEIEH
BAFERLTETIR - ARAIE
EEBE LA ABES  FEaf
2015 HT - ERERAZEAL
BAFERERR



@
Ee

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EPHHHEREEIEE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Intangible assets 1 BREE
2014.12.31 2014%F12831H
Operation
Software rights of
Land use development distribution
rights costs network Total
Item A TR B SHRRgHEE At
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER IN ARER ARER
I. Total original carrying amount - RERE
1 Opening balance 1. BOHBE 188,364,519 19,061,658 33,354,633 240,780,810
2 Increase in the year 2. KEEMEE 4,817,677 4,525,519 600,000 9,943,196
(1) Purchase (1) B8 - 3,176,459 600,000 3,776,459
(2) From the construction in process Q) EEIEREA - 1,349,060 - 1,349,060
(3) From the investment properties (3) REUFHEEA 4,817,677 - - 4,817,677
3 Closing balance 3. BIRBE 193,182,196 23,587,177 33,954,633 250,724,006
II. Total accumulated amortisation = BB
1 Opening balance 1. EIERE 23,542,607 10,761,087 8,976,800 43,280,494
2 Increase in the year 2. FEMEH 5,648,966 2,106,848 2,841,000 10,596,814
(1) Amortisation in the year (1) &t 5,210,995 2,106,848 2,841,000 10,158,843
(2) From the investment properties (1) REHEHEEA 437,971 - - 437,971
3 Closing balance 3. BRBE 29,191,573 12,867,935 11,817,800 53,877,308
Ill. Total net book value of intangible assets = EREEE
1. Closing balance 1. BREAEE 163,990,623 10,719,242 22,136,833 196,846,698
2. Opening balance 2. BNEEEE 164,821,912 8,300,571 24,377,833 197,500,316
2013.12.31 2013%F12H31H
Operation
Software rights of
Land use development distribution
rights costs network Total
Item R it B DiEEREHE At
RMB RMB RMB RVB
ARET ARET YN ARET
I. Total original carrying amount - RERE
1 Opening balance 1. BsE 196,270,971 16,887,587 18,644,633 231,803,191
2 Increase in the year 2. REEmMeRE 4,211,482 2,174,071 14,710,000 21,096,553
(1) Purchase (1) BE - 2,174,071 14,710,000 16,884,071
(2) From the construction in process @ fEEIREAN 4,211,482 - - 4,211,482
3 Closing balance 3. KER &8 12,117,934 = = 12,117,934
(1) To the investment properties (1) BAREMRE 12,117,934 - - 12,117,934
4 Closing balance 4, BRHE 188,364,519 19,061,658 33,354,633 240,780,810
Il. Total accumulated amortisation = RiEH
1 Opening balance 1. BERE 19,282,116 8,892,387 7,027,883 35,202,386
2 Increase in the year 2. KEENSE 5,249,134 1,868,700 1,948,917 9,066,751
(1) Amortisation in the year (1) 542 5,249,134 1,868,700 1,948,917 9,066,751
3 Closing balance 3. AERED 988,643 - - 988,643
(1) To the investment properties (1) BARERE 988,643 - = 988,643
4 Closing balance 4. BRBE 23,542,607 10,761,087 8,976,800 43,280,494
Ill. Total net book value of intangible assets = REEE
1. Closing balance 1. BREEER 164,821,912 8,300,571 24,377,833 197,500,316
2. Opening balance 2. BREEE 176,988,855 7,995,200 11,616,750 196,600,805
2014 F3
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VI.
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11.

12.

Intangible assets (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, the land use rights with net book
value of RMB6,290,530 (31 December 2013: RMBO0) were
pledged to secure certain of the Group’s short-term bank
loans. (Note (VI) 17). The land use rights with net book value
of RMB13,094,704 (31 December 2013: RMB13,536,098)
were pledged to secure certain of the Group’s long-term

bank loans. (Note (VI) 27).

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the land use

rights in intangible assets belong to medium-term lease.

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

11>

Goodwill 12+
Name of the investee and WREBNVABH
item resulting in goodwill FEHEENER
Acquisition of Shouchao Group Wi EBER

B EEE)

M2014F12A318 - FEHOARE
6,290,5307C(2013F12A31H : ZJr)
B+ b FAEE R FERTTIR HA M SR 0 3K
e 2RMEFOR) 17 FAEHA
R #13,094,70470 (2013512 8311 :
AR #13,536,0987T ) 1) 38 FAHEE
RERITREMERIERY - 2 RKTF
(") ~27-

MR2014F12A831H 2013412 A31

B ASBELEETN L HERED
B HHEE -

]

i

2013.12.31 and
2014.12.31
—B-=f

t=A=+—-8K
—F-mF
+=A=+—-H
RMB

AR®TT

86,673,788

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
balance was the goodwill arising from the acquisition
of Shoulian Supermarket and its subsidiaries (“Shoulian
Group”), and Beijing Jingchao Commercial Company Limited

(Hereinafter referred to as “Jingchao”).

The impairment tests of goodwill acquired through the
purchase of Shouchao Group and Jingchao were conducted
on the group of assets in relation to the retailing business
segment of the Shouchao Group after consolidation of

Jingchao.
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EPHHHEREEIEE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Goodwill (Continued) 12 HEE)

The recoverable amount of the group of assets had been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-
year period approved by senior management. The discount
rate applied to calculate the present value of a future stream
of cash flows was 12% (2013: 12%). The growth rate used
to extrapolate the cash flows of the subsidiary beyond the

five-year period was 3% (2013: 3%).

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 20183,
the calculation of the present value of the cash flow of
Shouchao Group was based on certain key assumptions.
Below are the key assumptions made by the management
in forecasting the present value of a future stream of cash

flows to conduct impairment tests of goodwiill.

Expected gross profit- The estimation of gross profit is
based on the average gross profit realized in previous year,
and then appropriately increased according to the increase

of expected efficiency and market expansion.

Discount rate- using the discount rate before tax which

reflects Shouchao Group’s specific risks

ZEAEMRATILE S IR B E TR Rk
RenemBERE  BEEEEH
BERSFHNMETEEER FHNRER
EBFRAREE - TERFRKRE R
SREMABITIRER12% (20135 :
12%) ' 5FLEBHRSRENILRER
3%(20134F : 3%) °

FFE B % ER2014F12A318 &
2013 12ABIHMEN R KRG R E
BERBTHEREBER - UTHRTER
BRETHEMRMENR  EEEEs
AKRBELTERERELHBERS

HHER — BE AR A A —
FERANTHEREER - RIS
MR MRS R B TR B R
STHTHERE -

FRE-RKANFTREXERREBEE
FE BB HI TR ATIT IR K

2014 &
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- )

13. Long-term prepaid expenses

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

13 REFHER

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

201411 Increase in  Amortisation Other 2014.12.31
Item “E-mF the year  for the year reductions ZZ—MF Reasons for other reductions
HH -A-AH KEEM FEBHEY Hited +=A=+-0 HttEIRE

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR®T AR®T AR%T AR% T AR®T
Leasehold improvements 531,143,003 49,562,359 73,494,905 1,175,410 506,035,047 Disposal
BERAETEESR IS EE
Rent 34,083,233 55,103,201 - 10,441,317 78,745,117 Transferred into current asset
il EZRBEE
Total 565,226,236 104,665,560 73,494,905 11,616,727 584,780,164
At

201311 Increase in Amortisation Other 2013.12.31
[tem “Z2-=F the year for the year reductions ~“Z—=% Reasons for other reductions
ER —-A-A REEN REHEH Hgd +-A=1+—R E#RIRR

RMB RVB RMB RMB RMB

AR ARETL ARETL AR ARETL
Leasehold improvements 548,035,830 138,104,112 68,129,537 86,867,402 531,143,003 Disposal(Note VIl 4(1))
SEERAERAESR ST RE(ME(L) ~ 401)2551)
Rent 50,560,050 - - 16,476,817 34,083,233 Transferred into current asset
E EERHEE
Others 630,112 - - 630,112 - Transferred into current asset
2t BERDEE
Total 599,225,992 138,104,112 68,129,537 103,974,331 565,226,236
G
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities)

(1) Deferred tax assets without offset

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

14 BEFREBHEE(RE)

(1) REBHBWELEFEHEE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-MmEF —E—=F
+=A=+—8 +=—A=+—8
Deductible Taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax assets differences tax assets
GIEEIE ) B CIE:i#§ BT
ltem 1HH BMER SBERE TRMER FTiST&E
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥ T AR T ARBT ARETT
Deductible looses RJIKINE 18 107,832,461 26,958,115 81,914,991 20,478,748
Taxable FE IR TR ER AT
government B
subsidy 21,390,166 5,347,542 - -
Total &5t 129,222,627 32,305,657 81,914,991 20,478,748
2014 F1f
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VI.
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(2) Deferred tax liabilities without offset

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) (Continued)

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

14 BEFRBHEE(RE)(HF)

(2) FREBHHPELTEHERE

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZE-mfF —E—=F
+=—A=+—H +=-A=+—H
Taxable Taxable
temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities
PEARTE JEFE JE AT TR
[tem BEH TRFMHEER FBBiAasE TR FrsfiatE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥T AREETT ARHETT
Fair value EEEHEE
adjustment of EXBB
assets arising ABER
from non- £ B EH
monetary =
asset exchange 16,805,144 4,201,286 17,871,583 4,467,896
Changes in the A E S
fair value of & ERA
available-for-sale £ (B (& &
financial assets &)
recognised in
capital reserve 4,228,000 1,057,000 3,510,000 877,500
Capitalized BERE R
adjustment of B &KX
borrowing costs  F#& 9,675,869 2,418,967 11,225,891 2,806,473
Differences BB T R A
between the REEE
book value and XIN/NG T
the fair value BER
of the acquired
subsidiaries 5,166,406 1,291,602 6,301,441 1,575,360
Total &5t 35,875,419 8,968,855 38,908,915 9,727,229
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EPHHHEREEIEE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14 BEFEHEE(EE) (&)

14. Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) (Continued)

(3) Net deferred tax liabilities with offset (3) UIESHE FEED T BT RHE
E A
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mF ==
+=—A=+—H +=ZR=+—H
Amount Offset amount Amount after
Offset amount after offset of deferred offset of deferred
of deferred of deferred tax assets and  tax assets and
tax assets and tax assets and deferred tax deferred tax
deferred tax deferred tax liabilities in the liabilities in the
liabilities in the liabilities in the beginning of beginning of
end of period end of period period period
EZ K &5 IRAE HEIHBIE
eBERE BIERE PRSI A E TS AERE
MeEH FIEHEER ME ‘R A &
ltem 1HE REEKEH EEHNRSHE e e’
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T AR® T ARHETT ARET
Deferred tax IR 3T AT 1S B
assets BE 4,253,792 28,051,865 - 20,478,748
Deferred tax B AT 1S
liabilities =L 4,253,792 4,715,063 - 9,727,229
(4) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets (4) KREZBELFTSHEEFH
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZE-NF —F—=
+=ZA=+—-8 | +t=A=+—8H
RMB RMB
ltem THH ARM AR
Deductible temporary difference AIIREREER 9,740,929 12,392,755
Deductible losses of unrecognised AR FNEE
deferred tax assets 50,470,533 25,614,542

SEERERRRETEZRAELE
A R Bt AT B IR AN T 4R
HERMEEZRNERTASE
S RFER A LR E MR SHE
o

In the opinion of the management, deferred tax assets
are not recognized since taxable profits were unlikely

to present in the future to offset deductible losses.

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. Deferred tax assets (deferred tax liabilities) (Continued)

(5) Deductible losses for which no deferred tax assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UEG R eV EES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

14 BEFRBHEE(RE)(HF)

(5) ARIERELFTSHEEL AL

are recognised, will expire in the following years EARUT FE2E
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—-mEF —2—=%F
Year Fiy +=B=+—H +=-A=+—8
RMB RMB
AR¥ETT AR¥ETT
2014.12.31 —E-NE+-_A=+—H - 1,365,943
2015.12.31 —E—RE+=-A=+—H 2,361,236 2,361,236
2016.12.31 “E—RF¥t+-A=+—H 2,721,122 2,721,122
2017.12.31 —T—+tF+=-A=+—H 984,414 984,414
2018.12.31 —E-NE+=-A=+—H 18,081,827 18,081,827
2019.12.31 —E-hE+-_A=+—8H 26,321,934 =
Total AFr 50,470,533 25,514,542
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R) GO B |MRITE R (#)

15. Details of provision for impairment losses of assets

15 EEREEEHA

Decrease in the year
rERD

2014.12.31

2014.1.1 Increase —2-mF

ZZ-ME intheyear Reversals  Write-off +=A

ltem bEE] —A-H REEM B B Br=F

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET AR¥RT AR¥RT AR¥T AR¥T

Bad debts provision EREE 9,749,851 - 2,462,750 - 7,287,101

Provision for decline in value of FERELE

inventories 1,454,904 292,801 - 481,878 1,265,828
Provision for impairment losses of At HEL FEE

avallable-for-sale financial assets ~ Ji{EEH 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000

Total G 12,392,755 292,801 2,462,750 481,878 9,740,929

Decrease in the year
AERD

2013.12.31

2013.1.1 Increase —T-ZF

Z2—-=%F intheyear  Reversals Write-off +=A

ltemn EH —A—H AFE#E # o] L% =t+—H

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

AREL AREL ARETL AR¥T AR¥TL

Bad debts provision EHRER 8,703,079 1,171,772 125,000 - 9,749,851

Provision for decline in value of FEREER

inventories 2,044,284 290,456 - 879,836 1,454,904
Provision for impairment losses of ~ A[{tHELREE

available-for-sale financial assets EERE 1,188,000 - - - 1,188,000

Total At 11,935,363 1,462,228 125,000 879,836 12,392,755

2014 &
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VI.
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Other non-current assets/Other non-current assets

within one year

16~ HftFRBEE

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mEF —=F—=
ltem I H +=B=+—H8 +=-A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR ARHE
Long-term receivables due from HEBEENRABBKRGED)

Shoulian Group (Note 1) 133,500,000 47,500,000
Long-term receivables due form ol BB ERN KRB

Hongchao Weiye (FIzE(E) ~ 4(1)27E1)

(Note (VII) 4(1) Note 1) - 45,476,373
Security deposit HeRES 16,903,808 13,712,683
Total A&r 150,403,808 106,689,056
Note 1: As at 31 December 2014, such long-term receivables are 1 M2014F12A318 SRR K

consisted of borrowings lent by Shoulian Supermarket to

Shoulian Group, due on 31 December 2016 as agreed

upon. The long-term receivables bear interest at 6.00% per

annum. A piece of land and related buildings of Shoulian

Group with a total fair value not less than the balance of the

long-term receivables has been pledged in favor of Shoulian

Supermarket.

FAEEBETRAEHEERENES
fE - EHATEERE A2016F12
A318 - Lt R EAE U GRIZ & I R

6.00%5 8  FE -

FZERBFIAR

REBEEMERZE RGBT B
B E K L E R ERER -

17. Short-term borrowings 17 ~ HHAER

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—F —E—=F
ltem 5B +=ZA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—¢H
RMB RMB
AR¥TT ARETT

Accounts receivable secured FEUBR SRR BN (RE1)
loan (Note 1) 190,177,877 99,598,081
Guaranteed loan (Note 2) REHEZ(GE2) 1,532,312,274 1,611,379,861
Unsecured loan (Note 3) ERER(ES) 250,000,000 150,000,000
Mortgage loan (Note 4) EIRER(E4) 200,000,000 =
Total &5t 2,172,490,151 1,860,977,942
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
short-term borrowings bore annual interest rates ranging
from 5.60% to 7.20% and 5.04% to 7.40%, respectively. All

the loans were repaid in time.

Note 1: As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading obtained short-term bank loans totaling
RMB458,975,301 (31 December 2013 RMB206,767,979),
see Note(XI) 2.

Note 2: As at 31 December 2014, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB390,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB747,618,207 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; and RMB394,694,067 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading.

As at 31 December 2013, among such short-term
bank loans, RMB250,000,000 was borrowed by the
Company upon a surety provided by Chaopi Trading;
RMB980,431,697 was borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by the
Company; and RMB380,948,164 was borrowed by a
subsidiary of Chaopi Trading upon a surety provided by
Chaopi Trading.

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

17 ~ BEER(E)
2014124318 &2013F12A31H -
R B TR R K 5 Bl R5.60% E
7.20%%5.04%Z7.40% * B ¥ FIFE
BEH MR EEOER

1 20145128318 - ZERHEK
RAREE S AR%458,975,301
7(2013F12A318: A R ¥
206,767,97970 ) ) & T & W AR 513
BIRBLHER - 2RMFEGR) 20

2 R2014F12A318 - 2 SRHBEX
A AR #390,000,0007T A48 A A
EER - AP B IRMRBIER
AR¥T747,618 207 T AR AR ZF
RAGHAEMER - BARARRMS
RFWELR + ARB394,694,0677C 5
PREE 2 FRRMNMER - BtE
BIRAFRBER -

M2013F12A318 » 2 ERHER
f 5 AR 250,000,000 A A A A
BB - AP ERMMRERER
AR 980,431,697 AR AR ZF
RAAPEEMER - AR RS
REBHER + ARMS80,948,1647T A
BHEE 2 FTRARMNMGR - mEAitE
BIRERFBER -

2014 &
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

17. Short-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 3: As at 31 December 2014, the credit loans included

RMB100,000,000, RMB50,000,000 and RMB100,000,000,
respectively granted by Beijing Rural Commercial Bank,
Mizuho Bank (China), Ltd., Industrial and Commercial Bank

of China on an unsecured basis.

As at 31 December 2013, the credit loans included
RMB100,000,000 and RMB50,000,000 respectively granted
by Beijing Rural Commercial Bank and Mizuho Bank (China),

Ltd. on an unsecured basis.

Note 4: As at 31 December 2014, the buildings with net book value

of RMB57,380,8083, land use rights with net book value of
RMB6,290,530 and investment properties with net book
value of RMB4,206,406 were pledged to secure certain of
the Group’s mortgage guarantee.

18. Notes payable

ltem

Bank acceptances

EH

RITALERK

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

17 - EHRERR(E)

3

54

2014F12A31H * Z AfE R F
B RENBEERT HEBRT
(FBEDERAF RPETIERITM
KRB D R ERNERERARE
100,000,0007T * A [ #50,000,000
7t & AR #100,000,0007T © B K5
ZEE AR EEZRREIER o

M20135F12A318 - ERBRFHE
BN ERTREERIT(P
B) AR A B RAD A5 RIE RS
HRfE 5 A R #:100,000,0007T 2 AR
#£50,000,0007T © B Rz F 8 %
AR SR B E SRR AR o

20146128318 » A BKHAE
A A BR T F B A A R #57,380,803
THREEREEY REFEAAR
#£6,290,5307T /) L 3t i F3 #E K BR T
FERBARE4,206,4067T KR & 1
EHLEE R

18 BN RE

+=

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—Z—mEF —=—=
A=t+—-RA| t-A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR AR
76,088,972 56,677,291

As at 31 December 2014, security deposit for the issuance

of bank acceptances above amounted to RMB15,217,794 (at
31 December 2013: RMB11,335,458).

All of the bank acceptances of the Group will be due within

one year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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M2014%12H318 + A A £l R
TRREZENRIBSTERAARE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Accounts payable

20.

The aging of accounts payable is:

19 » AR

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

FEA BR R E N R B HIREE /0 BR i 10

T~

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—F-mF ==
ltem BB +=—BA=+—-H| +ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR®T ARETT
Within 1 year FAR 1,141,456,710 1,126,796,231
1 to 2 years 1224 4,640,894 10,050,700
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 4,744,656 2,111,104
Total &5t 1,150,842,260 1,138,958,035

The accounts payable over 1 year were final payments for

suppliers.

Advances from customers

ltem HH

Procurements received in advance TR E R

RERBBIFHNENEREI2REMNH

EEHERER °

20 ~ FRWFRIR

2014.12.31
—E-mEF
t=A=+-H
RMB
AR® T

479,918,595

2013.12.31
—E—=F
+=—A=+—H
RMB

ARHETT

503,311,013

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
advances from customers are consisted of procurements
received in advance, among which there were no significant

advances from customers aged more than one year.

201412 A318 &2013%12H31H -
REEBUWFEY ATEKRER - I
AR R IR SR K RETEURGRIA ©

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

2014 &
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VI.

.

Employee benefits payable

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) Listing of employee benefits payable

(RN) GO BH/RRBETRBE)

21 - PR T3

(1) ERBIHMT

201411 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31

—E-MmF the year the year —E-QNE

Item HE -A—H REL XFRHY +=A=+-H

RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET ARET AR¥T ARETR

1. Short-term benefits 1 EHEMN 3,128,350 560,765,426 561,958,273 1,935,503

2. Welfare after service-defined 2 BEERARR -

contribution plans RERFAEI() - 68,095254 68,095,254 -

Total At 3,128,350 628,860,680 630,053,527 1,935,503

2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31

—F-=f the year the year —F-=f

Item EH —-A-H ESENN KERY +tZA=t-H

RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET ARET ARET ARET

1. Short-term benefits 1 REEHMN 8,298,385 539,363,345 544,533,380 3,128,350
2. Welfare after service-defined 2 BRARH-RTRETE

contribution plans (71) - 65,333,962 65,333,962 -

Total At 8,298,385 604,697,307 609,867,342 3,128,350

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(2) Listing of short term benefits

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

21 - BB ITHM(E)

(2) HEEFHZT

201411 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31
—E-mE the year the year —E-mE
Item R -A-H AEL XERHS T=ZRA=1-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
IN: IN: ARETR ARER

. Wages or salaries, bonuses, — 1% %% 28
allowances and subsidies il - 454,646,690 454,646,690 =
II.  Staff welfare ZBIRNE - 26,480,524 26,480,524 -
Ill. Social security contributions = HeRkRE - 39,041,301 39,041,301 -
Including: Medical insurance H BERRE - 35,000,504 35,000,504 -
Work-related injury insurance TERRE - 1,242,820 1,242,820 -
Maternity Insurance EERBE - 2,797,977 2,797,977 -
IV. Housing funds mFERES - 20447848 29,447,848 -

V. Labour union expenditures and I IERENRT

employees’ education expenses HERE 3,128,350 11,149,063 12,341,910 1,935,503
Total A&t 3,128,350 560,765,426 561,958,273 1,935,503
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—E-=F the year the year —E-=%
ltem JBH —A—-8 REEM XERY +ZA=1+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETL AR ARETL ARETL

. Wages or salaries, bonuses, —I& %% 24
allowances and subsidies pilkeE - 439,962,704 439,962,704 -
Il. Staff welfare —BIGNE - 26,185,405 26,185,405 -
lll. Social security contributions = HeERBE - 37,458,561 37,458 561 -
Including: Medical insurance i BRERRE - 33,681,309 33,681,309 -
Work-related injury insurance TERRE - 1,152,949 1,152,949 -
Maternity Insurance LERKE = 2,624,303 2,624,303 =
IV. Housing funds mEEAES - 27,660,029 27,660,029 =

V. Labour union expenditures and i ISLEMBT
employees’ education expenses HERE 8,298,385 8,096,646 13,266,681 3,128,350
Total At 8,298,385 539,363,345 544,533,380 3,128,350
2014 F3

R REEEEERGBRAR

¢ =
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VI.

B

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(3) Listing of defined contribution plans

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

21 ENBIEHME)
(3) RELF:E

201411 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31

“E-ImE the year the year —E-mE

Item HE -A—H REEM AERY +=A=t-H

RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR¥T ARET AR¥T ARETR

Basic retirement Insurance BEREZRRE - 64,699,619 64,699,619 -

Unemployment insurance KERRE = 3,395,635 3,395,635 =

Total B - 68,095,254 68,095,254 -

2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31

“T-=F the year the year “E-=F

ltem ER —A—H KEEM KERDS +ZR=T-H

RVB RMB RMB RVMB

ARET ARETL ARET ARET

Basic retirement Insurance EARERRE - 62,291,047 62,291,047 =

Unemployment insurance RERRE - 3,042,915 3,042,915 =

Total &t - 65,333,962 65,333,962 -
Note 1: The Group participates contributions on pensions H1: AEERBEL2MBBUSHEE

and medical insurance operated by the government
as required, according to these plans, the amounts
paid were 20% and 1% of the basic salaries of the
employees, respectively. Except that, the group
doesn’t take any further responsibility. The expenditure

is recognized to profits and losses when it happens.

The Group paid RMB64,699,619 (In 20183:
RMB62,291,047) and RMB3,395,635 (In 2013:
RMB3,042,915) for contributions on pensions and
medical insurance, respectively. On 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group didn’t deny
to pay for contributions on pensions and medical

insurance in the statement period.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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IMEERR - RERRE
2 REEZEHE A58 S
AIRETEATEN20% 1%
BARZEAABEER - &K
EEABEERN  AEH
THABEE-TXNEL -
FEH)S HIR B AR ST AR BR
SHEREENKAE

RNEBAFED R A EZR
B RERBIEAHTER
AR64,699,619T R AR
#3,395,6357T (20134 : A
R#62,291,047T R AR
3,042,9157T) ~ 72014124
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

22. Taxes payable

23.

22 EXHE

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—ET—mF —E—=F

ltem 155 +=—HA=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB RMB

AR¥T AREETT

Business tax RS 6,379,977 6,127,151

Income tax FriS#i 11,580,613 5,298,909
Urban construction and YT A AR

maintenance tax 3,247,053 3,346,533

Education surcharges A BHN 1,562,946 1,463,115

Value added tax (EF 42,657,707 6,658,761

Others Hih 2,966,113 2,972,365

Total S 68,394,409 25,866,834

Other payables

(1) Details of other payables are as follows:

23 » HtEAR

(1) BEHEMES RAMEMNHL

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E—-NF —E—=F

ltem 5§ +=B=+—8H +=—BA=+—H
RMB RMB

AR®T AR¥TT

Construction fees payable et TR 102,739,471 150,470,723
Deposit e 37,795,621 36,360,103
Rent received in advance FEWHE 10,835,552 8,591,527
Others Hih 32,935,670 20,741,103
Total &t 184,306,314 216,163,456

(2) Description of significant other payables aged more

than one year:

As at 31 December 2014 and at 31 December 2013,

other payables aged over 1 year were mainly deposits

and construction fees payable.

(2) FREEBIFHAFAMENKIE

FHBIFHEE -

2014912 A31H K2013F12A4
318 ' BRERBIE—FHEMEN
REEEHEMNTRRNERK

R REEEEERGBRAR
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Bonds Payable

(1) Bonds payable

(R)EHBH/RBETRE)

24

&S
(1) EfES

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—Z—-NF =
Item A +t=A=+—-B | +ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR T AREET
Short-term bonds %2 AR E - 199,979,167
Long-term bonds REEMNES 744,820,080 743,553,870
Total St 744,820,080 943,533,037
(2) Changes in the bonds payable (2) EFEFKIEMEE
Bond
discount/ Accrued
Term of Issue 2014.1.1 Issue in premium  Paid during 2014.12.31 interest
Bond Name Par value  Issue date the bond amount “E-mF theyear  amortization the year Z5-ME  forthe year
548 A #f7EH B3R BASE -B-8  EEf B ERY FHEE t-RZT-B REEHEAS
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETR ARER ARET ARER ARET ARER ARETR ARER
Short-term bonds
EHERES
Short-term honds 2013.7.12 6 months
EHRERES 200000000 201378128 6R 200,000,000 199,979,167 - 20833 200,000,000 - -
Subtotal
et 200,000,000 200,000,000 199,979,167 - 20,833 200,000,000 - -
Long-term bonds
REENER
Corporate bonds 2013.8.13 5 years
AR 750,000,000 2013%8513R 5% 750,000,000 743553870 - 1,266,210 - 744820080 15,869,167
Total
At 950,000,000 950,000,000 943,533,037 - 1,287,043 200,000,000 744,820,080 15,869,167
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Bonds Payable (Continued)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (Continued)

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

24 - BNEZHE)

(2) EfREFENEE(E)

Bond
discount/ Accrued
Term of Issue 2013.1.1 Issue in premium Paid during 2013.12.31 interest
Bond name Par value  Issue date the bond amount ZF-CF the year amortization the year 3% for the year
ERLR HE E7RE ErlR  EALE -A-A A HEEH FHEE T-A=T-R EEEHENE
RMB RVB RVB RMB RMB RMB RVB RMB
N N AREL  ARER ARBT N ARER AR®T
RHEES
Short-term bonds 2012.7.10 1 year
REREES 200,000,000 2012F7A108 1£ 200,000,000 199,650,000 - 350,000 200,000,000 - 4,575,278
Short-term bonds 2013.7.12 6 months
BHRERS 200,000,000  2013F7A 128 B8R 200,000,000 - 200,000,000 (20,833) - 199,979,167 491,11
Subtotal
et 400,000,000 400,000,000 199,650,000 200,000,000 329,167 200,000,000 199,979,167 9,486,389
Long-term bonds
REEMES
Corporate bonds 5 years
AAlf 750,000,000  20138.13 5% 750,000,000 - 750,000,000 (6,446,130) - 743553870 15,869,167
Total
At 1,150,000,000 1,150,000,000 199,650,000 950,000,000 (6,116,963 200,000,000 ~ 943533037 25,355,556

On 12 July 2013, the Company issued short-term

bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB200,000,000

with a term of maturity of six months through Bank

of Nanjing. The short-term bonds were issued at par

value of RMB100, bearing a coupon rate of 5.20%.

The issuance expenses of RMB250,000 were included

in the cost of bonds payable. As at 25 January 2014,

such debentures and interest payable were repaid in

full.

R2013%7 128 » AR RIBIBR
RERITE T AR ¥200,000,0007C
#7518 A B BB AN B AR
EiE% BITERABBENEEBEA
R¥1007T - R A % 55.20% °
BMEFEE ARK250,000TE 5t
ANERMEHKA 20145125
B ZEEMNEFREMTIEHEE

£
EE o
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Bonds Payable (Continued)

(2) Changes in the bonds payable (Continued)

Pursuant to the “Approval on Issuance of Corporate
Bonds of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited” (Zheng
Jian Xu Ke [2013] No. 791) issued by the CSRC, on
15 August 2013, the Company issued the corporate
bonds in an aggregate amount of RMB750 million,
bearing coupon rate at 5.48% per annum, with a
term of maturity of 5 years, embedded with the
option to increase the coupon rate by the issuer and
putable option by the investor at the end of the third
year. The corporate bonds were jointly secured by
Beijing Chaoyang District National Capital Operating
Management Center, a state-owned enterprise. The
issuance expenses of RMB 6,923,208 were included in

the cost of bonds payable.

25. Long-term borrowings due within one year

(1) Long-term borrowings due within one year

ltem EH

Secured loans

EARER

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

24~ ENEZEE)

(2) FEEZFENEE(E)

KhEFES(AR AL RRE
BEREEEROBRARARET
BEHEBE) (FBEFTA[2013]791
5% ) #Z O © KR2013F8A15H © &
RAITERIERBEIREARRAEITAR
W7SBIMERARFRENE=
FRETA L AZTERREBER
REECBERENDRES - Z
NAEHFBIERTHABREEGER
wEERPL(—RERAAHIR
¥)RUESEACRBER 2@
MER5.48% - MEFEEARK
6,923,2087C 2L 5t AJERT BB ©

25 - 1R REHHRBER

(1) 1FEAFHRIRRE L
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mE T =%

t=A=t—-B| TZA=1+—H©
RMB RMB

AR®T ARET
73,000,000 10,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EPHHHEREEIEE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25. Long-term borrowings due within one year (Continued) 25 1 FREHANREBERE)
(2) Details of long-term borrowings due within one (2) 1FERERIBREER A
year
2014.12.31 | 2013.12.31
Inception date of Interest | —B-M% | Z2—=%
Lender borrowing Maturity date Currency rate (%) +ZA +=A
EHEN fEFtemA BREIER B M%E% | =t-B | =t-H
RMB RMB
ARBR | ARER
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch ~ 2013.1.24 2014.6.20 RMB
PERRERBITIRAT 2013F1A240 201456720 ARE 5.84 - | 2,500,000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch ~ 2013.1.24 2014.12.20 RMB
LERRERRTLRAT 2013F1A248 2014127208 ARE 5.84 - | 2,500,000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch ~ 2013.4.12 2014.6.20 RMB
FERRERBITLRAT 2013548128 2014565200 ARE 5.84 - | 2,500,000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch ~ 2013.4.12 2014.12.20 RMB
PEERERRTIRAT 2013547128 20144128208 ARE 5.84 - | 2500000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch ~ 2013.1.24 2015.6.20 RMB
FERRERBITLRAT 2013510248 2014565200 ARE 584 | 2,500,000 =
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Bejjing Branch ~ 2013.4.12 2015.6.20 RMB
LERRERRTERAT 2013F4A128  201456A20R ARE 584 | 2,500,000 -
Bank of Communications, Sanyuan Branch 2012.12.14 2015.9.20 RMB
LBFIRHBRAG 2012F128148 2015897200 AEH 5.84 | 30,000,000 -
Bank of Communications, Sanyuan Branch 2012.12.26 2015.9.20 RMB
RBROIRHERLF 20125128268 201559720 ARE 5.84 | 38,000,000 -
Totel At 73,000,000 | 10,000,000
As at 31 December 2014 and at 31 December 2013, 2014912 A31H &2013F 12 A
the Group had no overdue borrowings outstanding. 318 - AEETFEERHERAK

EEMER -

26. Other current liabilities 26 HttRBAE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—F-mF —F=F
Item HE +=BA=+—-H| +t=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Accrued expenses TEIRE A 41,481,971 45,335,045
Deferred income due within one year 14 N EIRRIE Yz 7,808,713 4,502,260
Total SEr 49,290,684 49,837,305

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |
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VI.

i

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Other current liabilities (continued

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

26 HttRBEEE)

(1) Accrued expenses (1) FEREH

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-mEF —T—=
ltem 58 +=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Accrued interest expenses TERFEEA 20,425,777 24,866,447
Accrued rent expenses TEREM 12,649,696 11,613,873
Accrued audit expenses TEIRER B 2,026,792 2,140,000
Others Hih 6,379,706 6,714,725
Total S 41,481,971 45,335,045

(2) Deferred income within one year: (2) 1FRERRELE Kz
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
Note —ZE—MF ==
Iltem HE B +=ZA=+—-B | +t=-A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR AR
Asset-related government —FREIHARE Note 1
grants due within one year BEHBBITEE FF1 4,313,010 1,017,267
Considerations allocated AR EEIE D K Note 2
to the award credits HEHE 2 3,495,703 3,484,993
Total Sial 7,808,713 4,502,260
Note 1: Government grants related to assets due within one H1: —FRAINEMNEEERBED
year were consisted of deferred income due within B 45 Bh /3 78 &5 B 7020054F
one year generated from special funds received in &~ 20134 & R2014%F & W
2005, 2013 and 2014 by the Company and would be INERESELNRLE RS
recognised as revenue in next year. See Note (VI) 29. P-FRIEHNES - KR
TFERERANE - 2RME
(7R) 29
Note 2: The Group offers membership credit cards to 2 AKEYHEEEETEEES
customers, and awards credit reaching certain RESBEK - HROEBEDE
points can be converted into cash while shopping. H—EDENTPES ARE
As deferred income, considerations allocated to the EBYRITEARESER - O/
award credits will be recognised as revenue when the REEESHHEHEERE
award credits are converted or cleared in next year. e - WHERBED W%
FFHER BN o
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

27. Long-term borrowings 27 - EEfEE

(1) Category of long-term borrowings

(1) RAEHTE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZET-lmEF —ZT—=
Item HE +=A=+—-HB | +T=ZA=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Secured loans EHER 95,000,000 234,000,000

As at 31 December 2014, long-term borrowings
(including long-term borrowings within one year) were
secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
carrying amount of RMB117,596,777, investment
properties with carrying amount of RMB20,304,654 and
land use right with carrying amount of RMB13,094,704.

As at 31 December 2013, long-term borrowings
(including long-term borrowings within one year) were
secured by certain of the Group’s buildings with
carrying amount of RMB140,039,233 and investment
properties with carrying amount of RMB7,447,628 and
land use right with carrying amount of RMB13,536,098.

M2014%12A8318 » REER(S
1FERE BN RAER) B AEEER
HFERAARM117,596,777 T H)
EERREY FHFERARYE
20,304,654 TR E B b E KR
HFEAARE13,094,704 K £
bk AR VE R ELR -

20135124318 « REPEH(E
1ERE BN RBAER) BAEEER
38 7 AR %140,039,233 7T
BEREEY  LEFEAARE
7,447,628 T V1R & 1 B M E K R
EFEAARE13,536,008TLH +
Hh i FRREVE L IHELR o

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |
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VI.

- )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

(2) Details of long-term borrowings

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

27 - REIBER(E)

(2) RAEEHH

2014.12.31 | 2013.12.31
Inception date of Interest | —B-WE | =%
Lender borrowing Maturity date Currency rate (%) tZA -4
- {B3emA fAFIER B MZ% | =t-8 =1A
RMB RMB
N ARET
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.1.24 2015.6.20 RMB
EERRERBTIRAM 013F1A24B 2015567208 AR 5.84 - | 2500000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.1.24 2016.1.23 RMB
EERRBEREGIRAN 013F17248  2016%1723H AR 584 | 57,500,000 | 57,500,000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing Branch 2013.4.12 2015.6.20 RMB
PERRERRTIRAT 2013548128 2015%6A208 ARE 5.84 - | 2,500,000
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beiing Branch 2013412 2016.1.31 RMB
EERRBREMIRAM 013F4A128 201617318 AR 584 | 37,500,000 | 37,500,000
Bank of Communications, Sanyuan Branch 2012.12.14 20156.9.20 RMB
LBRTRAERLA 20125127148 2015597208 ARE 5.84 - | 74,000,000
Bank of Communications, Sanyuan Branch 2012.12.26 2015.9.20 RMB
SBRTRABRAA 20125125268 2015595208 ARE 5.84 - | 60,000,000
Total
fit 95,000,000 | 234,000,000
28. Provisions 28 - FEFtAE
2014.1.1 Increase Decrease 2014.12.31
—E-NEF in the year in the year —E-=F
Item ER —A—H AN rERLY +=A=t+—H
RMB RMB
AR AR
Pending litigation — AJRFFFA 910,612 - - 910,612
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

28. Provisions (Continued)

29.

On 4 May 2012, Beijing Baili Tongda Co., Ltd. lodged
proceedings to People’s Court of Beijing Chaoyang District
on the collapse of property leased from the Company.
Pursuant to the first-instance judgment awarded by the
court on 31 December 2013, the Company shall indemnify
Beijing Baili Tongda Co., Ltd. against its loss of RMB
910,612, which has been included in contingent liabilities.
The Company has filed an appeal to Third Intermediate
People’s Court of Beijing. As at 16 May 2014, a second-

instance judgment has been made by Beijing Third

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

28 - HFTEEE)

20125848 F AR EFBERE
BERARGEADAEEMER LIS
FHEMIERTHABEAREREF - &£
R mEEG R A RZERR20135F124
STBEHM—FHR AR A ERE
ItREFBEREARARBEARE
910,6127T * st ATEFH B & - K2014%5F
5A16E  ERE=ZARRARERIELD
ZEHR BZRHEEES - HER
S0 RRUHTEEBRBREES - AR

Intermediate People’s Court. The Company believed the AEEETRARF AU AATNIE
litigation to have any material adverse impact on normal BREEFERTNZE
operations of the Company.
Other non-current liabilities 20 HiE KRB EE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-lmEF —F—=
ltem ER +=ZA=+—-H | +TZHA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Long-term rent payable EHENES 15,663,227 16,571,770
Deferred revenue-asset-related EIE N s — B A E R B BT B
government grants 23,516,607 4,039,449
Total &5 39,179,834 20,611,219

R REEEEERGBRAR
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VI.

B

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Other non-current liabilities (Continued)

Included in deferred revenue are:

Deferred revenue was government grants totaling
RMB4,000,000 received in 2005 from Beijing
Municipal Development and Reform Commission and
Beijing Chaoyang District Finance Bureau to support
the construction of fresh distribution center, fresh
procurement center and distribution center logistics
system. The deferred revenue was recognised upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial entry
value of assets, deferred revenue would be amortized
in the estimated useful life (15 years) of the related
assets, and recorded in the profit and loss in current

period and subsequent related periods.

In 2013, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,753,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
revenue was recognised upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were
divided by ratio of the initial entry value of assets,
deferred revenue would be amortized in the estimated
useful life (5 years) of the related assets, and recorded
in the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

290 - HfthEREBRBE(E)
BN BE

R A A20054F Z UL B 4k T B
EBREZ BRIt RS ER
B R E A R #4,000,0007T A
REBOEEREMRXPL - 4
SEERREE O RERE AP O R
BRABEENZEES - AEEE
U B 32 B TR R R i T SRR FE M 25
EREBEAEEENTETEAEH
15FEITHE  BHEHSB|AAER
HA R LATR B A AR A o

N A A R2013F E W Bl b =
TRBZEEGRRETARE
3,753,000 T AR X #F (b IRIRED
BEBAMEEANEEES - A%
13 7 5 ) o B R R B R SRR T L
e HRIR S TEERE A E R TEEHE
BosFRTHE  BHSBHA
H R A B RAHARI 18RS -
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Other non-current liabilities (continued)

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB14,186,700 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for agriculture-supermarket
jointing program. The deferred revenue was recognised
upon receipt of the financial allocations. The deferred
revenue was recognised upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were divided
by ratio of the initial entry value of assets, deferred
revenue would be amortized in the estimated useful life
(11 and 5 years) of the related assets, and recorded
in the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB8,820,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce and Beijing Finance Bureau
and as a special funding for service development
program. The deferred revenue was recognised upon
receipt of the financial allocations, meanwhile the
deferred assets were divided by ratio of the initial entry
value of assets, deferred revenue would be amortized
in the estimated useful life (11 and 5 years) of the
related assets, and recorded in the profit and loss in

current period and subsequent related periods.

(R) B B/RAEBTRE)

20~ HiEREBAB(E)

(i)

RABR2014F E KRB mm i
BZEEE bR B ER R
AR #14,186,7007T A 1 2 #8 ¥
BERMEREENTEES - A%
1 7 L B o I o e T SRR FE
= RREIEEREENTEHER
En1FERFHITHE  BH2
BRI AR R UAR B RAHARIIEE -

RABR2014F E W B ZH A

BEE® - tRm B BEER L

A R #8,820,0007T A FAMR i IR 75

ERRIEAMNZIEES - AEET

WS B 5% B B 488 o IR T SR R R W s

RREEEEEENTEIERSS
11EREFRITHY  BHESET
ANE B LAE B A AR B 55 o
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VI.

B

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. Other non-current liabilities (continued)

V.

Vi.

In 2014, the Company received government grants
totaling RMB3,000,000 from Beijing Municipal
Commission of Commerce as a special funding for
renovation of energy-saving lamps. The deferred
revenue was recognised upon receipt of the financial
allocations, meanwhile the deferred assets were
divided by ratio of the initial entry value of assets,
deferred revenue would be amortized in the estimated
useful life (5 years) of the related assets, and recorded
in the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.

In 2014, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading
received government grants totaling RMB5,000,000
from Beijing Municipal Commission of Commerce as a
special funding for group building sorting equipment.
The deferred revenue was recognised upon receipt
of the financial allocations, meanwhile the deferred
assets were divided by the initial entry value of assets,
deferred revenue would be amortized in the estimated
useful life (10 years) of the related assets, and recorded
in the profit and loss in current period and subsequent

related periods.
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V)

(vi)

AN A A R2014F E U B 4 =
TRBZEGRAETARE
3,000,0007T AR 2 #5 (b IRARER
REEABEEANEREES - A%
1 7 5 ) 5 B B SR PR T SR RE LR

RBEEAEEENEREA

S RITHE - MEHS A A
HAR LAfR B A AR A o

Hﬂ} uJ I+ E‘F

ARBZFREIAIEER2014
FRBREIERTEKEZESRERAL
5T A R %5,000,0007T A R X FF 1
EBRYRAIRRBNBERES -
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W E - RRBIAEMEENTR
ERSPI0FETHE  #iHe
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EOMBHRREBTE(E)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

30. Share capital 30 ~ AR

Changes for the year

Capitalisation

Opening New issue of surplus Closing
balance of shares  Bonus issue reserve Others Subtotal balance
£9Y BITHR 2R AELER At Nt ERY
RMB RVB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARETR ARET ARET
2014 0145
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. BB AR
Chaoyang Auxiliary EUEY 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Total of state-owned legal person Bl E AR R/ 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
shares
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EtbREHR
Domestic non state-owned legal BREREEAER 7,294,599 - - - - - 7,294,599
person shares
Domestic individual shareholder BRARARE 55,355,593 - - - - - 55,355,593
3. Foreign listed shares denominated 3. %9h EMAIARMINER | 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
in RMB
Total shares R 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000
2013 0135
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. EAEARR
Chaoyang Auxiliary DRI 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
Total of state-owned legal person ~~ E& R ABRRET 167,409,808 - - - - - 167,409,808
shares
2. Other domestic-owned shares 2. EftAZ#HR
Domestic non state-owned legal BREREEAER 7,294,599 - - - - - 7,294,599
person shares
Domestic individual shareholder BRARARE 55,355,593 - - - - - 55,355,593
3. Foreign listed shares denominated 3. M EMEAREINER 182,160,000 - - - - - 182,160,000
in RMB
Total shares R 412,220,000 - - - - - 412,220,000

2014 &
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VI.
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31.

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Capital reserve 31 BEAXQTE
2014.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31
—E-mE the year the year —E-mE
ltem HR -A-H RELM XFRHY +=A=+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER ARER ING ARETR
Capital premium BRARE 609,598,028 - - 609,598,028
Differences arising from acquisition RSN e
of minority interests of subsidiaries RER 5 498,918 214,130 1,960,893 (1,247,845)
Other capital reserve HiERDE 695,493 - - 695,493
Total At 610,792,439 214,130 1,960,893 609,045,676
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
“T-=F the year the year “T-=F
ltem J5H —-A—-A REEN TERY tZA=1—H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET AEBT ARET ARET
Capital premium BAEE 609,598,028 - - 609,598,028
Differences arising from acquisition BINEDHRE
of minority interests of subsidiaries REZS 1,197,195 - 698,277 498,918
Other capital reserve HtEALE 695,493 - - 695,493
Total &it 611,490,716 - 698,277 610,792,439
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32. Other comprehensive income

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

32 Hivima s

Change in the year

RERER
Attributable to
shareholders
of the parent
Less: company Minority
Amount income after tax equity
before tax  taxexpense HEEE after tax
01411 REFEH W REAT HEERE 20141231
Item Ef 201451518 AREE  FSRER fiEZ  ROBRR 2014512831
Other comprehensive income wil e I EEABEER
reclassified to gains (losses) MEMEAYE
Including: Change in fair value of ~ Ef: FHEEESE
avallable-for-sale BENGER
financial assets 298 2,632,500 718,000 179,500 538,500 - 3,171,000
Total Azt 2,632,500 718,000 179,500 538,500 - 3,171,000
Change in the year
Attributable to
shareholders
of the parent
Less: company Minority
Amount income after tax equity
beforetax  taxexpense HEHE after tax
01311 REFRER B REAT RikEE 20131231
ltem &R 201381518 MEEE  FERER fEE  ROBRR 2013512A318
Other comprenensive income will be ~ b{416 & 5 HEiBzeh
reclassified to gains (losses) HirirAlgs
Including: Change in fair value of ~ Ef @ WEHESR
avalable-for-sale BEAER
financial assets EHER 5,986,500 (4,472,000) (1,118,000 (3,354,000) - 2,632,500
Total A 596500 (44720000  (1,118000)  (3,354,000) - 2632500

2014 &
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VI.

m )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Surplus reserve

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

33 EBNTE

Opening Increase in  Decrease in Closing
balance the year the pyear balance
F0¥ KEEM KEHD XY
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARBT ARET ARET ARBT
2014 20145 E
Statutory surplus reserve EERBLE 129,500,819 6,070,206 - 135,571,025
2013 20135
Statutory surplus reserve YN 121,313,202 8,187,617 - 129,500,819

According to the Company Law and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. The transfer
may be ceased if the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s registered

capital

Statutory surplus reserve can be used for covering losses,

expanding operation or capital transfer of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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34. Undistributed profits

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(RN) &t BmRBE TR (E)

34+ RO EFHE

Proportion of

[tem Amount appropriation
EA S RESSELEA
RMB
AR
2014: 20145 E :
Undistributed profits at the FXR DB F)E
beginning of year 499,634,209
Add: Net profits attributable to n: RFEEBREAT
shareholders of parent Fr A & &9 )8
company for the year 41,329,845
Less: Appropriation to statutory W REVEE BB AE
surplus reserve 6,070,206 10%
Dividend payable to ordinary JEAS 38 IR AR F
shareholders 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the FRARDEFH
end of the year 493,671,848
2013: 20135 E :
Undistributed profits at the FEYIARDEFE
beginning of year 493,033,750
Add: Net profits attributable to m: ARERBREQA
shareholders of parent FrB &R F A E
company for the year 57,055,711
Less: Appropriation to statutory W REVEE BB ATE
surplus reserve 8,187,617 10%
Sales of minority interests HELERERER 1,045,635
Dividend payable to ordinary FEA i AR AR F)
shareholders 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the FRRDEF)E
end of the year 499,634,209

(1) Cash dividend approved in annual general meeting

On 28 May 2014, the aggregating dividends in cash
of RMB41,222,000 in respect of year ended 31
December 2013 (RMBO0.10 per share) were declared to

the shareholders of the Company as resolved by the

annual general meeting.

On 28 May 2013, the aggregating dividends in cash
of RMB41,222,000 in respect of year ended 31

December 2012 (RMBO0.10 per share) were declared

to shareholders of the Company as resolved by the

annual general meeting.

(1) BRRAEBEMEHNELRF

M2014%5828H + RIEARQRIA
BREGRZE AR EHE20135F
ERF AGRARE10T - &5
B&F B AR ¥ 41,222,0007T ©

M2013F5 828R - REARQAIA
REGRZE - AR A D E20124
ERMAE/RARKECI0T + BFF
A& FI A A R#41,222,0007T °

2014 &
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VI.

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34. Undistributed profits (Continued)

(1)

)

(1)

Cash dividend approved in annual general meeting

(Continued)

On 27 March 2015, the directors of the Company
proposed the payment of a dividend of RMBO0.10
per share to shareholders. The proposal of dividend
distribution mentioned above is subject to the approval
by the shareholders at Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This recommendation has not been
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
as a liability. The estimated amount of dividends in

aggregate is RMB 41,222,000.

Surplus reserve of subsidies

On 31 December 2014, the undistributed profits
of the Group included surplus reserve of subsidies
totaling RMB16,751,363(0On 31 December 2013:
RMB15,086,748).

35. Operating income and operating costs

Operating income and operating costs

ltem HE

Principal operating income FEEBRA
Other operating income H A BN
Operating costs EEAIEN

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

34~ RO EAB(E)

(1)

(&)

BRASEHENREBRF(E)
M20159F3A27H * A AR M E
FERZHE2014F ERF -
BRARBOAT « ZBRFHBRFHL
FEBRERG A - A I K
ERBEFAREHABRE -
TR EAHRFIAEAARYE
41,222,0007T °

FREAERRYBERNTE

2014%F12R318 - A& B X »
ERAE#ERREFRARB RN
B RN TE s AR 16,751,363

JT(2013%F12A31H : A R ¥
15,086,7487T) °
35 ERIRA ~ ERXRAE
(1) EBEEUARAEXR

2014 2013

—E-EE —T-=FF

RMB RMB

ARET ARET

10,007,135,311

9,629,190,672
774,562,805
8,309,825,077

883,623,577
8,682,268,153

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R)EPHHHEREEIEE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35. Operating income and operating costs (Continued) 35 BEIWA  BERKRE)
(2) Principal operating income (classified by segments) (2) EEXEKE(HTF)
2014 2013
Item ER “E-REE “F-=FE
Principle Principle Principle Principle
operating operating operating operating
income costs income costs
TEERMA  TEEERA | FEEBRL ZREERA
RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARM R AR%R ARETL ARETL

Retailing € 4,673,600,858  3,898,064,199 | 4,516,544,357  3,754,479,230
Wholesale iR 5,313,258,681  4,762,030,550 | 5,095,888,750  4,535,998,482
Other s 20,275,772 15,483,269 16,757,565 13,362,756
Total A3t 10,007,135,311  8,675,578,018 | 9,629,190,672  8,303,840,468

The principal operating income is mainly consisted of FEEBBAETERHEERRD - &
selling food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods, B BABER - BB EER
beverage and wine, etc. FHIRA
(3) Operating income the from the Group’s top five 3) RAFIEEEFHEXUAER
customers
Proportion to the
total operating
income of
the Group (%)
Operating HATZEE
Income BEWAN
Item ER =E'ON EEB1(%)
RMB
AR
2014 —E-NFEE
Beijing Wu-mart LR 969,699,218 9
Beijing Carrefour IERREERE 227,081,805 2
Beijing Yonghui Supermarket b FOKIERBT AR A A
Co., Ltd. 432,723,945 4
Walmart (China) Investment ABAB(FEDIREBR QA
Co., Ltd. 185,475,743 2
Lotte Supermarket Co., Ltd. LRBTERAR] 154,926,875 1
Total Bat 1,969,907,586 18

2014 &
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

35. Operating income and operating costs (Continued)

36.

(3) Operating income the from the Group’s top five

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

35 BEIWA -~ BERAK(E)

8 RANBEEFHEFEUARER

customers (Continued) (%)
Proportion to the
total operating
income of
the Group (%)
Operating R ARIZER
Income =L ON:D]
Item EH EEIRA LE151(%)
RMB
AREET
2013 —E-=FF
Beijing Wu-mart b 1,012,186,045 10
Beijing Carrefour I RREEE 347,833,368 4
Beijing Yonghui Supermarket bt FOKEBT AR AR
Co., Ltd. 194,305,378 2
Walmart (China) Investment KAB(PEREBR AR
Co., Ltd. 154,660,784 1
Lotte Supermarket Co., Ltd. LRBTERAA 153,331,211 1
Total S 1,862,316,786 18
Business taxes and surcharges 36 - ERBLE KM
2014 2013
IHE —E-NFEE —E-=FF
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
Business tax N 44,535,175 39,249,157
Consumption tax THER 3,006,664 3,634,849
Urban construction and YT MR
maintenance tax 23,875,097 24,098,432
Other Hih 119,647 39,252
A&t 71,536,583 67,021,690
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37.

38.

39.

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

Operating expenses 37 BXEEBH
2014 2013
ltem =S —E-NEE S
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Wages and salaries Bk T 357 B0 411,907,512 407,284,424
Depreciation and amortization expenses 172 Kk E R 196,598,581 189,522,843
Lease expenses HEEH 230,777,827 242 A72 453
Others Hi 749,488,834 645,232,311
Total &5t 1,588,772,754 1,484,512,031
Administrative expenses 38 EEEH
2014 2013
ltem = “E-NFEE —E-=FE
RMB RMB
AR ARKETT
Wages and salaries Bk T3 B 208,371,470 189,623,053
Depreciation and amortization expenses 17 & #5 8 A 8,708,088 8,405,720
Others Hith 51,624,325 68,202,644
Total =) 268,703,883 266,231,417
Financial expenses 39 BB
2014 2013
ltem EH —E-NFEE —E—=FE
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARETT
Interest expenses FBEZH 184,994,201 164,731,429
Including: Interest expenses to Heh : BRSFREED
bank in 5 years SRITIERF BT H 143,448,406 139,249,485
Bond interest expenses BEEMEZH 41,545,795 25,481,944
Less: Capitalised interest expenses A FMBERMEERE 237,556 1,747,787
Interest income FLEWA (22,156,793) (12,927,861)
Bank charges RITFEE 8,112,971 8,116,358
Exchange differences E H 8% 277,518 (103,484)
Total SEr 170,990,341 158,068,655

R REEEEERGBRAR
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED (R) MR RBEB TR E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
40. Impairment losses on assets 40 - EERERXKX
2014 2013
ltem HE —E-NOFEE —E—=FF
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Provision for bad debts/(reversal) EARIBRETHR () (2,462,750) 1,046,772
Written-down of inventories TFEKERK 292,801 290,456
Total att (2,169,949) 1,337,228
41. Investment income 41 - BEWS
2014 2013
ltem 1HE —E-MNEE —E-=FF
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARET
Investment income from IBETEE IR B W
financial products 3,035,749 2,078,247
Interest income from borrowed funds & & & F 2 U A 6,461,136 -
Total &5 9,496,885 2,078,247
42. Non-operating income 42 ~ EEIMRA
(1) Details of non-operating income are as follow: (1) EXEIPRABHMT
2014 2013
ltem pEl= TE-NFE —E-=FE
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Total gains on disposal of FERBEEREFNSEET
non-current assets 8,313 99,083
Including: Gains on disposal Ed  EEEEREFNSE
of fixed assets 8,313 99,083
Compensation for placement of BIZEMER
Employees (Note (XI) 3 Note 3) (FFEE(+—) » 3233 - 18,931,368
Governments grants R A 14,748,891 6,199,165
Compensation for breach of contract  ¥F@#EW A - 4,321,892
Other A 2,410,471 4,518,530
Total SEr 17,167,675 34,070,038
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

42. Non-operating income (Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

42 ~ BEEIMRA(E)

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

(2) Details of government grants (2) BB
2014 2013
[tem I8 H —E-NEE B
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Compensation for government AT B ARk
reserve expenses 2,088,000 1,044,000
Subsidies for the enterprise SLBL R T I EL
staff training 553,384 =
Subsidies to ease the IR AR B N FRE
employment pressure 2,119,024 1,912,825
Subsidies to support the development H/) 2 EE R L FE 7 AL
of small and medium enterprises - 1,000,000
Amortization of government BE E R BEM R T /B AE
grants related to assets 8 8,233,799 829,617
Other subsidies EH At AL 1,754,684 1,412,723
Total A&t 14,748,891 6,199,165
43. Non-operating expenses 43~ EEIHITH
2014 2013
ltem THH —E-NEE —E-=FE
RMB RMB
AR ARET
Total losses on disposal MBEEREBKRER
of non-current assets 2,082,512 3,297,069
Including: Losses on disposal Heh: BEBEEREIRK
of fixed assets 2,082,512 3,297,069
Relocation losses T =N - 3,268,969
Accident compensations EHEEES - 1,279,450
Fine Hika 23,294 241,724
Others Hih 2,712,538 1,333,404
Total Bt 4,818,344 9,420,616

R REEEEERGBRAR
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VI.

- )

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44.

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

Income tax expenses 44 - FriEH
2014 2013
ltem 185 H —E-NEE —ET-=FE
RMB RMB
AR¥TT ARHETT
Current tax expense calculated BROERABRR ST E R E BT
according to tax laws and B
relevant requirements 56,405,631 47,320,462
Deferred income tax expense BELEATSTHE A (12,764,783) (4,151,527)
Total =i 43,640,848 43,168,935

Reconciliation of income tax expenses

profit is as follows:

to the accounting

ST EREES BRI RNT

2014 2013
ltem HE —E-NFE —E—=FF
RMB RMB
AR®TT AREETT
Accounting profit e RE 132,503,339 143,485,048
Income tax expenses calculated BN EAENMEHER
at tax rate of 25% 33,125,835 35,871,262
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  FA[HEFIE B AT £ 4,302,071 3,088,252
Tax effect of non-taxable expenses EHEARTBAR NI 2 (1,167,542) (1,297,195)
Effect of using previously FIFR LART & R HER AT
unrecognised deductible losses EIERNT 2 - (56,341)
Effect of unrecognised deductible RAEFR AN ES B AN ] K 40
losses and deductible TR ERNNT R
temporary differences 6,580,484 4,520,457
Tax effect of related party borrowings Bl 5 &2 HFER BT EIHA
recognized as interest income R & 800,000 1,042,500
Total A&t 43,640,848 43,168,935

With respect to corporate income tax rate, see Note (IV)

Taxation

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45. Net Profit

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

45 - FRIHE
AN E B F R IR GEA) AT &

The Group’s net profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes
BisE
Cost of inventories sold I E MR (V)35
Depreciation of investment properties 3% & 1 thE & (V)8
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEENE (V9
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH (V)11
Amortisation of leasehold KREBRAETEESRR (V)13
improvements S
Total of depreciation and amortisation 478 fR# #5451
Net losses on disposal of non-current JERENE EE B FB K V42, 43
assets
Net rental income from investment — R&EEMAERSZFRA
properties
Staff costs BISMER (V)21
Including: Directors and Hip: &%

supervisors’ emoluments EEWe
Other staff costs: H B THA -
Wages, salaries and I8 -Hek
social security costs HERERA
Retirement benefit ERBEZRBE
contributions
Audit expenses i EA

18 :

2014
—BR-REE
RMB
AR®ER

8,675,578,018
5,112,253
126,903,836
10,158,843

73,494,905
215,669,837

2,074,199

(19,913,353)
628,860,680

5,122,701

559,318,963

64,419,016
3,129,008

2013
—E-=FF
RMB

ARETT
8,303,840,468
4,693,059
126,413,149
9,066,751

68,129,637
208,302,496

3,197,986

(14,424,791)
604,697,307

5,699,146

537,045,427

62,052,734
3,275,323

R REEEEERGBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

VI.

L

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Calculation process of basic earnings per share and

diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share,

net profit for the current year attributable to ordinary

shareholders is as follows:

B

FHEEAEGR KR
ROEHFNES

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

46 - EXASRUBNHESRBSEHNE

2014 2013
ltem AR “E-mEE —T-=HE
RMB RMB
AR AR
Net profit for the current year BRER L BIAREANESFEMNE
attributable to ordinary shareholders 41,329,845 57,055,711
Including: Net profit from Hah : BERNFESENFFE
continuing operations 41,329,845 57,055,711
For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, the AEERGRKER - H B ABITEIN
denominator is the weighted average number of outstanding Bl e a8 FHESENT
ordinary shares and its calculation process is as follows:
2014 2013
ltem 1HE —E-NOFE —E-=FFE
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Number of ordinary shares outstanding  3£77ESMY X @AY EL 412,220,000 412,220,000
Earnings per share =2 €
2014 2013
ltem pEl= TE-NFE —E-=FE
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Based on net profit and net profit from 1z 55BN A TR AFFE &
continuing operations attributable to  SFEBR A R EAFHE L LT
shareholders of the Company AMHEE :
Basic earnings per share HEAFRR S 0.10 0.14
Diluted earnings per share mEER N/A TEA N/A TiE A

Up to the reporting date, the Company had no dilutive

potential ordinary shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47. Notes to items in the cash flow statement

(1)

)

Other cash received relating to operating activities

47 - REeRERBEEHTRE

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

(1) KEWEMBELLTBHEBAY RS

2014 2013

ltem IR —E-NFEE —E=FF
RMB RMB

AR®TT ARETT

Rental income G N 179,733,121 154,916,161
Scrap sales income EEm Ut A 3,080,221 3,286,129
Franchise income e jE U A 2,183,397 1,905,188
Compensation income AETBA = 25,280,408
Government grant income T 4 B U A 6,515,092 9,122,548
Recover the deposit leqmpiicay 607,983 5,105,451
Others Hib 20,962,354 22,882,275
Total & 213,082,168 222,498,160

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

(2) XNHWAEMELLIBHERYRE

2014 2013

ltem BERE| —E-NFEE —E=FE
RMB RMB

AR® T AREETT

Selling expenses (excluding rent) EXBR(TEHES) 749,592,647 645,706,802
Administrative expenses EREA 32,422,184 46,335,572
Manufacturing costs SLEBR 3,808,283 4,596,486
Rent TS 231,202,156 213,716,575
Deposit and margin SRS MRES 1,755,607 3,799,108
Bank charges RITFEE 6,846,761 7,060,113
Others Hib 7,215,948 3,646,071
Total A& 1,032,843,586 924,860,727

R REEEEERGBRAR
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VI. NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow

statement

Supplementary information

HwRER

1. BFA BB AR L RS

1. Reconciliation of operating

activities cash flows from RERE -
net profit:
Net profit EF)E

e EHRMEEREEREFE

Add: Provision for impairment
losses of assets

48~ RERMEBR

Depreciation of fixed
assets

Depreciation of
investment property

Amortization of
intangible assets

Amortization of long-term
prepaid expenses

Net losses of disposal of
fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-
term assets

Financial expenses

B BENE
BEMEMETE
B EE#H
REGHEREBE
BREBEEE
B EEMEAM
REBEMFEX
MBER(SELER)

(including foreign
exchange gains and
losses)
Investment income
Amortization of asset-
related government

BB Wz
L E A R M KU ol B B S

grants

Decrease in deferred BEEMEHEENRLDS
tax liabilities

Increase in deferred EIEFTS IR & E RN
tax assets

Decrease (increase) in FERRAL ORIEm)
inventories

Increase in receivables 48 FEURIE B /912 0

from operating activities

Increase in payables L VERETTE B /912 0
from operating activities
Net cash flow from KEEBELER
operating activities RemeF58
2. Net change in cash and 2. ReRRESEWFZEEN
cash equivalents:
Closing balance of cash REMFRBRE
Less: Opening balance of cash & : IR & #IF 18858
Net increase (decrease) in ReRIReEEYF
cash and cash equivalents EICHA)EE

2014
—E-NEE

RMB
AR¥T

88,862,491
(2,169,949)
126,903,836
5,112,253
10,158,843

73,494,905

2,074,199

162,877,370
(9,496,885)
(8,233,799)

(937,874)
(11,826,909)
(2,928,775)
(115,996,946)
83,352,462
401,245,222
521,621,307
589,553,313

(67,932,006)

(R)EH U B/RIBE TR

(1) BREREBXRBEREH

100,316,113
1,337,228
126,413,149
4,693,059
9,066,751

68,129,537

3,197,986

151,008,542
(2,078,247)
(829,617)
(215,571)
(3,935,956)
54,404,744
(387,922,827)
183,855,611
307,440,502
589,553,313
461,110,253

128,443,060
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

NOTES TO THE ITEMS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48. Supplementary information to the cash flow

50.

statement (Continued)

(2) Composition of cash and cash equivalents

(R) & B |MKRITE TR (#)

48 RERBR(E)

(2 ZBEREALZEY

Iltem IH B 2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-lmEF —F—=
+=ZA=+—RHA | +T=ZHA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARETT
Cash e
Including: Cash on hand He : BFIRS 28,868,213 28,438,613
Bank deposits AIEER AR Y M RVERITIFRR 492,753,094 561,114,700
Cash and cash equivalent e MRS SEYSRE 521,621,307 589,553,313
49. Net current assets 49 - FRBEE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—F ==
ltem T8 B +=—A=+—H +=-—A=+—8
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARETT
Current assets mEEE 4,766,324,066 4,667,991,529
Less: Current liabilities VAT JIN=Er= 4,261,812,114 4,064,904,393
Net current assets (liabilities) FREEE 504,511,952 603,087,136
Total assets less current liabilities 50 - AEERABER
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mEF —EF—=%F
ltem 1HE +=A=+—-R8| +=-A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARETT
Total assets BERT 7,241,503,098 7,150,058,349
Less: Current liabilities BomEaE 4,261,812,114 4,064,904,393
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAE 2,979,690,984 3,085,153,956

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS

1. Parent of the Company

Name of Type of Place of Legal
the parent the entity incorporation  representative

BoAEE  AREE i EARE

Chaoyang State-owned  Beiing Weang Weilin
Audiry  RRFAR ERE IR
EREY

(B) OB |MRIRA TR

1 FEENFARER

Proportion ~ Proportion

of the of the

Company’s ~ Company’s

ownership voting
interest power  Ultimate

held bythe  held by the ~ controlling
parent (%)  parent (%)  party of the Organization

Registered BARY BAFH  Company code
Nature of business capital ALEMEBR ACENZRE ALE AfKE
SHiE e SB(%) o)  BEEHE g2
RMB
ARET
Sales of food 289,821,000 40,61 4061 Chaoyang 10163706-x
and oil products Auxiliary
HERDEAEAD EE

2. Subsidiaries of the Company

2 FEENFARER

Please see Note (V) Business combination and consolidated REENTFRBIERFRME(R)E
financial statements for the details of the subsidiaries of the GO RE B ERE -
Company.

3. Other related parties of the Company

Name of other related party

Htpm s &8

Beijing Tengyuan Xingye Motor Service
Limited Company (“Tengyuan Xingye”)
b REREE REREER AR
(AT AT m iz ])
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Related party transaction

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction

()&t B mRITE TR (#)

4+

BB R 5 BN

(1) BHEEER

Pricing basis
of related party 2014.12.31 2013.12.31
Lessor Lessee Type of transaction transaction Notes Amount Amount
iV ) RHRE BRRATRMAE M | 2014FESE | 2013FEEE
N AR
Chaoyang Auxiliary The Company Rental expense Price negotiated Note 1 1,326,345 1,326,345
EilUECY VNG| Bexi REHHANES Rl
Chaoyang Auxiliary Xinyang Tongli Relocation compensation  Price negotiated Note 2 - 4,321,892
AGEIR R5E A biser REHHANER B)
Tengyuan Xingye The Company Rental expense and Price negotiated Note 3 1,601,967 3,203,934
BREZ YN property management  RE S HEAER 3
expense
BeRMEERTM
2014 F3

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR
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Vil

- )

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4,

Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

On 30 April 2004, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading leased certain properties in
Beijing from Chaoyang Auxiliary, with annual rent
incremental once every five years for a term from
1 January 2004 to 31 December 2023. From 2006
to 2009, the Group entered into lease contracts
or supplemental agreements on certain properties
with Chaoyang Auxiliary. As at 30 June 2011, the
annual rents under the contracts with Chaoyang
Auxiliary were RMB 7,344,499 and RMB 920,853
respectively for the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading. On 30 June 2011, except for
the properties used by 10 stores of the Company
(including 5 properties still owned by Chaoyang
Auxiliary and 5 properties for which lease
agreements were terminated), the State-owned
Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of Beijing Chaoyang District (“SASAC Chaoyang”)
approved the transferring of the land and
properties leased by the Company (the “transferred
assets”) from Chaoyang Auxiliary to Hongchao
Weiye Company limited (“Hongchao Weiye”). The
Company continued to lease the properties owned
by Chaoyang Auxiliary for its 5 stores at annual
rent of RMB 162,758, incremental once every five
years. On 18 June 2012, the Company entered
into a property lease supplemental agreement
with Chaoyang Auxiliary, pursuant to which the
annual rent for the aforesaid five properties were
adjusted to RMB 1,111,933 with effect from 1 July
2012, incremental by 3% every five years; and 1
additional property was leased at annual rent of
RMB 214,412 with a term from 1 July 2012 to
31 December 2023, incremental by 3% every five
years. The rental expenses payable to Chaoyang
Auxiliary for 2014 and 2013 both were recognised
at RMB 1,326,345.
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REHesIABARYE
7,344,4997T & A R 920,853
JT o F201146H30H 4t %
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

(Continued)

On 1 July 2011, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into lease contracts
respectively with Hongchao Weiye to renew the
leasing of properties under the original contractual
terms, at annual rent of RMB7,344,499 and
RMB920,853 respectively with effect from 1 July
2011.

On 1 July 2012, the Company and its subsidiary
Chaopi Trading entered into supplemental
agreements to the aforesaid lease contracts
respectively with Hongchao Weiye, pursuant to
which the annual rents for such properties were
adjusted to RMB26,997,108 and RMB2,808,259
respectively with effect from the same day,

incremental by 3% every five years.

()&t B mRITE TR (#)

4. BBXZERE)

(1)

FEHHEaER (&)

Al

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

(&)

M2011E7A1H » A QA &
ARARBZFRAAUEED B
M \AEEEI THESR
REARIGTATERIER
E- B011F7TA1ARFHAS
D RIAANRET 344,499 R A
R#920,8537T °

R201267A18 - XA & &
/N s SUNGI L E i A= =R N
HEXR LMAESRSBIF
R TR A BE L
HEVEFHSHAIARAA
R #26,997,1087C & A R ¥
2,808,2597T * FHEFIEIL3% °
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Vil

i

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4,

Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

(Continued)

On 18 December 2013, the Company entered
into supplemental agreements to the aforesaid
lease contracts with Hongchao Weiye. Considering
the Company paid relevant construction
fees on the rebuild project of certain of the
properties in previous years and the renovation
project conducted by the Company on behalf
of Hongchao Weiye, Hongchao Weiye will
compensate the Company for the cost of
construction costs and related taxes paid (“agent
construction fees”) on property renovation project
and re-build project of RMB86,742,211, including
RMB41,265,838 recorded in other receivables
and RMB45,476,373 recorded in long-term
receivables. Meanwhile, agent construction fees
receivables of RMB22,197,108 recorded in other
receivables will immediately offset the rent payable
to Hongchao Weiye at the end of 2013 as agreed
by both parties. From the 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2023, the fees on the rebuild project of
certain of the properties in previous years and the
renovation project conducted by the Company on
behalf of Hongchao Weiye will offset the rent to

the Hongchao Weiye in end of every year.
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 1:

(Continued)

On 25 November 2014, the Company entered
into supplemental agreements again to terminate
the two supplemental agreements assigned on 18
December 2013 and 1 July 2012, respectively.
From 1 July 2014 to 18 December 2023, the
annual rents of such properties were adjusted
back to the amount of agreements in 1 July 2011,
which was RMB 7,344,499 and RMB 920,853,
respectively, incremental by 3% every five years.
Meanwhile, the rest of agent construction fee is
RMB 58,164,490, Hongchao Weiye won’t take the
responsibility of paying the funds back when the
original agreement and supplemental agreements
are executed efficiently. The rest of agent
construction fee is undertaken and amortised by

the Company rather than Hongchao Weiye.

()&t B mRITE TR (#)

4. BBXZERE)

(1)

FEHHEaER (&)

Gal

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

(&)

2014511 A250 » AEEH
LFHEER EREEERBR
FRIM R WS - 2 L2012
F7H18 K2013%F12H18H
DRIETHMHFEEHE - B
2014%7A18 ZFE2023412A
31H LS EFHE LR
18 201157 A1 & 5T W
EERASE  BARAARE
7,344,4997T & A R #£920,853
T BRFIEI% o R - &
¥ R TR ;201456
F30H #4788 A R #58,164,490
T hBBEEREERZER
R FIHEF DB BRITH G
HTTIEAREERES - Lt
REIEZRHRBEERENER
RIS EEAR AT TR -
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4,

Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 2:

On 30 April 2004, the Company’s subsidiary
Xinyang Tongli leased a property located at No. 1
Tuofangying, Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing from Chaoyang Auxiliary with annual rent
of RMB 16,257 for a term from 1 January 2004
to 31 December 2023. On 14 December 2012,
a compensation agreement was entered into
between Chaoyang Auxiliary and Xinyang Tongli,
pursuant to which a compensation in the amount
of RMB6,349,040 shall be paid to Xinyang Tongli
as determined after taking into account its loss
in equipment and fixtures and loss of business
interruption etc. arising from the termination of
lease agreement. The lease contract between
Xinyang Tongli and Chaoyang Auxiliary was
terminated with effect from 31 December 2012.
According to the relocation progress as at 31
December 2013, Xinyang Tongli recognised the
compensation of RMB 4,321,892 as an income

which was received on 18 January 2013.
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(1) Related party’s lease transaction (Continued)

Note 3:

On 2 July 2007, the Company leased a property
located at Court 52, Jiuxiangiao Road, Chaoyang
District, Beijing from Tengyuan Xingye with annual
rent of RMB2,100,000, incremental once every five
years for a term from 1 April 2007 to 30 September
2022. On 1 July 2011, the Company terminated
the property lease agreement and undertook to
pay the occupancy fee till 30 June 2012. On 18
June 2012, the Company re-entered into a lease
contract on the property with Tengyuan Xingye,
with annual rent and property management fee
of RMB2,232,249 and RMB971,685 respectively,
incremental once every four years for a term from
1 July 2012 to 31 March 2022. During 2014 and
2013, the aggregate amount for rent, occupancy
fee and property management fee was recognised
at RMB1,601,967 and RMB3,203,934 respectively.

()&t B mRITE TR (#)

4. BBXZERE)

(1)

FEHHEaER (&)

3

R REEEEERGBRAR

R2007F7 A28 + KARME
RRERANMLRIETTEBG
EEILBERS2HERNME - &
RAFEEERARK2,100,000
T BREFRE-R - HER
B200744 51852022494
308 - M201147A18 * AR
AL TRWENRE R
WHEWEEREXNE2012
F6A30H - R2012546A18
B ADAEBREER
MESTHEERELR  ARF
e RMEERBDRIABARE
2,232,249t R AR 971,685
L FEEE R o FEW
B20124F7A1BE202243A
318 « R201457A1H - AR
RIEIE T ZMENHHEERE -
20145 E R2013FE + AR
RIERNES - WEERERY
XEBBHI ARK1,601,967
TR AR¥E3,203,9347T ©
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4,

Vil RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND (b))t EmRBEE TR (E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Related party transaction (Continued) 4 BEIXZERE)
(2) Emolument of key management (2) BREEANSIHH
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mE =—F—=
Item B H +=ZA=+—H +=-—A=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR%T ARETT
Emolument of key management B EIE A B RN
Benefits of short-term employees Rl ==l 7,274,882 8,161,150
Retirement benefits RIKEEF 451,903 424,186
Total a&t 7,726,785 8,585,336
Key management members are personnel having FREEABEAERNT G HET
authority and responsibility for planning, directing FHEl - BEMIZEHCEEFSHOA
and controlling the activities of the Group, including 8 BEEE BEFEREMITEE
directors, supervisors and other personnel to exercise P RBEER AR - IN4GREIRE
similar functions. Emolument paid to key management BABHNBHEEERTIE « #¢
includes basic salary, bonuses and allowances. K& IAMEL ©
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Vil RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

As resolved by the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Article of
Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong, emoluments of
directors and supervisors for the year are as follows:

(@)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

()&t B mRITE TR (#)

4+

@)

BB Z BN (E)

FHREZASHM (&)

REBBMMES LMRRARE
BREHED - FREEREEME

LUK

@) BUIFBHITEFHH

FEAXNBIYIFNTES

directors during the year were as follows: memT
2014 2013
20145 & 20135 %
RMB RMB
AR® T AR
Onward Choi b ] 155 155
Chen Liping PR 42 42
Wang Liping EFIF 42 42
Total &t 239 239

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during 2014

and 2013.

M20144F Z M2013F EEH
thENBE F B IENTE

Eo
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Vil

- 2

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4,

Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

(B) &t B/mRBETR(E)

4 -

BB 2 RN (&)
(2) FRREENSHH (&)

(b) BITEFE FHPTEF &

supervisors and the chief executive EYNT Fisid
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
in kind  Perfornance benefit
Ec related contributions
Fees  #% 28 bonuses EY/N Total
2014 20145 E ne RENER Pyt BRIER @e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%¥TR AR¥Tr AR®Tn
Executive directors: HTESE:
Li Jianwen* FEX - 758 379 40 1,177
Li Wei FE(1) - 752 63 40 855
Li Chunyan FER - 470 240 40 750
Liu Yuejin 2R - 542 - 40 582
Subtotal /et - 2,522 682 160 3,364
Non-executive director:  FFHITEE ¢
Wei Tingzhan(Note 2) &8 (72) s = - - -
Gu Hanlin(Note 3) FUEM(3) s = - - -
Li Shunxiang ey s = - - -
Wang Weilin(Note 4) TEH(GE4) = - - - -
Subtotal et - - - - -
Supervisors: Ex:
Liu Wenyu 233 - 468 169 40 677
Wang Hong FiT - 300 121 40 461
Yao Jie iz - 219 53 40 312
Yang Baoqun HEH - - - - -
Chen Zhong FRig 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong Ema 35 - - = 35
Subtotal Nt 70 987 343 120 1,520
Total At 70 3,509 1,025 280 4,884
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND (b))t KRR EETR(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued) 4~ BEEIZBERE)
(2) Emolument of key management (Continued) (2) FIRREEANSHH (&)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b) HTEF HFPNTEF E
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) B RABAEIE (48 )
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement
inkind  Performance benefit
e related  contributions
Fees  #% 28 bonuses RIK Total
2013 20135 we  REWEF ByRe BRI Rl

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTT ARRTR ARETR

Executive directors: HTEE -

Li Jianwen* TEY - 761 732 36 1,529
Li Chunyan Y= - 467 345 36 848
Liu Yuejin 2 - 293 = 36 329
Subtotal Nt - 1,521 1,077 108 2,706
Non-executive director:  JFHITESE :

Wei Tingzhan(Note 2)  &E8(312) S 449 733 21 1,203
Gu Hanlin BEEM - - - L -
Li Shunxiang ey - - - -

Subtotal Ny - 449 733 21 1,203
Supervisors: B

Liu Wenyu Elyea - 398 262 36 696
Wang Hong T - 294 58 36 388
Yao Jie 21873 - 198 63 36 297
Yang Baoqun BEH - - _ _ _
Chen Zhong KRz 35 - - - 35
Cheng Xianghong 2 ma 35 - - - 35
Subtotal et 70 890 383 108 1,451
The chief executive: I

Li Wei(Note 1) FE(1) - 192 = 16 208
Total At 70 3,052 2,193 253 5,568

2014 &
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Vil

- 3

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4,

Related party transaction (Continued)

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors,

supervisors and the chief executive (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

ANNUAL REPORT 2014

On 28 June 2013, as resolved by the board
of directors, Mr. Li Wei was designated as

the non-executive director of the Group.

On 28 May 2014, as resolved by the board
of directors, Mr. Li Wei was designed as
the executive director and he was also the
chief director of the Group. His emoluments
disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive.

On 28 June 2013, as resolved by the board
of directors, Mr. Wei Tingzhan resigned as
the executive director and was designated
as non-executive director of the Group. His
emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the executive

director.

On 28 May 2014, as resolved by the
board of directors, Mr. Wei Tingzhan was
resignated as the chief executive of the

Group.

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND (b))t KRR EETR(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued) 4~ BEEIZBERE)
(2) Emolument of key management (Continued) (2) FIRREEANSHH (&)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors, (b) BITEE - FHTEF - E
supervisors and the chief executive (Continued) B RABAEIE (48 )

Note 3: On 28 May 2014, as resolved by the board 3 P2014F5H28H iR
of directors, Mr. Gu Hanlin was resignated BARRIEEGRE -
as the non-executive director of the Group. BEEMEERELRER

HIFEMITESE ©

Note 4:  On 28 May 2014, as resolved by the board 4 M2014F5H28H ' R
of directors, Mr. Wang Weilin was designated BARREEERE -
as the non-executive director of the Group. FEMEEZEREER

SENFRITES -

* From 1 January 2013 to 28 June 2013, Mr. * FRXFEEN2013F1
Li Jianwen was also the chief executive of A18%E201346728H
the Group and his emoluments disclosed IEEAR - RIREEARSE
above include those for services rendered by B IE - Pl ER
him as the chief executive. 20135 Me B S HIF

- Performance related bonuses of these * ZEEERAREEAR
executives and supervisors are related to the MENRERIBEAR
profit of the Group of last year. E—FFBERETER o
In 2014 and 2018, there was no arrangement R2014FE K2013%F
E o EEREEHENR

under which a director or a supervisor

T KRB R B
& - i S B A B
ETESE  BF - UE

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration,

and no remuneration was paid by the Group

to a director or a supervisor as bonuses or A EEE N EEE
unemployment compensations for their entry BRERE R ETEN
to the Group. M -
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

4. Related party transaction (Continued)

(B) &t B/mRBETR(E)

4 -

(2) Emolument of key management (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year

included one (2013: one) directors, details of

whose remuneration are set out above. Details

of the remuneration of the remaining four (2013:

four) non-director, highest paid employees for the

year are as follows:

BB Z BN (E)

(2) FRREENSHH (&)

(©) IfIfZeEHBeES 8%
REER AfNE=EFHES
BFE—(1(2013F EF « —fI)
Ex HFM=HBEEELR
PR - HERPA (20135 % -
M) &mFEEATAT :

2014 2013
ltem —E—MF —ET—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Salaries, allowances and e e BRR
benefits in kind EWEF 2,835 2,663
Performance related bonuses EiE S 2,331 5,022
Retirement benefit contributions 3B ki@ FIl4E 2 63 57
Total a5t 5,261 7,742
The number of employees whose remuneration FHAR T RENEBH
fell within the following bands is as follows: £
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETT
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001% 1,500,000/ 7T 3 =
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 Z2,000,000/% 7T = 3
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 22,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HKD 4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 24,500,000/ 7T = 1
Total &t 4 4
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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VIl RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

5.

Receivables and payables of related parties

The Group had no receivables or payables balance with
related parties on 31 December 2014 and 31 December

2013.

Commitments between the Group and related parties

The Company had signed lease contracts with Tengyuan

Xingye for operation and storage.

The anticipated future rent by the Group:

()&t B mRITE TR (#)

AT 75 FE U P A4 R IR

MR2014F12831H K&2013412 831
B o N E Y 4 B R B O e AR N B AT 3R

AR o
7 6% B EE B Bt 7 O ARG

ARRBHGRRMEERER] 7%

MHEEAR - ARFIENEE -

AEBFEARAREFENNESS

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-ImF —E—=F

+=A=+—H +-F=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Within 1 year 1FLAR 1,326,345 4,530,278

1-2 years 1-24F 1,326,345 4,530,278

2-3 years 2-34F 1,326,345 4,530,278

Over 3 years 3FM E 8,258,287 27,228,163

Total Al 12,237,322 40,818,997
2014 &
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VIIl. CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no significant

contingencies to disclose.

(N HABEEHE

BEEEREBRRE AEETHFERERE
MEARBERR -

IX. COMMITMENTS () &BEBE
Capital commitments BREGE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZT—-mEF —E—=fF
+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—H
RMB RMB
ARET AREET
Acquisition of fixed assets BEERTEE
Authorized but not contracted BEEREERELD 205,861,716 93,687,767
Contracted but not provided BEEAEREE 188,410,979 136,735,792
Total il 394,272,695 230,423,559
Operating lease commitments REHE R
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the Group R2014% 128318 K&2013%F12A31H @+ &
had the following commitments in respect of non-cancellable SEEIINETTNT RN K EHESNE
operating leases: AT
As the lessee ERARBEA
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—=-mE —T-=%
+=ZA=+—-H| +ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Minimum lease payments under ARG EHENRERE
non-cancellable operating leases: INE7¢
First year from the BEBBRAREIF
balance sheet date 215,572,740 222,302,230
Second year from the BEBERAKE2F
balance sheet date 222,229,915 215,016,809
Third year from the BEEBEBERAKEIF
balance sheet date 222,220,609 221,843,607
Subsequent years LABFE 1,617,276,789 1,801,096,633
Total BT 2,277,300,053 2,460,259,279
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IX. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

Operating lease commitments (Continued)

(M) EFEBEE)

REHEEERE)

As the lessor 1EBHFEA
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—MF =%
+=ZB=+—-8| +t-—A=+—8
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Minimum lease receivables under TR HEKE SR ENREREE
non-cancellable operating leases: WeskEE
First year from the balance sheet date EEBERBEE1F 62,410,234 79,350,294
Second year from the balance sheet date BEAEXHEF2FE 56,891,595 71,687,761
Third year from the balance sheet date BEBERAKEIF 42,120,601 62,025,898
Subsequent years NEFE 139,398,287 147,123,072
Total A5 300,820,717 360,187,025
EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE (T EEEBREAEE

On 1 January 2015, the Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading,
established Chaopi Zhaoyang Life Commerce Co.,Ltd, (Zhaoyang
Life) as a wholly-owned subsidiary, with registered capital of
RMB20,000,000. Zhaoyang Life was indirectly held by the
Company as to 79.85%. Zhaoyang Life has obtained business
license with NO. 110105018576307. As of the date, Chaopi
Trading has not paid to Zhaoyang Life.

On 17 March 2015, a subsidiary of the Company’s subsidiary
Chaopi Trading contributed additional RMB 10,000,000 into
Chaopi Taiyuan. As of the date, the registered capital of Chaopi
Taiyuan increased to RMB 15,000,000. Upon completion of the
capital increase, the Chaopi Trading directly held 100% equity
interest in Chaopi Taiyuan, and indirectly held by the Company
through Chaopi Trading as to 79.85%.

Except for the issues disclosed in Note (VI) 34, the Group has
no events after the balance sheet date to disclose as of approval

date of these financial statements,

M2015%F1A29H + "R Az FRAAE#
HMEREXRIZEERFAGILREARR
BrEEETRKEBRABATERE A
B 1) - HaFfE XA AR 20,000,000
e ANRBBHIBAEREE BRI
MR [579.85%M #E & - A B H 2 WG
1101050185763075% T & ¥ M8 - HEAX
BER - BHEBRARMBLRBEEE

201563 A17H » KRR ZFRAHME
B M 8 KRB M E A K #10,000,000
T BEZA  PHARMEMEREEA
R #15,000,0007T - EEHHAMEE B2 EHM
o &% - BEEE D EREREAE100%H
e - IARBBAHNEERERE A
KIR79.85% M) 7 ©

B bt =R R MIEE(R) ~ B4FTIREE SIS
BEAPBHRRILER  AEBEEMAE
BENEEABRARKRER
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As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
financial instruments measured at fair value represented the
available-for-sale equity investment made by the Company’s

subsidiary Chaopi Trading in Shanxi Xinghuacun:

XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (t-) Bt EEE1E
Assets measured at fair value 1 URAEEFENEE

20146128318 K20134F12 431
B ARBEUAARBEFAENEERE
REZ FREFHEERBENLES
AT H SRR E -

Cumulation Cumulation
in current in current
2013.1.1  year's equity 2013.12.31 year’s equity 2014.12.31
ST=F ARG AEG | SB-ZF AFGARE —2-NF
—A-H MEFY [+=A=1t-8 WREIY t-A=+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR¥®TR AR¥TR AR¥T
Avallable-for-sale At HERERE
equity investments 8,332,000 (4,472,000)| 3,860,000 718,000 4,578,000
2. Segment reporting 2. PEWE
For the purpose of management, the Group classified the HREREN - AEEREERMRSE
operations into three segments according to the product EOKEBEL  AEEFWNT = @R
and service: HHEb -

(@ the retailing segment engages in the distribution of @ ZTESHEEAHERRD AR
food, untagged food, daily necessities, drinks and -HABE BB AeXRES
cigarettes, hardware and household appliances; A

(b) the wholesaling segment engages in the wholesale b ARMEITEERER AR
supply of daily consumer products, including food, me 8Kl BRAEESEEN
untagged food, beverages, drinks, cigarettes and HEE T

daily necessities;

Hipn BMEBXBRHELHEER

the “others” segment comprises, principally, the pansis
BRE -

production of plastic packing materials.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

28

Segment reporting (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions

about resources allocation and performance assessment.

The segment report information depends on the each
segment’s accounting policy and measurement standard
disclosure, which stays the same with this financial
statement’s s accounting policy and measurement standard

disclosure.

All the asset and liability has been allocated to respective
segment, no unallocated asset and liability which are

centrally managed by the Group.

(t-) b EREH (&)

MREEERESIHBAERERS
REANSABRMTERERE &
EERBRAAVBRREN G
BOR B AR —B -

MABREMBBEHERENBEERE
A ERARER - EENEEM
BfE-
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XI.

- )

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

The pricing of inter-segment is based on the market prices

as well as the actual transaction prices.

All the business and assets of the Group allocate in China.

2014

Operating income

External revenue
Inter-segment revenue
Total

Total profit

Income tax expenses

Net profit (losses)

Total assets

Total liabilities
Supplementary information:

Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment losses on assets
Capital expenditures

LEJION
ZHRA
DEHEZHRA
At
MiEes
FEHER
A
RESRR
AELE
BAEE :
FENBHER
BERERR
BAfExi

(t-) b EREH (&)

2

2 EB R E ()
REDHENBBEE  2EMEHRE

RRRX 5%

TTHRIEREIEHETT ©

AEBEMENEEREEDLR T EE

A o
20145 E
Inter-segment

Retailing ~ Wholesaling Others elimination Total
2E [Gloti Hit%% 2BBEEEER EE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T AR¥T ARBT AR¥R AR¥T
5,031,935,349  5,835,673,123 23,150,416 - 10,890,758,888
38,902,586 551,096,479 16,361,630  (606,360,695) =
5,070,837,935 6,386,769,602 39,512,046 (606,360,695) 10,890,758,888
23,247,108 107,071,655 2,184,576 - 132,503,339
8,664,153 34,423,879 552,816 = 43,640,848
14,582,955 72,647,776 1,631,760 = 88,862,491
4,200,497,878  4,064,648,056 21,834,309 (1,045,477,145) 7,241,503,098
3,186,050,281  2,993,163,140 12,701,427 (1,045,477,145) 5,146,437,703
196,183,346 19,442,011 44,480 - 215,669,837
(2,169,949) = = = (2,169,949)
100,127,010 15,571,766 70,322 - 115,769,098
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued) (+-) Bt EEBH(4E)

2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2 AE/EE)
2013 2013FE
Inter-segment
Retailing Wholesaling Others elimination Total
& EmitE Hw%s HHRAEEER At
RMB RMB RMB RMB RVB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Operating income 2EWA
External revenue HHZ WA 4,867,342,447 5516,945,982 19,465,048 - 10,403,753,477
Inter-segment revenue AHEIHHA 33,210,155 559,119,438 16,383,101 (608,712,694) =
Total =El 4,900,552,602  6,076,065,420 35,848,149 (608,712,694) 10,403,753,477
Total profit palhepE 24,406,141 115,923,669 3,155,238 - 143,485,048
Income tax expenses FrisHER 5,708,343 36,656,363 804,229 - 43,168,935
Net profit (losses) FHE 18,697,798 79,267,306 2,351,009 - 100,316,113
Total assets BELE 4,166,122,378  3,771,491,805 16,824,133 (804,379,967) 7,150,058,349
Total liabilities BRES 3,171,872,601 2,697,531,678 8,683,011  (804,379,967) 5,073,707,323
Supplementary information: BRES:
Depreciation and amortisation ENREER 185,723,638 22,507,161 71,697 - 208,302,496
Impairment losses on assets BERERL 1,337,228 - - - 1,337,228
Capital expenditures BARMSTH 285,087,672 39,273,715 119,815 - 324,481,202
The Group’s businesses are principally retail and wholesale AEBEFEZEREARLMEILRHE
and located in Mainland China. The mainly identifiable assets LEHMTEEMMERE  TEAHRE
are located in Beijing. EHRIE R -
The information of main customers of the Group is as follow: AEENFERPERLMOT
2014 2013
2014% 2013%
Proportion to Proportion to
the total the total
operating operating
Operating income of Operating income of
icome the Group (%) icome  the Group (%)
L FELES
BERA  BALAI%) BERA WALBI%)
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET AR®T AR AR
Client 1 EF1 969,699,218 9 [ 1,012,186,045 10

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR

( W
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XI.

- )

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

(t-) b EREH (&)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and 3 FAEEHEBER RS RHEE
Shoulian Group
(1)  Main transactions between the Group and Shoulian (1) AEEEFHEENEZERIFN
Group are as follow: Sk
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
20144 20134
Note RMB RMB
ih=s AR®T ARETT
Interest income NN Note 1 4,800,000 5,699,068
Interest income from B FEFEUWA Note 2
borrowed funds 6,461,136
Lease charge HEEH Note 3 4,134,088 4,134,088
Compensation for BTZEMER Note 4
placement of employees - 18,931,368
Borrowings BEEIER Note 5 86,000,000 47,500,000
Note 1:  Interest income is derived from accounts receivable 1 MBI B ERERFRFEWA ©

and lending. The interest expenses charged on the
balance of accounts receivable and lending due
from Shoulian were determined with reference to

bank lending rate for the same period.

Note 2: Interest income from borrowed funds is derived
from borrowed funds of Shoulian with loan interest

rate stipulated by bank.
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

3. Transaction and balance between the Group and

Shoulian Group (Continued)

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

On 1 January 2009, the Company leased a
property and land located at Kaifang Road,
Huairou District, Beijing (“Huairou Hypermarket”)
from Shoulian with annual rent of RMB 3,000,000
for a term from 1 January 2009 to 31 December
2028.

On 1 January 2009, the Company’s subsidiary
Shoulian Supermarket leased a property and
land located at Xihongmen Road, Daxing District,
Beijing from Shoulian with annual rent of RMB
1,134,088 for a term from 1 January 2009 to 31
December 2028. On 24 December 2010, Shoulian
Supermarket was acquired by the Company and

the lease contract remained valid.

For each of 2014 and 2013, the rental expenses
were recognised at RMB 4,134,088.

As agreed by Shoulian with the Company and
its subsidiary Chaopi Trading, the Group shall
assist Shoulian in job placement of certain
employees, and Shoulian shall pay the placement
compensation to the Group at the agreed-upon
rate. The placement compensation incomes for
2013 were recognised at RMB 18,931,368.

As at 31 December 2014, the lending provided
by Shoulian Supermarket to Shoulian amounted
to RMB 133,500,000, repayable on 31 December
2016 as agreed upon. The interest expenses
charged on the lending due from Shoulian were
determined with reference to bank lending rate for

the same period.

(t-) b EREH (&)

3 ARMEEHREE RS KGEE)

3

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

200941 A1 8 + ANA A [ B
EEBARRE R TIERERK
BORER (AT EEER
RES ) - HEHBE2009%1 51
HZE2028412A318 + &AM
% A ARHKES,000,0007T °

M2009F1A18 @ BEEBTAE
BEBERALRTAERALN
HEHEE R L - HEHE2009
F1HA18 ZE2028%F12A318 -
EREFEHS R/ ARM1,134,088
JT o R2010412 248 » BB
MARDAUE - ZHEERE
BAEM -

A20145FE K 20135FZ » A&
ROMEEAHTABARE
4,134,0887T °

CRBEMEBREANRRART

ZF AR EBBETRBELE
AEEGHEHEEDHEIETHN
BTHITHEUZE R EH
E B201141A1H Z2013412
A3181L ' SFUNTEERES M
AEEBRIZERER - A5HE
20135 F - HARAMERAAR
#£18,931,3687T °

D jR2014F12A31H - BEETR

EBERRUNESIFERGBE
A A R #133,500,0007T © & 5
HEERE A20164F12A318 -
AEBLERITRPERFI R Y
1) B B 2 R (L B 7 18 SRR
FEBM -
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)
3. Transaction and balance between the Group and
Shoulian Group (Continued)

(2) Accounts receivables and accounts payable between

the Group and Shoulian Group are as follow:

Accounts receivable FEUBERF (HIEE(S) ~ 2)
(Note (VI) 2)

Other non-current assets REAREUGR (HRE(R)
(Note((VI) 16)

Rent paid in advance* ErEE

(t-) b EREH (&)

16)

3-

FEMREHEB X F RBEE)

@ AKEHEEHEENRYKFENK

T

2014.12.31
—E-mE
+t=A=t+-8
RMB
AR¥T

80,000,000

133,500,000
27,000,000

2013.12.31
—E—=%F
+=—A=+—H
RMB

ARETT

80,000,000

47,500,000
30,000,000

The amounts are related to the rents for 15 years
prepaid once-off by the Group to Shoulian under the
lease contract on Huairou Hypermarket. The prepaid
rents are included in long-term prepaid expenses
and other current assets as at the relevant balance
sheet dates. Details are set out in Note 3 to the major

transactions between the Group and Shoulian.
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’s financial instruments mainly comprise cash
and bank balances, accounts receivable, other receivables,
other current assets, available-for-sale financial assets, other
non-current assets, other non-current assets within one
year, accounts payable, other payables, bonds payable,
notes payable, short-term bank loans, long-term loans due
within one year and long-term loans. Details of the financial
instruments are set out in Note (VI). The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the risk management
policies on how to mitigate these risks are detailed as
below. These risk exposures are managed and monitored
by the management to ensure that such risks are within a

limited range.

(1) Risk management objectives and policies

The Group engages in risk management with the aim
of achieving an appropriate balance between risks and
returns, where the negative effects of risks against
the operating results of the Group are minimized,
in order to maximize the interests of shareholders
and other stakeholders. Based on such objective of
risk management, the fundamental strategy of risk
management of the Group is to ascertain and analyze
various risks exposures, establish appropriate risk
tolerance thresholds, carry out risk management
procedures and monitor these risks in a timely and
reliable manner, thus to confine risk exposures within a

prescribed scope.

(t-) b EREH (&)

4- EMTARRRER

AEBENTIZCHTAGEERES -
FEMAR TR - Efb AR - FEEIRE - /]
HEESHEE  HMFERBDEE - —
FRIHNEMFERBDEE BN
R HEMEMK - BNESR BEAHR
B RGN - — SRS REER
REHERE - SESBTANFAR
MFRMEGOS)  HELSRMT AR
EERR - DA R 7 5% B 25 PR AR S Lk LR P
RER R I BRI T AT - AN
BB E LR T E R AN
VARELR 5 L it R 42 Bl FE R FE RO $B [ 2
7 o

1. EBREEEREHNHE
AEBEREAREENBRRER
BRI 2 RS EE N TE - 8
EREAEELERENARTE
AR BIAEKF - ERRA M e i
Kie - ERZBEBREEREBF - A&
I [\ e PR M) B AN IR R REE AN D
FAHEBRNSRER  ZTEER
RBASEAMETRRER @ ¥
ETSEH B ERRETEE
HEBRE SR EMNEE ZA
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XI.

i

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1. Market risk

111,

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss
resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. All of the Group’s
businesses are carried out in the PRC and
all its transaction are denominated in its
functional currency Renminbi. As at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
except for the amounts of approximately
RMB723,926 and RMB15,870 denominated
in foreign currency, all amounts in the
Group’s balance sheet were denominated in
Renminbi. The management does not expect
that a change in foreign exchange rate will
have a significant impact on the Group’s

gross profit and shareholders’ equity.

. Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash

flows

The risk of changes in fair value from
financial instruments as a result of interest
rate change mainly relates to fixed interest
securities (see Note (VI) 24).The Group’s
policy has not taken any action to eliminate

fair value risk from fixed interest securities.
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OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.1. Market risk (Continued)

1.1.2. Interest rate risk — risk of changes in cash

flows (Continued)

The risk of changes in cash flows from
financial instruments as a result of interest
rate change mainly relates to floating-rate
bank loans (see Note (VI), 17, 25 and 27).
It is the Group’s policy to maintain floating
interest rate of these loans in order to
eliminate fair value risk due to interest rate

change.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis is based
on the assumption that a change in market
interest rates would have an impact on
interest income or expense of floating-rate

financial instruments.

The management believes that the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk in bank
deposits is not significant, and therefore
did not disclose the sensitivity analysis of
bank deposit interest rate. On the basis of
the above assumption and supposing that
other parameters remain constant(Without
regard to the influence of capitalized
interest), a 1% increase/(decrease) of
interest rate would lead to a (decrease)/
increase of RMB23,404,902 and 21,049,779
(oefore taxation) in current profit or loss
and shareholders’ equity in 2014 and 20183,

respectively.

(t-) b EREH (&)

4 - ERIAREBEERE)
1. EBREERENHE(E)
11775 /E% ()
112RERB - REREL
R (&)
REBREMEFEH | L
eMIAERSTELEH
8RB = 87 &) F
ERAITER(FF R M
(75 )17 25F127)8
o NEBEMEKRR
FRELBERONZHF
- DUHRBRAEZTHE
AREERR -

P 2k F B BB 93 A7 2
ISEE R RIES
BRUZNEEBIAN
MM EA -

FEEEBEERRAR
& P A R SR 1T 17 A A0 F
R TEN - Bt
RIEMBEEHRITER
B FI R G REME DT o B
2014F [§ M2013F B
MEBHRHERLE &
Hih B ETZHERT
(TZEEBERBAERL
WEE) MEEn/
CRA )1 %8 E BBz &
REBERORAZESD
ARORD) HEINAR
#£23,404,9027TC & A R
#521,049,7797T °
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued) (t-) EtbEEE1H(E)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued) 4 - SRTARRKREE(Z)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 1. BREZEHEMEFE(E)

1.2. Credit risk 1.2 EHERE

I

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, the largest credit risk exposure related to
a potential financial loss mainly derived from the
failure in performance of contractual obligations
by counterparty, which would result in a loss in
financial assets, and the guarantees provided
by the Group, including: the carrying amount of
financial assets recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet. The carrying amounts of the
financial assets, which are recorded at fair value,
represent the current risk exposure but not the
maximum risk exposure that could arise in the

future as a result of the change in fair values.

To reduce credit risk, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, balances of
accounts receivable are monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure that the Group’s exposure to bad

debt is not significant.
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued) (+-) Bt EEBH(4E)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued) 4- eRMTERARER(E)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 1. BREZEHEMEE(E)

1.2. Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 zHER (&

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at each
balance sheet date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Therefore, the management believes
that the Group’s exposure to credit risk has been
effectively monitored and managed. The Group
has adopted necessary policies to ensure that
all customers have a good credit record. At 31
December 2014, except for the amounts included
in account receivables top five (Note (VI) 2) and
individual significant long-term receivables, the
Group has no other significant concentration of

credit risk.

The Group’s working capital is deposited at banks
with higher credit ratings, and hence the credit

risk in working capital is insignificant.

o AEEREBREEES
BRBERET —BHEEKRR
BB U I - LA REAR B R
Bl U ) FRIFEHR T 9 B0 AR
EE-Fl AEBERE
REAEBERAENERR
BELBEBMERE - K&
EHATVENERERA
ERFHAERRIMERRT
#% - R2014F12A31H KK
FHOR) 2R BRI R
EEBERREEEANR
HARE RN - AN B H A
BREAERRR
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XIl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued) (t-) EtbEEE1H(E)
4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued) 4- cRMTERRREE(E)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued) 1. BREZEHEMEFE(E)
1.2. Credit risk (Continued) 1.2 1HEE(E)
Maturity analysis of the financial assets past due EEABXRADBEELRR
but not impaired: B8 < /& E K EI R 5 47 40
T~
31 December 2014 2014%12A31H
Past due but not impaired
A RRE
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
AEAR  Af-3EF BEIEALNUL Bit
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARER ARER ARETR AR¥TR
Accounts receivable FEMLEE R 124,274,141 85,003,339 214,870,104 424,147,584
31 December 2013 2013%12H31H
Past due but not impaired
B AR (A
Within Over
1 month 1-3 months 3 months Total
@E1EAR  af-sEA AmHsEANL CH
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR ARET ARET ARETL
Accounts receivable B 97,211,379 63,545,978 208,087,355 368,844,712
Other receivables H RIS - - 4,600,000 4,600,000
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.2.

1.3

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, the accounts receivables that were past
due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Other receivables that
were past due but not impaired related to other
amounts payable to the Group as a prevailing
party in litigations. Based on past experience,
the Group believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. Except for the overdue accounts
receivable due from Shoulian which bear interest
on the balance and are secured by collaterals, the
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over other balances past due(Note

VI 2).

Liquidity risk

In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains
and monitors cash and cash equivalents that are
adequate in the opinion of the management, to
meet the needs of the Group’s operations and
mitigate the impact from cash flow fluctuations.
The management monitors the utilization of
bank loans and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. Meanwhile, the Group adopts banking

instruments to meet short-term funding needs.

(t-) HthEEE1H(E)
4- eRMTERARER(E)
1. EREEHEMNBEE)

1.2 zHER (&
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B RIBENAALR AR
EREERELEERELE
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XI.

_

OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4.

Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)
(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group manages its risk to deficiency of funds
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This
tool considers both the maturity of its financial
instruments and the projected cash flows from

the Group’s operations.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s net
current liabilities amounted to RMB395,629,617
(831 December 2013: RMB607,841,295). The
Company uses bank loans and bonds as its major
sources of funding. As at 31 December 2014,
the Company had unutilized bank loan facilities
of RMB560 million. Based on the Company’s
unutilized bank loan facilities, profitability and
cash flow forecast within the next 12 months, the
management believes that the Company will have
adequate funds in the future for timely repayment
of the existing debts and maintaining its normal

business activities.
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XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(t-) b EREH (&)

(1) Risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

1.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following is the maturity analysis for financial

liabilities held by the Group which is based on

undiscounted remaining contractual obligations:

31 December 2014

4- eRMTERARER(E)

1. BBREZEEFABEE)

1.3 mEER (&)

AEEFATHARERT
BRERE R &R

ST -

2014%12A31H

Within 1
month ~ 1-3 months  3-12 months 1-2years  Over 2 years Total
1BANA 1237  3fARZIE 152 2ENE At
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETR ARETR AEET ARET ARETR ARET
Bank borrowings (including interest] $iTfEs(475) 286,985,422 662,447,103 1,350,807,893 95,397,770 - 2,395,638,188
Notes payable eSS 68,135,542 7,953430 g = - 76,088972
Accounts payable R 37,736,126 1,113,106,134 - - - 1,150,842,260
Bonds payable (including interest)  E[TE%(4F8) g - 41,100,000 41,100,000 832,200,000 914,400,000
Other payables AtEAR(TEENES) 32,935,670 - 140,535,092 - - 173,470,762
Total At 425792,760 1,783,506,667 1,532,442,085 136,497,770 832,200,000 4,710,440,182
31 December 2013 2013%12H31H
Within 1
month ~ 1-3months ~ 3-12 months 1-2years  Over 2 years Total
1EANA 12388 SEAZIE 150 2B A
RMB RVB RVB RMB RVB RVB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET AR
Bank borrowings (including interest) ST (4718 40,186,438 822,723,784 1057332641 150328367 95,397,770 2,165,919,000
Notes payable ERZR 3037520 53,639,771 = = - 56,677,201
Accounts payable S 27,805,171 1,111,152,864 - - - 1,138958,035
Bonds payable (ncluding interest) (T E% (575 210,400,000 - 41100000 41100000 873,300,000 1,165,900,000
Other payables EhEAR(TERLES) 20,741,104 - 186,830,825 = - 207,571,929
Total At 302120233 1987516419 1285263466 191428367 968,697,770 4,735,026,255
2014 &
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XIl. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (Continued)

4. Financial instruments and risk management (Continued)

(2) Fair value

The available-for-sale financial assets (Note VI, 7 Note
(1)), fair value of which determined in accordance with
quoted market price of investee’s stock, are classified
as Level 1, known as quoted price (unadjusted) of

similar assets and liabilities in active market.

The management considers that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at
amortized costs in the financial statements approximate

their fair values.

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(t-) b EREH (&)

4 - SRTARRKREE(Z)

2.

A

EfE

AHHEEREEMZEOS) 7
ZHEMAEREEMNREETS
ERREER/SAAEBERBRNAAE
EFFENE1ER  RBEEESR
BEEEETS ECRERHE)NER

N

AEEEEERS  WHERETE
BREAHENSBEERSBA
EOEAEEEERSEEREE
DA M -

(+2) QAMBRREIBHEBEE

1. Cash and bank balances 1 E¥ES
2014.12.31
—E-NFE+=-A=+—H
Foreign
currency
amount Exchange rate Amount in RMB
Iltem HE INESEE E=x ARBEEE
RMB RMB
AR¥TT AR¥T
Cash: B -
RMB ARHE 23,745,773
UsD EiW 482 6.1245 2,952
HKD ko 414 0.7899 327
GBP HeE 193 9.5233 1,838
Bank deposits: RITIFAX
RMB ARHE 121,618,372
Total A&t 145,369,262
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The Company entrusted Beijing Bank Jiulongshan Branch to
lend to Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary of the Company. The
lengths of those loans are 1 year. The annual interest rate of
entrusted loans for 2014 and 2013 are 5.70%, and 5.70%,

respectively.

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (+=Z) PR BHRRETEEEIEE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Cash and bank balances (Continued) 1 EBESERE)
2013.12.31
—E-=F+-A=+-1H
Foreign
currency
amount Exchange rate  Amount in RMB
ltem B H HINEE SRR wE X AR SEE
RMB RMB RMB
AREETT ARETT AREETT
Cash: B
RMB ARHE 24,023,022
uUsb ETT 482 6.1017 2,941
HKD piog s 1,650 0.7861 1,297
GBP HgE 193 10.0363 1,937
SGD FANE 2,026 4.7853 9,695
Bank deposits: RITIFX
RMB ARHE 231,605,326
Total &5 255,644,218
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the R2014F12A31H K&20134F12 A31
Company had no currency funds with use restrictions. H: AXARIEMBEIIRGANEE
Eg o
Entrusted Loans 2. ZEEER
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ET—OF —F—=
ltem TEH +=-—A=+—8© +=-A=+—8©
RMB RMB
AREETT AREETT
Entrusted loans LZEER
Related party B2k 350,000,000 250,000,000
Total: S5k 350,000,000 250,000,000

ZEZNERAERARNZFRIEREITA
BRI TERADRZ FRABHE
BHRIE - HR " —F - R2014F
K2013FEZXERNEFEH BB
5.70% &5.70% °

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2,

Entrusted Loans (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
entrusted loans had no indication of impairment and thus no

impairment provision is necessary.

Accounts receivable

(1) 31 December 2014

(+=)

RAMBRREERE TR E)

ERXERE)

20146128318 K2013412H31
B ZREXNERETR - EERR
RELER o

FE W BR K

(1) 2014%12531H

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories: JEURBR SR D FE IR TR
2014.12.31
“E-mFE+ZA=t-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
IREEAE HERER
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
Category e t8 L 41(%) &8 EE (%)
RMB RMB
AR¥T N
Accounts receivable that are BEEOES AU BRI | 244,945,639 92 - -
individually significant and for FRERBHREIIRS
which bad debt provision has been
assessed individually
Accounts receivable for which bad RBATHRERERNEL
debt provisions has been assessed B
by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not BRESBIENBRERAR - S = =
individually significant but have BEEERRZAARE
significant risk when divided into BRE KRR YRR
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics
Other insignificant accounts receivable  E 7 & A JE U EE 21 17,845,889 7 - -
Total of portfolio A /NG 17,845,889 7 - -
Accounts receivable that are not BESEFEANEERE R 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 100
individually significant but for which ~ SZEEEEH R
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually
Total At 264,682,107 100 1,890,579 100
ANNUAL REPORT 2014




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

(+=) RARMBHRRETEHEEZTRE)
3 EWERR(E)
(1) 20144125318 (4%&)
W AR R A I A HE SR B B AE )

FRERLIAT
2014.12.31
—g-mE+=A=t-8
Bad debt Carrying
Amount Proportion (%) provision amount

Aging Fie kx| L 61(%) RIRER REEE

RMB RMB

AR#R AR¥T
Within 1 year 1FHA 182,791,528 69 - 182,791,528
2-3 years 2E3F 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 -
4-5 years 4E5F 80,000,000 30 - 80,000,000
Total At 264,682,107 100 1,890,579 262,791,528

Amounts due from related parties are as below:

FEK RIS B HIE I T -

Provision as a
proportion of
accounts
Relationship with receivable (%)
the Company Amount {hEEWBRFAEEE
Name of entity B A LN/ ER S x| B LE £5il (%)
RMB
AR
Jingkelong Langfang REE Ly Subsidiary 92,215,140 35
Frd
Shouchao Group HHBEE Subsidiary 46,321,839 18
FRA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou — FREREEM Subsidiary 19,147,272 7
FRE]
Total A&t 157,684,251 60

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR

2014 &




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (+=) QRN KEFERFTBEHAZTEE)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWERRR(E)
(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued) (1) 2014%12531H(4&)
Bad debts provision of accounts receivable that are not HREBESHEITEANBEETIRE
individually significant but for which bad debt provision FREE BRI -
has been assessed individually are as follows:
Content of Proportion of Reason for the
accounts receivable | Carrying amount Bed debt amount provision (%) provision
JEWEERAR BRTH BAEE REEEH sTREEHI(%)
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debts
2= = which are unlikely to
be recovered
BEAEKREEBERED
W El AT e R K
(2) 31 December 2013 (2) 2013F12H31H
Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories: FEUER TR D JE IR -
2013.12.31
“E-=#+t-ZA=t—H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
REEAE BHRER
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Category e x| EEA(%) &8 E1(%)
RMB RMB
AEBT ARBT
Accounts receivable that are BESBEATERE R
individually significant and for FRAEEREURER
which bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 257,006,668 95 - -
Accounts receivable for which bad RIEA T REREENRY
debt provisions has been assessed BRI
by portfolios
Accounts receivable that are not BESBEIENBRERR
individually significant but have mERESRZESHE
significant risk when divided into BRE AR ERER
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics = = = =
Other insignificant accounts receivable  Eft A& A e BR 3 12,176,279 4 = =
Total of portfolio BAE/NG 12,176,279 4 = =
Accounts receivable that are not BRETENEERE
individually significant but for which ~ SZERE &R YR
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 100
Total Gt 271,073,526 100 1,890,579 100

5 ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

3 EWERR(E)
(2) 2013%12HF31H(#%&)
W AR R A I A HE SR B B AE )

ARRanT
2013.12.31
“E-ZF+ZA=t-H

Proportion Proportion
Aging IR Amount (%) Amount (%)
i £ 31(%) BRER RHEEE

RMB RMB

ARET ARET
Within 1 year 1FEHUR 189,182,947 70 - 189,182,947
1-2 years 1226 1,890,579 1 1,890,579 -
3-4 years 3E4F 80,000,000 29 - 80,000,000
Total Bt 271,073,526 100 1,890,579 269,182,947

Amounts depended on data of revenue recognition due

from related parties are as follow

FEUBARE T VSRR T

Provision as
a proportion
of accounts
Relationship with receivable (%)
the Company Amount  {HEIER RAEFR
Entity name E vy i} HEIZR N AR o 8 L 91(%)
RMB
AREBT
Jingkelong Langfang RERE R Subsidiary 90,845,680 33
FRE]
Shouchao Group EfEE S Subsidiary 56,272,182 21
FA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREEIMN Subsidiary 20,509,866 8
Fam
Total A&t 167,627,728 62

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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XIl.

- o)

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

Bad debts provision of accounts receivable that are not

individually significant but for which bad debt provision

has been assessed individually is as follows:

FE W AR (42)

(2) 20134125318 (#&)

HREBESENEXNBERETIRE
BRAEE R YRR

Content of
accounts Carrying Bed debt Proportion of Reason for
receivable amount amount provision (%) the provision
EWEER AR AR AR ZRes FTHRLEB(%) R ER
RMB RMB
ARHTT ARHTT
Liu Liangguo 1,890,579 1,890,579 100 Controversial debts
2= E which are unlikely to be
recovered
B AR REEREND
[IEEEEEZOUN
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) PRI EBRRETEEE TR (E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued) 3 EWRR(E)
(3) Top five entities with relationship and the largest (3) BRI EFEFRREFEER B EEE
balances of accounts receivable FEWERFIE R
31 December 2014
20145128318
Proportion of
the amount Closing
to the total  balance of
accounts  bad debt
Relationship with the receivable (%)  provision
Company Amount  Age EEKES  BRER
Name of entity BUBE BRATBE ¢E E£R BEMLA(%)  HREE
RMB
AR¥R
Jingkelong Langfang RRERY Subsidiary 92,215,140  Within 1 year 35 -
FA7 1E5R
Shoulian Group (Note VI 2) EH‘Q#%@ Independent third party 80,000,000 4-5 years 30 -
(&GN 2) BuYE=F 4-5%
Shouchao Group BHEE Subsidiary 46,321,839 Within 1 year 18 =
A 1EUR
Jingkelong Tongzhou REEBM Subsidiary 19,147,272 Within 1 year 7 -
o FAT 15 5R
Beiiing Ruitai Hongxin Digital 3t RiEZEE  Independent third party 7,261,388 Within 1 year 3 -
Technology Co., Ltd. EREENE BUE=H 1EH0R
Total A&t 244,945,639 93 -

31 December 2013
2013F12A31H
Proportion of
the amount Closing
to the total  balance of
accounts bad debt

Relationship with the receivable (%) provision
Company Amount  Age MK  BERER
Name of entity B A BEARABE 28 ER BEOLOI%)  HREE
RMB
ARET
Jingkelong Langfang REBREY Subsidiary 90,845,680  Within 1 year 33 -
FRal 1ENR
Shoulian Group (Note VI 2) BHEE Independent third party 80,000,000  3-4 years 30 =
(HE(R)2) BUE=H 3-4%F
Shouchao Group EREE Subsidiary 56,272,182 Within 1 year 21 -
FRa 1EMR
Jingkelong Tongzhou RERERMN Subsidiary 20,509,866  Within 1 year 8 -
TR 1EMA
Beijing Ruitai Hongxin Digital 4t RI%Z & (=& Independent third party 9,378,940  Within 1 year 3 -
Technology Co., Ltd. TREER BUYE=H TENUA
A7
Total S 257,006,668 95 -

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Accounts receivable (Continued)
(3) Top five entities with relationship and the largest
balances of accounts receivable (Continued)

The Company classified accounts receivable exceeding
RMB 5 million by the Company as individually

significant.

4. Prepayments

Aging analysis of prepayments is as follows:

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

3 BWERMR(E)

(38) BRI BERB KA T £
FERIRF 1B ()
ARaleBER ARES008 T
FOREBBRRERAEESEEA

HIFRIA °

4~ FENFKE

BENFRRRRERTR -

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
Z2-mE+ZA=1-H —E-=#+-RA=1+-H

Aging R Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
8 LE51(%) £ £ 31(%)

RMB RMB

AR¥R ARET
Within 1 year 1EAR 1,814,092 100 1,596,853 100
Total A&t 1,814,092 100 1,596,853 100
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) A EMBRREERA R (A)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Prepayments (Continued) 4 BNAREE)
(1) Top five entities with the largest balances of (1) HANHGREENBRGHEIEE
prepayments WA E 15X
31 December 2014 2014%12H31H
Relationship with the Reason for
Company Amount Age uncleared
Entity name BN ER HBANFARR 8 FR FEERR
RMB
NG
Xinyang Tongli @ Subsidiary 1,510,000 Within 1 year Goods not
FR7 1E LR received
A REEY
Wuhan Dannashiman Clothing ~ EUEfHIBEERHARAR  Independent third party 97,591 Within 1 year  Goods not
Co., Ltd BUE=F 1ENR received
iR KB &Y
Beijing ZnongAn Authentication It R ZERFMFEFL  Independent third party 47,170 Within 1 year  Goods not
Center Co., Ltd BRAT BUE=H 1E LR received
RSV €t
Beijing Zhongjing Bridge Trading Jt R RIERAEERAE  Independent third party 37,762 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Co., Ltd BUE=F 1ENR received
HAREEN
Beijing Znongshang Liuyang P EEGABEE Independent third party 26,452 Within1 year ~ Goods not
River sales Co., Ltd. BRAR BUE=H 15 UR received
AR EEY
Total At 1,718,975

2014 &
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Prepayments (Continued) 4~

(1) Top five entities with the largest balances of

prepayments (Continued)

31 December 2013

ANE

RIE(4E)

20135 12H31H

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

(1) BREANHGEENHRGHENEE
HYFRAS KRR (4)

Relationship with the Reason for
Company Amount  Age uncleared
Entity name BLTE EARRAIBE 8 FR REER
RMB
ARET
Beijing Huairou Tobacco ERmEREENF Independent third party 591,564 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Company BUE=H 1EUR received
mARE &
Beijing Changping Tobacco ITRmETEERT Independent third party 326,308 Within 1 year  Goods not
Company BYE=H 1EUR received
A RE &
Beijing Yanqing Tobacco IRTEEEEDT Independent third party 209,986 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
Company BUE=H 1EUR received
WRBEIEY
Beijing Miyun Tobacco Company JtRMZ EEEAF Independent third party 206,651 Within 1 year  Goods not
BUE=F 1EHA received
WARRE £
Beijing Yadu Appliance Co., Ltd. JtRTHRERHEERAE  Independent third party 118,883 Within 1 year ~ Goods not
BUE=H TR received
mAMRE
Total At 1,453,392

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) A EMBRREERA R (A)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Prepayments (Continued) 4 BNAREE)
(2) Explanations of prepayments (2) FETFERFEE -
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—2-NF —
Category 55 +=A=+—-8| +=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR ARET
Other insignificant prepayment  E b ~NE8 KT FIE 1,814,092 1,596,853
Total a5t 1,814,092 1,596,853
(3) Prepayments to related parties: (3) FETEIE 558
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
“E-ME+=A=t-H “E-=f+-fA=1-H
Relationship
with the Company Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
Name of entity BhIAH EhYNG| A k] S 1% x| ELA1%
RMB
AR¥T
Xinyang Tongli i Subsidiary
FAH 1,510,000 83 = =
Prepayments exceeding RMB5 million are classified as KRR EEEAARES008 7T A
individually significant by the Company. BN RERRAEESEEKN

R TR SRR

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR KB RETEEHE TR (E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables 5+ HhEEWR
(1) 31 December 2014 (1) 2014%F12H31H
Disclosure of other receivables by categories: HoAth FEUR D FEIRFR -
2014.12.31
“E-mE+ZA=1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
RHME BREE
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
Category &% &8 L Al(%) &8 (%)
RMB RMB
ARETR ARER
Other receivables that are individually ~ EBSBEAWEB: SR | 526,828,813 89 4,224,750 78

significant and for which bad debt EHME YR
provision has been assessed

individually
Other receivables that are not EHSEIEAERERARR 56,652,868 9 = S
individually significant but have BEELGZALNER
significant risk when divided into ByNaEG e
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics
Other insignificant other receivables ~ E At R EAE i fEizE 3,308,272 1 s s
Total of portfolio e/t 59,961,140 10 - -
Other receivables that are not BESEIEAEERE R 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 22

individually significant but for which ~ BRZH0 E it FE i3k
bad debt provision has been
assessed individually

Total &3t 588,841,253 100 5,396,522 100

Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAth FEUCRER B AT -

2014.12.31
ZE2-mE+ZA=t-H

Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount
Aging ik t8 ELA(%) BIRER FHER
RMB RMB RMB
NG AR% T NG
Within 1 year 1A 580,240,203 99 - 580,240,203
2- 3 years 2-3F 2,051,300 - 1,171,772 879,528
4-5 years 4-5% 6,549,750 1 4,224,750 2,325,000
Total At 588,841,253 100 5,396,522 583,444,731

9 ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued)

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

5. HbEWR(E)

(1) 20144125318 (4%&)

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are HRBIRSHEAWAHRIERER

individually significant is as follows:

) EL A FE UK

Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
amount bad debt  provision (%) Reasons
Content of other receivables HttERRAR BERE BESE  HEHLA(%) B
RMB RMB RMB
NG NG ARET
Beiling Guanyuan wholesale TRERARLETS 6,549,750 4,224,750 65  Controversial
market GCompany BRAT debts which
are unlikely to
be recovered
BRABRSE
EREMmRE
EEZ: XV
Bad debt provision of other receivables which are not BREBEBES B IEANBERIEE
individually significant is as follows: BRYEAE A A ELAth FE LK
Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
amount bad debt  provision (%) Reasons
Content of other receivables Htt A A BERE BReE  HEHAI%) Bl
RMB RMB RMB
AR®T ARET NG
Beijing Baili Tongda Trading Co., Ltd. It RAMBEHEERAF 2,051,300 1,171,772 57  Controversial
debts which

are unlikely to
be recovered
ERAHRNE
EFEmKE
AREMTK

2014 &
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

- )

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

(1) 31 December 2014 (Continued)

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

5-

Reversals and collections during the current period:

Content of
other receivables

HitbERR AR

Beijing Guanyuan
Wholesale Market
Company

R EEmRALENS
BRAA

Reasons for
reversals or
collections
EE p R

Partially recovered
24 B

Basis of
determining the
original bad
debt provision
TEREER
EHBMKRE

Controversial debts

which are unlikely to be

recovered

BEAHRREFEFH

i Y E AT BE TR

Hib B ()

(1) 20144128310 (%)
AEHEINHBERWT :

Accumulated
bad debt
provision prior
to reversals

or collections Amount of
EE A &5 reversals
EFHRMIEIR  or collections
EESHE HOeH
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR® T
6,687,500 2,462,750

The Group obtained a right of receiving rent from one

shop of Beijing Guanyuan, and the income of the rent

were predicted to receive by the lessee’s credit status,

so provision of bad debt for Beijing Guanyuan was

partly recovered.

Receivables due from related parties

ARARCREB TS —REHHE
S UaE BARBAE A OERRR
BEtHE WS EE LRSS
Bl EE AR RHRIE A AR A
(O] & 3R 8 DR AR R4

HAth FE UK BE RS 77 O FRIRAA T

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Proportion of the
amount to the total
Relationship with other receivables (%)
Name of entity the Company Amount 1 E Ath FE UK BR X
BuEB B QTR &8 HBERR EE B (%)
RMB
AR® T
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary
Bt E FRA] 450,000,000 76
Shoulian Supermarket Subsidiary
EldEn FRAE] 45,000,000 8
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary
REEEIMN FAR] 25,279,063 4
Xinyang Tongli Subsidiary
fRE5 38 77 FAR] 3,000,000 1
Total &5 523,279,063 89
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2013

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

5+ HtEWR(E)

(2) 2013%12H31H

Disclosure of other receivables by categories: H A EUGR D R R -
2013.12.31
“E-=F+-A=1-H
Carrying amount Bad debt provision
REAE BREE
Amount  Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
Category fER] &% L 1(%) 8 £ 1(%)
RMB RMB
AR ARET
Other receivables that are individually — EESHE AW EBHERR 115,309,575 66 6,687,500 85
significant and for which bad debt EEHE R
provision has been assessed
individually
Other receivables for which bad debts A EZEREEN LR
provision has been assessed by HEBSBIEAERER
portfolios AR SEA
Other receivables that are not ABZBANEREARN 48,385,462 28 - -
individually significant but have Hi sk
significant risk when divided into
a portfolio by similar credit risk
characteristics
Other insignificant other receivables B RS A H etk 8,326,004 5 = =
Total of portfolio BAENG 56,711,466 33 - -
Other receivables that are not individually 8754 %8 A& A B £IB:HERE 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 15
significant but for which bad debt REEHOH LR
provision has been assessed individually
Total A&t 174,072,341 100 7,859,272 100
Aging analysis of other receivables is as follows: HAh EYCRERER AT ¢
2013.12.31
2=+ R=t—H
Bad debt Carrying
Amount  Proportion (%) provision amount (%)
Aging R +8 EL (%) BERERE FHER
RMB RMB RMB
ARBT ARET NS
Within 1 year TENR 160,733,541 9 - 160,733,541
1- 2 years 1-26F 2,051,300 1 1,171,772 879,528
3-4 years 3-4%F 11,287,500 7 6,687,500 4,600,000
Total Bt 174,072,341 100 7,859,272 166,213,069
2014 3

¢
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued)

(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued)

Bad debt provision of other receivables which are

individually significant is as follows: AE{R Y ELAth FE LK
Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
amount bad debt provision (%)  Reasons
Content of other receivables Hit T AS RE ST BHREE  FRNOI%) B
RMB RMB
ARET ARET
Beijing Guanyuan wholesale TRERAMETSERAR 6,687,500 6,687,500 100 Controversial
market Company debts which
are unlikely to
be recovered
ERABRHE
EFEmIE
BEZ:Z
Bad debt provision of other receivables which are not BIRERSBIEANBIRERE
individually significant is as follows: 18 B H At R IR
Carrying Amount of  Proportion of
amount bad debt provision (%)  Reasons
Content of other receivables AR AS RHHBE BRe®  HRHA%) B
RMB RMB
ARET ARET
Beijing Baili Tongda Trading Co., Ltd. JtRAFIREFHLEERAR 2,051,300 1,171,772 57 Controversial
debts which
are unlikely to
be recovered
EBABRE
EFEMRE
BEZEZVA
Reversals and collections during the current period: REERMFBEREAT
Accumulated
bad debt
Basis of provision prior
determining the to reversals
Reasons for original bad or collections Amount of
Content of reversals or debt provision 8 [o] 5] R 5T reversals
other receivables collections T E RER EEHRA SR or collections
Hib YR AR O HRE AR KT EHTR EE ]
RMB RMB
ARETT AR
Beijing Guanyuan Partially recovered Controversial debts 6,812,500 125,000

Wholesale Market
Company

I REEERLETNS
BRAA
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(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

5. HtEWR(E)

(2) 20134125318 (#&)

HIRE ST EAL EIIHERE

which are unlikely
to be recovered

BB ABRRIFEFH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) PRI EBRRETEEE TR (E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Other receivables (Continued) 5. HispEWR(E)
(2) 31 December 2013 (Continued) (2) 2013%12531H(#&)
Receivables due from related parties E e s s BT

Proportion of the
amount to the total

Relationship with the other receivables (%)
Name of entity Company Amount 1 E A FE MR X
BAIHTE EVAN/NTS] 7R G HRERH L (%)
RMB
ARETT
Chaopi Trading Subsidiary 63,560,042 37
it E FARA]
Jingkelong Tongzhou Subsidiary 25,993,303 15
RERERM FRA
Chaopi Zhongde Subsidiary 955,199 1
Bt G FRa
Chaopi Flavourings Subsidiary 611,727 -
ARt IAR FAR]
Chaopi Huaqging Subsidiary 448,614 -
HRtES FRA
Chaopi Oil Sales Subsidiary 236,344 -
Bt R BE g TR
Chaopi Shuanglong Subsidiary 124,377 -
Bt ERE FAR]
Chaopi Shenglong Subsidiary 22,781 -
TR AR FRad
Total &5 91,952,387 53
(3) Disclosures of other receivables by detail: (3) HEREMEIREMERL
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—NmEF 2=
Detail of other receivables H Ath FEBGR M E +=A=+—-H| +=ZA=+—8
RMB RMB
AR% T AREET
Receivables of sales promotion FEWRSHER 54,448,770 48,385,462
Receivables of prepaid rent EWFER SR - 4,600,000
Receivables of reimbursed expenses  JEY (L ¥ 2 1,032,326 1,318,016
Receivables of reimbursed project funds YW (2 T2 5% = 19,068,730
Receivables of funds of related parties & Y& B 75 7008 523,279,063 91,952,387
Others Hib 4,684,572 888,474
Total A&t 583,444,731 166,213,069

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- )

5,

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

Other receivables (Continued) 5 HthpEWR(E)
(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other (4) HERFTGEENRI RGBSR
receivables HEb R 1ER
31 December 2014 2014128318
Proportion of Closing
the amount to balance of
total other bad debt
Quality of receivables (%) provision
Name of entity other receivables Amount  Age 1 E A L BRER
BERUER MEME BReE K& BEMLLH(%) BRBE
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARM T
Chaopi Trading Receivables of subsidiary 450,000,000  Within 1year 76 -
HiteEE borrowing 1E LR
FRRMEK
Shoulian Supermarket Receivables of subsidiary 45,000,000  Within 1 year 8 -
Edn borrowing 1EHR
FRAMEBK
Jingkelong Tongzhou Receivables of subsidiary 25,279,063  Within 1 year 4 -
REEBN borrowing 1ENR
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Receivables of prepaid rent 6,549,750  4-5 years 1 4,224,750
Market Company BAe 4Z5F
TREEERIETSER AR
Xinyang Tongli Receivables of subsidiary 3,000,000 Within 1 year 1 -
fREz@ N borrowing kD
FRRMER
Total &5 529,828,813 90 4,224,750
ANNUAL REPORT 2014




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.

receivables (Continued)

31 December 2013

Other receivables (Continued)

B 75 R 2 P

At

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

(4) Top five entities with the largest balances of other

5

Hib B ()

(4) BRI EFER KRG L S
AR H1ER ()

2013%F12A31H

Proportion of Closing
the amount to balance of
the total other bad debt

Quality of receivables (%) provision
Name of entity other receivables Amount  Age HE MR ERRER
B AT FORME HRe®E Rie AL %) HIREAE
RMB RMB
AEET N
Chaopi Trading Receivables of borrowing 63,560,042  Within 1 year 36 -
B and transferring 1EUA
ERRARHR
Jingkelong Tongzhou Receivables of borrowing 25,993,303  Within 1 year 15 =
REERM ERR TELAA
Beijing Hongchao Weiye Receivables of prepaid rent 19,068,730  Within 1 year 11 -
State-owned-enterprises BEE 1EUA
Management Co., Ltd.
(Note (VII), 4(1), Note 1)
SAEERZ (R (L) - 40)23)
Beijing Guanyuan Wholesale Receivables of prepaid rent 6,687,500  3-4 years 4 6,687,500
Market Company LR 3E4F
TREEEREETSERAR
Beijing Guibao Baodi Hotel Receivables of prepaid rent 4,600,000  Over 3 years 3 -
Management Co., Ltd. icloriikn 3FLAE
IRREEEEEERERLA
Total A&t 119,909,575 69 6,687,500

Other receivables exceeding RMB 5 million are

classified as individually significant by the Company

AAEHEEFEHARES008 T
EMEMERFERAEBSHEE
RHFRIA ©

2014 &

R REEEEERGBRAR

¢



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

- )

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6.

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

Inventories 6 FE
(1) Categories of inventories (1) FEHHE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
ZE-ME+ZAZ1-H “E-ZF+-HA=T-H
Provision Provision
Gross  for decline Net Gross for decline Net
carrying in value of carrying carrying in value of carrying
amount inventories amount amount inventories amount
Item EH REHE BEEE REEE RERE HEEE KHEE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR AR AR ARET ARET ARET
Merchandise EFA® 297,400,901 583,257 296,817,644 | 330,112,863 200,456 329,822,407
Raw materials [RAT# 4,400,217 - 4400217 | 6,474,804 - 64748%
Reusable materials FEHH - - - 601,149 - 601,149
Total At 301,801,118 583,257 301,217,861 | 337,188,906 290,456 336,898,450
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, R2014%F12 A318 K2013F12A4
there were no inventories pledged as collateral or 318 - EARERNERNEFSE -
guarantee.
(2) Provision for decline in value of inventories (2) HFEHKBEERE
Opening Decrease in the year Closing
carrying Increase KERD carrying
amount in the year Reversal Write-off amount
Category of inventories FEER 2014.1.1 REHRE #[ B 2014.12.31
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET N AR ARET N
Merchandise EFER 290,456 292,801 - - 583,257
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) PRI EBRRETEEE TR (E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. Other current assets 7. HiREBEE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mEF —T—=F
ltem TH B +=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Short-term investment A E (MREGS) »

(Note(Vl) 6 Note 1) 627F1) 90,000,000 20,000,000
Tax credit FRENETRR 65,728,801 76,284,853
Prepaid lease charge FHHSER 21,174,704 17,857,980
Prepaid heating expenses FEHEED 2,095,723 2,572,210
Other prepaid expenses (Note 1) Hi &R (5E1) 1,481,492 904,993
Total &8 180,480,720 117,620,036
Note 1: Other prepaid expense includes property fees, cleaning 71 EMSEERIECREANDEE -

fees, security fees, etc. REB - RLBE -
8. Entrusted Loans 8- ZEEX
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ET-mEF —FT—=
ltem T8 B +=—A=+—H +=—A=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Entrusted loans ZER
Related party E2)ial 100,000,000 350,000,000
Total il 100,000,000 350,000,000
The Company entrusted Shanghai Pudong Development ZEETERBA R L HEE
Bank Beijing Branch to lend to Chaopi Trading, a subsidiary BBITIERDITELRARRIZFAFE
of the Company. The maturity date is January 2016. The HEZERFRIE - ZIH A AB2016F1A -
annual interest rate of those entrusted loans for 2014 is R20145F [ F | K £6.15% (20134 :
6.15%. (2013: 6.15%) 6.15%) °
As at 31 December 2014, the entrusted loans had no R2014%F 128318 » ZEERHER
indication of impairment and thus no impairment provision is BEFR  EERBUREZLERE -
necessary

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) A EMBEREERRA R (A)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Long-term equity investments 9 RERERE

Explanation
of the
inconsistency
between the
proportion
of ownership
interest
and the
proportion
Proportion Proportion of voting
of ownership of voting power Provision for
interestin the  power in the EHRE impairment Cash
investee (%) investee (%) EfR  Provision for losses for dividends
Accounting Investment 2014.1.1 2014.12.31 THRE THRE  HAERE  impaiment the year for the year
Investee method cost —E-ME Changes ~ —5-DF Bfigk Efikit AT losses KEGHE -3
HREER BERE NRERAE -A-A #£5%9 +-B=t-A Hhl%)  EEB%)  -BEEE HEER HEEE RE4A
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARET ARETR ARET AR®T ARET AR®T ARET AR%T ARET AR%T

Long-term equity investment

to subsidiaries

B OARARERE

Jingkelong Langfang Costing

REREYS A% 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000 100 100 - - - -
Chaopi Trading Costing

WEg A 55,733,000 436,505,594 - 436,505,504 79.85 79.85 - - - 39925900
Xinyang Tongli Costing

TGE AE 832500 1,665,000 - 1,665,000 52,03 52,03 - - - 333,000
Shoulian Supermarket Costing

EREm HAE 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 422,484,500 100 100 - 5 5 5
Jingkelong Tongzhou Costing

REEAN Bz 29,000,000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000 100 100 - - 5 =
Total A3 973,635,094 - 973,635,004 - - 40,258,900

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Long-term equity investments (Continued)

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

9 RERERE(E)

Explanation
of the
inconsistency
between the
proportion
of ownership
interest
and the
proportion
Proportion Proportion of voting
of ownership of voting power Provision for
interestinthe  power in the Thia impairment Cash
investee (%) investes (%) BfiEk  Provision for losses for dividends
Accounting Investment 2013.1.1 2013.12.31 EREE EREE  HAIERE impaiment theyear  for the year
Investee method cost —E-=f Changes  —F-=f& Bl Bfikit BB losses AR 5
HREEN BERE TR ERA i BREY T-A=1-A $tf) R —HeE REER WEER R
RMB RVB RMB RMB RMB RMB RVB RMB RVB RMB
ARETR ARET ARHT ARET ARET ARER ARET ARETR ARET ARER
Long-term equity investment
to subsidiaries
HFRARDRERE
Jingkelong Langfang Costing
REERY 1.5 8,000,000 83,980,000 - 83,980,000 100 100 - - - =
Chaopi Trading Costing
i A 55733000 296015210 140490324 436,506,594 798 7985 - - - 58771400
Xinyang Tongli Costing
AN A% 832,500 1,665,000 - 1,665,000 52.03 52.03 - - - 333,000
Shoulian Supermarket Costing
BB B 121,160,000 422,484,500 - 420484500 100 100 - - - =
Jingkelong Tongzhou Costing
REERN BAE 29000000 29,000,000 - 29,000,000 100 100 - - - =
Total A3 833,144,770 140,490,324 973,635,094 - - 59,104,400

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, there is no

restriction on the capability of transferring fund from investee

to the Company.

R2014F12831H K&2013412 531
AARRFENRPRERE ZWRE
BUEAABEBESHENRZEIR

il o

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

- 0

10.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties measured at cost

2014.12.31

ltem

|. Total original carrying amount
1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the year
(1) From the fixed assets
3. Decrease in the year
4. Closing balance
Il. Total accumulated depreciation
1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the year
(1) depreciation or amortisation
(2) From the fixed assets
3. Decrease in the year
4. Closing balance
[ll. Provision for investment properties
1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the year
3. Decrease in the year
4. Closing balance
IV. Total net book value of fixed assets
1. Closing balance
2. Opening balance

HA

g s

g > @

- FRERE

e
REIR NS FE

N —

(1) HEEEEEA

AR &
HIREREE

. BeRR
AHAIE N FR

N —

(1) &tizsk#sy
2 HEEEEEA

3. AEIRAEE

4, HIR#RE
- REEE
1. Huem

2. AHMEEE
3. AKEmALEE
4.  HRREREE
BRMAEE

1. HREEEE
2. HAWIBREEE

10 REMEME

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

A B RE M B E

2014%12H31H

L SHTE N Rt

Buildings
EEREEY
RMB
AR¥T

53,557,051
39,371,960
39,371,960

92,929,011

16,071,687
13,266,253

1,750,083
11,516,170

29,337,940

63,591,071
37,485,364

Total
&t
RMB
AR® T

53,557,051
39,371,960
39,371,960

92,929,011

16,071,687
13,266,253

1,750,083
11,516,170

29,337,940

63,591,071
37,485,364

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10.

Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties measured at cost (Continued)

20138.12.31

[tem EH

FRHERE

|. Total original carrying amount ==

1. Opening balance 1. HU&RE
2. Increase in the year 2. AHEmMEE
3. Decrease in the year 3. AHmLem
4. Closing balance 4.  HIREREE
Il. Total accumulated depreciation = BitihE
1. Opening balance 1. H9em
2. Increase in the year 2. ARHBEMEE
(1) depreciation or amortisation (1)  AHREHR
3. Decrease in the year 3. AERLeEE
4. Closing balance 4.  HAREREE
lll. Provision for investment properties = - JEi{E %M
1. Opening balance 1. Hiyes
2. Increase in the year 2. ZARHEIMEEE
3. Decrease in the year 3. XKHRLEm
4. Closing balance 4. HAR#REE
IV. Total net book value of fixed assets PO - BREIB(E
1. Closing balance 1. HEAREEEEE
2. Opening balance 2. EAYIRRE(EE

10 REMEHEE)
LA Gt ER R E MM E (&)

2013512 A31H

Buildings

BB KGR EEY)
RMB
ARETT

53,557,051

53,557,051
14,417,040
1,654,647
1,654,647

16,071,687

37,485,364
39,140,011

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

Total

At

RMB

ARETT

53,557,051

53,557,051

14,417,040
1,654,647
1,654,647

16,071,687

37,485,364
39,140,011

On 31 December 2014, the investment properties with net
book value of RMB 4,206,406 (On 31 December 2013:
RMBO0) were pledged to secure certain of the Company’s
short-term bank loans. See Note (XIl) 16. The investment
properties with net book value of RMB 20,304,654 (On 31
December 2013: RMB 7,447,628) were pledged to secure
certain of the Company’s long-term bank loans. See Note (XII)
25.

MR20145F12A31H FEH AR
4,206,40670(2013F12A318 : Tjt)

WIRE S EDS BERITRIERD

H A

HHRY - 2RMFE(T) - 16 ° 72014
F12A31H - FELNARK20,304,654
JL(2013F 12310 : AR¥7,447,628
TR EEEMERBIERTRBAME
KHIEARY) - 2RMIF(+H=) - 25

2014 &

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Fixed assets

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

11 BEEE

2014.12.31 2014%12831H
Electronical
Machinery devices and  Transportation
Buildings and equipment others vehicles Total
Item BE EEREEN BERE BFRERIM ERRk ait
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
N N ARHT AR®T ARHT
. Total original carrying amount  — -~ EEEBE
1. Opening balance 1. HsE 919,396,510 572,921,309 102,629,157 16,370,687  1,611,317,663
2. Increase in the year 2. TEENE 4,516,010 34,117,308 4,451,062 1,069,628 44,154,008
(1) Purchase (1) BE 4,516,010 26,978,384 4,113,286 1,069,628 36,677,308
(2) From the () #EBRIE
constructions in BA
process - 7,138,924 337,776 - 7,476,700
3. Decrease in the year 3. XERD 39,371,960 8,978,192 4,274,396 829,341 53,453,889
(1) Disposal (1) AERE - 8,978,192 4,274,396 829,341 14,081,929
@) Toinvestment () BAREM
properties BiE 39,371,960 - - - 39,371,960
4, Closing balance 4, BRHBE 884,540,560 598,060,425 102,805,823 16,610,974  1,602,017,782
Il Total accumulated depreciation =+ Rzt
1. Opening balance 1. BI%E 215,384,776 322,697,757 78,251,288 9,229,064 625,562,885
2. Increase in the year 2. REENE 31,596,053 50,832,278 7,499,342 1,870,623 91,798,296
(1) depreciation or (1) AFE:R
amortisation 31,596,053 50,832,278 7,499,342 1,870,623 91,798,296
3. Decrease in the year 3. AERSE 11,516,170 8,475,657 4,140,492 789,800 24,922,119
(1) Disposal (1) ~ERE - 8,475,657 4,140,492 789,800 13,405,949
(2) To the investment () BAREMH
properties BHE 11,516,170 - - - 11,516,170
4. Closing balance 4, HRBE 235,464,659 365,054,378 81,610,138 10,309,887 692,439,062
. Total net book value of fixed =+ BEEEE
assets
1. Closing balance 1. BXREEE 649,075,901 233,006,047 21,195,685 6,301,087 909,578,720
2. Opening balance 2. BUEEEE 704,011,734 250,223,552 24,377,869 7,141,623 985,754,778
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11. Fixed assets (Continued)

2013.12.31
Buidings
ltem R FEEREEN
RMB
AR
. Total original carrying amount  — - RERE
1. Opening balance 1. BsE 867,821,795
2. Increase in the year 2. AFENE 61,574,715
(1) Purchase (1) BE 7,106,911
(2) Fromthe (Q #EIR
constructions in EEUN
process 54,468,804
3. Decrease in the year 3. AERD =
(1) Disposal (1) AERE -
(2) Toinvestment Q) BAREM
properties BiE
4. Closing balance 4. BRBE 919,396,510
Il Total accumulated depreciation =+ Z:fE 5
1. Opening balance 1. BsE 184,147,019
2. Increase in the year 2. KEENE 31,237,757
(1) depreciation or (1) AEHR
amortisation 31,287,757
3. Decrease in the year 3. AFHLE =
(1) Disposal ) ~ERE =
) To the investment 0 BAREH
properties EiE
4, Closing balance 4, BRHE 215,384,776
Il Total net book value of fixed = BEEE
assets
1. Closing balance 1. BREEEE 704,011,734
2. Opening balance 2. HNEEEE 673,674,776

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

11 BEEEE)

Machinery

and equipment
KaRE

RMB

AEET

525,060,434
61,536,836
32,887,029

28,649,807
13,674,961
13,674,961

572,921,309

286,329,758
48,182,804

48,182,804

11,814,805
11,814,805

322,697,757

250,223,562
238,729,676

20134 12H31H

Electronical
devices and  Transportation
others vehicles Total
ETREREM ERHE ait
RMB RMB RMB

ARETL ARET ARETL

101,450,270 13,650,448  1,497,981,947
10,774,195 3,444,060 137,329,806
9,036,647 3,444,060 52,473,647

1,737,548 = 84,856,159
9,505,308 723,821 23,994,000
9,595,308 723,821 23,994,000

102,629,157 16,370,687  1,611,317,663

79,184,644 8,832,591 558,494,012

8,332,806 918,639 88,672,006
8,332,806 918,639 88,672,006
9,266,162 522,166 21,603,133
9,266,162 522,166 21,603,133

78,251,288 9,229,064 625,562,885

24,377,869 7,141,623 985,754,778
22,265,626 4,817,857 939,487,935

As at 31 December 2014, the fixed assets with the net book
value of RMB 57,380,803 (as at 31 December 2013: RMB
0) were pledged to secure certain of the Company’s short-
term bank loans. See Note (XIl) 16.The fixed assets with the
net book value of RMB 117,596,777 (as at 31 December
2013: RMB 140,039,233) were pledged to secure certain of

the Company’s long-term bank loans. See Note (XIl) 25.

M2014F12H318  F E A R &
57,380,803 0(2013%F12A31H A
RETTIMNETEENMERRABE
RITBHERNERD T BIBH -
ZREMEF(FZ) 16 FEARYE
117,596,77770(2013F12A31H + A
[R#140,039,2337T ) EE EEBFTE
REBERTREOEROERY M X
R o 2RMFF(+Z) 25
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

288

12. Construction in progress

Details of construction in progress are as follows:

12 FEIRE

2014.12.31
—Z-ME+=A=1-AH

Provision for

FEETIZRMANT

2013.12.31

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

“E-=#+ZH=1-A

Provision for

Carrying  impairment  Net carrying Carrying impairment Nt carrying

amount losses amount amount losses amount

Item A REE HEEE REFE REHE REERE REFAE

RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB

NG NG NG ARET ARETL ARETL

Shuangcieo Project 2REIR 50,163,443 50,163,443 | 49,825,460 49,825,460

Pingfang Project TEIR 36,694,407 36,694,407 | 36,694,407 36,694,407

Jiuxiangiao Project ElETRE 509,279 509,279 3,180,911 3,180,911
Renovation Project of Drysaltery ¥ &Rz 172

Distribution Center 713,685 713,685

Renovation Project of BHERETLR

Convenience Stores 501,780 501,780
Renovation Project of Fresh A&tz TH2

Food Distribution Genter 1,759,806 1,759,806 321,263 321,263

Fatou Project SEETE 177,760 177,760 = =

Total At 89,304,695 89,304,695 | 91,237,506 - 91,237,506
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) A EMBRREERA R (A)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Construction in progress (Continued) 12 EEIR(E)
(1) Changes in significant construction in progress (1) EXGEZEIBREEZEHEL
31 December 2014 2014%F12H31H
Transfer
to fixed
assets,
long-term
prepaid
expenses
and Amount Including:
intangible injected as Amount of capitalised Interest
assets a proportion accumulated interest  capitalisation
Increasein ~ EARE 20141231 of budget capitalised ~for the year rate for the
Budget 201411 thecurent EEE&F Other ZZ-M%  amount (%) Construction interest i year (%)
Item name amout  —E-RE year EERRE  decreases tZB  IERAE  progess ASEAL  AEHE  AEHE  Source of funds
ER%H BE®  -R-R KEEM  GRER EMEY  St-B EBERM) IREEC) @ EHEE  ERLEE  ERLE%) EENE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARBn  ARBn  ARMR  AR®Rn  ARET  ARE% ARET  AR¥R
Shuanggao Project 108,888,036 49,825,460 337,983 - - 50,163,443 46 463,000,000 - - Own funds/bank
(Note VI-10-1) loans
ERIR(MHR023H) BEELRET
U
Pingfang Project 73,655,986 36,694,407 - - - 36,694,407 50 50 425,988 - - Own funds/bank
(Note VI-10-2) loans
TRIR(HER02:32) BEELRAN
-3
Renovation of Shuanglong | 34,504,295 - 34,504,295 34,504,295 - - 100 100 141,303 141,308 553 Own funds/bank
Project loans
ERERNTE BEELRAN
T
Renovation Project of 9,466,748 713,685 2,365,840 3,079,525 - - 38 38 30,085 16,400 553 Own funds/bank
Drysaltery Distribution loans
Center BRESREA
GERATR -RiH
Other construction in 12123701 400395 7,021,207 8584316 - Q446845 4210100 420100 86,894 79,853 553 Own funds or/
progress 0EI00  42F100 and bank
EERTR loans
BE449/R
B-RiER
Toﬁ\ 91,287506 44,235,325 46,168,136 - 89,304,695 3,684,210 237,556
Az
An

2014 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Con

12. Construction in progress (Continued)

tinued)

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

(1) Changes in significant construction in progress

(Continued)

31 December 2013

12 EEIR(E)

(1) BEAGEZEIFREEEZEER(E)

20135 12H31H

Transfer
to fived
assets,
long-term Amount Including:
prepaid injected as Amount of  capitalised Interest
£Xpenses a proportion accumulated interest  capialisation
hoeasein  EAER 20131231 of budget capitalised for the year  rate for the
Budget 201311  thecurent EE- &F Oher  ZF—ZF  amount (%) Construction interest i year (%)
tem name amout  —E-=F year  BERRE  decreases TR IBEME  pogess FEERL  AEFE AFHS  Source of funds
BR%H BBy -A-R 0 AEEM GEER ARED TR BEMn IRERN)  RHeE  EALEE  ARbEwW) EEME
RVB RVB RVB RMB RVB RVB RVB RVB
ARER  ARET  ARER AR ARMR  ARER ARET  ARER
Shuanggao Project 100,636,426 49,825,460 - - - 49825460 50 50 3,000,000 - - QOwn funds/oank
(Note VI-10-1) oans
SRIR( 0281 BEESREA
—Hfas
Pingfang Project 73,665,986 83,780 36,610,627 - - 36,694,407 50 50 425,988 425,988 531 Own funds/bank
TRIR loans
BEAS RS
i
Changping Project 68482645 54164902 14317643 68,482,545 - - 100 100 5541916 727,334 531 Own funds/bank
(Note VI-10-2) oans
AR BEES R
—Higx
Tuofangying Store Project 30,631,608 27,546,542 3,085,066 30,631,608 - - 100 100 - - - QOwnfunds
PREEIE BEEE
Wanging Store Project 30492983 415,111 21,896,772 26,047,883 - - 100 100 338,843 102,530 531 Own funds/ank
EREMETR loans
BRESRH
—Rigx
Sanjanfang Project 19570981 5937562 13633419 19570981 - - 100 100 148,168 120,465 531 Own funds/bank
“RRIE loans
BEEL T
—hiast
Tiandalu Store Project 8,127,934 - 8193 8121934 - - 100 100 - - - Ownfunds
RERETR BRES
Jinzhan Store Project 5,404,280 - 5404280 5,404,280 - - 100 100 - - - Ownfunds
SEETE BEE2
Other construction in 16649183 1217954  14,865806 11,366,121 - 4TI7639 Q1100 9210100 475,292 31,470 531 Own funds/bank
progress loans
AfEETE BRES R
—RiER
Total 142,007,311 117941547 169,631,352 91,237,506 9930207 1,747,787

=1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) PRI EBRRETEEE TR (E)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. Intangible assets 13 B EE
(1) Intangible assets (1) BEELERX
2014.12.31 2014%12H31H
Software
Land development
use rights costs Total
Item HAE T fEFIRE BUHRE At
RMB RMB RMB
AR® R AR%R AR® R
I Total original carrying amount — REFRE
1 Opening balance 1. EAVIRREE 99,320,894 16,920,131 116,241,025
2 Increase in the year 2. AEEMEHR - 3,134,365 3,134,365
(1) Purchase 1) EE - 3,134,365 3,134,365
3 Closing balance 4. EARHE 99,320,894 20,054,496 119,375,390
Il.  Total accumulated amortisation — - ZFHEE
1 Opening balance 1. EAVIeEE 15,915,922 8,895,186 24,811,108
2 Increase in the year 2. REMEMEE 2,722,889 1,979,063 4,701,952
(1) Amortisation in the year (1) &R 2,722,889 1,979,063 4,701,952
3 Closing balance 3. BAR#RE 18,638,811 10,874,249 29,513,060
lll. Total net book value of intangible assets = BEE(E(E
1. Closing balance 1. BREEEE 80,682,083 9,180,247 89,862,330
2. Opening balance 2. HAYERMEE(E | 83,404,972 8,024,945 91,429,917
2013.12.31 2013%F12H31H
Software
Land  development
use rights costs Total
ltem JHE T b A BHHEE Bt
RMB RMB RMB
AEET AEEET ANEHET
I Total original carrying amount — RERE
1 Opening balance 1. HIYIEREE 95,109,412 14,882,010 109,991,422
2 Increase in the year 2. AREMEINEEE 4,211,482 2,038,121 6,249,603
(1) Purchase 1) BE = 2,038,121 2,038,121
(2) From the construction in process (2 EEIR
BA 4,211,482 = 4,211,482
(3) From the investment properties 1) wEUE
HEEA
3 Closing balance 3. HiR&E 99,320,894 16,920,131 116,241,025
Il.  Total accumulated amortisation — Rt
1 Opening balance 1. Hi¥erEE 13,211,372 7,057,750 20,269,122
2 Increase in the year 2. AHEEINEE 2,704,550 1,837,436 4,541,986
(1) Amortisation in the year (1) R 2,704,550 1,837,436 4,541,986
3 Closing balance 3. AEIRD
(1) To the investment properties (1) BAKRE
1 5 1 EE
4 Closing balance 4, HARHE 15,915,922 8,895,186 24,811,108
Ill. Total net book value of intangible assets = -BEEE(E
1. Closing balance 1. HKREREEE 83,404,972 8,024,945 91,429,917
2. Opening balance 2. BYREEE 81,898,040 7,824,260 89,722,300
2014 F3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

m )

13. Intangible assets (Continued)

(1) Intangible assets (Continued)

On 31 December 2014, the land use rights with net
book value of RMB6,290,530 (31 December 2013:RMB
0) were pledged to secure certain of the short-term
bank loans. (Note (XIl) 16). The land use rights with
net book value of RMB13,094,704 (31 December
2013:RMB 13,536,098) were pledged to secure certain
of the long-term bank loans. (Note (XIl) 25).

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the

land use rights in intangible assets are medium-term

lease.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

13- B EE(E)
(1) BELERER(E)

M2014512A318 - FE O A
R %6,290,5307C(2013F 12 A
1R BN LI AEE A
ERITRBAEROERY - 2R
BAE(+ =) 16 FEHARE
13,094,7047t(2013%F12H31H8 :
AR #13,5386,0987T ) #) 1 Hb {F A
B AERITREE R ERY) -
SAME(H=) 25

201412 A31 8 K2013%E12 A
318 ARRIEFEETRH LI
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15.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

817

BRI AT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

14. Long-term prepaid expenses 14~ REIGBER
Reasons
2014.1.1 Increase  Amortisation Other 2014.12.31 for other
“E-NE inthe year  for the year reductions ZZ-M% reductions
Item b -A-H REEM  AEEHY HftHd tZA=t-8 HtHIRE
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
N U= N ARER NG
Leasehold improvements BB AEEEE 429,182,235 38,601,436 57,044,813 - 410,828,858 Disposal
BRXM RE
Rent il 27,806,625 55,103,201 - 8,918,578 73,991,248 Transferred to
current
assetes
BZRBEE
Total At 456,988,860 93,794,637 57,044,813 8,918,578 484,820,106
Reasons
2013.1.1 Increase  Amortisation Other 2013.12.31 for other
=% in the year for the year reductions ZZ—=F reductions
Item JEH —R-H REE REBREY s +ZA=t-B HttHIRA
RMB RMB RMB RvVB RMB
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
Leasehold improvements BEHAETEE 469,645,012 93,408,907 50,715,320 83,156,364 429,182,235 Disposal
BREH (Note (VII), 4(1)
Note(1))
RE(ME(L)
4(1)Z3(1)
Rent EH 40,629,625 - - 12,823,000 27,806,625 Transferred to
current assetes
BERYEE
Total At 510,274,637 93,408,907 50,715,320 95,979,364 456,988,860
Other non-current assets 15 HMERBEE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mF —E—=fF
ltem HE +=A=+—-R8B| +=ZA=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥ T ARET
Long-term receivables due from HoAFEENRIERR

Hongchao Weiye (Note (VIl) 4(1) (MEE(E) ~ 4(1)25E1)

Note 1) - 45,476,373
Security Deposit B IRE 5,163,435 5,318,721
Total S 5,163,435 50,795,094

2014 F3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. Short-term borrowings

17.

16~ EHIER

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-QmE —E—=

[tem IEH +=ZHA=+—H +=-A=+—8H
RMB RMB

AR T ARET

Guaranteed loans (Note 1) RFBEME R (FED) 390,000,000 250,000,000
Unsecured loans (Note 2) ERERGE2) 250,000,000 150,000,000
Mortgage guarantee (Note 3) RS (FE3) 200,000,000 -
Total A 840,000,000 400,000,000

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, those
short-term borrowings bear annual interest rate of 5.60%
and 6.00% to 5.40%, respectively. All of those loans were

repaid in time.

Note 1: See Note (VI) 17 Note 2

Note 2: See Note (VI) 17 Note 3

Note 3: See Note (VI) 17 Note 4.

Accounts payable

The aging of accounts payable based on the invoice date

M2014F12 8318  K&2013412 A31
B FillZEBERNFEFNEAE5.60%E
6.00% }5.60% + BT 1FE D B H

REENER

1 B2REECS) 17E2e

2 SRR 1753 ©

3 2RMEFEOS) 174

17 ~ TR

FEATER AR E N E B B F 0 BR ik 1A

™
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—MF —E—=F
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-8H| +=—A=+—8~
RMB RMB
AR AR
Within 1 year N 720,516,157 754,817,659
1-2 years 15824 658,898 3,472,570
2-3 years 25 3F 3,031,474 253,719
Total A&t 724,206,529 758,543,948

The accounts payable over 1 year were final payments for

suppliers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

18.

19.

Advances from customers

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
advances from customers are consisted of procurements
received in advance, among which there were no significant

advances from customers aged more than 1 year.

Employee benefits payable

(1) Listing of employee benefits payable

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

18~

L) ©

FE R E

2014128310 &k2013%F12A31H
AARTBRFEHATBERER - HA I
EIRECR IR 1 F R KR TEUKIA -

FE 13 Bk T 3657 B
(1) BB TEHMZR

201411 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31

—E-mE the year the year —E-mE

ltem EH -A-H AELEM XERY +-ZA=1-H

RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR¥T AR¥T ARETR ARET

1, Short-term benefits 1. SHEH 1,467,858 327,200,427 327,511,852 1,246,433
2. Welfare after service-defined 2. BRARH-ZERE

contribution plans HEl - 40,556,613 40,556,613 -

Total A%t 1,467,858 367,847,040 368,068,465 1,246,433

201311 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31

“E-=F the year the year —ET-=f

ltem EH —A—H AEEM KXERY +ZR=+-8

RMB RMB RMB RMB

ARET ARET ARET ARET

1. Short-term benefits 1 EEEH 4,993,456 304,425,627 307,951,225 1,467,858
2. Welfare after service-defined 2 BBERH-RTRE

contribution plans BE] - 38,580,603 38,580,603 -

Tota a4t 4993456 343006230 346531828 1,467,858

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |



(2) Listing of short term benefits

Wages or salaries, bonuses,

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

‘IE - RBe 2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

19~ ERBIHME)
(2) BHFHIT

201411 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31
—E2-mEF the year theyear ~ —E-I%F
-A-H RELM XERHSY +=A=+-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB

AR% T AR%T AR®TR AR%T

allowances and subsidies Gl - 263,896,773 263,896,773 -
Staff welfare ~BIRNE - 16,307,007 16,307,007 -
Social security contributions = HERRE - 23,961,753 23,961,753 -
Including: Medical insurance Hh: BERRE - 21,522,039 21,522,039 -

Work-related TERRE
injury insurance - 665,377 665,377 -
Maternity Insurance EERRE - 1,774,337 1,774,337 -
. Housing funds ERAESR - 15,720,201 15,720,201 -

Labour union expenditures and - TSRENRT

employees’ education expenses Big® 1,467,858 7,404,693 7,626,118 1,246,433
1,467,858 327,290,427 327,511,852 1,246,433
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31
—T-=f the year the year —T-=F
—A—A TREEM AERY T-A=1—H
RvMB RMB RvMB RMB
ARET ARETL ARET ARET

Wages or salaries, bonuses, CTE - ®e 2
allowances and subsidies pilkegsi - 246,561,100 246,561,109 -
Staff welfare Z BIRHE - 15,561,332 15,561,332 -
Social security contributions = HeRRE - 22,694,664 22,694,664 =
Including: Medical insurance i BERRE - 20,468,963 20,468,963 -
Work-related IERBRE - 607,468 607,468 =

injury insurance
Maternity Insurance EERBRE - 1,618,233 1,618,233 -
. Housing funds fEARES - 14,700,214 14,700,214 -
Labour union expenditures and ITERENRT

employees’ education expenses HERE 4,993,456 4,908,308 8,433,906 1,467,858

4,093,456 304,425,627 307,951,225 1,467,858

- 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

19. Employee benefits payable (Continued)

(3) Listing of defined contribution plans

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

19 EABIHME)
(3) REEF:E

2014.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2014.12.31
—E-mE the year the year —Z-mE

Item EH -A-A AER XERY +=ZA=1-H
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥ET AR ARETR ARER
Basic retirement Insurance EXEERBE - 38,691,077 38,691,077 =
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 1,865,536 1,865,536 -
Total = - 40,556,613 40,556,613 -
2013.1.1 Increase in Decrease in 2013.12.31

—T-Z=F the year the year —T-Z=F

ltem EH —A—H ARELE KERY +ZA=t-H

RMB RvMB RMB RvMB

ARET ARET ARET ARET

Basic retirement Insurance BEAEZRRE - 36,896,646 36,896,646 =
Unemployment insurance RERRE - 1,683,957 1,683,957 -

Total A&t - 38,580,603 38,580,603 -

20. Taxes payable 20 EXHE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—ZT-mF =

ltem THH +=—BA=+—H +=-—A=+—8H
RMB RMB

AR®T ARETT

Business tax R 2,816,667 3,086,549
Income tax Fri5#%t 4,214,987 1,717,256

Urban construction and T MR R AR TR

maintenance tax 2,830,544 2,631,715
Education surcharges HE BN 1,382,879 1,151,784
Others Hih 654,800 608,016
Total &R 11,899,877 9,195,320

2014 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

Xil.
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NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21. Other payables

(1) Details of other payables are as follows:

21~ HEAR

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

(1) EEMZHBHNT :

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E—MF ===
ltem JHB +=ZA=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB RMB
AR¥T AREETT
Deposit e 29,455,745 28,353,766
Construction fees payable FEfRt TRERK 83,145,299 92,556,036
Rent received in advance EW A 7,280,960 6,819,933
Others Hit 7,723,750 4,920,589
Total S 127,605,754 132,650,324

(2) Description of significant other payables aged more
than 1year
On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, other
payables aged more than 1year were mainly deposits

and construction fees payable.

22. Bonds payable

In 2013, the Company a five-year corporate Bond in an
aggregate amount of RMB 750 million, embedded with
option to increase the coupon interest rate by the issuer

and putable option by the investors (Note VI 24).

23. Long-term borrowings due within one year

See Note (VI)25.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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(2) BREEBIFHABERMENFIE

TRy B

R2014912 A31H K2013F 124
S1AKREKRHEA—FHEMEMNK
TEAHES R IRRANER -

e fE 3%

R20135E « AR REFBIRA QR
TARBTSETHHRARFENE
EFERBITALAZTENRBEBERR
EEBBEEROARES - 2RMF

(75)~24-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Other current liabilities

24~ HitREEE

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-—NE —E—=F

ltem HE +=A=+—-HB | +T=ZA=+—H

RMB RMB

AR¥T AREETT

Accrued expenses TEIRE A 27,599,757 31,111,873

Deferred revenue due within 16 A B H A IR E W

one year 7,308,713 4,502,260

Total A& 34,908,470 35,614,133
(1) Accrued expenses (1) FEEREH

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-lmEF —E—=F

[tem HH +=ZBA=+—H +=—A=+—H

RMB RMB

AR AREETT

Accrued interest expense FBIEFIEEA 17,748,164 21,908,090

Accrued audit expenses TEIRERE 1,926,792 2,040,000

Accrued rent TEiREM 3,188,703 1,958,193

Others Hih 4,736,098 5,205,590

Total il 27,599,757 31,111,873

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. Other current

(2) Deferred

liabilities (Continued)

income within one year:

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

24~ HitRBREE)
(2) 1FRERRIEL K 75

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—-mEF —F—=
ltem 15 H +=-HA=+—H +=A=+—H
Note RMB RMB
AR®T ARHETT
Asset-related government  — 4 A3 HAfY B & ZE AR
grants due within BB B Note 1
one year #F1 3,813,010 1,017,267
Considerations allocated 2 B R EEENITE D HY Note 2
to the award credits THEHHE w2 3,495,703 3,484,993
Total =D 7,308,713 4,502,260
Note 1:  Government grants related to assets due within 71 —FRIENEEEMRBNK
one year were consisted of deferred income due FI ## B) B AN R B 20054 & »
within one year generated from special funds 2013F E R2014F EWEIHNE
received in 2005, 2013 and 2014 by the Company EEEANBRCTKGES —F
and would be recognised as revenue in next year. AEERED  WIEHRT—F
See Note (VI) 29 (i) to (v). ErRME o 2 RMEGR)
29~ ()ZE(v) °
Note 2: The Group offers membership credit cards to F2:

customers, and awards credit reaching certain
points can be converted into cash while shopping.
As deferred income, considerations allocated to
the award credits will be recognised as revenue
when the award credits are converted or cleared

in next year.

AEEHBEBEERTERES
RESBREE  HRNEEEDE
A—EnENEFPESANE
BOEFTELASER - D&
RERED N HEHEERE
MYz - A HE R IR 9 1 iR
RHER RN ©

- )

25. Long-term borrowings

See Note (VI)27
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

(1) Deferred tax assets without offset

)

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

26 EEFBHEE(AE)

(1) REBHBWELEFEHEE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
Item ER “E-ME+ZA=1-H ZF-=f+ZA=1-A
Deductible Taxable

temporary Deferred temporary Deferred
differences tax assets differences tax assets
BE:Ril BEFMEH gl EREFEH
EHMER BB THMER BE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
IN: AR ARET ARET
Taxable government subsidly ERTBRED 17,015,166 4,953,792 E =
Total At 17,015,166 4,253,792 - -

Deferred tax liabilities without offset

(2) FKEBEWELZFEHERE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
ttem R Z2-METZA=T-H ZE-=f+ZA=1-H
Taxable Taxable
temporary  Deferred tax temporary Deferred tax
differences liabilities differences liabilities
Pt EEFEH FEA ERFAEH
ERfEER af ERfER af
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR%T N AR AR¥TL
Fair value adjustment of assets arising ~ FFEHIEEETARBAEE
from non-monetary asset exchange ArEEHE 16,805,144 4,201,286 17,871,583 4,467,896
Capitalized adjustment of EFBENSEA(LHEE
borrowing costs 9,675,869 2,418,967 11,225,891 2,806,473
Total At 26,481,013 6,620,253 29,097,474 7,274,369
2014 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26. Deferred tax assets (liabilities) (Continued)

27.

28.

- 3

(3) Net deferred tax liabilities with offset

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

26 EEFIBHEE(RE)(HF)

(3) LEHEFEITHELFEHEE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
ltem R ZE-METZA=T+-H ZE-=Et-A=t-H
Amount Amount
Offset amount after offset | Offset amount after offset
of deferred of deferred of deferred of deferred
tax assets tax assets tax assets tax assets
and deferred  and deferred and deferred and deferred
tax liabilities tax liabilities tax liabilities tax liabilities
BEMEH BHEEE BRAER RIRERL
EENSE FEHEED EENBE  FEHAER
HAEESE AEOASE | BVEESE  BEHNLE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
AR¥T ARET ARET ARET
Deferred tax assets EEMEREE 4,253,792 S = =
Deferred tax liabilities EREFMEHEE 4,253,792 2,366,461 - 7,274,369
Other non-current liabilities 27~ HitvERBEE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E—mF —E—=F
ltem HE +=ZBA=+—-H | +ZH=+—H
RMB RMB
AR AREETT
Long-term rentals payable RHEMAHES 6,400,000 8,000,000
Deferred revenue — government EIEURZE —
grants related to assets BE EA AN BTHEE 19,641,607 4,039,449
Total A&t 26,041,607 12,039,449

Deferred revenue is assets related government grants, see

Note(Xl) 29(i) to(v).

Share capital

See Note (VI) 30

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

29. Capital reserve 29 - EXNTE
There is no change in capital reserve between 2013 and R2014F E R2013F € - EARER
2014. BHER -
30. Surplus reserves 30~ BErATE
Opening Increase Decrease Closing
balance in the year in the year balance
ltem A 1A1R REEM KERHD 12A318
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARETL AR ARETL ARETL
2014 201458
Statutory surplus reserve FERBAR 105,723,585 6,070,206 - 111,793,791
2013 2013%E
Statutory surplus reserve ETRBRE 97,535,968 8,187,617 - 105,723,585

According to the Company Law and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company is required to transfer 10% of
its net profit to the statutory surplus reserve. The transfer
may be ceased if the balance of the statutory surplus
reserve has reached 50% of the Company’s registered

capital

Statutory surplus reserve can be used for covering losses,

expanding operation or capital transfer of the Company.

RBARDE  ARAIERNBE - AR
AIRFFEA10%IRBUE E BB A E
€ EERMABRIERAND A
BR50%PA FH) - AR -

AEBEBARAARNBAHEARNER
BARREERLENEENRER -

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

31.

32.

- )

Undistributed profits

31 RO EFE

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

Proportion of

Amount appropriation
ltem 1HH £E REIIELH
RMB RMB
AR ARHETT
2014: 20145 E :
Undistributed profits at the FHARS BECAE
beginning of the year 303,469,912
Add: net profit for the year hn o ARFSFEFE 60,702,056
Less: appropriation to statutory B IRBUATE BB AR
surplus reserve 6,070,206 10%
Dividend payable to FEAT 3 AR AR A
ordinary shareholders 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the end 4E R &9 ERF1E
of the year 316,879,762
2013: 2013FE :
Undistributed profits at the FR 5 BEAE
beginning of the year 271,003,360
Add: net profit for the year i REFFE 81,876,169
Less: appropriation to statutory B IREUETE BB AE
surplus reserve 8,187,617 10%
Dividend payable to FE AT 3 AR AR )
ordinary shareholders 41,222,000
Undistributed profits at the end £ ARk 5 FRFIE
of the year 303,469,912
Operating income and operating costs 32 BEIWAREERAK
2014 2013
ltem EA 20145 & 2013F
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Principal operating income FEEBBA 4,329,989,495 4,292,745 641
Other operating income HAab A 316,428,302 322,103,209
Operating costs = DN 3,686,565,591 3,658,535,498

The Company’s main business is retailing, and therefore the

top five customers are not disclosed.

The principal operating income is mainly consisted of selling

food, non-staple food, daily consumer goods, beverage and

wine.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. Business taxes and surcharges

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

33 BEB SR M

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

2014 2013
ltem 1HE 20145 E 2013F &
RMB RMB
AR® T ARHETT
Business tax = 16,122,633 16,507,807
Consumption tax SEHE 2,920,108 3,634,849
Urban construction and T A R RR R M E B I N
maintenance tax 11,500,532 11,796,601
Total A& 30,543,273 31,939,257
Operating expenses 34 BEEBH
2014 2013
ltem EYS 20145 E 20134 [E
RMB RMB
AR® T ARHETT
Wages and salaries B T 35 B 236,965,997 227,196,989
Depreciation and MEREIEER
amortization expense 142,779,028 132,387,301
Lease expenses HEEA 127,512,760 135,290,505
Others Hith 205,017,055 202,124,685
Total il 712,274,840 696,999,480
Administrative expenses 35 EEHER
2014 2013
ltem 15 H 20145 E 2013F &
RMB RMB
AR®T AREETT
Wages and salaries B T S B 122,299,345 108,019,412
Depreciation and ENMEHER
amortization expenses 5,782,011 5,861,135
Others Hith 30,927,412 43,502,456
Total SR 159,008,768 157,383,003

ERREEEEEERNDBRAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UEG R eV EES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S (12) AR BHRKRETEHETRE)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

- o)

36. Financial expenses 36~ MIKEH

2014 2013
ltem IHE 2014FE 2013F &
RMB RMB
AR AREET
Interest expense FEXH 86,450,964 70,209,433

Including: Interest expenses to bank  H : ERSERNEERRITER
in 5 years FEZH 44,905,169 44,727,489
Bond interest expense BEEMNEZ T 41,545,795 25,481,944
Less: Capitalized interest expenses 3 : F| 8 &t 458 237,556 1,747,787
Interest income F B A (44,610,101) (33,168,635)
Bank charges FEE 6,574,832 6,080,756
Exchange differences [E 5185 190,106 (103,484)
Total ST 48,368,245 41,270,283

37. Impairment losses on assets 37 EEREERX
2014 2013
ltem A 2014FE 2013 &
RMB RMB
AR®T AR
Provision for bad debts BERIRKETR /(@) (2,462,750) 1,046,772
Written-down of inventories TFEKEELX 292,801 290,456
Total AEHEX (2,169,949) 1,337,228
ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(12) PRI EBRRETEEE TR (E)
38. Investment income 38 » REWE

(1) REWZFHEELR

(1) Details of investment income

2014 2013
Item 1HE 20145 E 20135 Z
RMB RMB
AR AR

Long-term equity investments RAEZE B R EARR
under the cost method "B W= 40,258,900 59,104,400

Investment gain from buying BHMERKRERA

financial products 2,674,517 1,077,601
Total &t 42,933,417 60,182,001

2014512 A31H K2013F12A4
318 » AR AR E WK E R
GHEEKRRH -

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
there is no significant restriction on the Company’s
remittance of investment income.

390~ EEIRA

39. Non-operating income

(1) EZSPRABHUT :

(1) Details of non-operating income are as follows:

2014 2013

ltem IHE 20145 E 20135 [F
RMB RMB

AR®T AR

Government grants BRI A 12,656,251 5,576,085
Other Hih 2,052,903 748,659
Total & 14,709,154 6,324,744

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

39. Non-operating income (Continued)

40.

(2) Details of government grants

39 - BEINRA(E)
(2) BFF#BHE

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

BEIJING JINGKELONG COMPANY LIMITED

2014 2013
ltem 1HE 20145 E 2013 &
RMB RMB
AR ARETT
Compensation for government RS e B AR AR h
reserve expenses 1,044,000 1,044,000
Subsidies for the enterprise BE SRR T 5 EL
staff training 411,393 -
Subsidies to ease the BT ER N RL
employment pressure 2,119,024 1,912,825
Subsidies to support the R/ R AL
development of small and
medium enterprises - 1,000,000
Amortization of assets-related & MR M BT A B
government grants AT 7,608,799 829,617
Other subsidies Hh#mhh 1,473,035 789,643
Total D 12,656,251 5,576,085
Non-operating expenses 40 ~ EEINITH
2014 2013
Item HH 20145 E 2013F E
RMB RMB
AR¥ T AREET
Total losses on disposal of
non-current assets ERBEERBEAAE 336,563 2,120,920
Including: Loss on disposal of Enh BATEEREIBX
fixed assets 336,563 2,120,920
Accident compensations EREEES = 1,279,450
Others Hib 661,330 1,117,094
Total il 997,893 4,517,464
ANNUAL REPORT 2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(1) DA BRREERE TR E)

41 FREH

41. Income tax expenses

2014 2013
ltem EE 2014FE 20135 Z
RMB RMB
AR®ET ARBT

Current tax expense calculated BRE RABRARERTE &

according to tax laws and EHRTSH

relevant requirements 12,677,559 8,151,328
Deferred income tax expense EEATSTHE A (4,907,908) (654,115)
Total &t 7,769,651 7,497,213

Reconciliation of income tax expense to the accounting

profit is as follows:

IS E MBS FIERESRNT

2014 2013
ltem BERE 2014 E 2013F &
RMB RMB
AR® T AR¥ETT
Accounting profit st FE 68,471,707 89,373,382
Income tax expenses calculated at  Z25%HIT R BRI EFHE A
tax rate of 25% 17,117,927 22,343,346
Tax effect of non-deductible AN E BT 2
expenses 1,883,991 1,168,261
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERARTUA R MR 2 (11,232,267) (16,014,394)
Total A&t 7,769,651 7,497,213
2014 F1f
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

- )

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

42. Notes to the items in the cash flow statement

(1) Other cash received relating to operating activities

2014 2013

ltem 1HR 20145 E 2013F &
RMB RMB

AR® T ARETT

Rental income AL A 109,125,388 95,556,004
Scrap sales income &S A 2,519,768 2,701,417
Franchise income IR JEdRA 2,183,397 1,905,188
Government grant income IEGSEHEUNON 4,975,451 8,499,468
Recover the deposit ek 206,079 1,032,800
Others Hi 22,879,325 15,266,089
Total D 141,889,408 124,960,966

(2) Other cash paid relating to operating activities (2) FENWEMELEZTHERANES

2014 2013

ltem 1EHRE 20145 E 2013F &
RMB RMB

AR ARETT

Selling expenses (excluding rent) SHEBR(TEHEE) 205,466,498 202,581,134
Administrative expenses EIBEHR 19,740,467 27,378,563
Manufacturing costs FEBH 3,808,283 4,596,486
Rent paid SRk 112,838,494 121,150,073
Bank charges IRITFEE 5,308,622 5,024,511
Others H 4,283,050 2,445,272
Total il 351,445,414 363,176,039

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S () RBEIMBHRREEEETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Supplementary Information to Cash Flow Statement 43 - BERERBRER
(1) Supplementary information to cash flow statement (1) BEREXBZEH
2014 2013
Supplementary information HRER 20145 E 20135
RMB RMB
AR¥T AR
1. Reconciliation of operating 1. B ERG ALY
activities cash flows from EBRENE
net profit:
Net profit A E 60,702,056 81,876,169
Add:  Provision for impairment M EHEMBEREERE
losses of assets (2,169,949) 1,337,228
Depreciation of fixed assets BEEENE 91,798,296 88,672,006
Depreciation of RENEHENE
investment property 1,750,083 1,654,647
Amortization of BREESZH
intangible assets 4,701,952 4,541,986
Amortization of long-term RNFEEREH
prepaid expenses 57,044,813 50,715,320
Net losses of disposal of REETEE  BREAEN
fixed assets, intangible assets HihRAEEMFER
and other long-term assets 336,563 2,120,920
Financial expenses (including BHER(FELER)
foreign exchange gains and
losses) 43,059,623 36,245,772
Investment income REWER (42,933,417) (60,182,001)
Amortization of government AR TR
grants related to assets (7,608,799) (829,617)
Decrease (increases) FEREDCREM)
in inventories 35,387,788 (9,466,761)
Increase in deferred tax assets EREFERAEMEM (4,253,792) -
Decrease in deferred BERFEHARNRD
tax liabilities (654,116) (654,116)
Decrease (increase) in M REYUEE MRS
receivables from (migm)
operating activities 23,806,602 (20,819,602)
Increase in payables from R EITIRE AR (38 0)
operating activities (66,217,411) 104,692,463
Net cash flow from BEFHELNALRETE
operating activities 194,750,292 279,904,414
2. Net change in cash and 2 -BeRBeEEMFEHENR -
cash equivalents:
Closing balance of cash REMFRHE 145,369,262 255,644,218
Less:  Opening balance of cash W BeNENSE 255,644,218 236,502,341
Net increase (decrease) in cash ReRHeEEMTF
and cash equivalents EMECHE) (110,274,956) 19,141,877

2014 &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

43. Supplementary Information to Cash Flow Statement

44.

45.

(Continued)

(2) Cash and cash equivalents

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

43~ BEREBERBAER(F)

(2 ZHERFEZZEY

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-mE —F=F
ltem HE L=A=-1<Hlwr=A=+-8
RMB RMB
ARMET ARETT
Cash He
Including: Cash on hand Hep: BEEES 23,750,890 24,038,892
Bank deposits ABERF AR A HY
RITER 121,618,372 231,605,326
Cash and cash equivalents Be MR EEMERTE 145,369,262 255,644,218
Net current assets 44 - FREBERE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—2-mE —F=%F
ltem 1HE +=ZA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—¢H
RMB RMB
ARMET AREETT
Current assets MEVEE 1,825,118,194 1,397,155,573
Less: Current liabilities B REBAaB 2,220,747,811 2,004,996,868
Net current liabilities FRBBE (395,629,617) (607,841,295)
Total assets less current liabilities 45 WEERBRBERE
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—EF-nmE —F—=
ltem HE +=ZA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—8H
RMB RMB
AR¥ET ARETT
Total assets BERRE 4,541,073,645 4,434,482,186
Less: Current liabilities VAL 2,220,747,811 2,004,996,368
Assets less current liabilities WEERRESAE 2,320,325,834 2,429,485,318

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(DA AU BHRREIERETEE)

46 BB A REBLTXS

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(1) Inter-group transactions

(1) FEABEHIXES

1 Sales of goods to subsidiaries 1 HFRFIRIEERS
2014 2013
—E—-NfF —T-ZfF
Pricing basis Amount Amount
of related party ot | |
transaction RMB RMB
Subsidiary FATA] R A2 5 BB IR AR% T AREBTT
Jingkelong Langfang REE Ly Price negotiated
RETT & BIRHER 209,200,471 197,987,335
Jingkelong Tongzhou REMEBM  Price negotiated
RETT B IRHER 135,451,366 134,868,717
Shouchao Group EpetE] Price negotiated
RE T B ERER 358,301,936 395,432,839

2 Purchase of goods/receipts of services from 2 WTRERIMREEBSR #ES
subsidiaries B

2014 2013
—E—F —TE—=F
Pricing basis Amount Amount
of related party ot k)
transaction RMB RMB
Subsidiary FRF] Bl X 5 E BIKIE ARMETT AREETT

Chaopi Trading it E Price negotiated
REFHRBRER 205,985,058 273,753,039

Chaopi Huaging BAHLEE Price negotiated
RETT @ BERER 87,207,427 79,621,434

Chaopi Zhongde LR Price negotiated
REF R ERER 81,136,251 62,143,471

Chaopi Flavourings SARLFAR S Price negotiated
RET HRBERER 71,533,649 59,242,184

Chaopi Shenglong T EE R Price negotiated
RE T RBERER 41,779,972 44,787,866

Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales  ZA#t & mfg  Price negotiated
REFHRERER 34,164,276 37,957,601

Chaopi Shengshi LA Price negotiated
RET A ERER 24,622,197 =

Xinyang Tongli iR b5 38 71 Price negotiated
RER R ERER 11,082,675 13,550,858

Chaopi Shenglong AR B R Price negotiated
RE T R ERER 4,667,647 1,613,843

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UEG R eV EES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions
(Continued)

(1) Inter-group transactions (Continued) (1)

8  Leases to subsidiaries

46 - BB A REABAE XS (&)

3  AFRALHE

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

EERBEH X5 (E)

2014 2013
—E-MF —E—=%F
Pricing basis Amount Amount
of related party S5 k|
transaction RMB RMB
Subsidiary FRal B A2 5 EBIKIE AR¥TT AR
Jingkelong Langfang REREY  Price negotiated
BT B IR HER 1,749,600 1,699,200
4 Interest income from entrusted loans 4 ZEHRFERELIEFE
WA
2014 2013
—E—-F —=F—=
Pricing basis Amount Amount
of related party S5 k|
transaction RMB RMB
Subsidiary FRal RG22 5 BIKIE AR¥TT AR
Chaopi Trading B E Prevailing interest
rate of bank loans
R EARTTE SR F &
R 38,473,518 26,390,220

ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

Xll. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S () RBEIMBHRREEEETR(E)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions 46 - BB S REB AR5 (&)
(Continued)
(1) Inter-group transactions (Continued) (1) EBEXSBEELXS(E)
5  Others — Promotions income 5 At —1E#FEHA
2014 2013
—E—mEF —T—=F
Pricing basis Amount Amount
of related party ot Gkt
transaction RMB RMB
Subsidiary FRF] Rl X 5 TE BIKE AR AREETT
Chaopi Trading I E Price negotiated
BT R BB R 18,572,104 17,908,596
Chaopi Zhongde PG Price negotiated
LT R B R HER 9,934,256 5,278,708
Chaopi Huaging BHLEEE Price negotiated
RETHhEBIRER 3,497,580 2,860,850
Chaopi Flavourings AL AR S Price negotiated
RETTHEBIRER 3,075,726 1,578,145
Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales  B#it [ZJhfg Price negotiated
R R ERER 1,888,262 3,358,176
Chaopi Shuanglong AL E Price negotiated
LT R B IRHER 1,160,797 2,152,480
Chaopi Shenshi AL AR Price negotiated
REFTHEBRER 517,689 -
Chaopi Shenglong EIzEiiR21S Price negotiated
RE T HEBIRER 256,172 73,200
(2) Balance of other related party transactions (2) RMEHAXEHHE
1 Accounts receivable 1 ERERS
2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—ZE—mEF —T—=%
tT=RA=+—-R | t=A=+—-H
Amount Amount
o] ik}
RMB RMB
Subsidiary SaVNC] AR¥TT ARMETT
Jingkelong Langfang RS 92,215,140 90,845,680
Jingkelong Tongzhou REREEMN 19,147,272 20,509,866
Shouchao Group EHiEEE 46,321,839 56,272,182

2014 F3R =
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR |
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(2) Balance of other related party transactions

(Continued)

2 Other receivables

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

46 - BB A REABAE XS (&)

(2) HRMBEBHXZHHE(E)

2 EEHK

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-mF —E=-=fF

+=—BA=+—H +-—A=+—H

Amount Amount

ot | G-t

RMB RMB

Subsidiary FRF] AR®TT ARHETT

Chaopi Trading R E 450,000,000 63,560,042

Shoulian Supermarket BT 45,000,000 22,781

Jingkelong Tongzhou R @M 25,279,063 25,993,303

Xinyang Tongli fREZ 3@ h 3,000,000 -

Chaopi Zhongde LIS - 955,199

Chaopi Flavourings FRL AR @ - 611,727

Chaopi Huaqging BARLEEE - 448,614

Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales LR E AR - 236,344

Chaopi Shuanglong T EE - 124,377
3 Entrusted Loan 3 ZREH

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-mF —ET—=F

+=BA=+—H +=-A=+—8H

Amount Amount

ot | G-t

RMB RMB

Subsidiary FRFA] AR% T AREETT

Chaopi Trading AEE 450,000,000 600,000,000
4 Prepayments 4 FETEEH

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E—-mF —T—=F

+=B=+—H +=—RA=+—8H

Amount Amount

k- Gt

RMB RMB

Subsidiary S a/NE] AR¥T ARHEETT

Xinyang Tongli iR 538 7 1,510,000 -

3 ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 20144 12831H It FE

(Continued)

(Continued)

Other current assets

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(2) Balance of other related party transactions

(DA AU BHRREIERETEE)

46 BB A REABLR S (&)

(2) HMEBAIXZHH(E)

b EMuBAE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E—mF —ET—=F

+=ZHA=+—-8 | +t=ZA=+—8©

Amount Amount

X el

RMB RMB

Subsidiary FRF] AR¥TT AR

Chaopi Trading it E 187,917 187,917

Accounts payable 6 ENERK

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-lF —E—=F

+=ZA=+—-8H| +=—A=+—8~

Amount Amount

-0l &5

RMB RMB

Subsidiary FRHa] AR® T AR

Chaopi Trading HYEE 40,739,009 61,750,644

Chaopi Zhongde Bt 23,709,749 17,184,816

Chaopi Flavourings BHHL AR G 20,976,771 14,396,973

Chaopi Huaging SHitEF 17,380,801 16,345,633

Chaopi Shuanglong SRR 13,599,481 15,186,930

Chaopi Shengshi AL AR 11,681,453 -

Chaopi Jinglong Oil Sales LR B A 7,608,794 8,774,234

Xinyang Tongli fRE% 38 7 851,895 811,060

Chaopi Shenglong SHAL AR 2 563,869 571,958
Other payables 7 EthE

2014.12.31 2013.12.31

—E-lE —T—=F

+=ZHA=+—-8| +t=ZA=+—¢©

Amount Amount

&5 &5

RMB RMB

Subsidiary FRAF AR®TT ARETT

Xinyang Tongli kP53 2,350,129 2,402,481

R REEEEERGBRAR

2014 43R @ -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B A5 ¥R M et

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 2014 12831H 1L F&

XIl. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN THE COMPANY’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46. Related parties and related party transactions

(Continued)

(2) Balance of other related party transactions

(1) DM BRREEHB TR (E)

46 - BB A REABAE XS (&)

(2) HRMBEBHXZHHE(E)

R

(Continued)

8  Advances from customers

Subsidiary FNF]

Shouchao Group BHRE

8 FEMHIA

2014.12.31 2013.12.31
—E-NEFE —F—=
+=—BA=+—H +-—A=+—H

Amount Amount
&8 &8
RMB RMB

AR®TT ARHETT

- 4,038,872

(3) Guarantees with inter-group related party

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company did not make any guarantees in respect of

its subsidiaries’ loans.

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
the Company’s guarantees for its subsidiary Chaopi

Trading’s short-term loans are shown in Note VI 17-2.

On 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company’s subsidiary Chaopi Trading guarantees for

its short-term loans are shown in Note VI 17-2.

Except for the eliminated inter-group related party
transactions mentioned above, details for other related

party transactions and balances are shown in Note VII.
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(3) FEERAZEHLER

R2014512 A31 8 k201345124
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XIll. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT (t3) BriEsRz 2 #tE
The Company’s and consolidated financial statements were RRABKR B RA P EIR T 201563 A
approved by the board of directors on 27 March 2015. CTHBREADRRESSHAE -

2014 &
IR R EEAEEERGBR AR
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
B EAPE

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and equity

of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

Company’s annual reports, is set out below.

NTABEAEENBEREVBREE 2 %48 &
E ARREAZHE:

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—B-mE | —T-=F T T —F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AREFT ARETT AREFT
Results #5
Revenue EEEBRA 10,007,135 9,629,191 9,205,360 8,632,531 7,438,729
Profit before tax ekt 132,503 143,485 229,629 352,968 305,011
Income tax expense e &R (43,641) (43,169) (57,824) (79,957) (76,510)
Profit for the year R 88,862 100,316 171,805 273,011 228,501
Attributable to: EZRETA
Shareholders of the parent RARIMEE
E)eFlbE 41,330 57,056 105,105 210,160 180,502
Minority interests DE R EERE 47,532 43,260 66,700 62,851 47,999
88,862 100,316 171,805 273,011 228,501
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-F —T—=F “E-CF —E——F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBEFT AREBFT ARETR AREFT
Assets, Liabilities and Equity BE 8ERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,475,179 2,482,067 2,377,251 2,281,615 2,153,416
Current assets MEEE 4,766,324 4,667,991 4,137,258 4,045,886 3,371,577
Current liabilities nEaE (4,261,812) |  (4,064,904)  (4,287,849)  (4,210,344)  (3,365,476)
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(AE)
it 504,512 603,087 (150,591) (164,458) 6,101
Total assets less current liabilities ~ #&ERREN B E 2,979,691 3,085,154 2,226,660 2,117,157 2,159,517
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (884,626) | (1,008,803 (226,612) (225,040) (454,759)
Net assets EEE 2,095,065 2,076,351 2,000,048 1,892,117 1,704,758
Equity attributable to shareholders 53 BEHA A
of the parent R 1,653,680 1,654,780 1,644,044 1,619,871 1,492,559
Minority interests DY R 441,385 421,571 356,004 272,246 212,199
Total equity FEl@N 2,095,065 2,076,351 2,000,048 1,892,117 1,704,758

Note: the data from 2010 to 2011 is prepared in accordance with Hong Kong i
Accounting Standard, and the data of 2012 to 2014 is prepared in

accordance with China Accounting Standard for Business Enterprise.
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